
 

 

 

 
To: Members of the Cabinet Date: 

 
6 January 2014 
 

 Direct Dial: 
 

01824712589 

 e-mail: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the CABINET to be held at 10.00 am on TUESDAY, 
14 JANUARY 2014 in CONFERENCE ROOM 1A, COUNTY HALL, RUTHIN. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
G Williams 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 
 
AGENDA 

 
PART 1 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO ATTEND THIS PART OF 

THE MEETING 

 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at this meeting.   
 

3 URGENT MATTERS   

 Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972.   
 

4 MINUTES  (Pages 5 - 12) 

 To receive the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 17 December 2013   
(copy enclosed).   
 

Public Document Pack



 

5 PROPOSED CLOSURE OF YSGOL LLANBEDR  (Pages 13 - 298) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Eryl Williams, Lead Member for Education 
(copy enclosed) detailing the findings of the formal consultation on the 
proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr as of 31 August 2014 and transfer existing 
pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference, and seeking 
Cabinet approval to publish a statutory notice on the proposal. 
 

6 FRAMEWORK FOR INTEGRATED SERVICES FOR OLDER PEOPLE  
(Pages 299 - 334) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Bobby Feeley, Lead Member for Social 
Care, Adult and Children’s Services (copy enclosed) informing members of 
the Welsh Government’s intention to establish integrated health and social 
care services for older people with complex needs, and seeking Cabinet’s 
approval of the draft Statement of Intent document for submission to the 
Welsh Government in response. 
 

7 COMMON ALLOCATIONS POLICY - SINGLE ACCESS ROUTE TO 

HOUSING  (Pages 335 - 390) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Hugh Irving, Lead Member for Customers 
and Communities (copy enclosed) updating members on the development of 
a Single Access Route to Housing across the North East Wales sub region 
and seeking Cabinet approval of the Common Allocations Policy for 
implementation locally. 
 

8 BUSINESS RATES POLICY DEVELOPMENTS IN WALES  (Pages 391 - 
402) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for 
Finance and Assets (copy enclosed) regarding legislative changes to 
Business Rates to promote new developments and bring back into use long 
term empty properties, and seeking Cabinet’s adoption of the two new 
schemes. 
 

9 DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF  (Pages 403 - 422) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for 
Finance and Assets (copy enclosed) reviewing the levels of Discretionary 
Rate Relief awarded to Charities and Non Profit making organisations and 
seeking Cabinet approval of proposed amendments to the Discretionary Rate 
Relief Criteria. 
 

10 BUDGET 2014 / 2015  (Pages 423 - 434) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for 
Finance and Assets (copy enclosed) providing an update on the budget 
setting process and detailing proposals to be approved by County Council to 
set the Council’s revenue budget for 2014/15. 
 



 

11 FINANCE REPORT   

 To consider a report by Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for 
Finance and Assets (copy to follow) detailing the latest financial position and 
progress against the agreed budget strategy. 
 

12 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 435 - 438) 

 To receive the enclosed Cabinet Forward Work Programme and note the 
contents.   
 

PART 2 - CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 

 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
It is recommended in accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, that the Press and Public be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration  of the following item of business because it is 
likely that exempt information as defined in paragraph 14 of Part 4 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed.   
 

13 NORTH WALES SCHOOLS AND PUBLIC BUILDINGS CONTRACTOR 

FRAMEWORK  (Pages 439 - 552) 

 To consider a confidential report by Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead 
Member for Finance and Assets (copy enclosed) recommending the 
appointment of named contractors to the North Wales Schools and Public 
Buildings Contractor Framework. 
 

14 FUTURE OF CLWYD LEISURE LIMITED   

 To consider a confidential report by Councillor Huw Jones, Lead Member for 
Leisure, Youth, Tourism and Rural Development (copy to follow) on the future 
delivery options for the facilities currently operated by Clwyd Leisure Limited. 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 

Councillors 

 
Hugh Evans 
Julian Thompson-Hill 
Eryl Williams 
Bobby Feeley 

Hugh Irving 
Huw Jones 
Barbara Smith 
David Smith 
 

COPIES TO: 

 
All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CABINET 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet held in Conference Room 1a, County Hall, Ruthin on 
Tuesday, 17 December 2013 at 10.00 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillors Hugh Evans, Leader and Lead Member for Economic Development; 
Bobby Feeley, Lead Member for Social Care, Adult and Children's Services; Hugh Irving, 
Lead Member for Customers and Communities; Huw Jones, Lead Member for Leisure, 
Youth, Tourism and Rural Development; Barbara Smith, Lead Member for Modernising 
and Performance, David Smith, Lead Member for Public Realm, Julian Thompson-Hill, 
Lead Member for Finance and Assets and Eryl Williams, Deputy Leader and Lead 
Member for Education 
 
Observers: Councillors Joan Butterfield, Bill Cowie, Meirick Davies, Huw Hilditch-
Roberts, Martyn Holland, Jason McLellan, Dewi Owens and David Simmons 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

 
Chief Executive (MM); Corporate Directors: Economic and Community Ambition (RM), 
Customers (HW), Modernisation and Wellbeing (SE); Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services (GW); Head of Finance and Assets (PM); Head of Business Planning and 
Performance (AS); Corporate Programme Manager (KA); Senior Technical Officer Waste 
(AR); Head of Highways and Environmental Services (SP); Head of Education (KE), 
Head of Customers and Education Support (JW); Programme Manager – Modernising 
Education (JC); HR Services Manager (CR) and Committee Administrator (KEJ). 
 

 
WELCOME 
 
The Leader welcomed everyone to the meeting.  A special mention was made to Ysgol 
Dinas Bran pupils who were attending to observe proceedings. 
 
PETITION 
 
Councillor Martyn Holland presented to the Leader a petition on behalf of Llandegla 
Community Council requesting the Council introduce a 20 mph default speed limit in 
Llandegla on all residential roads.  The Leader acknowledged the petition indicating that it 
would be forwarded to the Head of Highways and Environmental Services for 
consideration. 
 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
There were no apologies. 
 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
No declaration of personal or prejudicial interest had been raised. 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



3 URGENT MATTERS  
 
No urgent matters had been raised. 
 

4 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 26 November 2013 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 26 November 2013 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Leader. 
 

5 YSGOL CLOCAENOG AND YSGOL CYFFYLLIOG  
 
Councillor Eryl Williams presented the report detailing the findings of the formal 
consultation for the future of Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog and seeking 
support to publish the required statutory proposals for the closure of both schools 
and create a new area school. 
 
Members were provided with background to the proposal arising from the review of 
primary schools in the Ruthin area to allow investment to improve educational 
facilities whilst also reducing the overall level of surplus places.  The report related 
to one of the six proposals approved by Cabinet on 25 June 2013. 
 
During debate it was clarified that due to the size of the Ruthin review it had been 
necessary to carry out the process in stages and this proposal had been submitted 
during the first stage because of the requirement for a statutory notice.  Further 
proposals relating to other schools would be presented at the appropriate stage 
within the overall review process.  Assurances were provided that no one proposal 
had been prioritised over another and funding requirements would be submitted to 
Cabinet at the same time.  Current funding commitments together with indicative 
projects and costs subject of the review had been appended to the report. 
 
Members raised questions and sought assurances regarding various aspects of the 
proposal.  Councillor Bobby Feeley acknowledged the difficulties and extensive 
work involved in carrying out the Ruthin area review but questioned the viability of 
the proposals.  She expressed reservations regarding the justification for particular 
proposals, highlighting a number of areas of concern, and questioned the reasoning 
behind the recommendations and potential implications for a new Ruthin school. 
 
The following responses were provided to issues raised by members – 
 

• funding for school transport would be provided for pupils to the new school 
whilst it existed on two sites 

• concerns regarding suitability of the road network had been acknowledged and 
efforts would be made to ensure roads were passable and a priority for gritting 

• the capacity and admission number of the new building would be determined as 
part of the design process to ensure significant surplus places were not created 

• the reasons behind the decision to amalgamate the two schools as opposed to 
federating were detailed with the vast catchment area; remoteness of the 
locations, and pupil numbers across both schools being pertinent factors 

Page 6



• the proposed model would strengthen educational provision and ensure pupils 
received the best opportunities and curriculum delivery possible 

• the categorisation process for the amount of Welsh medium education delivered 
within schools generally was explained. 

 
In response to questions relating to proposals for other Ruthin area schools officers 
provided an update on progress and clarified the reasoning behind the individual 
proposals based on a number of factors pertinent to those schools.  Councillor Eryl 
Williams reaffirmed his commitment to a new school in Ruthin and pledged to 
ensure the Ruthin area would receive first class quality education and facilities as a 
result of the review process. 
 
Councillor David Smith highlighted the complex nature of the review and supported 
the proposal for the future of Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog to ensure quality 
education for the area.  Councillor Hugh Irving added his support for the proposal in 
order to deliver the best education for future generations.  The Leader 
acknowledged difficult decisions needed to be made emphasising members’ 
responsibility to ensure sustainability and improvement in education standards. 
 

RESOLVED that Cabinet – 
 
(a)  notes the findings of the formal consultation for the closure of Ysgol 

Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog and the opening of a new area school on the 
two existing sites; 

 
(b) approves the publication of a statutory notice for the closure of Ysgol 

Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog on the 31 August 2014 and to open a new 
area school on the existing sites on the 1 September 2014, and 

 
(c)  confirm the commitment to work towards delivering a new area school on 

one site subject to the availability of capital funding. 
 
Councillor Bobby Feeley abstained from voting on the above resolution. 
 

6 PUBLIC REALM STRATEGY  
 
Councillor David Smith presented the report seeking Cabinet’s endorsement of the 
draft Public Realm Strategy and associated Improvement Plan (attached to the 
report) outlining the way in which the Council intended to deal with issues affecting 
the public realm within the county. 
 
The Strategy had been produced in order to develop clarity and coherence, ensure 
better joint working and a more corporate approach to dealing with public realm 
issues as recommended by a recent Internal Audit report.  In advocating the 
Strategy Councillor Smith elaborated upon the four strategic principles which had 
been embedded into the document. 
 
The Chair of Communities Scrutiny Committee, Councillor Huw Hilditch-Roberts 
provided an overview of the scrutiny debate on the Strategy confirming the 
committee had been happy to endorse the Strategy subject to the inclusion of 

Page 7



references to the Council’s culture; the importance of consultation and a 
coordinated and collaborative approach together with identified key goals and 
objectives. 
 
Cabinet considered the report and discussed the following issues – 
 

• responsibility for maintaining play areas was raised and Councillor Huw Jones 
expressed concerns that County Council signage was located in some play 
areas for which they were not responsible which may have implications in terms 
of liability – he asked that this issue be explored further and that those liable for 
maintaining play areas be made aware of their responsibilities in ensuring the 
maintenance and safety of play equipment.  The Head of Highways and 
Environmental Services (HHES) provided assurances that play area inspections 
were carried out and those liable were made aware of their responsibilities 
through that process.  He agreed to report back on the number of play areas 
within the county and those responsible for them.  The Corporate Director 
Customers agreed to communicate with town/community councils on the issue 
to clarify any misunderstanding which might exist 

• the development of a fly posting policy and procedures was planned during 
2014/15 in order to manage that issue 

• Councillor Barbara Smith highlighted a number of issues raised in the Quarter 2 
Corporate Plan relating to public realm and in particular asked that fly tipping be 
included as a specific improvement activity within the document.  It was noted 
that Communities Scrutiny Committee would be scrutinising the management of 
fly tipping at their next meeting 

• in response to an issue raised by Councillor Bobby Feeley the HHES reported 
upon the tendering process and award of the contract for supplying hanging 
baskets to Aberwheeler Nurseries 

• the Leader highlighted the importance of developing a link with town and areas 
plans at an early stage within the strategy and the HHES confirmed that many of 
those plans already contained a number of public realm actions 

• with regard to the Street Sign Audit Councillor Huw Jones reported upon the 
work of the Bilingual Forum in order to take forward the language issue 

• Councillor Joan Butterfield highlighted forecourt trading as an issue in Rhyl 
Town Centre and asked that it be included within the Strategy.  Councillor David 
Smith confirmed it was also an enforcement issue for officers to investigate. 

 
Members welcomed the strategy in order to provide a coherent and coordinated 
approach to public realm issues and taking into account comments made it was – 
 

RESOLVED that Cabinet – 
 
(a)  endorses the draft Public Realm Strategy and Improvement Plan subject to 

the inclusion in the Improvement Plan of more detail regarding improvement 
activities in respect of fly tipping and forecourt trading, and 

 
(b) agrees to a review of the Improvement Plan to be undertaken annually, with 

updates on progress provided through the Service Challenge process for the 
relevant services, and with the involvement of the Lead Member. 

 

Page 8



7 CORPORATE PLAN PERFORMANCE REPORT (QUARTER 2 2013/14)  
 
Councillor Barbara Smith presented the report updating Cabinet on the delivery of 
the Corporate Plan 2012 – 17 at the end of quarter 2 of 2013/14.  The report 
summarised each outcome in the Corporate Plan and key performance aspects.  
Overall the report showed acceptable progress made in delivering the Plan. 
 
Performance Scrutiny Committee had considered the report and Councillor Smith 
provided an overview of the scrutiny debate highlighting a number of concerns and 
recommendations.  She also stressed the importance of ensuring service data was 
available at the earliest opportunity in order to produce measureable outcomes.  
The Chair of Performance Scrutiny Committee, Councillor David Simmons 
reiterated the committee’s main concerns which related to – 
 

• the percentage of completed performance appraisals 

• the use of mobile classrooms across the county 

• the median income figures used to calculate deprivation 
 
It was noted that reports on the use of mobile classrooms and fly tipping would be 
considered by the scrutiny committee in January and it would also be monitoring 
the percentage of performance appraisals completed.  In response to the issues 
raised and questions posed by members during the ensuing debate the following 
responses were received – 
 

• the latest figures available had been used to calculate indicators for tackling 
deprivation and poverty and it was acknowledged that since then more up to 
date figures had been published 

• poor performance for completing appraisals may be partly due to recording 
mechanisms and work was ongoing to address that issue 

• fly tipping had been identified as an issue because incidents had been recorded 
differently from other councils – most incidents involved trade waste which was 
not accepted at recycling centres 

• the outcome of the proportion of adult population unable to live independently 
had been due to an historical issue involving benefit legislation 

• carbon emissions had been reduced to such a level that the council was no 
longer required to be part of the tariff scheme and the spend on energy costs 
suggested that levels had been addressed – new measures for carbon 
emissions would soon be introduced in order to measure success 

• the Economic Ambition Board had agreed a business plan in order to address 
the reliability of digital/mobile signal premises received 

• a review of fleet vehicles had been recently undertaken and both vehicle size 
and numbers had been reduced creating savings of approximately £250k. 

 
The Chief Executive advised that progress in delivering the Corporate Plan was as 
expected for the time of year and drew members’ attention to the following – 
 

• the excellent outcome overall in successfully enabling vulnerable people to live 
independently in Denbighshire 

• the completion of performance appraisals would be addressed as a priority 

Page 9



• particular indicators for Education and Roads raised some concern and would 
require further investigation and challenge. 

 

RESOLVED that Cabinet notes progress made in delivering the Corporate Plan. 
 
At this juncture (11.45 a.m.) the meeting adjourned for a refreshment break. 
 

8 CONTRACT RENEWAL - MATRIX  
 
Councillor Barbara Smith presented the report seeking Cabinet’s support to renew 
the current contract with Matrix SCM, via the MSTAR framework, for managing the 
Council’s agency workers thus improving control, safeguarding and visibility as well 
as delivering efficiency savings. 
 
The contract was part of a collaborative agreement with Flintshire and Wrexham 
local authorities.  Due to the value of the contract there was a requirement to obtain 
approval from Cabinet to proceed.  It was confirmed that there were no financial 
implications arising from the recommendation because it involved the renewal of an 
existing contract.  In response to questions the HR Services Manager reported 
upon the process of monitoring the contract and provided further detail of the 
savings delivered since using Matrix SCM. 
 

RESOLVED that Cabinet agreed to renew the Matrix Contract via the MSTAR 
framework. 
 

9 FINANCE REPORT  
 
Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill presented the report detailing the latest financial 
position and progress against the agreed budget strategy.  He provided a summary 
of the Council’s financial position as follows – 
 

• an under spend of £656k was forecast across service and corporate budgets 

• 72% of agreed savings had been achieved to date (target £3.061m) 

• highlighted key variances from budgets or savings targets relating to individual 
service areas 

• a positive movement of £45k on school balances brought forward from 2012/13 

• a general update on the Capital Plan and Housing Revenue Account. 
 
The Leader drew members’ attention to the Corporate Plan element in the Capital 
Plan detailing projects for capital expenditure including schools. 
 

RESOLVED that Cabinet note the latest financial position and progress against the 
agreed budget strategy. 
 

10 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Councillor Hugh Evans presented the Cabinet Forward Work Programme for 
consideration.  Cabinet noted a report on Town and Area Plans would be submitted 
in January and a report on the National Model for School Improvement would be 

Page 10



submitted in February.  It was also noted that the report on Clwyd Leisure 
scheduled for January may be delayed. 
 

RESOLVED that Cabinet’s Forward Work Programme be noted. 
 

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED that under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the Press and 
Public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds 
that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 14 of 
Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
11 AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR RESIDUAL WASTE DISPOSAL  

 
Councillor David Smith presented the confidential report seeking Cabinet’s approval 
to award contracts for the disposal of collected residual waste.  Information on the 
tendering process together with the reasoning behind the recommendations to split 
the work between two bidders had been included within the report.  Cabinet 
approval was required as the contract exceeded £1m. 
 
Cabinet discussed the details of the contract with officers who clarified particular 
issues in response to questions thereon.  Members noted the benefits of awarding 
two contracts for the disposal of residual waste and it was – 
 

RESOLVED that Cabinet approves the award of two contracts to the named 
contractors as detailed in the report. 
 
The meeting concluded at 12.25 p.m. 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Report To:    Cabinet 
 
Date of Meeting:   14th January 2014 
 
Lead Member / Officer:  Councillor Eryl Williams, Lead Member for Education 
 
Report Author:  Head of Customers and Education Support 
 
Title:     Proposed closure of Ysgol Llanbedr  
 

 
1. What is this report about? 
  
This report is to inform Cabinet members of the findings of the Formal Consultation 
that took place from the 11th of November 2013 to the 23rd of December 2013 
regarding the following proposal; 
 
Proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr as of the 31st of August 2014 and to transfer 
existing pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference. 
 
2. What is the reason for making this report? 
 
A decision is required by Cabinet to approve the publication of a statutory notice to 
close Ysgol Llanbedr as of the 31st of August 2014.  
 
3. What are the recommendations? 
 
The recommendation is that Cabinet approve the publication of a statutory notice on 
the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr as of the 31st of August 2014 with existing 
pupils transferring to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference. 
 
4. Background to Proposal 
 
4.1 In November 2012, Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the 

commencement of the Ruthin Area Review encompassing 11 primary schools 
within the Ruthin area. The Informal Consultation was held between the 4th of 
February 2013 and the 22nd of March 2013.  

 
4.2 On the 25th of June Cabinet approved 6 proposals (these can be found in 

Appendix A) as a result of the findings of the informal consultation. Following a 
period of consultation with the St. Asaph Church in Wales Diocesan Authority, 
Cabinet on the 29th of October, approved the commencement of the Formal 
Consultation relating to one of these proposals, namely the closure of Ysgol 
Llanbedr as of the 31st of August 2014. 

 
5.   Report Details- Ysgol Llanbedr  
   
5.1 Denbighshire County Council has undertaken a period of Formal Consultation on 

the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr as of the 31st of August 2014 and transfer 
existing pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference. As the 

Agenda Item 5

Page 13



 
 

proposal is to close a Church in Wales Voluntary Controlled School the proposal 
refers to Ysgol Borthyn, which has the same designation, as the alternative 
school.   

 
5.2 The Formal Consultation began on the 11th of November 2013 and ended on the 

23rd of December 2013. During the consultation period a number of meetings 
were held with stakeholders including parents, Governing Bodies, staff and 
children; 

 

Consultation Meeting Date 
Ysgol Llanbedr Parents Meeting 19/11/2013 

Ysgol Llanbedr Staff Meeting 25/11/2013 

Ysgol Llanbedr Governing Body Meeting 02/12/2013 

Ysgol Llanbedr School Council N/A (permission refused) 

Ysgol Borthyn Parents Meeting 20/11/2013 

Ysgol Borthyn Staff Meeting 13/11/2013 

Ysgol Borthyn Governing Body Meeting 20/11/2013 

Ysgol Borthyn School Council 05/11/2013 

 
5.3 A standard response form was issued to consultees in hardcopy which was 

attached to the formal consultation document. The standard response form was 
also provided electronically via ‘Survey Monkey’ in both English and Welsh. 
Details on how to respond to the Formal Consultation were published within the 
Formal Consultation documents, via Denbighshire County Councils website and 
in a press release. 

 
5.4 In total 50 letters and emails were received during the Formal Consultation 

period. In addition 85 standard response forms were received (hardcopy and 
electronic) and a two file Formal Consultation was submitted by the school 
containing standard response forms (some had already been received by the 
authority) and 61 community questionnaires were also included within the 
submission.  

 

Formal Consultation Findings 
 

5.5 Below is a summary of the key themes that emerged during the Formal 
Consultation. The Formal Consultation Report, (see Appendix D) details these 
issues together with the response from Denbighshire County Council; 

 
� Ysgol Llanbedr provides an excellent level of education and is above the 

Denbighshire and Wales average for Key Stage 2 Level 4+ attainment. Provision in 
Ysgol Borthyn is not of the same standard; want the same or better standard of 
education. 
 

� Pupils who transferred to Ysgol Borthyn would have to be taught in a mobile 
classroom; the site does not have the same grounds and facilities as Ysgol 
Llanbedr; the building is not fit for purpose; there is not sufficient capacity. 

 

Page 14



 
 

� Previous issues around leadership and management at the school which 
resulted in a significant decrease in pupil numbers (2011-2012) has not been 
taken into account regarding the current pupil numbers; failure by the LEA. 
 

� Numbers are growing at Ysgol Llanbedr and the school will be back to full 
capacity in a few years. 
 

� Ysgol Llanbedr has been treated unfairly in the review process with other 
schools not being proposed with closure, even those with similar % of surplus 
places. 
 

� Closure of Ysgol Llanbedr would limit parental choice; Ysgol Llanbedr 
provides and English Medium, Faith based education in a rural setting, no 
other school provides this.  

 

� Faith education is being undermined by closure of Ysgol Llanbedr and 
proposals within the wider review. 

 
� Other options, such as Federation, have not been considered for Ysgol 

Llanbedr but have been considered for other schools such as Ysgol Clocaenog 
and Ysgol Cyffylliog.  
 

 
� The proposal is not generating large savings; document states £68,000 

 

6. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 
The proposal supports the priority of “Improving performance in education and the 
quality of our school buildings” and has been highlighted as a work stream as 
follows; 
 
“We will continue to review school provision across the County to ensure we 
provide the right number of school places, of the right type, in the right 
location.” 
 
7. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
The proposal will not have an effect on other services within the organisation.  
 
The proposal will result in an initial revenue saving of £68,000 per annum, this 
£68,000 would be used for prudential borrowing. At the current prudential borrowing 
rate this £68,000 would generate approximately £884k based on the current 
borrowing rate. This would be allocated for future projects. 
 
Based on all existing pupils transferring to Ysgol Borthyn in Ruthin the transport 
costs have been estimated at around £26,000 (for pupils eligible under the 
Denbighshire School Transport Policy). Cost of provision in Ysgol Llanbedr is £8,498 
per pupil, this is the second highest rate per pupil within Denbighshire. The cost of 
provision in Ysgol Borthyn is £4,583 per pupil, this would be reduced if a number of 

Page 15



 
 

pupils transferred from Ysgol Llanbedr to Ysgol Borthyn should the Current Proposal 
be implemented 
 

8. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 
undertaken on the decision?  The completed EqIA template should be attached 
as an appendix to the report. 
 
8.1 The EqIA undertaken in relation to the proposal highlights that Ysgol Llanbedr is 
a Voluntary Controlled school (Church in Wales) which provides a faith based 
primary education in the Medium of English. If the proposal where to progress this 
provision would cease in Llanbedr.  
 
8.2 Ysgol Borthyn has been named as the alternative school in the proposal as the 
school also provides a faith based English Medium education within 3 miles of the 
village of Llanbedr.   
 
8.3 The full EqIA can be found in Appendix C.  
 

9. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 

     A full Formal Consultation has been carried out with all stakeholders and the findings 
of the Formal Consultation can be found in the main body of the report.  
 
10. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 
The proposed closure will make savings on the schools' budget and reduce the costs 
per pupil. The savings will be retained within the schools' budget, but any increase in 
the school transport budget will have to be funded by the Council. This increase will 
have to be included in future budget considerations. 
 
11. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 
There is a strong possibility that the proposal could result in adverse publicity for the 
Council and in adverse public comments.   

 
To minimise this risk the Council will seek to ensure clear communication with all 
stakeholders. 
 
12. Power to make the Decision 
 
School Standards and Organisations (Wales) Act 2013 
Modernising Education Policy Framework (approved by Cabinet January 2009) 
 
 

Page 16



Appendix A 

Progress of Ruthin Area Proposals 

Appendix 1 – Progress on Ruthin Proposals 

Proposal 

 

Progress Indicative Timescale 

1. Creation of new Area School to serve the communities of 

Clocaenog and Cyffylliog. 

 

The formal consultation period started on the 9th of 

September and came to an end on the 22nd of October. 

The findings of the consultation were presented to 

Cabinet on the 17
th

 of December 2013, a decision was 

made to publish the statutory notice to close both 

schools as of the 31
st
 August 2014 and create a establish 

a new Area School on two sites.  

January 2014 – 

Statutory Notice . 

Existing Schools to close – 31st 

August 2014. 

New School to open on existing 

sites. 

2. Closure of Ysgol Llanbedr with the transfer of pupils to Ysgol 

Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference. 

 

The formal consultation period started on the 11th of 

November and will come to an end on the 23rd of 

December 2013. 

Existing school to close – 31st 

August 2014. 

3. Ruthin Town Area -  Further detailed feasibility works be 

undertaken prior to the confirmation of any formal 

recommendations for Rhos Street School, Ysgol Borthyn, Ysgol 

Penbarras and Ysgol Rhewl . 

Develop Feasibility Brief. 

 

Identify Best Practice in shared school models and 

design.  

Work is being be progressed in 

early 2014.  

4.  To recommend to the Governing Bodies of Ysgol Pentrecelyn 

and Ysgol Llanfair DC that they form a federation to be in place 

no later than 1st September 2014.  

 

Initial discussions with both Governing Bodies.   Indication of intention – January 

2014. 

Federation to be established 1st 

of September 2014. 

5. Support for retaining the Federation of Ysgol Bryn Clwyd & 

Ysgol Gellifor and in moving one or both schools along the 

language continuum.  

 

The Education department have started to work with 

both schools. 

Moving the schools along the 

continuum is a long term 

project. 

6. Retention of Ysgol Bro Famau and review current capacity of 

the school. 

 

Discussions regarding the current use of school space are 

due to be started. 

To be completed by end of 

January 2014. 

 

P
age 17



P
age 18

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Community and Welsh Language Impact 

 

Proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC from August 31

transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Community and Welsh Language Impact 

Assessment  

Proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC from August 31

transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental 

preference 

January 2014 

APPENDIX B 

Community and Welsh Language Impact 

Proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC from August 31
st

 2014 and 

subject to parental 

Page 19



 

Table of Contents 

1. Introduction  

2. National Context 

3. Local Context 

4. Area Reviews  

5. Community Use of Schools 

6. Promoting Bi-lingualism  

7. Background 

8. Sources of Information  

9. Ysgol Llanbedr DC 

10. Community Impact Assessment  

11. Summary of potential impact on community and families 

12. Welsh Language Impact Assessment  

13. Summary of potential impact on the Welsh Language 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



 

1.    Introduction 

1.1  Denbighshire County Council is proposing to close Ysgol Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd (Ysgol 

Llanbedr DC) on the 31
st

 of August 2014 and transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin, 

subject to parental preference. 

2.    National Context  

2.1 The Welsh Assembly Government Circular 021/2009 on School Organisation Proposals 

requires local authorities to conduct a Community Impact Assessment and a Welsh 

Language Impact Assessment when proposing changes to school organisation. 

 

2.2  The Circular stipulates that local authorities need to consider: 

  

� “the impact that proposals may have on local families and the local community, 

through preparation of a community impact assessment” 

 

� “the effect of the Welsh language through the preparation of a language impact 

assessment if any school affected is Welsh medium  or bilingual” 

 

2.3 The WG has recently passed a new piece of legislation; the School Standards and 

Organisation (Wales) Act 2013. This act requires the production of a Schools 

Organisation Code (the Code) which will replace the Circular. The Code contains similar 

requirements to the circular but extends the explanation of what must and should be 

considered by local authorities; it pulls together and codifies existing best practice. 

3.    Local Context 

3.1 Denbighshire is committed to modernising education in the county to ensure children 

and young people receive a first class education.  

3.2  We recognise the importance of having modern and fit for purpose buildings that meet 

the needs of modern day education. Schools need to be able to provide the best 

Page 21



 

possible learning experience to make sure that children and young people have the best 

opportunities available to them and that they are able to reach their full potential. 

3.3 The council adopted the Modernising Education Policy Framework on the 27 January 

2009. The policy framework is a collection of 10 policies developed to provide the basis 

for the modernising education agenda. 

 

4.    Area Reviews 

4.1 The policy framework commits the Council to reviewing primary school provision on an 

area basis in recognition of the fact that changes to a school will have an impact upon 

neighbouring schools. 

5.    Community Use of Schools 

5.1 One of the policies contained within the framework relates to ‘Community Use of 

Schools’ and highlights Denbighshire’s commitment to community focused schools. The 

policy also stipulates that the authority will conduct community impact assessments 

when considering changes to school organisation. 

6.    Promoting Bilingualism 

6.1 The framework also contains a policy on promoting bilingualism. Denbighshire County 

Council recognises how important bilingualism is in 21st Century Wales. It is the 

Council’s aspiration that all children and young people leave full time education being 

competent and confident using both Welsh and English languages. This aspiration is in 

accordance with the Welsh Assembly Government's 'Iaith Pawb: A National Action Plan 

for a Bilingual Wales'. 

 

6.2 The Council is committed to expanding the provision of Welsh medium education 

throughout the County to meet this aspiration. All schools in the County have been 

categorised according to the expected language outcome for pupils. There is an 

expectation that schools will increase and strengthen the bilingual nature of their 

Page 22



 

school over time and will work towards moving up through the categories so that more 

pupils have the opportunity to be fully bilingual. 

 

7.    Background 

7.1  The council’s Cabinet approved the Modernising Education Policy Framework in January 

2009 to provide a platform to review existing school provision. 

 

7.2 Denbighshire County Council is committed to providing a first class education for all 

children and young people in the county. As part of this commitment, the council has 

agreed that modernising education provision is a priority because we recognise the 

importance of having school buildings, learning environments and resources that meet 

the needs of 21st century Wales. 

 

7.3 We know that we have to change and modernise education provision in the county, as 

improvements in education cannot be sustained without changes to the way education 

is provided. Schools need to be able to provide the best possible learning experience so 

that children and young people in Denbighshire have the widest opportunities available 

to them and are able to reach their full potential. 

 

7.4 As part of this ongoing commitment the Council have embarked on a series of area 

reviews looking at primary school provision. In February 2013 the Council began an 

initial consultation on the review of primary school provision in the Ruthin area. 

 

7.5 The review included 11 primary schools in the area – Ysgol Borthyn, Ysgol Bro Fammau, 

Ysgol Clocaenog, Ysgol Cyffylliog, Ysgol Gellifor, Ysgol Llanbedr DC, Ysgol Pen Barras, 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn, Rhos Street School and Ysgol Rhewl. The initial consultation 

document highlighted a number of issues that needed to be addressed across the area 

including size, location, condition of school buildings and facilities, sustainability of sites, 

dependence on mobile classrooms, surplus places and headteacher recruitment. The 

initial consultation document also highlighted the objectives that school re-organisation 

within the Ruthin area should deliver: 

 

Page 23



 

 

� An educational system able to sustain and safeguard standards of education within the 

area and provide an opportunity for improvement; 

 

� Maintain or strengthen Welsh Medium and Bilingual provision; 

 

� Reduce the number of surplus (empty) places; 

 

� Address issues surrounding the recruitment of Headteachers; 

 

� Removal of mobile accommodation; 

 

� Assist the authority to attract capital funding to improve school buildings and facilities;  

 

 

7.6 The initial consultation ended on the 22nd March 2013. This proposal is one of a number 

of proposals and recommendations that have been developed by the authority to meet 

the objectives set out above in addition to recommendations for other schools within 

the review. 

 

7.7  The proposals and recommendations set out by the authority are as follows; 

 

a.)   Phase 1: Denbighshire County Close would close Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog on 

the 31
st

 of August 2014 and establish a new area school on the existing sites from the  

1
st

 of September 2014. 

 

 Phase 2: Would see the New Area School consolidated on one site in the Clocaenog  

Area. 

 

b.)  Close Ysgol Llanbedr DC and transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental 

preference. 

 

c.)   Recommend that further detailed analysis is undertaken on the Ruthin town schools, to 

include; Ysgol Borthyn, Ysgol Pen Barras, Ysgol Rhewl and Rhos Street School.  

Page 24



 

 

d.)  Recommend for both Governing Bodies (Ysgol Llanfair DC and Ysgol Pentrecelyn) to 

enter discussions regarding formation of a Federation. Denbighshire County Council 

would seek for an agreement in principle by January 2014 with a view to the federation 

being established from the 1
st

 of September 2014.* 

 *Phase two would be to close both schools and establish a new area school in the Llanfair area as part of 

Denbighshire County Council’s Band B proposals (2019 onwards). 

 

e.)  Retain both schools (Ysgol Gellifor and Ysgol Bryn Clwyd) within the existing Federation 

and request the Governing Body to move one or both schools along the Welsh 

Language Continuum and to address the current imbalance in pupil numbers between 

both schools.* 

 

f.)  Retain Ysgol Bro Famau as it serves a large geographical area; however there is 

significant surplus therefore it is recommended that the Governing Body review how 

space is used within the school to ensure current capacity represents use by the 

school.* 

 
* These proposals can only be progressed by the Governing Bodies of each school 

 
Further information on the other proposals can be found on the Denbighshire website – 

www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation 

 

This document is primarily concerned with the potential impact of ‘Proposal 2 – Close Ysgol 

Llanbedr DC and transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference’. 

 

Consideration has been given to the potential impact on the Welsh Language and on the 

local communities resulting from this proposal. 

 

 

 

 

 

8.       Sources of Information 

 

8.1     The following sources of information have been used as part of the Impact 

Assessments:- 

 

�  Impact Assessment Questionnaires returned by each headteacher; 

Page 25



 

 

�  PLASC January 2013 Data; 
 

�  Statistical data stored by Denbighshire County Council; 
 

�  Census Information; 
 

�  Denbighshire’s Welsh Education Scheme 2010-13; 
 

�  Initial consultation responses; 

 
9.     Ysgol Llanbedr DC 

 
9.1   School Details  

 
Name of School: Ysgol Llanbedr DC 

Location: Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd 

Age Range: 3-11 

Language Designation: English Medium School, Category 5 

 
Ysgol Llanbedr is an English Medium faith based primary school located in the village of Llanbedr 

DC which is approximately 1.8 miles from the town of Ruthin.  

 

 
9.2  Other schools in the area; 

 
School Location Age 

Range 

Language Approximate 

distance by road 

Ysgol Borthyn Ruthin 3-11 English Medium, 

Category 5 

2.1 miles 

Rhos Street School Ruthin 3-11 English Medium, 

Category 5 

1.3 miles 

Ysgol Gellifor Gellifor  3-11 English Medium, 

Category 5 

2.9 miles 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.3  The proposal would have a direct impact on Ysgol Borthyn as this is the nearest English 

Medium faith based primary school.  

 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 26



 

9.4  Number of pupils at the school; 

 
 Full-time pupils on roll (taken from PLASC* returns) 

January  

2011 

January  

2012 

January  

2013 

Ysgol Llanbedr DC 

 
59 37 21 

* PLASC – Pupil Level Annual School Census 

 
 
9.5  Denbighshire County Council does not use catchment areas when determining school 

admissions. Schools are simply referred to as the ‘nearest suitable school’ which takes 

into account language and faith based preferences. However parental preference 

means pupils can attend any school so long as there are places available. The table 

below demonstrates the number of pupils within the Llanbedr area and the schools 

they attend; 

 

School Number of Pupils 

Ysgol Pen Barras 9 

Ysgol Llanbedr 7 

Ysgol Gellifor 5 

Ysgol Bro Fammau 3 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 2 

Rhos Street School 2 

Ysgol Borthyn 1 

Plas Brondyffryn  1 

Rhewl 1 

Total: 31 

 
 

Page 27



 

 

 

9.6 Fluency of pupils at the school; 

 

  Pupils on roll (taken from PLASC* 2013 return) 

Fluent in Welsh Can speak Welsh but 

not fluent 

Cannot speak Welsh 

Ysgol Llanbedr DC 

 
0 5 20 

* PLASC – Pupil Level Annual School Census 

**Including Full and Part-Time numbers on roll 

- % figures are percentage of total full-time pupils at the school 

 

 
9.7 Home language of pupils at the school; 

 
 Full-time pupils on roll (taken from PLASC* 2013 return) 

Speaks Welsh at 

home 

Does not speak 

Welsh at home 

Not Applicable 
(cannot speak Welsh) 

Ysgol Llanbedr DC 

 
0 5 20 

* PLASC – Pupil Level Annual School Census 

- % figures are percentage of total full-time pupils at the school 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 

9.8 Governing Body Details; 

 

Total Number of Governors 11 

Total Number of Welsh Speaking Governors 2 

Language of Governing Body Meetings: English 

Minutes of Governing Body Meetings: English 

- This information was provided by the headteacher while completing the impact assessment questionnaire 

 
 
9.9 Additional School Provision; 

 
Breakfast Club: Yes 

After School Club: Yes 

Holiday Club: Yes 

- This information was provided by the headteacher while completing the impact assessment questionnaire 

 
 
9.10 Childcare / Pre-School Provision; 
 

Provision 

 

Language 

(Welsh / English / Bilingual) 

 

Munchkins provides care from 8am to 6pm for children over 

the age of 2.  They are also registered providers for Rising 

Three’s provision of which they currently have 5 children 

registered.  Munchkins also provides a weekly playgroup for 

parents with younger children from within the community.  

During the school holidays they also run a Holiday Club 

which is accessible to all children in the community from the 

age of 2. 

English with everyday Welsh 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.11 Parent & Teacher Association (PTA); 

 
 

Page 29



 

Is there a PTA at the school? 

 

 

Yes 

 

Name of Association 

 

 

Friends of Ysgol Llanbedr 

 

Frequency of Meetings 

(Weekly / Monthly / Termly) 

 

Half Termly 

Language of Meetings 

(Welsh / English / Bilingual) 

 

English 

Contact Details 

(Name / Telephone / E-mail) 

 

Mrs. Kate Spencer Jones 

Mathew@kate@hotmail.com 

 

01824 750551 

 

9.12 Community Facilities 

 

The following community facilities were listed by the headteacher when completing the 

Impact Assessment questionnaire:- 

 
� Community Hall 
� Post Office 
� Toilets  
� Car Parking Facilities  
� Wi-Fi facilities in Community Hall 
� Children’s Parties Community Hall 
� Community Miles (walks) 
� Waen Woods 
� Church Bench 
� Vale Country Club 
� Griffin Pub 
� Book Swap Facility  
� Route 66- Pub 
� Choir-Pub  
� Quiz Night- Pub 
� Community Craft 
� Slate Garden (reflection area) 
� Church 
� Sunday School- Community Hall 
� Playing Field- School 
� Outdoor Classroom Area 
� Community Website 
� Bus stops and bus routes 
� Dial a ride/taxi for older people 
� Astro Turf- School 
� Trim Trail Play Area- School Field 
� Picnic Area- School 
� Sensory and wildlife garden-school  
� Parking-School- Weekends and Evening  
� Munchkins and Playgroup  

 
 

9.13 Community Activities – School Building 
 

Page 30



 

The following community activities taking place within the school building were listed by the 

headteacher when completing the Impact Assessment questionnaire:- 

 
 

Activity 

(e.g. Evening Lessons, Welsh Lessons, Local 

Interest Clubs, Youth Club etc) 

Frequency  

(e.g. Weekly, 

Monthly, 

Annually) 

Language 

(Welsh / English / 

Bilingual) 

 

Astro Turf – Five a Side 

 

Twice Weekly Bilingual 

 

Playgroup 

 

Weekly English with 

everyday Welsh 

 

Fayres – to include Summer, Christmas, Autumn 

 

Termly English with 

everyday Welsh 

 

Special Occasion Community Events eg Jubilee 

Party 

 

 

Various 

English with 

everyday Welsh 

 

After School Clubs – Ruthin Tennis Club, Ruthin 

Rugby Club, Wrexham Football Club, Hockey Wales 

 

Weekly English with 

everyday Welsh 

 

Urdd Club 

 

Weekly Bilingual 

 

Childcare Facilities for pupils from surrounding 

area who are unable to attend their own sites due 

to school closures. 

 

Various English with 

everyday Welsh 

 

Christian Services 

 

Weekly English with 

everyday Welsh 

 

Church visitors – to include Sunday School 

 

Monthly English with 

everyday Welsh 

 

Dee Clwyd Rivers Trust 

 

Monthly English with 

everyday Welsh 

 

AONB – Developing the Wildlife Garden 

 

Monthly English with 

everyday Welsh 

Firework Display 

 

Annually English with 

everyday Welsh 

Page 31



 

 

 

9.14 Community Activities – Other; 
 

The following other community activities were listed by the headteacher when completing 

the Impact Assessment questionnaire:- 

 

Activity (e.g. Evening Lessons, Welsh 

Lessons, Local Interest Clubs, Youth 

Club etc) 

Location Frequency 

(e.g. Weekly, 

Monthly, 

Annually) 

Language 

(Welsh / English 

/ Bilingual) 

 

Christmas Lights Event 

 

Village Annually  Bilingual 

 

Community Events and Celebrations 

 

Community 

Hall 

Weekly Bilingual 

Harvest Dinner 

 

Community 

Hall 

Annually Bilingual 

Annual Village Show 

 

Community 

Hall 

Annually Bilingual 

Vale Country Club Classes 

 

Vale Country 

Club 

Daily Bilingual 

Football Club 

 

Astro Turf 

Ysgol Llanbedr 

Weekly Bilingual 

Zumba Gold, Line dancing, Website 

Training, Pilates, Hobbyists, Band 

Practive, Table Tennis, Committee 

Meetings, Yoga, Karate, Kiddi Zumba, 

Singing Workshop, Scottish Dancing, 

Sunday School, Children’s Parties. 

 

 

Community 

Hall 

Weekly Bilingual 

Christian Worship 

 

 

Church Various Bilingual 

 

Weddings and Christenings and 

Burials 

 

Church Various Bilingual 

 

Choir 

 

Church Various Bilingual 

 

Open Weekends eg Harvest 

Weekends and Artists etc. 

Church Various Bilingual 

Page 32



 

 

 

Important Christian Calendar Event 

services with Ysgol Llanbedr 

 

Church Various Bilingual 

 
 
 
9.15 Additional Information Supplied by School 

 
 

 Please provide details of any activities / events arranged by the PTA over the past 12 

months and language medium where appropriate. –  

 

Friends of Ysgol Llanbedr Events that have taken place at School with community 

involvement : (All events in the medium of English with everyday Welsh unless otherwise 

stated) 

 
� Bags to School 
� Hoola Hooping 
� Sports Day 
� Wrexham Football club 
� Author Workshops 
� Birds of Prey 
� Christmas Fayre 
� Christmas Dinner 
� Enviromental Artis Day 
� Munchkins Fundraiser Discos 
� Valentines Disco 
� Easter Egg Hunt and Concert 
� Jubilee party 
� Puppet Shows 
� Birds of Prey 
� St David’s Day Eisteddfod  with Teas and coffees with community - Welsh 
� Munchkins Party 
� Firework display 
� Orienteering 

 

 
Friends of Ysgol Llanbedr Events that have taken place within the Community: (All events in 

the medium of English with everyday Welsh unless otherwise stated) 

 

 
� Harvest Easter Service 
� Christmas Service 
� Body Shop Party 
� Llanbedr Christmas Lights 
� Ruthin Lantern Parade 
� Llysfasi Christmas Carols - Welsh 
� Summer Ball – Charity Event 
� Church Candlemass 
� Community Lantern Walks 
� Community Hall – Teas and Coffees 
� Ruthin Library - Bilingual 

 

Other School Activities that take place in the Wider Community: (All events in the medium 

of English with everyday Welsh unless otherwise stated) 

 

 
� Swimming – Ruthin Leisure Centre 

Page 33



 

� Gymnastics and Dance – Ysgol Brynhyfryd Gymnasium with leadership from Sixth Form pupils at Ysgol Brynhyfryd 
� Jamboree – Ysgol Brynhyfryd - Welsh 
� Cycling Proficiency 
� Ruthin Library Visits 
� Local Walks in surrounding area 
� Ruthin Gaol and Nantclwyd House Visits 
� Hwyl Gwyl – Ysgol Bryn Clwyd - Welsh 
� Coleg Llysfasi Christmas Carols - Welsh 

 
 
 
 
 

10.    Community Impact Assessment  

 

10.1  This Impact Assessment is to consider the potential impact on families and the local 

community language from the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC and transfer pupils 

to Ysgol Borthyn subject to parental preference. 

 

10.2 In order to assess the potential impact on families and the local community 

consideration has been given to the following areas:- 

 

� School Designation; 
 

� School links to the local community; 
 

� Impact on neighbouring schools; 
 

� Impact on parents and families; 
 

� Travelling Implications for pupils/parents; 
 

� Impact on community activities; 
 

� Impact on community facilities; 
 

� Impact on community demographics; 

 
 

 

Page 34



 

Impact Criteria Comments 

Impact 

(positive, 

neutral or 

negative) 

Measures to reduce negative 

impact 

Residual 

Impact 

School 

Designation 

Ysgol Llanbedr DC is a faith based primary school with an 

age range of 3-11 providing English medium education.  

 

Ysgol Borthyn is a faith based primary school with an age 

range of 3-11 providing English medium education.  

 

 

NEUTRAL N/A N/A 

School links to 

the community 

The closure of Ysgol Llanbedr DC would remove the school 

from the community. 

 

Ysgol Borthyn is located within the town of Ruthin and has 

no existing links with the community of Llanbedr DC.   

 

 

NEGATIVE N/A N/A 

Impact on 

neighbouring 

schools 

The proposal would have an impact on Ysgol Borthyn with 

pupils form Ysgol Llanbedr DC transferring to Ysgol Borthyn, 

subject to parental preference. 

 

There is potential for there to be an effect on other schools 

within the Ruthin as Ysgol Llanbedr DC serves a wide area. 

There are places available within the system for the pupils of 

Ysgol Llanbedr.  

 

 

NEUTRAL N/A N/A 

P
age 35



 

Impact on pupils 

 

The proposal could have a positive impact on pupils through 

an improved education provision and access to a greater 

range of activities. 

 

Pupils would benefit from interacting with a larger group of 

children and larger peer groups. 

 

POSITIVE N/A N/A 

Impact on 

parents and 

families 

There is potential for a greater impact on parents and 

families from Llanbedr DC if their pupils transfer to Ysgol 

Borthyn, Ruthin.  

 

The loss of the school as an informal social environment for 

parents to interact would have an impact on parents.  

 

However there could be potential benefits to parents and 

families from potentially accessing a greater range of 

services and being part of a wider school community. 

NEUTRAL 

The retention of some non-

statutory provision or after 

school care in the village would 

provide an informal social 

environment for parents. 

 

Activities at the community hall 

could also provide an informal 

social environment for parents.  

POSITIVE 

Travelling 

implications for 

pupils/parents 

Closing Ysgol Llanbedr would result in pupils from Llanbedr 

DC having to travel further to school. The most probable 

destination would by Ysgol Borthyn. As Ysgol Llanbedr 

school serves a wide catchment area in some instances this 

is a nearest school for a proportion of the pupils. 

 

Free transport would be provided in accordance with 

Denbighshire’s transport policy. 

 

Parents from Llanbedr DC would also need to travel to 

collect their children from any additional after-school 

activities. It is recognised that a number of parents may 

NEGATIVE 

Free transport would be 

provided for future pupils in 

accordance with Denbighshire’s 

Transport Policy. 

 

The local authority and the 

Governing Body of Ysgol Borthyn 

could consider ways of ensuring 

after school provision is as 

accessible as possible for all 

pupils. 

 

NEUTRAL 

P
age 36



 

already have to travel to collect their children from these 

activities. 

 

 

Impact on 

community 

activities 

A number of community activities currently take place either 

with the school or on the school grounds. Following the 

closure of the school these activities could no longer take 

place unless the school site was retained for the community. 

 

The Council has a policy where it would consider 

transferring a surplus school site or part of a school site to a 

community group where they can demonstrate a need and 

ability to take over the running of the site however in this 

instance the authority do not own the school building or 

land.  

 

 

NEGATIVE 

The community activities could 

relocate to the community hall 

in Llanbedr or be retained at the 

school site in accordance with 

the wishes of the diocese. 

NEUTRAL 

Impact on 

community 

facilities 

 

 

 

It should be noted that a separate community hall exists in 

Llanbedr. Use of the community hall instead of the school 

building could also strengthen the hall as a community 

facility. 

 

 

 

NEUTRAL N/A N/A 

P
age 37



 

Impact on 

community 

demographics 

Feedback from the initial consultation has highlighted a fear 

by many that the loss of the school from the community 

would result in problems in the future with the Local 

Development Plan citing the build of 71 dwellings.  

 

It should be noted that demographics are changing and that 

in Denbighshire the percentage of the population over 65 is 

projected to increase dramatically over the coming years. 

 

While access to local educational facilities is a key factor for 

parents and young families, other key considerations include 

affordable housing and the availability of work. 

NEUTRAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N/A 

 

 

Overview – Potential initial impact on families and the local community 

 

 Positive Neutral Negative 

Overall Impact* 1 5 3 

* This does not take into account any measures that could be undertaken to reduce negative impact 

 

 
Overview – Potential residual impact families and the local community 

 

 Positive Neutral Negative 

Overall Impact* 1 2 0 

* This takes into account measures that could be undertaken to reduce negative impact 

P
age 38



 

11.    Summary of Potential Impact on families and the local community 

 
11.1 It should be noted that attempting to gauge the potential impact from school 

organisation on families and the local community is a difficult undertaking. The main 

positive emerging from the impact assessment is the impact on pupils through 

improved education provision. 

 

11.2  The impact assessment has identified a number of possible areas where the proposal 

could impact negatively on local families and on the local community. Losing a school 

from the community is going to sever links between the school and the local 

community. Pupils are expected to transfer to Ysgol Borthyn in Ruthin. There are 

measures that could be adopted to lessen the impact through fostering close links 

between the community and Ysgol Borthyn, however developing these links will take 

time and the initial impact will be negative. 

 

11.3 The loss of the school would impact on the community activities taking place and the 

community facilities within Llanbedr DC. There is scope for a number of activities 

currently taking place on the school site to relocate to the community hall and the 

Council has a policy regarding the retention of any surplus school site within the 

community which could reduce the negative impact and potentially result in a positive 

for the community. 

 

11.4 The loss of the school would result in the removal of an informal meeting place for 

parents within the community. However there is a well utilised village hall in Llanbedr 

DC that could be used to host the activities that currently take place at the school and 

provides another informal meeting place for parents and the wider community. 

 

11.5  Conclusion: The proposal would impact positively on parents and children through an 

improved educational provision for the children. However the proposal has the 

potential to impact negatively on parents from Llanbedr DC and the Llanbedr DC 

community. 

 

Page 39



 

         It should be noted that the potential negative impacts resulting from this proposal 

could be reduced by the local authority by the adoption of a number of possible 

measures to ensure that the community in Llanbedr DC continues to thrive. 

 

         The existence of a separate village hall that already host a number of activities and 

could host activities that currently take place at the school provides a focal point for 

the community that would continue after the school has been closed. The potential 

increase in activity at the hall following the closure of the school could improve the 

long term viability of this community facility. 

 

          The local authority is committed to working with local communities and has an 

external funding advisory service to assist local communities in accessing funding for 

community projects. 

 

12.     Welsh Language Impact Assessment  

 

12.1  This Impact Assessment is to consider the potential impact on the Welsh language of 

the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC. 

 

12.2  In order to assess the potential impact on the Welsh Language consideration has been 

given to the following areas:- 

 

� Language of the school; 
 

� Access to Welsh Medium education; 
 

� Education Provision / Educational standards; 
 

� Access to non-statutory provision; 
 

� Access to pre / after school activities; 
 

� Use of Welsh within the community; 

 
 
 
12.3  The following data is taken from the 2011 census and provides information regarding 

the Welsh language skills of residents in the Llanbedr DC area. The census states there 

Page 40



 

are 771 residents in the Llanbedr DC area, the results for Welsh language skills are as 

follows; 

 

 

� 31% of residents (aged 3 and over) are Welsh speakers; this is higher than the 

Denbighshire and Wales average which is 24.6% and 19% respectively. 

 

� 22.7% of residents (aged 3 and over) can speak, read and write Welsh; this is higher 

than the Denbighshire and Wales average which is 18.6% and 14.6% respectively. 

 

� 44.1% of residents (aged 3 and over) have one or more skills in Welsh; this is higher 

than the Denbighshire and Wales average which is 35.4% and 26.7% respectively. 

 
 

Page 41



 

 

Impact Criteria Comments 

Impact 

(positive, 

neutral or 

negative) 

Measures to reduce 

negative impact 
Residual Impact 

Language of 

the school 

Ysgol Llanbedr DC is an English medium Category 5 

school. 

 

The pupils would be transferred (subject to parental 

preference) to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin, which is also an 

English medium Category 5 school.  

NEUTRAL N/A N/A 

Access to  

Welsh Medium 

education 

Ysgol Llanbedr DC provides an English medium 

primary education where the statutory requirement 

for teaching of the Welsh language is met. 

 

The recommendation for the pupils to be moved to 

Ysgol Borthyn, subject to parental preference, would 

see this provision maintained.  

 

NEUTRAL 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 

 

Education 

Provision / 

Educational 

standards 

Pupils would benefit from an increased range of 

suitable facilities in Ysgol Borthyn. 

 

Pupils would have access to a larger group of teaching 

staff providing a range of expertise. 

 

Pupils will be part of larger peer groups and have 

more opportunities to learn alongside their peers in 

groups and participate in group activities 

 

POSITIVE 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 

 

P
age 42



 

Non-statutory 

provision 

Pupils would have access to an increased range of 

suitable facilities, a larger compliment of staff and be 

part of larger peer groups. 
 

However this could impact on the accessibility of 

nursery provision for children living in Llanbedr as free 

transport is not provided for nursery pupils. 

 

NEGATIVE 

 
N/A N/A 

Pre/After 

school 

activities 

Currently Llanbedr DC provide a breakfast club and an 

after school club. 

 

There is no after school provision in Ysgol Borthyn 

which presents a potential negative impact.  

NEGATIVE 

 

The Governing Body of 

the new school could 

consider providing an 

increased range of 

provision / activities. 

NEUTRAL 

Use of Welsh 

within the 

community 

The Llanbedr DC area has a high proportion of Welsh 

speakers (above the Denbighshire and Wales 

average).  

The school provides an English medium education and 

would have a neutral impact on the use of Welsh 

within the community.  

 

NEUTRAL N/A N/A 

 

 

Overview – Potential initial impact on Welsh Language 

 

 Positive Neutral Negative 

 

Overall Impact* 
1 3 2 

    * This does not take into account any measures that could be undertaken to reduce negative impact 

 

 

P
age 43



 

 

 

Overview – Potential residual impact  

 

 Positive Neutral Negative 

 

Overall Impact* 
0 1 0 

    * This takes into account measures that could be undertaken to reduce negative impact 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 44



 

13.    Summary of Potential Impact on the Welsh Language 

 

13.1 It should be noted that attempting to gauge the potential impact from school 

organisation on the Welsh Language is a difficult undertaking. The main positive 

emerging from the impact assessment is the impact on the educational provision. 

Providing an improved educational provision represents an opportunity to strengthen 

Welsh education in the area and as a result strengthen the Welsh Language. 

 

13.2  The main concern is the potential negative impact relating to access of non-statutory 

provision and access to pre and after school activities.Should nursery provision be 

provided solely in Ruthin this could impact on accessibility for parents and families 

who live in Llanbedr DC. 

 

13.3  However it should be noted that there are many schools in Denbighshire that serve 

more than one community and this situation would not be unique. There are potential 

measures to reduce this impact that could be considered by the local authority and 

the Governing Body of Ysgol Borthyn.  

 

13.4  Accessibility of pre and after school activities is also an area for concern. The proposal 

has the potential to result in an increased range of activities; however they may not be 

accessible by all parents and families.  

 

13.5  Once again this is an issue that a number of schools in Denbighshire already face and 

there are potential measures to reduce this impact that could be considered by the 

local authority and the Governing Body of Ysgol Borthyn.  

 

 

13.6 Conclusion: Overall the proposal would not have a negative impact on the Welsh 

Language with a high percentage of Welsh speakers in the community and a high 

percentage of those having one or more skills in Welsh. This is reflected in the 

numbers of pupils in the natural catchment area for Llanbedr DC attending nearby 

Welsh Medium schools.  

 

 

 

 
 
 

Page 45



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC on 

the 31
st
 of August 2014 and transfer pupils 
to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to 

parental preference.   
 

14 January 2014 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC on the 31
st

 of 
August 2014 and transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, 
Ruthin subjct to parental preference. 
 

Contact: 
 

Lowri Roberts, Modernising Education Team 

Updated: 03/01/2014 
 

  
 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

A service review or re-organisation proposal 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

The purpose of this proposal is to inform Cabinet members of the findings of the 
Formal Consultation that took place from 11/11/2013-23/12/2013 regarding the 
proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr as of the 31st of August 2014 with exsiting pupils 
transferring to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference. 
 
The report recommends that Cabinet approve the publication of a statutory notice 
to close Ysgol Llanbedr as of the 31st of August following a 4 week period allowing 
for any objections to be received.  
 
Should the proposal be implemented primary education provision would cease in 
the village of Llanbedr DC.  

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

Yes       

 
 

Page 48



 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

All stakeholders were identified prior to the Formal Consultation, all consultees 
identified (inclusive of parents, staff, Governing Bodies and pupils) where 
provided with a formal consultation document (English, Welsh and Children's 
versions were made available in hardcopy and via Denbighshire County Councils 
website). Stakeholders were able to respond to the formal consultation in a 
number of ways, including; 
 
--> Standard Response Form (available in hardcopy and electronically via the 
Denbighshire County Council website in both Welsh and English) 
 
--> Details were provided for responses to be submitted by post and by email 
 
--> Details of parent and staff meetings were published within the Formal 
Consultation document 
 
--> Governing Bodies were held during the Formal Consultation period. 
 
--> Pupil consultation events were arranged with Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol 
Borthyn as a named alternative school. Permission was refused to hold a 
consultation event with the pupils of Ysgol Llanbedr. 
 
 In total (XXX) letters and emails were received, 72 standard response forms and 
(XXX) community questionnaires were submitted during the Formal Consultation 
period. A full analysis of submission is provided within the Formal Consultation 
Report.   

 
 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

N/A 

 
 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

Ysgol Llanbedr is a Voluntary Controlled primary school which provides a faith 

Page 49



 

based (Church in Wales) primary education. The provision would cease if the 
proposal were to be implemented.  

 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

Yes The proposal offers an alternative Faith based English 
medium school within 3 miles of Ysgol Llanbedr in the town of 
Ruthin.   

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
Yes       

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

Some pupils be required to travel on school 
transport to the alternative provision; 
 
Denbighshire County Council would provide 
transport as designated by the authority's 
School Transport Policy.  
 
 

Modernising 
Education, DCC 

<01/09/2014> 

The service venue does not cater for the 
needs of all users/potential users; 
 
Ysgol Borthyn should be equipped with 
necessary facilities to cater for the needs of 
all pupils currently attending Ysgol Llanbedr. 
The authority would ensure that any pupils 
receiving educational support (SEN) would 
continue to receive this support and provide 
any help for pupils who experience 
difficulties due to change.    

Modernising 
Education, DCC 

<01/09/2014> 

Changes to staffing structures, terms and 
conditions have a disproportionately 
negative impact on staff with particular 
protected characterisitcs; 
 
 The proposal could lead to redundancies or 
redeployment for some staff. Some staff may 
have to travel further for redeployment as a 
result of the proposal however this would be 
required to be deemed reasonable by DCC. 
DCC has an agreed redundancy and 
redeployment policy and would work with 
staff impacted by the proposal and offer any 
required support and advice. Should any 

Modernising 
Education, DCC 

<01/09/2014> 

Page 50



 

members of staff have any concerns they 
should contact the Denbighshire County 
Council HR service.  

The policy will negatively affect different 
groups and communities; 
 
A Community and Welsh Language Impact 
Assessment has been conducted 
independently of the EqIA. Denbighshire 
County Council remains committed to 
working with local communities and will help 
to negate any negative impacts as a result of 
the proposal should it be implemented.    

Modernising 
Education, DCC 

<01/09/2014> 

                  

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: 03.01.14 
 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

Lowri Roberts 03/01/14 
 
 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 

 

 

Formal Consultation Report 

 

 Proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr on the 31
st

 

of August 2014 and transfer pupils to Ysgol 

Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental 

preference. 

 

 

 

 

January 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 53



2 

 

1.    Introduction  

1.1 Denbighshire County Council has completed a period of formal 

consultation regarding the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr on the 31
st

 of 

August 2014 and transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to 

parental preference. 

1.2   The formal consultation began on the 11
th

 of November and closed on the 

23
rd

 of December, 2013. 

1.3   This document sets out the steps taken during, and findings obtained 

during the Formal Consultation period. It has been produced after taking 

into consideration the requirements set out in the new School 

Organisation Code; a document produced by virtue of the School 

Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013.  

         The 2013 Act restates, codifies and updates the provision of the 1998 Act. 

The new Code sets out matters to which local authorities and other 

promoters of school organisation must and should have regard. The 

relevant provisions of the 2013 Act (including the finalisation of the new 

Code) came into force on October 1
st

 2013. We have followed the 

requirements of the new Code throughout the Formal Consultation.  

 

2.      Formal Consultation 

2.1  Hardcopy and electronic versions of the formal consultation document 

were sent to 315 recipients. The complete list of recipients is available in 

Appendix A. 

2.2  The formal consultation document was published on the Denbighshire 

County Council website on the 11
th

 of November 2013, the document was 

made available to view in both English and Welsh. The Equality Impact 

Assessment and Community and Welsh Language Impact Assessment 

were made available via the website, both the document and supporting 

documents can be found via the Closed Consultation section on the 

website. 

Page 54



3 

 

2.3  A children’s version of the formal consultation document was also 

published on the website, this too can be found via the Closed 

Consultation section on the website. 

2.4  A standard response form was included within both the hardcopy and 

electronic versions of the formal consultation document. The standard 

response form was also available online and links to both the English and 

Welsh versions were made available via the website. The standard 

response form can be found in Appendix B.  

2.5  A summary of the key themes and issues that have raised by respondents 

and the response from Denbighshire County Council can be found in 

Appendix C. 

 

3.      Formal Consultation Meetings 

3.1   Denbighshire County Council undertook a number of consultation events 

with the two schools named within the proposal (Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol 

Borthyn). Details of the meetings are as follows; 

3.1.1 Ysgol Llanbedr, Staff Meeting: 25/11/2013, 3:30pm 

3.1.2 Ysgol Llanbedr, Governing Body Meeting: 02/12/2013, 7pm 

3.1.3 Ysgol Llanbedr, Parents Drop in Session: 19/11/2013, 6:30pm-9pm 

3.1.4 Ysgol Borthyn, Staff Meeting: 13/11/2013, 3:30pm 

3.1.5 Ysgol Borthyn, Governing Body Meeting: 20/11/2013, 5:15pm 

3.1.6 Ysgol Borthyn, Parents Drop in Session: 20/11/2013, 6pm-7:30pm 

3.2  The parents consultation meeting was held in the ‘parents evening’ 

format, parents were able to reserve a 15 place with representatives from 

both the Modernising Education Team and the School Improvement 

Team. The reason for holding the sessions in this format was to allow for 

parents to meet with representatives on an individual basis to raise issues 

pertinent to them as individuals and also the wider views regarding the 

school and community.  

Page 55



4 

 

         During the informal consultation process parents meetings were in the 

‘traditional’ format of a public meeting, however many individuals 

approached representatives regarding views and concerns they felt they 

could not address in a public meeting.  

3.3    A summary of the comments received (with responses) during the 

Parents, Staff and Governing Body meetings can be found in Appendix D. 

3.4  Consultation events were also arranged with the School Council of both 

Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn, details as follows; 

3.4.1 Ysgol Llanbedr: 03/12/13 

        3.4.2 Ysgol Borthyn: 05/12/13 

3.5  The events were facilitated by the 14-19 Network Development Officer 

whose role included engaging and consulting with Denbighshire’s school 

pupils across both sectors. A member of the Modernising Education Team 

was also present at the School Council meetings. 

3.6  Prior to the School Council event at Ysgol Llanbedr the school contacted 

the authority stating that parents had refused permission for their 

children to take part in the consultation event. All permission letters 

supplied by the school where returned denoting this refusal. 

3.7   The findings of the school council event held at Ysgol Borthyn can be 

found in Appendix  E which also contains the Children’s version of the 

Formal Consultation Document, a Children’s version of the formal 

consultation findings and a report summarising the findings. 

4.    Method and Types of Response 

4.1   The table below quantifies the methods of response used by stakeholders 

during the formal consultation period; 

Method of Response No. of Responses Received 

Standard Response Form 85 

Letter & Email 50 

Total 135 

 

 

Page 56



5 

 

4.2   An analysis of the responses received via the standard response form can 

be found in Appendix F. In Appendix G the redacted comments made 

within the standard response form can be viewed. 

4.3    An analysis of the responses received via letter and email can be found in 

Appendix H. Redacted copies of the correspondence received during the 

Formal Consultation are set out in Appendix I. 

5.     Ysgol Llanbedr Submission to the Formal Consultation  

5.1  Ysgol LLanbedr submitted a two folder response to the formal 

consultation, the contents of which are noted below; 

v Petition: A paper and online petition has collected 1,210 signatures in 

support of the school. 

 

v Social Media Campaign: A strong social media presence has been 

adopted by interested parties during the Formal Consultation period. 

Facebook groups have been utilised by interested parties to draw 

attention to the campaign. This has included two YouTube videos in 

support of the school gaining 1,655 views.  

 

v Community Questionnaires: 61 Community Questionnaires were also 

received within the submission, a tabulated breakdown analysis can be 

found in Appendix F. 

 

5. The Diocese of St. Asaph and the Governing Body of Ysgol 

Llanbedr Response 

5.1 The Diocese of St.Asaph and the Governing Body of Ysgol Llanbedr 

submitted a joint response to the Formal Consultation. The Governing 

Body also submitted two further responses within the Ysgol Llanbedr 

Submission. These responses are set out in Appendix J.  

6.   Estyn and UCAC Responses 

Page 57



6 

 

6.1  In accordance with the requirements from the School Organisation Code, a 

copy of the consultation document was sent to Estyn and all the relevant 

teaching unions for its observations. Estyn formulated their response 

around a set of questions, in answer to the question “Are the proposals 

likely to maintain or improve the standard of education provision in the 

area?” Estyn commented as follows; 

        “It is Estyn’s opinion that this proposal is likely to at least maintain the 

present standards of education provision in the area.” 

          UCAC where the only Teaching Union to respond to the Formal 

Consultation, their response alongside the response from Estyn can be 

found in Appendix K. 

 

Page 58



                                     Appendix A 

List of Recipients  

 

Name/Organisation No. Recipients 
Parents, teachers and ancillary staff of Ysgol 

Llanbedr  
30 

Parents, teachers and ancillary staff of Ysgol 

Borthyn 
140 

Chairs & Vice Chairs of Governors at the following; 

§ Ysgol Llanbedr 

§ Ysgol Borthyn 

4 

Church in Wales Diocese of St. Asaph 2 

Catholic Diocese of Wrexham  1 

Headteachers and Chairs of Governors in all 

Denbighshire Schools 
57 

All Denbighshire County Council Councillors  47 

Assembly Members and Members of Parliament 

representing areas affected by the proposal  
5 

Llanbedr Dyffryn Clywd Community Council; Ruthin 

Town Council  
2 

The Welsh Government  4 

Estyn  1 

Teaching and Ancillary Unions  8 

Taith- Regional Transport Consortia 3 

GWE 1 

North Wales Police and Crime Commissioner  1 

Independent Nursery Providers in the Ruthin Area 3 

Denbighshire Children and Young Peoples 

Partnership and Early Years Development and 

Childcare Partnerships 

2 

Neighbouring Authorities (Conwy County Council 

and Flintshire County Council) 
4 

 

Page 59



                                  Appendix B 

Standard Response Form 

Formal Consultation Response Form 

Denbighshire County Council has proposed to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC on the 31
st
 of August 2014 

with pupils being transferred to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference.  

We would like to hear your views regarding the proposal. You can let your views be known in the 

following ways; 

§ If you are accessing this form online then please click here to complete  the online  survey; 

§ If you have received a hard copy of the response form please return your copy to 

Modernising Education Programme Team, Denbighshire County Council, County Hall, 

Wynnstay Road, Ruthin, LL15 1YN; 

§ Visit our website at www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation and follow the survey 

link via the current consultations link. 

§ Alternatively you can scan the attached form and email it to us at 

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk  

§ If you do not have access to a scanner, simply send an email to the address provided above 

with your responses, using the same numbering as set out below; 

Please let us have your responses by no later than Monday 23
rd

 of December. If you would like us to 

acknowledge receipt of your response please provide your email details on the form below. 

1. Are you in favour of the proposal? 

(Please tick one box) 

Yes  

No  

 

2. Please indicate whether you are responding as a: 

Pupil Parent Staff Member Community 

Member 

Other  

     

If other, please indicate; 

Page 60



 

(Please use an additional sheet if necessary) 

3.  With what school are you most closely associated? 

Ysgol Llanbedr  

Ysgol Borthyn  

 

4. Please indicate if any of the following have had an influence on your decision; 

Impact on 

Education 

 

Impact on local 

community  

 

 

If other, please state:-  

 

(Please use an additional sheet if necessary) 

 

5. Please let us have any comments, positive or negative, that you would like to make regarding 

the proposal;  

 

(Please use an additional sheet if necessary) 

Page 61



6. If the proposal is implemented would you send your child/children to Ysgol Borthyn  or would 

you choose another school? If you would choose another school, which one and why? 

 

(Please use an additional sheet if necessary) 

7. Under the terms of the Data Protection Act 1998 we must inform you of the following: 

Denbighshire County Council is seeking your views to help inform the decision on the current 

proposal. The information you have provided will be used only for this purpose, and may be shared 

with other agencies who are involved in the Formal Consultation, however only to address any 

issues you raise. If you do not wish to provide personal details your views will still be considered, but 

we will not be able to acknowledge receipt of your response personally.  

With your permission, responses will be reproduced- containing no personal data such as names and 

addresses- in reports within the Council and on the Council’s website  

8. Do you consent to your response being used in the manner set out above? 

Yes  

No  

 

9. If you would like to receive an acknowledgement of receipt please provide your email address 

below; 

 

 

 

 

10. Please indicate below whether you would like to receive notification when the consultation 

report is published on our website via an email link; 

Yes  

No  

 

Thank you for taking the time to respond. 

 

Page 62



1 

 

Appendix C 

This appendix provides the key issues/concerns raised by respondents during 

the Formal Consultation period, this includes responses in consultation 

meetings and correspondence received.  
 
 
 
Issue 1 
 
Ysgol Llanbedr provides an excellent level of education and is above the Denbighshire and 
Wales average for Key Stage 2 Level 4+ attainment. Provision in Ysgol Borthyn is not of the 
same standard; want the same or better standard of education. 

 

Response 

Denbighshire County Council recognises that the educational attainment and standards in 

Ysgol Llanbedr are good; this is true for the Ruthin area as a whole as displayed in the table 

below; 

 

 

 

 

 

The authority has been clear throughout the Ruthin Area Review process that the review is 

not due to educational standards, the Ruthin Area as a whole has consistently demonstrated 

good levels of attainment. The table below demonstrates the attainment of the 6 schools 

within 5 miles of Ysgol Llanbedr; 

 

 

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

2010 2011 2012

Percentage of pupils achieving Level 4+ at the end of  
Key Stage 2 

Ruthin Area Average Denbighshire Average

Page 63



2 

 

% achieving Level 4+ at Key Stage 2 

 

 School Name 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Ysgol Borthyn 87.5% 82.4% 58.8% 78.6% 92.3% 93.3% 

Rhos Street School 82.1% 86.7% 93.5% 93.3% 96.6% 92.6% 

Ysgol Gellifor  90% 91.7% 92.9% 92.3% 100% 91.7% 

Ysgol Bro Fammau 76.7% 87.5% 91.7% 100% 94.4% 95.8% 

Ysgol Llanfair DC 50% 100% 88.9% 91.7% 100% 94.1% 

Ysgol Llanbedr 71.4% 83.3% 84.6% 100% 85.7% 100% 

 

Due to the small cohorts assessed at Key Stage 2 in Ysgol Llanbedr it is difficult to draw any 

meaningful comparison between the levels of attainment at Ysgol Llanbedr and the 

proposed alternative provision in Ysgol Borthyn. It is also important to note that Ysgol 

Borthyn had a number of pupils with SEN and who require various of levels of support. The 

January PLASC return 2013 for SEN totals is as follows; 

SEN Totals per school 

School Statement Action Plan Action None Total Pupils 
(Full Time & 
Part Time) 

Ysgol 
Llanbedr 

0 3 2 20 25 

Ysgol 
Borthyn 

5 11 12 101 129 

 

 

As is required within the School Organisation Code, Estyn must be consulted during any school 

organisation or re-organisation proposals. Estyn were sent the formal consultation document and 

have responded as follows;  

      “It is Estyn’s opinion that this proposal is likely to at least maintain the present standards 

of education provision in the area.” 

 

Issue 2 

Ysgol Llanbedr offers small class sizes and mixed age classes which allows for 1-1 
opportunities for pupils; town schools do not offer this in the same measure. 

 

Response 

There are advantages for smaller class sizes, and there are also advantages to being taught in age 

appropriate classes or mixed age range classes. The Estyn report “School Size and Educational 

Effectiveness” published in December 2013 noted that “schools of all sizes can perform well or 

badly” and that “large primary and secondary schools tend to perform better than small and 

medium-sized schools”. In Ysgol Llanbedr pupils are taught within Key Stage classes, as follows; 

Page 64



3 

 

 Key Stage 1 Key Stage 2 

Classes Reception, Year 1 
and Year 2 

Year 3, Year 4, 
Year 5 and Year 6  

Total No. of 
Pupils 

16 5 

 

 

In Ysgol Borthyn pupils are taught in age appropriate classes, all class sizes are below the 

national averages and recommended class sizes for primary education.  

 

Issue 3 

Pupils who transferred to Ysgol Borthyn would have to be taught in a mobile classroom; the site 

does not have the same grounds and facilities as Ysgol Llanbedr; the building is not fit for purpose; 

there is not sufficient capacity. 

 

Response 

As of September 2013 the mobile accommodation has been used as a class space to accommodate 

single age group class structures. Previously this has been used for peripatetic music sessions, drama 

and art classes. Ysgol Borthyn is classed as a medium sized school (100+) in the Estyn report “School 

Size and Educational Effectiveness” published in December 2013 with 111 current Full Time pupils.  

 

Ysgol Llanbedr has previously utilised a mobile for teaching purposes until the decline in pupil 

numbers. The mobile has continued to be utilised by the school to house the wrap-around-care 

facility, ‘Munchkins’. However the authority recognises that the provision of mobile accommodation 

is not sustainable in the long term; Denbighshire County Council remains committed to removing 

mobile accommodation in all of its schools.   

Both buildings have been assessed during 2012, both buildings were classed overall as a 

similar condition. Maintenance costs to improve the buildings are as follows; 

 

Ysgol Borthyn: £78,898 (Approx £95 per Sq.M) 

 

Ysgol Llanbedr: £51,762 (Approx £150 per Sq.M) 

 

The Gross Property Area (GPA) and Building Area (BA) for both schools are as follows; 

 

School GPA BA 

Ysgol Llanbedr 6118.33sq.m 342.01sq.m 

Ysgol Borthyn 10366.57sq.m 831.75sq.m 
 

The below table provides a breakdown of class structures in both Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn 

based on actuals within both schools should all pupils from Ysgol Llanbedr transfer to Ysgol Borthyn 

as the alternative English Medium Faith provider in the area; 

Page 65



4 

 

 

Current Full Time Pupil Numbers ( September Return 2013) 

School Name Reception Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Total 

Ysgol Borthyn 17 9 15 13 17 23 20 114 

Ysgol Llanbedr 3 6 4 5 0 3 0 21 

Totals 20 15 19 18 17 26 20 135 

 
 
 

Projected Full Time Pupil Numbers Sept 2014 (DCC Projections based on actuals within 

nursery) 

School Name Reception 

Year 

1 Year 2 

Year 

3 

Year 

4 Year 5 Year 6 Total 

Ysgol Borthyn 22 17 9 15 13 17 23 116 

Ysgol Llanbedr 7 3 6 4 5 0 3 28 

Totals 29 20 15 19 18 17 26 144 

 

 

Issue 4 

Previous issues around leadership and management at the school which resulted in a significant 

decrease in pupil numbers (2011-2012) has not been taken into account regarding the current 

pupil numbers; failure by the LEA. 

 

Response 

The authority recognises that issues at the school contributed to the current low numbers at 

Ysgol Llanbedr. The LEA provided considerable support to the school and the Governing 

Body during a turbulent period. The School was identified as a “School Causing Concern” 

and a package of support was implemented.   

 

Leadership and management issues at the school have seen 3 substantive Headteachers 

posts and 3 Acting Headteacher posts since 2008. 34 pupils left the school during 2011-

2012, with the majority of pupils transferring to Ysgol Bro Fammau with other transfers to 

Ysgol Gellifor and Rhos Street School. Support provided by the LEA stabilised the situation 

and following interventions by the LEA further applications for transfer where withdrawn 

stabilising the pupil numbers at the school. 

 

 

 

Page 66



5 

 

Issue 5 

Numbers are growing at Ysgol Llanbedr and the school will be back to full capacity in a few years. 

 

Response 

In respect of Full Time pupils the numbers have stabilised following the significant drop in 

pupils for the 2011/12 academic year.  

 

January 2011 – 59 Full Time Pupils 

January 2012-  37 Full Time Pupils 

January 2013 – 21 Full Time Pupils 

September 2013 – 21 Full Time Pupils 

 

Based on current applications it is expected that, subject to any mid term transfers, 7 pupils 

will enter Reception for September 2014 and no pupils will transfer to Secondary provision 

as there are currently no Year 6 pupils at the school.  This will mean that the school as of 

2014/15 is forecast to have 28 Full time pupils or 47% surplus capacity based on the lower 

school capacity. 

 

In the Formal Consultation Document the capacity of Ysgol Llanbedr was stated as 54 

following a request from the Governing Body to remove the  Mobile Accommodation from 

the capacity assessment for the school. Denbighshire County Council agreed to the request 

and the capacity was reduced from 77 to 54, the surplus capacity at the school as of 

September 2013 is 61.1%. This will also reduce the future admission number for the school 

which will be implemented from September 2015.  

 

For September 2014 the Admissions Team as of December 2013 had received 13 

applications for nursery (part time) provision.  The authority would only admit 11 of these 

applications for 2014/15 based on the current admission number of 11 and 2 pupils would 

be refused admission.  However as a consequence of the lower capacity of the school for 

admissions for September 2015 the authority would only be able to admit 7 of the 11 

nursery pupils or full time education.  

 

Should Ysgol Llanbedr reach capacity it will remain a small school (as defined by Estyn), and 

would remain subject to potential review in accordance with the Council’s adopted 

Modernising Education Policy Framework.   

 

 

 

Page 67



6 

 

Issue 6 

Ysgol Llanbedr has been treated unfairly in the review process with other schools not 

being proposed with closure, even those with similar % of surplus places. 

 

Response 

School Organisation reviews are undertaken as area reviews, proposals cannot be made in 

isolation for individual schools. The Ruthin Area currently has the highest number of surplus 

places in the County’s primary sector. All schools are subject to the same process and the 

same criteria are applied to each school. In the Ruthin Area Review Ysgol Llanbedr has the 

highest number of surplus places.  All schools of a similar level of surplus places will be 

subject to future proposals as per the decision of Cabinet in June 2013. The long term 

proposals approved for the Ruthin area is anticipated to lead to a scenario by 2020 where 

the smallest school in the Ruthin area is likely to be in the region of an 80 Full Time pupil 

capacity. 

 

Issue 7 

Closure of Ysgol Llanbedr would limit parental choice; Ysgol Llanbedr provides and English 

Medium, Faith based education in a rural setting, no other school provides this.  

 

Response 

The Ruthin Area provides a breadth of parental choice which would continue should the 

proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr be implemented which would still include a mix of town, 

rural, faith, English Medium, Welsh Medium and bi-lingual provision.  

Welsh Government guidance requires that :- 

 

“Where a school closure, reduction in capacity or age range contraction is proposed 

proposals should ensure that the balance of school provision reflects the balance of demand. 

This means that where school provision is being reduced or removed, alternative school 

provision of the same nature (language category or, if relevant, religious character), 

wherever possible, should remain available and accessible to pupils in the local area. 

However in some areas it may not be compatible with the cost effective provision of 

education to continue to maintain access to schools of the same nature. 

 

In all cases, existing pupils at a school where provision is being reduced or removed must be 

able to continue receiving an education that provides at least equivalent standards and 

opportunities for progression in their current language medium. Specific transition 

arrangements may be necessary in order to achieve this.” 

 

Denbighshire is of the view that this proposal meets this requirement.  

Page 68



7 

 

Issue 8 

 
Faith education is being undermined by closure of Ysgol Llanbedr and proposals within the wider 

review. 

 

Response 

The authority is committed to providing Faith education with recent investment in Ysgol 

Dyffryn Ial, working in partnership with the Church in Wales Diocese of St. Asaph and 

Catholic Diocese of Wrexham to deliver a joint faith secondary school and at the request of 

the Church in Wales, proposals for a change in designation to a Voluntary Controlled status 

for Ysgol Esgob Morgan will be considered shortly.  

Within the Ruthin Area three schools provide a Faith based education, two provide English 

Medium (Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn) and one provides a bi-lingual education (Ysgol 

Llanfair DC). Overall there is a surplus capacity in the 3 Ruthin Area Faith schools of 87 Full 

Time Pupil Places based on Ysgol Llanbedrs lowered capacity. 

 

Issue 9 

Provision of on-site wrap-around-care is available via ‘Munchkins’, if Ysgol Llanbedr were to close 

it would result in the closure of this facility. 

 

Response 

The Ysgol Llanbedr site and building is in the control of the Church in Wales Diocese of St. 

Asaph. Should Ysgol Llanbedr close, the site would revert to the Diocese and/or descendant 

of the original benefactor. It would be a decision for the Diocese for the future use of the 

building which could include the retention of a child care facility. Other schools in the area 

do offer wrap-around-care with a number of pre-school, breakfast clubs and after school 

clubs available.  

 

Should the proposal be implemented the authority would discuss the options for accessing 

wrap-around-care with parents and with the Governing Body of Ysgol Borthyn. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 69



8 

 

Issue 10 

Concerns regarding school transport; children are at risk. 

 

Response 

Many of the pupils attending Ysgol Llanbedr are not eligible for home to school transport 

currently in accordance with the Transport Policy. The policy only provides home to school 

transport if the following conditions apply; 

Ø The route or partial route to the nearest suitable school is designated as a 

‘hazardous route’; 

Ø The nearest suitable school (primary provision) is more than 2 miles from 

home to school. 

 
 

All vehicles which transport Denbighshire pupils for school are monitored by the authority 

and by VOSA. The safety of pupils in Denbighshire is paramount, any individuals who have 

specific concerns regarding home to school transport should contact relevant DCC officers.   

School journey times would vary for some pupils however a significant majority of current 

pupils are currently by-passing their nearest suitable school (English Medium, Faith based 

education). The Welsh Government recommended journey time for primary school pupils is 

45 minutes. Pupils living within the immediate catchment area of Ysgol Llanbedr would 

likely have an estimated journey time of 10 minutes. For pupils outside of the catchment 

area the journey time is likely to decrease. 

Issue 11 

Transport and traffic management outside of Ysgol Borthyn (Denbigh Road) is a health and safety 

issue; children are at risk; Parking is restricted. 

 

Response 

Traffic and Incident data for the past 5 years on this stretch of road (Denbigh Road, Ruthin) 

shows there have been 3 traffic incidents all of which were classified as ‘slight’ severity. 

None of these incidents took place directly near to the school or during the ‘peak’ traffic 

periods at pick up and drop off.  

The demographic of the pupils who attend Ysgol Borthyn are from the immediate lower 

Ruthin area, consequently the majority of these pupils walk to school. A zebra crossing has 

been installed outside of the school and a ‘school patrol’ supervision is available between all 

core school hours to ensure the pupils are able to cross safely.  

 

 

Page 70



9 

 

Issue 12 

 
Other options, such as Federation, have not been considered for Ysgol Llanbedr but have been 

considered for other schools such as Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog.  

 

Response 

All options are explored for each school within the area review process, as demonstrated in 

the Formal Consultation Document a full options analysis for Ysgol Llanbedr was 

undertaken. Federation was not considered to be a viable option for Ysgol Llanbedr as it 

would not address the following issues; 

 

Ø It would not address the issue of surplus places in the Ruthin area; 

Ø Issues regarding lack of hall and dining facilities would not be rectified;  

Ø Any potential partners would have little to gain from the Federation; 

 

Expansion of the site was explored within the initial feasibility study however pupil 

numbers, although demonstrating an increase, would not see significant growth to 

necessitate an investment to increase the size of the school to 110 Full Time Pupils.   

 

The Diocese have expressed a preference for a Federation with a nearby bi-lingual Faith 

School, Ysgol Llanfair DC in places of a school closure however the surplus percentage across 

the two schools would have a combined surplus percentile of 47.7%.  

 

Federation has not been proposed for Ysgol Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog, closure has been 

proposed for both schools with a view to establishing a new area school in the Hiraethog 

area of Ruthin. 

 

Issue 13 

The proposal is not generating large savings; document states £68,000 

 

Response 

The £68,000 is the initial revenue saving within the schools delegated budget. It is 

this lump sum which is used to invest in any future school organisation or 

educational capital schemes or projects. Any savings made are re-invested back into 

the schools quantum (delegated budgets) for redistribution.  

Other financial implications are also attributed to the proposal including; 
 

§ Maintenance backlog (£51,762) would not be required to be funded; 
§ Cost per pupil would be reduced contributing to the balance in maximum and 

minimum cost per pupil spend; 
§ Revenue costs such as the provision of mobile accommodation will result in 

a saving of £4,659 per annum (£23,295 over a 5 year period). 
 

Page 71



Appendix D 

Summary of Issues Raised at parents, staff and Governing Body meetings 

1.   Ysgol Llanbedr Parents Meeting 

1.1  The Llanbedr parents meeting took place on the 19/11/2013, the session was held in a ‘parents evening’ style format. The tables below 

note the issues and concerns raised by parents at the meeting. 

No. Issue Raised  DCC Response 

1 Believe that parents should be able to access an English medium, 

faith based, rural, small school and have a right to it. 

 

The authority is of the view that the proposal still provides access to English 

medium faith education as the alternative.  There are also other options for 

rural faith education. 

 

2 Belief that the proposal did not offer a suitable alternative provision. 

 

The authority is of the view that the proposal still provides access to English 

medium faith education as the alternative.   

 

3 Moved to the area and choose the school specifically as it fitted with 

personal circumstances. 

 

Position noted, duty of local authority is to review school places. 

 

 

4 Size of school important factor for parents 

 

The authority is of the view that size of school does not always correlate to 

performance.   

 

5 Belief that Ysgol Borthyn is not a viable alternative provision 

 

The authority believes that the provision of Ysgol Borthyn is at least equal to 

Ysgol Llanbedr.   

 

6 Concern over proposal, required to demonstrate improved learning 

 

The authority believes that the provision of Ysgol Borthyn is at least equal to 

Ysgol Llanbedr.  Overall attainment has a number of contributing factors inc. 

free school meals, SEN provision which can impact on overall performance 

P
age 72



7 Concern that document does not fully identify costs of redundancy 

 

At this stage difficult to quantify redundancy costs.  Staff may gain alternative 

employment or seek retirement 

 

8 Concern that at the proposal is an attack against small schools The authority has a record in investing in small schools of the right size i.e. 

Ysgol Dyffryn Ial and Ysgol Bro Dyfrdwy where they are considered to be 

sustainable 

9 Concern that the issue of standards is not fully addressed in the 

report 

 

The authority believes that overall the issue of standards is not a concern in 

the Ruthin area.  Overall many schools provide comparable standards. 

 

10 Requirement of local authority to provide faith based provision There is no requirement to provide faith based provision in all areas.  Pattern 

established by Church authorities and reviewed by the local authority for 

sustainability. 

11 Historically poor decisions by the LEA and Governors are the reason 

for low pupil numbers and not happy with the support provided by 

the LEA 

 

The local authority provided substantial support for the school during a 

difficult period where many parents choose to send their children to 

alternative schools. 

12 Bias towards retaining Welsh schools. This is all part of a shameful 

Welsh Nationalist agenda 

The wider proposals for the Ruthin area seek to ensure access to all elements 

of education whether they are English, Welsh or Faith based provision whilst 

also seeking a balance between town and rural provision.  It is about ensuring 

that access can be maintained to all sectors whilst also addressing surplus 

places. There is no bias towards or against any element of this choice. 

13 Why haven’t you used a picture of Ysgol Borthyn in the pupil 

document? 

The images used in the document are neutral images to avoid any comments 

around bias etc. 

14 Why can’t you move children from Borthyn to Llanbedr? 

 

The pupil numbers at Borthyn are greater than Llanbedr. The choice of 

Borthyn would have been made on parental preference. 

15 Federation has been proposed for other schools in the area where 

they have small pupil numbers but not for Llanbedr. Ysgol Llanfair 

has been recommended to Federate with Ysgol Pentrecelyn which 

isn’t a Faith school. 

The recommendation for Ysgol Llanfair and Ysgol Pentrecelyn for federation is 

part of a phased proposal and is seen as a short term proposal. The second 

element would be the amalgamation as a new area school on a new site and 

the closure of the two existing schools. 

16 The timescale of the consultation when the future of others schools 

is up in the air and recommendations or proposals haven’t been 

carried out doesn’t seem fair. 

The differing proposals for the Ruthin area have different requirements 

regarding to school organisation requirements.  It would not be practical or 

efficient to undertake all elements of the Ruthin concurrently. 

P
age 73



17 Borthyn is not an alternative, the class sizes would be too large and 

Llanbedr offers the opportunity for more 1-1 time for pupils with the 

teachers. 

Overall Ysgol Borthyn is seen as a small / medium size school.  In many year 

groups pupils are taught in classes in the region of 15 / 20 pupils with 

appropriate support arrangements for teachers. 

18 Wish their child to access wrap around care. Benefits for working 

parents with wrap around care provided to assist. 

 

 

This facility is available at other schools and could be expanded to other 

schools. The authority will work with other Governing Bodies and providers of 

care to examine the scope for alternative provision. 

 

 

19 Munchkins also has children from other schools attending because it 

is a good environment and the holiday club is also available to those 

in the local area.    

 

The local authority would be keen to work with Munchkins and the Diocese to 

explore options for maintaining child care provision should the school close. 

20 Concerns that pupil number projections in the consultation 

document were  inaccurate. The pupil projections within the 

document are also wrong as the school will have 44 pupil on roll by 

September 2014 and there won’t be capacity for these pupils in 

Borthyn. 

The pupil projections in the document are accurate based on the known 

information.  There is liaison with the admissions team regarding future 

applications. Based on current numbers there are forecast to be 28 full time 

pupils in the school for September 2014. 

 

21 View that the school is sustainable long term. Projections indicate 

that the surplus will be naturally reduced. 

 

The authority believes that the sustainability needs to be carefully considered 

and that even if the school has a growth in pupil numbers this may not make 

it sustainable. 

 

22 Concern over personal circumstances and the level of care provided 

for her child in respect to 1-2-1 support 

The authority will work very closely to ensure that individual circumstances 

for pupils can be maintained in a new setting. 

 

23 View that school delivers a good standard of education. Overall the standard of education in the Ruthin area is high and that the 

schools in the area offer a comparable standard. 

24 Very happy with current provision emphasising the ethos of the 

school and the schools moral compass 

The authority welcomes the views of parents over the current provision at 

Ysgol Borthyn. 

 

25 The fact that Llanbedr is a small school is a positive feature The comments were noted. 

26 The mixed age environment in Llanbedr also works really well and 

pupils thrive at the school because of this. 

There can be educational benefits for pupils being educated in more age 

appropriate classes.  Whilst for many schools there is a requirement for mixed 

P
age 74



 age classes it is acknowledged that this can provide challenges. 

27 Concerns over suitability of Ysgol Borthyn as an alternative 

preference, particularly pupils being taught in larger classes 

The authority believes that the provision of Ysgol Borthyn is at least equal to 

Ysgol Llanbedr.  There are often benefits in pupils being taught in more age 

appropriate classes. 

28 Concerns of potential for pupils to be educated at mobiles Confirm long term desire to remove all mobiles.  Position of  use of mobile at 

Ysgol Borthyn will be reviewed in the future. 

29 Concerns over size of Ysgol Borthyn considered as large school 

 

The number on roll at Ysgol Borthyn is approximately 110. In the context of 

the wider provision this is not considered as a large school.  Schools in Rhyl 

and Prestatyn with excess of 420 pupils. 

 

30 Concerns over long term sustainability of Ysgol Borthyn Cabinet resolved to maintain Ysgol Borthyn to ensure access to English 

medium faith based education.   

31 Are there plans to build a new school in Ruthin The Cabinet agreed to progress a feasibility study for a replacement school 

campus for Rhos Street and Ysgol Penbarras which could also involve Ysgol 

Rhewl. 

32 Concerns about the parking and traffic issues outside of Ysgol 

Borthyn, with more pupils being transferred this situation could get 

worse.  

 

The concerns are noted.  The Council regularly reviews parking and traffic 

issues outside of schools and this would be closely monitored if the proposals 

were progressed. 

33 Concerns that not all Cabinet members appeared to understand 

previous leadership and management concerns 

Many of the issues in relation to leadership and management at the school 

were of a nature not to be disclosed in a public meeting.  Cabinet members 

had all visited the school previously and were aware of recent history of the 

school. 

34 Query regarding whether the authority intends to sell the school 

 

The land and buildings will be in the control of the Church in Wales and there 

is no financial gain for the local authority regarding the land and buildings. 

 

35 Reference to the comments about catering provision 

 

Those comments were as part of general views on wider Ruthin provision as 

part of the initial feasibility reports rather than a county wide assessment. 

 

36 Can you guarantee that money will be available to re-invest in the 

other schools? 

 

The proposals for the Corporate Plan to invest nearly £97m are based on 

savings being generated from a number of areas.  Savings being made from 

school reorganisation proposals will be used via prudential borrowing for 

P
age 75



investment in schools. 

37 What about the LDP? 

 

The LDP proposals could see 70 dwellings built in the village.  Based on the 

formula used this would generate approximately 21 pupils.  Against the 

proportion of children from the village who attend Ysgol Llanbedr this may 

generate an additional 5 pupils. 

 

2. Ysgol Llanbedr Staff Meeting 

2.1 The staff meeting for Ysgol Llanbedr was held on the 02/12/2013, the table below provides a summary of the main issues raised and 

Denbighshire County Council’s response to these issues. 

No. Issue Raised  DCC Response 

1 Can a school be closed during a school year. A school can be closed during a school year however the authority tries to 

ensure the minimum amount of disruption for pupils and staff.   

2 What happens to staff when a school closes; redeployment process Staff are entered into redeployment to assist them in finding alternative roles. 

Travelling distance is taken into account and support is available from 

Denbighshire County Council Human Resources Service who offer advice and 

support to all staff. Should any staff have any concerns or queries they are 

encouraged to contact a HR Officer.   

3 Is there an appropriate travelling distance for staff being 

redeployed; would not be able to travel long distances would need 

to be in the area. 

Denbighshire County Council goes to great efforts to ensure that staff are 

redeployed within a reasonable travelling distance.  

4 If a member of staff is on a fixed term contract can they apply for 

other roles before the contract ends. 

Any members of staff can apply for other roles whilst currently on a fixed 

term (or other) contract.  

5 Ysgol Llanbedr has an on-site wrap around care facility, would there 

be support for staff employed in ‘Munchkins’. 

Wrap-around-care is not a statutory provision, ‘Munchkins’ is a privately 

registered child care business. The authority would offer support should 

Munchkins close however it would differ from the support received by 

members of staff (teaching and ancillary) in the school.  

P
age 76



6 Some pupils require 1-2-1 support, would the current member of 

staff who provides this move with the pupil? This is centrally funded, 

not paid for from the school delegated budget. 

Where 1-2-1 support is currently provided it would be continued within 

another school, there is no guarantee that the member of staff would be able 

to move with them however where possible the authority would ensure as 

much continuity for individual pupils as necessary. 

7 Welfare and well-being of the children does not appear to have 

been considered within this consultation.  

The interest and well-being of pupils is paramount and all required support 

will be provided to pupils and their families as appropriate.  

8 Other schools such as Ysgol Bryn Clwyd  also have small numbers of 

pupils and high percentages of surplus places but have not been 

touched; why is Ysgol Llanbedr being faced with closure?  

A number of recommendations and proposal were made to Cabinet following 

the informal consultation period. All schools are being reviewed and the 

Ruthin Review is on-going.  

9 Current low numbers at the school are due to issues at the school in 

2011 which saw a number of pupils leave to go to other nearby 

schools. Numbers are increasing at the school.  

The authority has recognised that pupil numbers will increase at the school 

however Ysgol Llanbedr will remain a small school and challenges will still 

remain. There is a high number of surplus places within the Ruthin area.  

10 Can children be moved from other schools that are full to Ysgol 

Llanbedr. 

This would not be an option to decrease surplus places, there are only a 

certain number of children in the system and the overall number of surplus 

places would remain the same.  

11 Ysgol Pentrecelyn has low pupil numbers and surplus places but they 

are not being faced with closure.  

Ysgol Pentrecelyn is a Welsh Medium school, there is no capacity within the 

Welsh Medium sector in the Ruthin area to absorb these pupils. All schools in 

the process have been subject to the same process and criteria. 

12 Capacity assessment is in fact 77 not 54. The Governing Body requested that the capacity provided by the Mobile 

Classroom (23) should be removed prior to the Formal Consultation. The 

Governing Body have been asked to confirm whether going forward they 

want the capacity to remain at 54 or inclusive of the Mobile capacity which 

would be 77.  

13 Future of Ysgol Borthyn as an alternative school is also uncertain; if a 

new school is built on the Glasdir land this could affect the future of 

Borthyn.  

If a new school was to be built on the Glasdir land full feasibility work would 

be required and a full consultation would be undertaken.  

14 Why could Ysgol Llanbedr not federate? This was offered to other 

schools, Clocaenog and Cyffylliog and Pentrecelyn and Llanfair? 

Clocaenog and Cyffylliog have not been recommended federation, closure of 

both schools has been proposed with a view to building a new area school.  

Federation did not address a number of issues and would not have been a 

financially viable option to sustain the school going forward.  

15 Parents will have to travel further to school and transport costs are 

involved for those requiring school transport.  

Some parents and pupils will be required to travel further however the 

geographical range of pupils attending Ysgol Llanbedr demonstrates that a 

number of pupils are travelling considerable distance and passing other 

P
age 77



suitable schools to attend Ysgol Llanbedr.  

Revenue savings will be made year on year and would adequately fund any 

incurred school transport costs.  

16 Why are there so many mobiles in other schools especially Pen 

Barras? It has been mis-managed. 

The demand for Welsh Medium education in the primary and secondary 

sector has increased rapidly, Ysgol Pen Barras is the only provider of Welsh 

Medium Education within Ruthin Town. Pupils are admitted as there is no 

other capacity within the area for them. Mobiles are not a long term solution 

and the provision of mobile accommodation will be addressed within the 

Ruthin Review, as it has been in other areas.  

17 Use reserves to keep us open. Denbighshire is required to ensure a percentage of its overall revenue is 

retained within the authority’s reserves. The reserves are required to respond 

to emergency situations such as flooding which has recently been 

experienced in Denbighshire.  

18 Who is liable for the building. The Diocese of St. Asaph are responsible for the school site and building. The 

Mobile Accommodation is provided by Denbighshire County Council. 

19 Can Ysgol Llanbedr be expanded.  Expansion is not an option for Ysgol Llanbedr. There are only so many pupils 

within the system and the Ruthin Area has a high number of surplus places.  

 

20 Are schools in Flintshire being reviewed. All Welsh authorities are required to rationalise and ensure that the school 

estate is efficient with resources being maximised and used appropriately. 

The majority of Welsh authorities are undertaking school reorganisation 

proposals to safeguard and sustain educational provision.  

21 Will Borthyn be expanded. A number of options will be explored as part of the Ruthin Review with regard 

to the town schools.  

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 78



3. Ysgol Llanbedr Governing Body Meeting 

3.1 The Governing Body meeting was held on the 02/12/2013, the table below provides a summary of the main issues 

raised  

No. Issue Raised  DCC Response 

1 Capacity Issue: Ysgol Llanbedr has a mobile classroom which is 

utilised by Munchkins child care facility. The overall capacity of the 

school with the mobile is 77 Full Time pupils. Prior to the Formal 

Consultation the Governing Body requested that the capacity of the 

mobile (23) was taken out of the capacity assessment to give an 

overall permanent capacity of 54.  

GB unsure if this should be removed or should remain as it is not 

only surplus capacity that is the determining factor.  

Denbighshire County Council will display the capacity of the school with or 

without the mobile classroom capacity. DCC are aware this is currently used 

for other purposes (Munchkins). 

2 GB asked if mobile classrooms were a factor in the review, would 

mobiles be taken out of other schools in the review? 

DCC responded that mobile classrooms are one of the factors as they are not 

a long term solution for schools. 

3 GB asked if there would be adequate provision in Ysgol Borthyn, 

especially floor space in Key Stage 1. 

DCC responded that the capacity assessment at Ysgol Borthyn has sufficient 

floor space for Key Stage 1.  

4 Figures and pupil numbers in the consultation document are 

inaccurate; more pupils are registered in 2014, pupil projections 

would be higher. 

The figures used for pupil projections are taken from the January PLASC each 

year and uses actual figures within the formula. Due to the low pupil numbers 

in 2012-2013 this has shown a smaller increase in pupil numbers than the 

school expects, once these pupils are within the system they are included 

within the formula.  

5 GB unable to speak during Cabinet meeting; criticised for our role 

during 2011-2012 due to leadership and management issues. Acting 

Headteacher brought in by LEA, not our fault. 

Statement was highlighting that the Governing Bodies are responsible for the 

running of the school, the LEA is only a secondary employer.  

 

6 Issues at the school in 2011-2012 have not been take into account, 

especially regarding the low pupil numbers as a consequence. We 

were told not to appoint a Headteacher- a steer from the LEA  that 

we shouldn’t. 

The LEA will offer advice, it is likely this advice was given to stabilise the 

school during this period.  

P
age 79



7 Does every Cabinet member go through the entire Cabinet report 

and the responses. Do they have a duty of care to ensure that they 

do? 

Yes, all responses are provided to Cabinet before the meeting. 

8 Is closing the school a way to get funding for the new school on the 

Glasdir site.  

As an authority we need to reduce the numbers of schools within the school 

estate to ensure that resources are being used more efficiently. We have to 

deal with issues such as surplus places across the board.  

9 There are mobiles in other schools that waste resources and are not 

used intensively, can mobiles be removed? Do mobiles come under 

capital or revenue? 

Mobile’s fall under both revenue and capital dependent on the circumstance, 

they are sometimes bought or usually rented. 

10 Ysgol Borthyn may close in the future with a new school being built 

close by, do you have to close schools to draw down funding for 

this? 

 

The Ruthin primary sector has the highest number of surplus places, to 

provide capital to invest in education savings have to be made to generate 

money for investment. The 21
st

 Century School fund is similar but where 

Denbighshire are funding by themselves savings still have to be made.  

 

11 Why is just this school being closed when other schools in the area 

have high surplus places? 

This is not the case all schools in the Ruthin area have been provided with 

recommendations and these issues are required to be addressed.  

 

12 The recommendation to Federate won’t reduce surplus places in 

Pentrecelyn? 

Not on its own but the Federation has been recommended as a long term 

strategy with a view to providing a new area school which will rationalise 

school places.  

 

13 There is  a serious lack of moral compass in this review, moral issues 

where the children should be key. 

 

Denbighshire is not the only authority undertaking reviews. 

14 When will the report be going to Cabinet? In the new year either January or February. 

 

15 Welsh schools that are staying open and not English Medium 

schools, seems that have preferential treatment and other schools 

are treated differently. Closing English Medium schools will stop 

brining people into the area. 

This is not the case and Welsh schools have been closed in other areas due to 

surplus places, they are not treated differently. In the case of Pentrecelyn the 

pupils in the school have no where else in the system to go to. 

16 There is a presumption against closure why not work the other way 

around? How can you pre-assume closure without looking at other 

options first? 

All options are considered and weighted for all schools, the same criteria 

applies.  

 

P
age 80



17 In terms of Federation the Diocese would prefer that Llanfair was 

federated with another Church school such as Llanbedr. 

 

This would not reduce surplus places. 

 

18 The proposal dilutes the Christian character of the school (Llanfair). It does not necessarily mean it would dilute the Christian character, it can 

strengthen it. 

 

19 Do you look at all options, including the status quo ? The status quo is always an option but this option would not address any of 

the issues involved. The status quo for the Ruthin area is not sustainable now 

and in the future. 

20 What is the capacity at Ysgol Cyffylliog? Can you not close one of 

those schools and move them to the other? 

 

This was explored. 

 

21 The school is performing above the Denbighshire average. 

 

As are other schools. 

22 We want and English Medium faith school in a rural location, Ysgol 

Llanbedr provides this. 

 

We are not required to provide rural and faith schools, however Denbighshire 

is committed to providing these were we are able to and there is demand.  

23 Is the debate about town and rural schools? 

 

We try to provide a mix of town and rural where this is required and 

appropriate. 

 

24 Is the land that Ysgol Bryn Clwyd has been built on subject to 

covenants that sate it is not for educational purpose? Why are you 

not looking at the surplus places in Ysgol Bryn Clwyd? 

 

Not that we are aware of. Ysgol Bryn Clwyd was not in the review as it is in 

the Denbigh area however it has to be considered as it is Federated with Ysgol 

Gellifor. The School Improvement team are looking at Welsh language 

provision to bring children back to the school who are attending Welsh 

medium schools elsewhere. 

 

25 The funding appears to be for the North of the County, closing us to 

invest in the North? 

 

There is investment across the County; Ysgol Bro Dyfrdwy, Glan Clwyd, 

Dyffryn Ial, Rhyl and Prestatyn.  

 

26 Have these been agreed by the Welsh Government? 

 

Many of them are underway, some near completion and funding has been 

drawn down from the Welsh Government. Strategic Outline Cases and 

Business Cases have been approved for other projects or will be submitted in 

the new year. Funding has been agreed in principle.  

P
age 81



 

27 Where does the Ruthin Review fit in to this Welsh Government 

funding? 

 

Band B 

28 We are not talking to an independent Cabinet, the Lead member for 

Education, Leader and others have kept their schools.  

 

The same process applies to all schools in the review, recommendations and 

proposals have been made and are in the process of being undertaken.  

 

29 If the surplus places were reduced here would that solve the issues? 

 

No it would remain a small school and the authority won’t be able to maintain 

all schools over the coming years with further financial pressures. 

 

30 There is still surplus places in other schools why don’t you also come 

down on them? We feel like we are being victimised compared to 

others. We have better facilities and we can improve. 

 

There is still surplus places in other schools why don’t you also come down on 

them? We feel like we are being victimised compared to others. We have 

better facilities and we can improve. 

 

31 There are concerns regarding the childrens consultation, will there 

be educational psychologist for meetings. Parents have refused 

permission for the consultation meeting. 

 If you have concerns regarding this you can approach the School 

Improvement Team.  

 

32 How many other surplus places have you got? 

 

Ruthin primary sector has the highest surplus places, Rhyl is at capacity and 

there are capacity pressures elsewhere.  

 

33 So the lack of capacity in some areas such as Rhyl are being funded 

by the closure of Ysgol Llanbedr? Our numbers are increasing and 

could be full at 50. 

 

The debate is centred on even if the school is full at 50 is it still sustainable  

when there is capacity elsewhere. Currently under 30 pupils so it is a ‘very 

small school’ as classed by Estyn and a ‘small’ school at 54.  

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 82



4. Ysgol Borthyn Staff and Governing Body Meetings 

4.1 The staff meeting was held on the 13/11/2013 And the Governing Body meeting was held on the 20/11/2013. 

4.2 Officers from Denbighshire County Council provided an overview of the proposal at both meetings and allowed for any questions. At the 

staff meeting there were some questions regarding the wider Ruthin Review and the possibility of a new school within the Ruthin area and any 

affect this may have on Ysgol Borthyn.  

4.3 At the Governing Body meeting there were again some issues regarding the wider Ruthin Review and its context for Ysgol Borthyn. 

However at both meetings there were no objections to the current proposal.  

5. Ysgol Borthyn Parents Meeting 

5.1 The Llanbedr parents meeting took place on the 20/11/2013, the session was held in a ‘parents evening’ style format. The tables below 

note the issues and concerns raised by parents at the meeting. 

No. Issue Raised  DCC Response 

1 Concern over perceived threat to Ysgol Borthyn 

 

The authority notes the concerns over the long term sustainability of Ysgol 

Borthyn.  Any changes to the school will need to be made in light of the wish 

to ensure continued access for English medium faith based education in the 

Ruthin area. 

 

2 Strong support for Ysgol Borthyn, school with a strong caring 

community ethos 

 

The authority notes the views of parents over the current provision at Ysgol 

Borthyn. 

 

3 Strong support for pupils 

 

 

The authority notes the views of parents over the current provision at Ysgol 

Borthyn. 

 

4 Concerns that if there were proposals for a larger school that the 

level of support for pupils could be lost 

The authority considers that the leadership and management of schools can 

be a larger variant on support for pupils than solely the size of the school. 

P
age 83



  

5 Supportive of school, good all round facilities, particularly external 

areas and sports field and play areas 

The authority welcomes the views of parents over the current provision at 

Ysgol Borthyn. 

 

 

P
age 84



1 

 

 

 

Children and Young People’s Consultation Report 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1 A Formal Consultation regarding the following proposal began on 11/11/2013 

and ended on the 23/12/2013; 

              “Proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr as of the 31
st

 of August 2014 and transfer existing 

pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference.” 

1.2 Both schools (Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Borthyn) were approached to arrange a 

consultation event with the School Council. The consultation events are 

facilitated by Denbighshire County Councils 14-19 Network Development Officer 

(which is inclusive of a ‘learner voice champion role) and a member of the 

Modernising Education Team attends to provide a background to the proposal 

and answer any questions the School Council may have.  

1.3 An ‘icebreaker’ exercise is undertaken with the School Council where they have 

the opportunity to introduce themselves. Following this exercise they are asked 

what they would like to change in their school (if anything at all), how long it 

takes them to get to school, what they thought of the proposal (‘good’ or ‘bad’ 

idea), why they think it is a ‘good’ or ‘bad’ idea followed by a ‘hopes and fears’ 

exercise where they have the opportunity to note any hopes and fears they may 

have.  

1.4 This report will highlight what the outcome of the consultation events and the 

thoughts the School Council had about school and the proposal. 

2. Ysgol Llanbedr: School Council Consultation Event (03/12/2013) 

2.1 A consultation event was scheduled with the School Council of Ysgol Llanbedr, 

however following the request parents were sent letters requesting if permission 

was granted for their child/children to take part in the consultation event. 

Permission was refused by all parents and the consultation event was unable to 

take place. 

Appendix E

Page 85



2 

 

3.   Ysgol Borthyn: School Council Consultation Event (05/12/2013) 

3.1 The 14-19 Network Development Officer and a member of the Modernising 

Education Team facilitated a consultation event with the School Council in Ysgol 

Borthyn. The event followed the previously outlined format. 

3.2 The School Council were asked what they liked about school, and their answers 

were as follows; 

§ PE; 

§ Break Time; 

§ School Dance; 

§ Art; 

§ Christmas Play; 

§ Work; 

§ Maths ; 

§ Home time; 

§ English; 

§ Their friends; 

§ Teachers; 

§ ICT; 

§ Science 

3.3 The School Council were then asked if they could change anything about school 

what would it be, their answers are as follows; 

§ Whole yard to play (separated for infant & juniors); 

§ Have a climbing frame; 

§ Trampoline; 

§ Shorter assembly; 

§ More playtime; 

§ To wear own clothes; 

§ Have a swimming pool. 

3.4 The School Council were asked how long it took them to get to school, their 

answers were as follows; 

Less than 5 minutes: 6 

5-10 minutes: 2 

More than 10 minutes: 2 

 

 

 

Page 86



3 

 

3.5 The School Council were asked if they enjoyed speaking Welsh in school; 

DO YOU ENJOY SPEAKING WELSH IN SCHOOL: 

No– 8 

Yes– 2 

How often do you speak Welsh in school: 

1 day a week 

  

3.6 The School Council were asked what would be good about pupils from Ysgol 

Llanbedr joining Ysgol Borthyn, the School Council answered as follows; 

§ More friends to play with; 

§ More Children to help each other; 

§ More teachers; 

3.7 Asked whether this was a good or bad idea (the proposal), the school Council 

responded as follows; 

Yes- 3 

No-5 

3.8 The School Council were asked if they had any worries about this, they 

answered as follows; 

§ More squashed in class; 

§ Need a bigger school; 

§ Might starve if they have to wait longer for dinner; 

§ More dinner ladies would be needed; 

§ Harder to find mum and dad after school; 

§ Bullying- one pupil had previously attended Ysgol Llanbedr and was 

transferred to Ysgol Borthyn.  

 

3.9 The School Council summarised their ‘Hopes and Fears’ as follows; 

HOPES 

§ Bigger classes; 

§ More Friends; 

§ Kind children; 

§ School would be bigger; 

§ Fly to space; 

 

Page 87



4 

 

Fears 

§ Scared; 

§ Punching; 

§ Scared in case they take a best friend away; 

§ Arguing; 

§ Bullies; 

§ School would need to be bigger; 

§ Pushing; 

§ Longer queue for dinner; 

§ They might take over the playground.  

 

4. The children’s version of the Formal Consultation can be found in Appendix 

E. 

 

Page 88



 

Children's Formal Consulta�on Report:   

What pupils of  Ysgol Llanbedr & Ysgol Borthyn think of the pro-

posal. 

 

Ysgol Llanbedr 

Ysgol Borthyn 

P
age 89



INTRODUCTION 

The proposal is to close Ysgol Llanbedr and on the 31
st

 of August 2014 and transfer pupils to  

Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference.   

This document explains what the pupils of Ysgol Borthyn think of the proposal. Unfortunately 

the pupils at Ysgol Llanbedr were not allowed to  join in as parents refused permission to take 

part in the session. This document therefore focuses on what the pupils at Ysgol Borthyn think 

of Ysgol Llanbedr pupils a!ending the school, if it was closed. 

 

 

 

P
age 90



YSGOL BORTHYN 

What we like about our school? 

Friends 

Break !me 

PE 

School dance 

Art Christmas play 

Work Maths makes sense 

Home !me 

 

English 

Teachers 

ICT 
Science & everything 

P
age 91



Is there anything you want to change? 

 

To take the pencils down & have the whole yard to play in 

Easier work A climbing frame where the pencils are 

Trampoline where the pencils are 

Shorter assembly 

More play!me 

Have a swimming pool 

Wear own clothes 

P
age 92



HOW LONG DOES IT TAKE TO GET TO SCHOOL: 

¨ Less than 5 minutes– 6 

¨ 5-10 minutes– 2 

¨ More than 10 minutes– 2 

DO YOU ENJOY SPEAKING WELSH IN SCHOOL: 

No– 8 

Yes– 2 

How o!en do you speak Welsh in school: 

1 day a week 

DO YOU HAVE BROTHERS OR SISTERS IN THE SCHOOL: 

Yes– 5           No– 4 

P
age 93



What would be good about Llanbedr  

children joining the school: 

More  friends to play with  

More teachers 

More children to help each other 

Is it a good idea? 

Yes– 3 

No– 5 

P
age 94



What are your worries? 

More squashed in class 
Would need a bigger school 

One pupil had previously a!ended Llanbedr & was bullied, 

which forced him to leave & join Borthyn 

Might starve as have to wait longer for dinner 

Harder to find mum & dad a#er school 

More dinner ladies would be needed 

P
age 95



Hopes & Fears 

 

HOPES 

School would be bigger 

Bigger classes 

More friends 

Kind children 

Fly to space 

FEARS 

Scared 

Bullies 

They might take over the playground 

Punching 

Scared in case they take a best friend away 

Pushing people around 

Arguing 

Longer queue in dinner 

School would need to be bigger 

P
age 96



Proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr

and transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin

subject to parental preference

Children's Version

Formal Consultation

Document

Formal Consultation

Document

P
age 97



WhaWhaWhaWhaWhat wt wt wt wt would could could could could changhanghanghanghange?e?e?e?e?
Instead of  going to school each day

in Llanbedr you would go to school in

Ysgol Borthyn.

You would have a new teacher and a

new classroom.

Ysgol Borthyn is the closest school

that is most like your school, which is

Llanbedr. It is up to parents to decide

on your new school.

WhaWhaWhaWhaWhat's hat's hat's hat's hat's happening?ppening?ppening?ppening?ppening?
We are from Denbighshire County Council
and our job is to make schools better.

We have been out to speak to parents
about the schools in, and near, Ruthin town.
We have a plan to make schools better
and we want to tell you about it how
we would do this.

WhaWhaWhaWhaWhat is the plan?t is the plan?t is the plan?t is the plan?t is the plan?
To make schools better for all children it
sometimes means some schools cannot
stay as they are now. In this case Ysgol
Llanbedr may close from next year.

What would happen then is we would
move all the children from Ysgol Llanbedr
to a new school nearby.

The new school is called Ysgol Borthyn.
The new school is in Ruthin.

P
age 98



Why arWhy arWhy arWhy arWhy are we we we we we aske aske aske aske asking ying ying ying ying you?ou?ou?ou?ou?
We think it is very important to speak to every-

one about the plan especially the children in

the school.

Very soon we will come to see you and

listen to what you have to say.

WWWWWant to know morant to know morant to know morant to know morant to know more ae ae ae ae aboutboutboutboutbout

our plan?our plan?our plan?our plan?our plan?
We have sent a bigger document to parents and

teachers, but if  you would like to see this as well

you can find it on our website:

www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation

P
age 99



If  you want to tell us what you think you can write it down and send it

to us at this address:-

Modernising EducaModernising EducaModernising EducaModernising EducaModernising Education Prtion Prtion Prtion Prtion Progogogogogrrrrramme Tamme Tamme Tamme Tamme Teameameameameam

DenbighshirDenbighshirDenbighshirDenbighshirDenbighshire County Councile County Councile County Councile County Councile County Council

County HallCounty HallCounty HallCounty HallCounty Hall

WWWWWynnstaynnstaynnstaynnstaynnstay Ry Ry Ry Ry Roadoadoadoadoad

RRRRRuthinuthinuthinuthinuthin

LL15 1YNLL15 1YNLL15 1YNLL15 1YNLL15 1YN

SoSoSoSoSo, wha, wha, wha, wha, what do yt do yt do yt do yt do you think aou think aou think aou think aou think about the plan?bout the plan?bout the plan?bout the plan?bout the plan?

Or you can email us:-

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk

P
age 100



Cynnig Cau Ysgol Llanbedr a throsglwyddo'r

disgyblion i Ysgol Borthyn, Rhuthun, yn dibynnu ar

ddewis y rhieni

Fersiwn Plant o'r Ddogfen Ymgynghori

Dogfen Ymgynghori

Ffurfiol

Dogfen Ymgynghori

Ffurfiol

P
age 101



Beth fyBeth fyBeth fyBeth fyBeth fyddai'n neddai'n neddai'n neddai'n neddai'n newid?wid?wid?wid?wid?
Yn lle mynd i'r ysgol bob dydd yn

Llanbedr, byddech chi'n mynd i'r

ysgol yn Ysgol Borthyn.

Byddai gennych athro newydd a

dosbarth newydd.

Ysgol Borthyn yw'r ysgol agosaf

sydd fwyaf  tebyg i'ch ysgol chi, sef

Llanbedr. Eich rhieni fydd yn dewis

eich ysgol newydd.

Beth sy'n digwyBeth sy'n digwyBeth sy'n digwyBeth sy'n digwyBeth sy'n digwydd?dd?dd?dd?dd?
Rydyn ni o Gyngor Sir Ddinbych a'n gwaith
ni yw gwneud ysgolion yn well.

Rydym wedi bod allan yn siarad gyda rhieni
am yr ysgolion yn nhref  Rhuthun a gerllaw.
Mae gennym gynllun i wneud ysgolion yn
well ac rydym am ddweud wrthych chi
amdano a sut y byddem yn gwneud hynny.

Beth yw'r cBeth yw'r cBeth yw'r cBeth yw'r cBeth yw'r cynllun?ynllun?ynllun?ynllun?ynllun?
Er mwyn gwneud ysgolion yn well i bob
plentyn, weithiau mae'n golygu nad yw
rhai ysgolion yn gallu aros fel y maen nhw
ar hyn o bryd.  Felly, mae'n bosibl y bydd
Ysgol Llanbedr yn cau o'r flwyddyn nesaf.

Beth fyddai'n digwydd wedyn yw,
byddem yn symud y plant i gyd o Ysgol
Llanbedr i ysgol newydd gerllaw.

Enw'r ysgol newydd yw Ysgol Borthyn.
Mae'r ysgol newydd yn Rhuthun.

P
age 102



PPPPPam yam yam yam yam ydym yn gdym yn gdym yn gdym yn gdym yn gofyn i cofyn i cofyn i cofyn i cofyn i chi?hi?hi?hi?hi?
Rydym ni'n meddwl ei bod yn bwysig iawn

siarad gyda phawb am y cynllun, yn enwedig y

plant yn yr ysgol.

Yn fuan iawn, byddwn yn dod i'ch gweld chi a

gwrando ar beth sydd gennych i'w ddweud.

YYYYYdydydydydyccccch ch ch ch ch chi eisiau gwybodhi eisiau gwybodhi eisiau gwybodhi eisiau gwybodhi eisiau gwybod

mwy am ein cmwy am ein cmwy am ein cmwy am ein cmwy am ein cynllun?ynllun?ynllun?ynllun?ynllun?
Rydym wedi anfon dogfen fwy at rieni ac

athrawon, ond os hoffech chi weld hon hefyd,

mae hi ar gael ar ein gwefan:

www.sirddinbych.gov.uk/moderneiddioaddysg

P
age 103



Os ydych eisiau dweud wrthym beth ydych chi'n ei feddwl, gallwch ei

ysgrifennu i lawr a'i anfon atom yn y cyfeiriad hwn:-

Tîm RhaTîm RhaTîm RhaTîm RhaTîm Rhaggggglen Moderneiddio Addylen Moderneiddio Addylen Moderneiddio Addylen Moderneiddio Addylen Moderneiddio Addysgsgsgsgsg

CyngCyngCyngCyngCyngor Sir Ddinbor Sir Ddinbor Sir Ddinbor Sir Ddinbor Sir Ddinbyyyyyccccchhhhh

Neuadd y SirNeuadd y SirNeuadd y SirNeuadd y SirNeuadd y Sir

FfFfFfFfFfororororordd Wdd Wdd Wdd Wdd Wynnstaynnstaynnstaynnstaynnstayyyyy

RhuthunRhuthunRhuthunRhuthunRhuthun

LL15 1YNLL15 1YNLL15 1YNLL15 1YNLL15 1YN

FFFFFellyellyellyellyelly, beth y, beth y, beth y, beth y, beth ydydydydydyccccch ch ch ch ch chi'n ei fhi'n ei fhi'n ei fhi'n ei fhi'n ei feddwl am yeddwl am yeddwl am yeddwl am yeddwl am y

cccccynllun?ynllun?ynllun?ynllun?ynllun?

Neu gallwch anfon e-bost atom:-

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk

P
age 104



1 

 

Appendix F 

 

Standard Response Form Analysis  

1.   Introduction 

1.1 The standard response form was provided to consultees in both hardcopy and 

electronically via the Denbighshire County Council Website. The template for the 

standard response form can be found in Appendix B. 

1.2  The standard response form is produced to elicit the following information; 

§ Are consultees in favour or opposed to the Current Proposal; 

§ Reasons why they are in favour or opposed to the Current Proposal; 

§ Whether they would send their child/children to the proposed alternative school; 

§ Provide comment, positive or negative, regarding the Current Proposal. 

1.3  The standard response form is one of a number of methods that consultees can use to 

respond to consultations. This section will provide a breakdown analysis of the 85 

response received via the standard response form.  

2.    Breakdown Analysis 

2.1 The total number of respondents are as follows; 

 

 

 

 

2.2  Question 1 asked respondents whether they were in favour or opposed to the current 

proposal, the results are as follows; 

 

Total No. 
Opposed 

% Opposed  Total. No In 
Favour 

Total % In 
Favour 

Total No. 
Skipped 

Total % 
Skipped 

74 87.1% 10 11.8% 1 1.1% 
*of a total 85 responses 

 

 

 

Hardcopy Electronic Overall Total 

16 69 85 

Page 105



2 

 

2.3 Question 2 asked respondents to indicate whether they were responding as a pupil, 

parent, staff member, community member or other interested party. Respondents 

were not restricted to one choice as some may be both a parent and community 

member, the majority of respondents where parents and community members of 

Llanbedr DC. Responses are summarised below; 

 

Pupil Parent Staff Member Community 
Member 

Other 

0 32 3 38 22 
*Respondents who indicated ‘other’ included grandparents, ex-pupils, church members, former and 

prospective parents. 

 

2.4 Question 3 asked respondents to indicate which school they were most closely 

associated with, the results are as follows; 

 

School Total. No %* 

Ysgol Llanbedr 76 92.6% 
Ysgol Borthyn 5 6.1% 
Both 1 1.3% 
Neither/No Response 3 N/A 

 

2.5 Respondents were asked to indicate if the impact on education and the impact on the 

local community were contributing factors to their view regarding the current proposal. 

The results are as follows; 

 

Impact on Education  74 

Impact on Local Community  72 

Other; 41 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 106



3 

 

 

 

2.6 The table below provides a tabulated breakdown of the responses indicated ‘Other’ for Question 4; 

Ref No. Issue Raised No of Respondents 
Raising Issue 

1 Impact on child/pupil wellbeing; disruption due to move; Impact on families; Pupil’s welfare 22 

2 Children will require school transport; more traffic in the Ruthin area & at Ysgol Borthyn; Congested; No 
parking and drop off & pick up- concerns  

10 

3 Impact on Faith Education; Impact on Church; Impact on choice for Faith education 7 

4 Impact on the community links with the school 7 

5 English medium education important; limiting parental choice 4 

6 Ysgol Borthyn not equal to or better; educational standards excellent at Llanbedr;  4 

7 Loss of on-site wrap-around-care facility; 4 

8 Ysgol Llanbedr is in rural/village location 3 

9 Impact on staff; Loss of jobs 2 

10 Impact on local economy; impact on tax payers 2 

*Of a total 41 responses 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 107



4 

 

 

2.7 Question 5 asked respondents to provide any comments, either positive or negative regarding the proposal. The key 

issues and themes are recorded in the table below (redacted responses to question 5 can be found in Appendix D); 

Ref 

No 

Issues Raised No. of Respondents 

Raising Issue 

1. Parents want a Rural, English Medium, Faith based school; Only Ysgol Llanbedr provides this. 14 

2. Ysgol Llanbedr is located in a beautiful location within the area of outstanding natural beauty; idyllic 

and unique setting; wide open spaces; fantastic grounds and facilities; wonderful environment. 

18 

3. Educational standards at Ysgol Llanbedr are excellent; high quality; outperforms the Denbighshire and 

Wales averages at Key Stage 2; Well-being of pupils is paramount; school enhances the learning 

experience of learners. 

8 

4. Christian ethos of the school; close links with the local church in Llanbedr. 7 

5. Ysgol Llanbedr provides a caring, warm, welcoming environment for pupils. 7 

6. Undermining Faith education and provision in the area. 4 

7. Proposal is taking away parental choice; less choice will be detrimental; restricting choice.  5 

8. Current low numbers at the school are due to leadership issues in 2011-2012; poor decisions and 

appointments of Headteachers; mis-management by the LEA ; no support for the school during 

difficult period; not the fault of the Governing Body; would still be full if not for exceptional 

circumstances. 

22 

9. Munchkins@Llanbedr provides onsite wrap-around-care for working parents; child care if affordable; 

no requirement to transport children to other sites for pre & after school care; much needed 

resource in the village of Llanbedr. Provides a holiday club- viable business. This would be lost if the 

school was to close; loss of jobs.  

13 

10. The school is recovering in numbers; high intake for September 2014; incorrect figures in the 

consultation document; numbers have stabilised; surplus places will be reduced.  

14 

P
age 108



5 

 

11. Consultation process has been unfair; biased; how has criteria been applied within the review, does 

not seem fair; pre-determined to close. 

17 

12. Other schools within the review with similar pupil numbers and surplus places are not facing closure. 

High surplus in Ysgol Bryn Clwyd, Ysgol Rhewl and Ysgol Pentrecelyn. Clocaenog and Cyffylliog are 

getting a new school for 54 pupils but we are not ‘viable’.  

8 

13. Local Development Plan will see 70 new houses in Ysgol Llanbedr; will contribute to growing pupil 

numbers. Young families need a local school; helps a village grow and thrive.  

11 

14. Timing of the proposal with regard to the wider review; premature process; wait for the new school 

on the Glasdir then decide; Build one town school for Ruthin children and save rural schools; Review 

in the town should take place first.  

7 

15. Cabinet members are protesting about schools in their own areas; conflicts of interest.  2 

16. Ysgol Borthyn is not a suitable alternative; town school not a rural school; some pupils are taught in 

the mobile classroom. 

23 

17. Ysgol Borthyn has a lower standard of education; inferior site; large class sizes; there won’t be 

capacity at Borthyn. 

19 

18. Concerned about traffic congestion outside of Ysgol Borthyn; Ysgol Llanbedr has dedicated car park 

and drop off and pick up facilities which are off road; Borthyn does not have this. Health and safety 

issues with little room for parking; unsafe and dangerous.  

8 

19. Town schools are too large; do not offer the same grounds and facilities. 6 

20. Current school population is too low to be economically viable; larger schools more economically 

likely to maintain and offer up-to-date facilities; class sizes are too small; not beneficial. 

7 

21. Small class sizes; mixed age classes  6 

22. Effect/impact (negative) on pupils if the school closed; effect on their well-being due to disruption. 13 

23. English medium education is a priority; English speaking schools for English speaking families.  8 

24. Why have other options not been explored for Ysgol Llanbedr? Federation has been proposed for 4 

P
age 109



6 

 

other small schools. 

25. Uncertainty regarding the future of Ysgol Borthyn; this could face closure and children would be 

moved twice.  

4 

26.  Close links with the local church would be lost. 4 

27.  Savings outlined in the document are not substantial; would be off set with transport costs. 7 

28.  Pupils won’t be able to attend their local school; won’t be able to walk to school.  4 

29.  Impact on the community; schools are heart of communities; Community of Llanbedr will suffer with 

loss of a local school.  

27 

30.  Ysgol Llanbedr should not be closed; it should be retained. 33 

31.  Consultation document; opinions not facts are represented 7 

32.  Potential to expand and develop Ysgol Llanbedr. 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 110



7 

 

 

 

2.8 Question 6 was designed for parents/guardians with children currently in Ysgol 

Llanbedr however respondents other than parents/guardians have also provided 

responses and are included in the summary below. Responses to Question 6 “If 

the proposal is implemented would you send your child/children to Ysgol Borthyn 

or would you choose another school? If you would choose another school, which 

one and why?” are summarised below; 

Answer No. of Respondents* 
No 36 
Yes 1 
May Consider  2 
Not Applicable 18 
Home Schooling 2 

Attend Ysgol Borthyn  2 
Have not explored alternative  1 
*Of a total 62 respondents 

 

2.9 Other schools indicated as suitable alternatives by respondents include Ysgol 

Gellifor, Ysgol Bro Famau and Rhos Street School. Reasons provided for not 

opting for Ysgol Borthyn as an alternative are summarised below; 

 

Ref. No Comment No. of 
Respondents 

1 Educational standards are lower at Borthyn; lower attainment; bad 
reputation; Estyn inspections not similar. 

7 

2 Grounds and facilities at Borthyn not adequate; Use of mobile for 
teaching; Traffic and parking issues. 

6 

3 Ysgol Llanbedr provides wrap-around-care on site; Other schools have 
limited or no wrap-around-care; transport needed. 

3 

4 Would want an English medium, rural, faith school; Not large town 
school 

8 

5 Future of Borthyn also uncertain; more disruption 3 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 111



8 

 

3.    Community Questionnaires 

3.1 In addition to the standard response form, 61 community questionnaires were also 

received. Below is a tabulated breakdown of the key issues arising within this 

questionnaire; 

Ref. No Issues Raised No. of 
Respondents  

1 Impact on Community: Community link with school; closure would be 
a massive loss to the community; school is the heart of the village; the 
school supports the community and community events; school helps 
the village thrive.  

49 

2 Education in Ysgol Llanbedr: Excellent standard of education; good 
school; historic school; small class sizes; provides first class education; 
high quality teaching staff; warm, caring environment; English medium; 
successful school. 

37 

3 Facilities in Ysgol Llanbedr: Good, off road parking facilities; safe 
drop off/pick up; fantastic outdoor facilities; astro turf; open space; 
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty; unique setting. 

33 

4 Local Development Plan: Allocation of 70 new homes; more homes 
will create demand for the school; attract families with a school; village 
will grow. 

17 

5 Town schools/Ysgol Borthyn not suitable alternatives: town 
schools are too large; large class sizes; traffic and parking issues; 
unsafe; congestion outside town schools; lacking in facilities; new town 
school could see more school closures. 

14 

6 Faith School: Promotion of Christian Faith; unique ethos of a faith 
school; strong links with local church in the village.  

11 

7 Transport and Travel: Proposal would mean more travel for pupils; 
would increase traffic in the town; school transport would be required; 
extra cost; transport would affect pupils travelling more. 

9 

8 Leadership Issues 2011-2012: Have not been taken into account; 
lacked support from LEA; chance for school to recover; low pupil 
numbers consequence of this period; ‘blip’. 

8 

9 Proposal: flawed; inaccurate; short-sighted; ignorant. 8 

10 Pupil Numbers/Surplus Places: Increasing pupil numbers; intake for 
2014 is high; demand for school in the area.  

8 

 

3.2 The majority of the community questionnaires were opposed to the current proposal.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 112



9 

 

4.  To Surmise   

4.1 The majority (87.1%) of respondents were opposed to the Current Proposal’ 

                       

 

 

 

 

4.2 The majority of respondents stated they would not send their child/children to Ysgol 

Borthyn, Ruthin as the alternative English Medium Faith School within the Ruthin Area; 

 

Page 113



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

1 

 

Survey Monkey (Electronic) 

Reference Comment Permission 

Response 

Form 1 
As more people are going to have to travel further to Ysgol Borthyn it will cause a traffic issue outside the school, 

there is very little parking in the area congesting an already busy area. Let alone the environmental effects. Sending 

children that are currently in smaller teaching groups into a school that has larger classes is un-ethical to the 

children. There is no thought to how they would adapt to this change. Families send their children to Ysgol Llanbedr 

because of the quality of the teaching and the staff, has there been any thought or guarantee if the same quality of 

teaching staff can be provided at Ysgol Borthyn after increasing the class sizes. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 2 
I would prefer that Borthyn is extended rather than use portacabins.  is in a portacabin currently and 

sometimes has to wear a coat to keep warm in winter and it has been known to leak water. Also portacabins are a 

constant money pit(rent and extra heating to keep them warm). the money saved from Ysgol Llanbedr could fund 

the extension. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 4 
Ysgol llanbedr is providing children with a wonderful education In a lovely setting. The building is only set to be used 

for education so why close it?! 

Yes 

Response 

Form 5 
If there is an increase of housing provision in the village there needs some consideration about where an increased 

population may send their children. Borthyn capacity (or any of the other local schools) would not be large enough. 

The cost to extend Borthyn or other educational establishments will soon erode the expense of keeping Ysgol 

Llanbedr open. Several reports recently have shown that small school have a greater positive impact on the 

education of the young people, particularly with disadvantaged children who can get lost and are more vulnerable 

in a larger system. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 7 
It is nonsense to consider closing the school when there is a plan in place to increase the number of houses in the 

village. Extremely short sighted proposal 

Yes 

Response 

Form 9 
I believe that the reason that school is failing is because it has not has a head in charge for a long enough period 

over the last five years in order to have been given a real chance to increase its numbers. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 10 
 

 

No 

Response 

Form 11 
This proposal is an absolute farce, badly planned , absolutely no consideration given to the children involved with 

this , they are THE most important in this, why are you not asking them what they want ? 

Yes 

Response 

Form 12 
poor consultation. Ysgol llanbedr has been unfairly treated. we want a faith based, English medium, rural location 

school. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 14 
I can not believe closing Ysgol Llanbedr is even being considered. The process has been so 'engineered' by the 

'Modernising Education Team', there is no substance to many of their claims and the figures they produced to 

support their claims are completely fabricated. It also feels alot like nationalisation (I am NOT English by the way) 

Yes 

Redaction

Redaction

P
age 114



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

2 

 

and 'cleansing' Denbighshire of all faith based education is surely not legal given we are supposed to have parental 

choice when it comes to our children's education. I feel you are taking all our choices away from us. We have been 

given the option of Ysgol Borthyn, which is also earmarked for future closure. So we are then to move our children 

yet again? Absolutely ludicrous. I am sure parents at Ysgol Borthyn are none too happy about the idea of their 

children's classes becoming full to overflowing either. Parking is non-existant and it is unsafe to drop children near 

the school. I don't believe any highways feasability study has been carried out in order to see how having an extra 

25 or so cars arriving every morning and afternoon at the same time will impact an already dangerous situation. We 

feel we have been hung out to dry by the LEA. We had endless problems with bad decisions made by them with 

regards to head teachers. We were promised support during what was an horrendous time for staff and parents. 

Instead the LEA left us to cope and then pulled the rug out from under us. Now they are pointing their finger at the 

Governing Body as being their fault? Again, council workers covering their own backsides and looking for any 

available scapegoat, but ultimately rubbing their hands together as they feel they have found a perfect time to close 

a fabulous school. A consultation is supposed to be just that - an unbiased gathering of facts and opinions. Yet the 

leader of the team has been in the local paper already talking about the closure of our school as if it is already a 

'done deal'. How can this be when the consultation process is only just beginning? It is also very interesting that 

members of the MET have been able to protect all the schools within their own areas - infact one or two areas are 

getting a new school. A conflict of interest surely. And all these decisions are being made in order to 'draw down 

funding' for education in the Denbighshire area - to build a 'super-school' that hasn't even been planned for yet - in 

Ruthin, a town where a future development plan has not even been completed? A rural development plan HAS 

been completed for Llanbedr DC and a plan to create at least another 70 houses in the village. Where are these 

families going to send their children? Who will buy in a village with no school? The elderly will - but how does that 

help grow a village? This whole process is very premature and from what I have witnessed so far during this farce - a 

rather corrupt undertone is apparent. 

Response 

Form 15 
This is just so sad that you are thinking of closing such a beautiful and warm school. I want my son to be in a 

countryside school, that is a faith school,  to be educated with the 

affiliation to that church, the church where he was also christened aswell as myself. It is scandalous to think you 

could close it, the numbers are up and are projected to rise. It is criminal to even think about closing it, and those 

making that decision should be ashamed of themselves to put this worry into all involved. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 16 
Ysgol Llanbedr is a wonderful school in a beautiful location and at the heart of a rural community. Despite set-backs 

from previous years, the school is fighting back with an imminent return to full capacity. Despite threat of closure, 

parents are still choosing to enroll their children.Give the school a chance to prove it can return to full capacity. This 

school gets good results and meets the needs of the community. The future is bright for this school. Closure would 

be wrong. 

Yes 

Redaction

P
age 115



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

3 

 

Response 

Form 17 
I chose ysgol llanbedr for three reasons: a rural education, with a Christian ethos and English medium. Please tell me 

which other school in ruthin area provides this? 

Yes 

Response 

Form 19 
The school is starting to increase numbers back to where they were a couple of years ago and has been unfairly 

treated in the research despite members of Denbighshire County Council saying that everything would be taken into 

consideration 

Yes 

Response 

Form 20 
The proposal is flawed, it has incorrect figures for pupil numbers 2014 at Llanbedr school. It also purposefully 

misleads by focusing on 2011 figures as low numbers for the school due to exceptional circumstances. There are 

also a number of small school in the are with worse facilities and Llanbedr is a fantastic school with numbers of 

pupils increasing. It is a fantastic environment and has excellent academic results. There is no valid reason to target 

Llanbedr school for closure. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 23 
you can not merge a village school with the nearest town school, you can merge some of the facilities with the town 

school with other ones close by but not a village school some 6 miles away from the nearest infant/junior school, It 

is bad enough that children have to travel to high schools and public/school bus services are at best poor especially 

in the winter time. Still the dice has been thrown one if not both of these schools will close. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 24 
Llanbedr is my home village but I could not afford a house as they are expensive but chose to send  to 

Llanbedr. I felt it important to be free to choose a village church school and as a single mother had the help of my 

parents who live in Llanbedr. Since leaving Llanbedr an active after school and holiday club is available which I would 

have preferred as cheaper than The Mill Nursery which I had to use as child care, Munchkins attracts children to the 

school and a valuable asset for the school. The setting for the school is outstanding we're they can play in a large 

field and yard and their noise is not a problem to anyone.  

,  

 

 

this then left the school have to make juniors into one class and again  

 DCC promised to help the school to 

recover and promised not to close it but yet again it has been failed by DCC's empty promise leading to this 

situation. I also believe as a Christian and as a Christian country ruled by the head of the Church of England it is 

wrong to close this school and if this school was of another faith Muslim, Jewish, Hindu etc you would not dare try 

to close it as that would not be PC at all but fair game to pick on Christian schools! Also Llanbedr is finally going to 

have cheaper housing about 70 houses are planned, so if families want to come and live in this beautiful village one 

of the vital elements of a thriving village will have been ripped out if the school was to close and were would these 

children go to. You cannot dictate that they go to the nearest school as if you live or were brought up in a village 

that is were so many parents want to send their children not the local town school. Town schools are often too large 

Yes Redact

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

P
age 116



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

4 

 

and village schools are excellent for quieter pupils letting them blossom rather than cower in the corner of a larger 

school that can overwhelm them. a town school which although a good school 

was not as personable as a village school which you can become part of the community. I was also  

and saw how well the school ran and was part of the community when it was run by an excellent head 

 I 

believe it has been the fault of DCC for allowing the appointments of  heads who were clearly not up to the job of 

head and causing this downhill spiral. When I was a pupil there were not many more pupils as there are now, times 

have changed and people chose were to send their children and Llanbedr has been very popular before the problem 

with the heads. One thing I would consider changing is to make it a bilingual school as I now can see how much 

more beneficial it would be for the children when applying for jobs locally in the future and there is no bilingual 

school in Ruthin which is very wrong. Please think hard on the impact on the village and give it time to build the new 

homes and give the villagers a school to go to. 

Response 

Form 25 
I think the school should close. The people trying to keep the school open are mostly a group of middle class English 

people that do not live in the village that are trying to avoid their children having an effective Welsh medium 

education. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 26 
Llanbedr is an excellent education provider in a unique and wonderful setting, staffed with a dedicated team who 

truly care about the well being and educational needs of the children. The school is at the heart of the community, 

without which would be left a huge soulless void. The wraparound care and preschool care facility at Llanbedr is in 

my opinion the finest in the area. Not-for profit and achieving excellent standards of care, this is a much needed 

resource within Ruthin which parents travel to from the neighbouring communities. The loss of munchkins would be 

yet another blow to struggling families seeking affordable and high quality childcare. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 27 
If DCC had stepped in when the school was having MAJOR problems with headteachers the school would still be full. 

The numbers are growing year on year! I would never send my child to a large school. Having worked in many 

schools large and small none of them have the same impact as Ysgol Llanbedr. Is anyone in DCC thinking about the 

staff?  

 

Yes 

Response 

Form 29  
Disgraceful Denbighshire Council Yes 

Response 

Form 30 

Keeping communities alive is important. When we moved into Llanbedr from  it helped our young children to 

settle and make friends within the community. The help and education was superb. Our children went onto 

Brynhyfryd and then each to a top university  to Cambridge and  to Durham. The excellent start to their education 

definitely contributed to their success. 

Yes 

Response Llanbedr School enjoys an excellent countryside environment, excellent sporting facilities, and plentiful off road Yes 

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

R

Redaction

Redact

R R

P
age 117



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

5 

 

Form 31 parking. The school is located on a minor country road, so any traffic problems are minimal. The children do not 

have to negotiate a major road to get to school. If the current and prospective future pupils of Llanbedr are 

transferred to Borthyn School then the existing traffic problems and the potential for serious accidents will increase. 

Llanbedr School has been an excellent school in the past, and is now suffering the consequences of having had 

additional temporary classroom places provided. At the time when the statistics used for the current assesment 

were taken, the school unfortunately went through a bad patch due to major temporary staffing problems. The 

future of the school should not be determined by statistics taken over a short period of time. Future potential pupil 

numbers are increasing all the time. It is this fact and the previous educational performance of the school, plus its 

environment and facilities that should determine its future. Why do we need three primary schools in Ruthin, all in 

old buildings and all causing serious traffic and potential accident problems on main roads in the town. Why not 

build the promised (multi religious and bi-lingual) school in Glasdir to cater for all the Ruthin children and save the 

country village schools. 

Response 

Form 32 

As a parent I want an English medium, faith based school with wrap around care on site where my children can learn 

in a school building as opposed to a portacabin. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 33 

Llanbedr needs this school, the communities around will suffer without it. Yes 

Response 

Form 34 

I am at a loss to even comprehend the closure of this amazing school, I was a parent as well as a staff member until 

last year, I was one of the parents who kept my faith in the education department when you said you would support 

us, I went to all those meetings with the LEA in which you assured us you would stand by us and even when parents 

asked will you close the school, I was there when the LEA representative said 'no'. We have worked our backsides 

off to ensure the school was stabilised, setting up Munchkins for our parents to ensure on site continuity of care , 

we have a massively popular holiday club used by almost every school in the county of Denbighshire , we cannot 

just simply continue once the school goes, you fail to see that parents don't want their children farmed around the 

county in cars to reach their after school care, parents need to go to work feeling they can trust that their children 

are cared for and happy in a safe environment with people that they know 

Yes 

Response 

Form 35 

The proposal is flawed. This is not a true consultation. The council have already made their decisions. Other schools 

are not facing closure yet they have had consistently lower numbers over a longer time period and have no better 

prospects for the future. Ysgol Llanbedr will be back to its full capacity (77 pupils) within a few years, however the 

council plan to invest money in a proposed new school at Cyfylliog and Clocaneog which will only have capacity of 

54 pupils, which the Chief Executive says himself is too small for a school. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 36 

To close a school that provides a excellent standard of education in a location that can only enhance the learning 

experience of the learner is a stupid decision that clearly has not been thought through. The school is an important 

part of the local community and to close it will have a major impact on the village and surrounding area. 

Yes 

P
age 118



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

6 

 

Response 

Form 37 

It would be very nice to have small schools which provide intimate/focussed education for children but in this 

economic climate it would seem hard to justify when the school population falls below a certain level. I suspect that 

the current school population is too low to be economically viable and additionally falls below the critical mass for 

children to interact socially and educationally with their own co-evals. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 38  

I attended the first consultation on c.25th of feb 2013, where it was stated everyone would be listened to, It is so 

obvious to me that Denbighshire has taken no notice at all. Since I attended that meeting the school has gone on to 

attract young children, which is not the sign of a failing school, The main reason for so many older children leaving 

2011 and 2012 is well known but it has nothing to do with the future which seems very bright, if given the chance. I 

marched to shire hall in mold when the school only had about 29 children in the 1980,s to protest about them trying 

to close Llanbedr and with in c. 10 years there were around 60 pupils or more. Looking at old photos most children 

lived around Llanbedr. If more houses are to be built, there is a likely hood of young families moving in. My husband 

and I both hope you listen and keep Llanbedr school open. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 39 

Even in these extremely difficult economic times local village schools play an extremely important role not only 

educationally, where the closer more intimate relationship between pupil and teacher can inculcate a love of 

learning as opposed to an atmosphere of impersonal, almost irrelevant, imposition, but also in retaining a sense of 

community and tradition. There may be instances where shared facilities or opportunities, for example sport 

facilities or out of school time clubs, would be of benefit but this could be achieved without sacrificing the school 

itself. Councillors have a duty to represent and maintain the communities for which they stand, schools such as 

Llanbedr are at the very heart of that community ethos and are essential for the continuance of all that is good in 

our society. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 40 

The Llanbedr school in my view should have been moved to somewhere with better access and closer to where 

people live. The school is located in a relatively isolated area with poor road infrastructure. As just about every 

parents choose to take their children to school by cars, the school runs are not ecologically sustainable and is 

physically damaging the environment. The lack of consideration for other road users (eg. driving too fast for the 

road condition, refusing to give way and double parking on the road) is stressful for inhabitants along the road 

where the shool is located. Here is an example of physical damage to the environment apart from CO2 emission : 

eventhough the road is a one-car lane, many of the parents refuse to give way and regularly drive into the road 

verges to squeeze their ways through. I have noticed attrition to the road verges and hedges. A new school located 

in a more accessible location with public transport or within walking distance to the pupils would be a much better 

option. A new and perhaps larger school is likely to be more economically to maintain and offer up-to-date facilities. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 41 

Education is not about balancing books Education is about the welfare of the child If the council had built other 

schools better (Pen Barras) we would not be in this situation of having to close a great school inorder to build 

another. 

Yes 

P
age 119



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

7 

 

Response 

Form 42 

I have sent all  to Ysgol Llanbedr, with currently just settled in to the school this year, I am deeply 

worried that a change in environment will have a negative impact of my  children. I have chosen to send 

all my children to Llanbedr because of the beautiful rural setting, the fact that it is an english speaking school and 

we are a english speaking family, and that it is a church controlled school. I feel the school has a lovely family 

atmoshphere which children need to thrive. My eldest children are now in Ysgol Brynhyfryed and both are doing 

very well thanks to their excellant education in Llanbedr, . 

Throughout the last few years of upheaval and changes to the headship position and loss of some pupils, all the staff 

have remained to show the children Llanbedr is still a very caring environment and still providing a high quality of 

education. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 45 

Ysgol Llanbedr is clearly potentially sustainable, and, as with all sustainable schools, should be retained for local 

children. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 46 

The current proposal is to close Ysgol Llanbedr, a school which has served the village of Llanbedr DC and the wider 

community for nearly 150 years. Ysgol Llanbedr is the only English medium, rural, faith school in the Ruthin area. 

Ysgol Llanbedr consistently delivers an exceptional education to the pupils in a wonderful environment, indoor and 

outdoor. It is also the school I attended when I grew up. Ysgol Llanbedr has always been a very popular, rural school. 

I have stuck through thick and thin because I still believe this school offers the best education for my children. In the 

academic year 2011 - 2012 Ysgol Llanbedr lost 34 pupils in a very short period of time due to problems with 

leadership and management. Problems which the LEA assured us they would support us through. This halved the 

number of pupils at the school. The current acting Head teacher was appointed in April 2012 and together with the 

governing body has quickly provided some much needed stability to Ysgol Llanbedr. As a result the school is now 

going through a recovery period and is seen as a desirable school for many families. The registrations for Nursery 

and Reception have rapidly increased. Surplus places have never been an issue for Ysgol Llanbedr until 2011-2012. 

Due to the traumatic events experienced during that year the school now finds itself with a high level of surplus 

places. Looking forward to 2014 – 2015 and beyond the level of surplus places will quickly reduce to acceptable 

levels. The school also supports a very viable business, Muchkins, our Day Nursery. Closure of Ysgol Llanbedr would 

lead to this valuable business also closing and valuable jobs being lost. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 47 

This proposal to close Llanbedr School is sensible. How can a school with less than 30 or so pupils provide a wide 

curriculum and sufficient staff to maintain a broad balanced curriculum for the ever changing technological and 

social demands of present day society. The view that a possible but unknown increase in pupil numbers as a 

consequence of increased housing in the village is not an argument for keeping it open. Young people need a broad 

and expansive experience and Llanbedr is not a school which can provide this given present resources. The 

community will inevitable change as a consequence but not for the negative. It will see better and more progressive 

resources in a larger school for the young people of a WIDER community and portray that education is more 

Yes 

Redaction R

Redaction

Redaction

P
age 120



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

8 

 

responsive to living in a wider community and encourage a wider perspective on life. Resources are limited at any 

time in the present day and we should make the most for young people not because of historical reasons. Llanbedr 

may have had problems recently but supposed improvement is not an excuse for keeping it open. 

Response 

Form 48 

As a grandparent  attending Llanbedr school and a  I 

am most concerned at the possible closure of the school. I would like to make three points: 1. I am sure that proper 

account has not been taken of the future demand for places within the catchment area over the next five years, and 

as a result of the much improved performance of the school the demand from outwith the catchment area. 2. My 

grandchildren would have to be provided with transport should LLanbedr be closed. The cost of provision of 

transport needs to be considered. I would like to share my experience with you regarding a similar primary school 

closure in Cumbria. 3. I am an member of the Independent Admissions Appeals Panel for Cumbria and for the last 3 

or 4 years we have had appeals for admission to reception and year one for a primary school which has no scope for 

expansion. The reason for this was the poorly thought out closure of a nearby school. The parents within the original 

catchment area of that closed school are finding their children are being refused entry to the nearby school of their 

choice. The Independent Panel has on several occasions allowed entry above the maximum class size of 30 resulting 

in the school having to take expensive extra measures. Some of the panel members felt that the original school was 

closed without taking account of the future predicted demand for places and did not wish to impose undue 

prejudice on the children and parents. The point is that a hasty short term closure of a school can be a costly long 

term expensive problem for the community. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 49 

Llanbedr school is a precious resource within the community. It ensures children establish a sense of belonging and 

awareness in their home and local environment. Small schools such as this are a rarity in today's climate, once they 

are lost they are gone forever. In addition, having this resource adds value to Llanbedr as smaller classes in a 

beautiful environment would be considered a great attribute and I believe have a real impact on property values 

etc. the loss of this and the need therefore to have transport to attend other schools would have the opposite effect 

and impact on the attractiveness of Llanbedr as a place to live. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 51 

This proposal can not have been thought through it seems crazy to be thinking about closing this school on the pupil 

figures from one bad year, when historically the attendance has always been good and the numbers are increasing 

rapidly. How the move to ysgol Boyrthyn can be proposed as an alternative is beyond belief the school is NOT a rural 

school it is a town school with large overcrowded classrooms. I live in Ruthin and if I wanted my children in this 

environment I would have sent them there in the first place. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 52 

The current proposal is to close Ysgol Llanbedr, a school which has served the village of Llanbedr DC and the wider 

community for nearly 150 years. Ysgol Llanbedr is the only English medium, rural faith school in the Ruthin area. 

Ysgol Llanbedr consistently delivers exceptional education to the pupils in a wonderful environment, indoor and 

outdoor. In the academic year 2011 - 2012 Ysgol Llanbedr lost 34 pupils in a very short period of time due to 

Yes 

Redaction Redaction

P
age 121



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

9 

 

problems with leadership . This halved the number of pupils at the school. The current acting Head teacher was 

appointed in April 2012 and together with the governing body has quickly provided some much needed stability to 

Ysgol Llanbedr. As a result the school is now going through a recovery period and is seen as a desirable school for a 

many families from within the traditional catchment area for the school and further afield; nursery has good 

numbers and for 2014 13 have already registered. Surplus places have never been an issue for Ysgol Llanbedr until 

2011-2012. Due to the traumatic events experienced during that year the school now finds itself with a high level of 

surplus places. Looking forward to 2014 – 2015 and beyond the level of surplus places will quickly reduce to 

acceptable levels. i believe that parents should be able to make the choice of a rural english language faith school 

and ysgol Llanbedr is the only school in the Ruthin area to offer this. choldrens wellbeing should also be considered. 

Response 

Form 53 

There does not appear to be any good reason to close Ysgol Llanbedr. The only reason I hear of is the number of 

surplus places at the school. Numbers did indeed drop significantly due to problems with headteachers, however 

the school now has a very good acting head and is well on the road to recovery with at least 14 pupils registered to 

start Nursery in 2014. There are also good future prospects for children attending the school with a number of 

families with young children that have recently moved to the village and there are plans for building over 70 new 

houses in the village. I think that it’s really important to be able to attract young families to the village and without a 

school I do not know how we can do this in the future. I object to the proposed closure of Ysgol Llanbedr as it is 

without doubt a viable school and I want my children and future generations of our family’s children to be able to 

attend a faith based, English medium school in a rural setting and in their own community. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 54 

This proposal would have a huge negative impact on the community. Yes 

Response 

Form 56 

I have a few points to note on the proposed closure of Ysgol Llanbedr:- - Ysgol Llanbedr is not in decline and the 

surplas places are set to reduce significantly over coming years. There is a 30% increase in nursery places next year 

alone. The problem which resulted in surplas places at Ysgol Llanbedr was a one off. The school is now going from 

strength to strength and I have no doubt this is due to the fact it is the only faith based, english medium school 

situated in a rural setting with such a high educational standard, flexible wraparound onsite care and overwhelming 

community involvement and support. The pupil numbers will only continue to increase with the Local Development 

Plan for 70 new houses to be built in Llanbedr. These were allocated with Llanbedr having the necessary 

infrastructure to provide for new residents. - With the increase in pupil numbers the cost per pupil will reduce from 

next year and be more in line with the Denbighshire average. - A sum of £68 000 saving is stated from closing the 

school in the consultation document. Considering the negative effect the closure will have on each child's health, 

wellbeing,education and therefore their future, the effect on their families and the wider community I find this sum 

of money rather pathetic. If we then factor in the costs to taxi the children to another school and the additional 

costs for each family for new school uniforms etc it becomes even more ridiculous. - Ysgol Borthyn does not have 

Yes 

P
age 122



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

10 

 

the capacity to accommodate all of the Ysgol Llanbedr children in 2014/15. Therefore Denbighshire officers are 

unable to provide a reasonable alternative school which matches or improves on the environment and standards 

currently provided in Ysgol Llanbedr. - The reasons for closure apply equally to other schools in the Ruthin area. 

Denbighshire officers seem to be mounting a campaign against small village schools and a number of them may be 

under threat of closure in the future, Ysgol Llanbedr being the first. I moved back to the area to start a family as a 

large number of people do, specifically targeting Llanbedr because of its excellent school. Taking away the small 

village schools and removing parental choice may mean a number of young couples/families do not return to the 

area, especially when you look at the bigger picture and the fact that other essential services such as the Special 

Care Baby Unit are being closed. Had I wanted my children to attend a larger school I would have remained in the 

 where other facilities are more freely available. - The lack of a permanent headteacher was sited as a reason 

for closure in the document. Denbighshire officers have not actively tried to appoint a permanent headteacher and 

the reason for this is now obvious - the intention to close the school. - The consultation document states that the 

school facilities are not fit for purpose. The school is in an excellent state of repair and is used flexibly so that the 

facilities augment the delivery of a high standard of education and welfare as has been evidenced by published 

results and inspections. As a parent I have a high degree of satisfaction with the facilities. - The consultation 

document states that the optimum class size for delivery of a 'full, progressive and balanced curriculum is 30 pupils'. 

Where is the evidence base for this statement? Does it take into consideration particularly sensitive children? All 

credible education based research demonstrates that small class sizes result in better standards. In summary, the 

aims of the review of the schools provision are to (as is clearly outlined on this website): - education provision of a 

high quality and sustainable in the long term. - improve quality of school buildings and facilities. - provide the right 

number of school places, of the right type in the right location. I cannot see how Ysgol Llanbedr does not meet these 

criteria. The school has a proven track record of an excellent standard of education and pastoral care over a number 

of years. The number of pupils is increasing and will continue to do so in the future. The school is on an excellent 

site which could easily be invested in, extended and improved without being detrimental to the amount of outside 

space the children would still have to play in. The number of school places the community requires will increase 

steadily in the future and Ysgol Llanbedr will have the capacity for this, whilst being situated in an idyllic setting and 

providing excellent education and care for our children. 

Response 

Form 57 

Why proceed with proposals to close a school that is obviously much wanted by the parents, local community and 

Diocese, has achieved well year after year through its long history, shows great signs of growth following a difficult 

one-off personnel situation despite the closure proposal and not least because it supports a very successful 

enterprise in a rural area providing a first class service to parents who work and employs local people (who both 

thereby in turn support the local economy) - Munchkins Childcare - that will close if the school closes. No other 

options across the rest of Denbighshire appear to have been looked at in any detail, costed or consulted on - the 

Yes 

Reda

P
age 123



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

11 

 

number of surplus places need reducing across Denbighshire not just in the Ruthin area. Why is only Ysgol Llanbedr 

being looked at to achieve the reduction in surplus places? Why is the proposal to move all children from Ysgol 

Llanbedr to Ysgol Borthyn when the review team admit to possibly closing Ysgol Borthyn within the next two years? 

How can this be deemed providing the best education for our children with so much disruption in the early years of 

their learning life? The proposal to close the school has not, however, deterred parents from registering their 

children to start at Ysgol Llanbedr next year which is indicative of the support for the school and testament to the 

quality of the teaching staff and the attainment of the school. 

Response 

Form 58 

Ysgol Llanbedr is the reason we picked Llanbedr Village as our home. It has excellent education standards and our 

son is feeling as safe and happy as he is in his own house while he is in Ysgol Llanbedr. It is the ONLY Church School 

in a fantastic rural environment, with English-medium education. There is no logical reason to close the school. It is 

VERY obvious that council's only aim is to use Llanbedr School to fill in the gaps (surplus places) in the other schools 

in Ruthin area to get their money to build a new school which will be at a place with the greatest flood risk in 

Ruthin. Your consultation document claims that even if the school was at its full capacity, it would be a 'small school' 

and not viable. There is no such thing as a 'small school'  has not missed out on anything at all which a pupil 

in a 'crowded' school would have. Instead,  has been taking the full advantage of being educated in an 

outstanding school. Our  education is not going to be 'more modernised' if he goes to a school with more pupils 

in it! Page 12, section 'c' of the document clearly states that 'THERE IS NO RECOMMENDED SCHOOL SIZE'! If there is 

no recommended school size, this whole proposal is absurd. The consultation document is written based on 

'opinions' of unknown people, instead of 'proven facts'!! How can the council expect anyone to actually take the 

document seriously when it is full of misleading and wrong information in it. (e.g. projected numbers for 2014). On 

page 12, section 'd' of the document, it is claimed that 'competition is healthy between pupils'. This statement is 'an 

opinion', there are many number of professional education theorists out there, who will support the opposite. 

Competition is not necessarily healthy for each pupil. The document does not provide statistical facts! Llandrnog 

School has less than 30 pupils (even though it's federated with Gellifor) but not under the risk of closure. Llanbedr 

School is certainly not the smallest school in Ruthin area. So the proposal of closing Ysgol Llanbedr looks very biased. 

Again, the consultation document has NO WORD AT ALL about the impact on children's wellbeing if the school 

closed. This CERTAIN DISADVANTAGE does not exist in the list if 'disadvantages' at the end of the document. It is 

clear that our children are just numbers on a paper for the people who has written the consultation document. Why 

on earth, one with right state of mind, would want to destroy a Faith School with exceptional opportunities for 

children, in an area of outstanding natural beauty? 

Yes 

Response 

Form 59 

I feel strongly that English medium faith based education should continue to be provided in the context of the rural 

village of Llanbedr DC. I think that the local authority must take responsibility for the disastrous decisions it made in 

2011/12 in respect of the leadership of this small primary school and that resulted in many parents in KS2 moving 

Yes 

Redacti

R

Red

P
age 124



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

12 

 

their children to other local schools. Ysgol Llanbedr is rebuilding with confidence now and this is reflected in both 

current and projected numbers as well as the strong Christian ethos of the school and the excellent learning 

environment. It would be grossly unfair to penalise this small thriving school for the incompetence of others. 

Response 

Form 60 

Effect on children and education: There is a tremendous feeling of powerlessness engendered by this process. My 

statement will mean absolutely nothing if the Council continue with their proposal to close my school. The MET 

really have no idea of the devastating effect the threatened closure is having on my family and my local community. 

I have little confidence in the process being conducted in a fair and honest manner when the evidence against 

closure that has been presented before the Chair has been so resolutely ignored. The present blip in pupil numbers 

has provided the MET with a quick and easy solution to their problem of surplus places, even though projected pupil 

numbers are set to return to a full complement. The MET need to remember that this is the ONLY school that 

provides "faith based English education in a rural setting with wrap around care" in this area. We as a family moved 

to Llanbedr to have children and settle in a rural area that provided a wonderful environment in which our children 

would grow. The provision of the school played a major part in that decision. It is genuinely heartbreaking to see 

that the Council do not value or care about our school and the wonderful place that it is to learn and develop in. 

Denbighshire is a rural county, the Council surely need to understand that closing these wonderful little school is a 

mistake that rips the heart out village communities. It is an attack on rural life. Educational standards: The closure of 

our school and sending our children to Ysgol Borthyn would contradict schools policy which entitles pupils to equal 

or better educational experience. Ysgol Borthyn under performed Ysgol Lanbedr at Key Stage 2 2009-2013. Dubious 

reasons for closure: Unfortunately the council have decided to focus on one small problem and ignore the pleather 

of positive opportunities and facilities that the school provides. Pupil numbers are at an historical low. This was due, 

in no small part, to the council mismanaging the appointment of a new permanent head teacher. The council have 

failed to understand that pupil numbers are low due to this exceptional event and that future pupil numbers are set 

to rise year on year (30% next year alone!). This would see the problem of surplus pupil places disappear. The 

council are stating that the lack of a permanent head teacher is another reason for closure. The fact that the council 

will not appoint a permanent head is a classic catch-22 situation which satisfies their agenda! The true fact is that 

the school is recovering well from a single set back, and if left alone is a vibrant and stimulating place of learning for 

children for generations to come. Upsetting the children: You claim to have the children's best interest at heart? 

This is clearly NOT TRUE! You are proposing to close a wonderful school and send them to an inferior site that uses 

temporary classrooms, has no outdoor facilities, and will have over-full class sizes. There is a potential for our 

children to be upset and disrupted twice in their early formative school years, if the subsequent plan is approved to 

close Borthyn and build a "super school" on the FLOOD PLAIN at Glasdir! Unacceptable! Safety and suitability of the 

school site for chldren: Ysgol Llanbedr is an amazing facility, it is one of the few locations with potential for 

expansion, having the ability to support council/national program's of sustainability and green projects. It has 

Yes 

P
age 125



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

13 

 

unrivalled outdoor facilities and well maintained school buildings. The MET have stubbornly ignored the excellent 

proposals put forward by the school regarding sustainability, green projects, and expansion. Which would see our 

school become a jewel in Denbighshires educational portfolio. All the other schools in the town are "shoe-horned" 

into unsuitable spaces with absolutely no room for expansion. The town of Ruthin creaks at the seams during the 

school run with the influx of cars and taxis ferrying children to these schools, with no suitable drop-off points. I do 

not want my children to be exposed to the dangers of all that chaotic traffic congestion twice a day! I do not want to 

add to that traffic congestion by having my children ferried to these schools. Especially when there is a perfectly 

suitable facility right on my door step in Llanbedr. Ysgol Borthyn is unsuitable on all levels as an alternative facility. 

No provision for dropping off/picking up children. Concrete everywhere, no green spaces, poor facilities for outdoor, 

sporting pursuits, mobile classrooms, poorer educational standards and results. Do we know how our children will 

be treated in this new environment. Do we have bullying statistics for this school? Our children will not receive a 

decent level of attention as they will disappear into class sizes that are too large. Wrap around care My wife works. 

The wrap around care is essential to our family being able to function and my wife being able to continue to work. 

Ysgol Borthyn does not provide wrap around care. By closing our school the Council will be removing this essential 

service from our community. Bottom line: We require the council to provide a "faith based English medium school in 

a rural setting with wrap around care that is as good as, or better than that provided." YSGOL LLANBEDR PROVIDES 

THIS FAITH BASED QUALITY EDUCATION IN ENGLISH WITH WRAP AROUND CARE IN A RURAL SETTING. Ysgol Borthyn 

DOES NOT! DO NOT TAKE THIS OPPORTUNITY OF AN EXCELLENT EDUCATION AWAY FROM MY CHILDREN. ACT NOW 

AND REJECT THE PROPOSAL TO CLOSE YSGOL LLANBEDR! This document can be copied and used in the event of an 

appeal 

Response 

Form 61 

Destroying local schools also destroys local communities. Children have the right to be educated within their local 

communities and within a local faith school. I feel this consultation should not proceed until the town schools have 

been sorted. Unsettling children is detrimental to their education. To expect children to move to another school 

which will then undergo review is wrong. 

Yes 

Response 

Form 62 

There are not enough places in borthyn to house all these puplils from Llanbedr Denbighshire does not have funding 

in place to build new schools yet In a time where wales is coming 43rd on the Pisa survey 2013 for reading you 

would think they would keep a performing school open also when it is clear that numbers are going to increase and 

the demand for welsh medium will be on the decrease over the next ten years Attracting people into north wales 

can only be done with schools like Ysgol LLanbedr Placing children in town schools should not be an option for 

parents in this school I would make a bet now it stays open and this has all been a waste of time 

Yes 

Response 

Form 63 

Ysgol Llanbedr is a community rural school. It has been in the local community for over 150 years. The school gives 

children high quality education. The school has had its problems I agree- but the new head teacher has now offered 

the school stability and the school numbers are increasing. The school even throughout this consutlation has been 

Yes 

P
age 126



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

14 

 

able to attract pupils and this is due to the school being attractive and fantastic for children and families. This is 

about parental choice- parents choose to send their child to Ysgol Llanbedr- not Ysgol Borthyn or any other school. 

Yet again DCC are trying to take that parental choice away. The consultation document on point 8 mentions the 

Estyn Report (of 2009- many years ago)- It is felt that although this is the 'recent' Estyn report- many changes have 

happened to the school- and DCC do not acknowledge the stability the new head teacher now offers the school (it 

was a grade 4) Although you acknowledge the report was done a long time ago it is felt that you should not have 

included this irrelevant report in the document. Point 9- you mention that you can not measure against other 

figures- so why include this in? Point 11- please tell us how you will support SEN pupils with a change of school 

location, education, teachers and environment. Maybe you do not understand the impact this will have? Point 

12.2.a Although you mention the 'current' pupil number you have not acknowledged that the pupil numbers are 

raising- this is due to the current head teacher and the school reputation. Do you know what the number of children 

signed up to go to the 2014-2015 term? Point 12.2e have you spoken to staff about this? I am sure they are skilled 

enough to plan their own lessons?!!! Point 12.2f What about the many advantages of being a smaller school instead 

of a large school where the teachers don't know the children. Point 12.2g I am sure the current head will want to be 

permanent! Point 12.2h Rather than sweeping general statements how about you give us some facts? Have the SLT 

of Ysgol Llanbedr mentioned any specific concerns about this?! In option 1.3 you say 'The school would still remain 

vulnerable to changes in parental preference' Isn't this the same for every school?? What evidence do you have to 

believe that any parent wouldn't send their child to Ysgol Llanbedr if it remained open?!! This consultation is full of 

sweeping general statements- they are not related directly to the school and what the staff, SLT have! Yet again 

Denbighshire are trying to blind people with statements that when challenged DCC officers are unable to justify or 

have any facts for. Just 'this is what we are doing' attitude yet again from DCC. Yet again this consultation is another 

waste of money of the Tax Payers. Leave Ysgol Llanbedr alone. 

Response 

Form 64 

Giving people less choice for education within the county of Denbighshire will have a detrimental effect in the long 

term on the economy for the wider area. Potential new families will only re-locate to a rural area such as Ruthin 

within Denbighshire if there are education options such as Church Schools and English Speaking smaller 

Schools...despite the fact that employment opportunities are low within the area incomers are prepared to trade 

that off and commute from Denbighshire to places such as Chester/ Liverpool/ Warrington etc if education is 

good...combined with lower house prices and better value for money for property. Closing such schools really needs 

to be considered for the longer term for the area...surely Denbighshire needs more young families choosing to 

relocate to live here to ensure the area thrives?? 

Yes 

Response 

Form 65 

I am concerned that ... ... parental choice for Church school education will be restricted if a Church school is closed. 

... a reduction in the percentage of Church schools (as percentage of Total number of Schools) in the area will dilute 

the influence of the Church in education. ... pupils will suffer. Church in Wales schools can provide an enriched 

Yes 

P
age 127



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

15 

 

education; this opportunity will be made more difficult (if not removed) from some families dependant on 

circumstances (eg location) 

Response 

Form 66 

Firstly, Ysgol Llanbedr is a beautiful school surrounded by green space, with views of the area of outstanding natural 

beauty and the local rural farming community which is an ideal learning environment for local children. Ysgol 

Llanbedr achieves excellent results for children.  

. We received acknowledgement of his registration from Denbighshire County Council in September 

2013, yet at no point has the Modernising Education Team informed us or the other parents with children registered 

to start in 2014 about the proposed closure. We were not invited to attend the consultation meeting. The decision-

making panel are being led to believe that numbers at Ysgol Llanbedr are low due to a natural decline in pupils, and 

that the estimated figures may only rise by a small increment. This is not the case.  is due to start at the 

school in September 2014 along with 13 other classmates in the nursery year. A large drop in pupils is due to a one-

off incident. The unusually low numbers of pupils at the school is caused by poor appointment of head teachers and 

ultimately poor management by Denbighshire County Council causing a number of parents to remove their children 

from the school. The school has consistently had a pupil roll of 60-100 children in the past. The school is recovering 

and will recover. This is evident by the large number of pupils registering to start in September 2014, despite threat 

of closure. The school has a strong governing body and strong support from parents who will ensure the school 

returns to full capacity. During this difficult period at the school, Denbighshire county council pledged their support 

to the school, but less than a year later not giving the school any time to recover, they are threatening closure. 

There is no consistency of approach by Denbighshire county council to schools in the area. If the council deems 

schools with less than 50 pupils to be unsustainable, then why has a new small school been built in llandegla, why is 

a small school in Rhewl being left out of the review until the “super-school” is built....why is Ysgol Llanbedr receiving 

different treatment to the rest? Why can’t Ysgol Llanbedr be allowed the time to recover and postpone any decision 

on closure until the “super-school” on Glasdir is a reality. There is no cost saving to Denbighshire County Council by 

closing Ysgol Llanbedr. The council does not own the building, and any saving will be cancelled out by transportation 

costs and the additional mobile classrooms or extensions required at Ysgol Borthyn to accommodate the children. 

The final sadness would be the detrimental effect of the village community of Llanbedr.  

 Ysgol Llanbedr encourages pupils to provide 

social events for the village residents and the elderly community, creating a connection between the generations 

within the village. This would be lost with the closure of the school. 

Yes 

Response 

67 

Effect on my community: The MET do not understand the devastating effect the threat of closure is having on my 

family and my local community. There is little confidence in the process being conducted fairly when the Council 

have steadfastly ignored all the evidence against closure that was put forward by the school/church. I feel helpless 

in the face of this process. The provision of a good school in a community is vital to its continued well being and 

Yes 

Redacti

Redaction

Redaction

P
age 128



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

16 

 

future. It is very disappointing to know that the Council do not value or care about our rural schools and the 

wonderful places that they are to grow-up and develop in. Denbighshire is a rural county, the Council must surely 

understand that closing these vital little schools is a mistake that rips the heart out village communities. The closure 

should sound alarm bells in the wider community, as it is an attack on rural life. We choose to live in villages such as 

Llanbedr for the rural community feel. The council dislike this, as it is more expensive and difficult to service these 

rural communities and their facilities. They would prefer to have us all troop into towns and go to massive "super 

schools" that are cheap and easy to run. The problem with this policy is that they are systematically killing the rural 

places they serve by closing facilities such as ours. LOOK OUT IT MAY BE YOUR SCHOOL NEXT! Present pupil 

numbers have provided the MET with a quick-fix solution to their problem of surplus places in the county, even 

though projected pupil numbers at Llanbedr are set to recover. The MET need to remember that this is the ONLY 

school that provides "faith based English education in a rural setting with wrap around care". Savings: The projected 

savings simply DO NOT ADD UP. Based on Council figures... A one-off saving of £68,000 from the school closure. 

Future taxi costs going forward £26,600 per annum! So the closure will, in fact, lead to an increase in costs to the 

community within 2.5 years! It is preposterous that the council should be favouring the closure of our school when 

the Local Development Plan recommends and allocates a site for the building of 70+ homes in Llanbedr. The taxi 

costs stated above are for 14 children only, when these houses are built the taxi COSTS WILL SPIRAL! I am also 

incredulous at the cost of taxis per pupil. Where is the money coming from to build the new school to allow Ysgol 

Clocaenog and Ysgol Cyffylliog to merge? The TRUE COST is the loss, forever to our village community the use of a 

wonderful facility that provides quality schooling in a brilliant location that has a very real and vibrant future. The 

case for closure on cost savings is not justified. Poor reasons for closure: Unfortunately the council have decided to 

focus on one small problem and ignore the pleather of positive opportunities and facilities that the school provides. 

Pupil numbers are at an historical low. This was due, in no small amount, to the council mismanaging the 

appointment of a new permanent head teacher. The council have failed to understand that pupil numbers are low 

due to this exceptional event and that future pupil numbers are set to rise year on year (30% next year alone!). This 

would see the problem of surplus pupil places disappear. The council are stating that the lack of a permanent head 

teacher is another reason for closure. The fact that the council will not appoint a permanent head is a classic catch-

22 situation which satisfies their agenda. The true fact is that the school is recovering well from a single set back, 

and if left alone will continue to be a valuable facility to my village and community for years to come. The case for 

closure due to pupil numbers is not justified. Effect on the children: Why are you disrupting the education of 

children in my community. The school has served this area well for over 150 years, it provides a valuable and 

worthwhile facility in my community. Why should future generations be robbed of the opportunity to develop and 

learn in such a brilliant place? Is it not the case that if the MET get their way they will disrupt our children twice, 

when they build their "vanity" super school on Glasdir's flood plain? We moved to, and committed our futures to 

P
age 129



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

17 

 

this area and it is very disappointing to find out that the elected officials have no interest supporting our way of life. 

We are local to the school, I am Welsh, I walk my  to school. This is why we made the decision to settle in 

Llanbedr. BECAUSE OF THE SCHOOL. Safety and suitability of the school and traffic: The other schools in the town 

are "shoe-horned" into unsuitable spaces with absolutely no room for more traffic. The town of Ruthin creaks at the 

seams during the school run with the influx of cars and taxis ferrying children to these schools, with no suitable 

drop-off/pick-up points. I do not want my children to be exposed to the dangers of all this chaotic traffic congestion 

twice a day! I do not want to add to this traffic congestion by having my children ferried to these schools. Especially 

when there is a perfectly suitable facility right on my door step in Llanbedr. Wrap around care  

. The wrap around care is essential to my wife being able to continue to work. Ysgol Borthyn does 

not provide wrap around care. By closing our school the Council will be removing this essential service from our 

community. We require the council to provide a "faith based English medium school in a rural setting with wrap 

around care that is as good as, or better than that provided." YSGOL LLANBEDR PROVIDES THIS FAITH BASED 

QUALITY EDUCATION IN ENGLISH WITH WRAP AROUND CARE IN A RURAL SETTING. Ysgol Borthyn DOES NOT! DO 

NOT TAKE THIS OPPORTUNITY OF AN EXCELLENT EDUCATION AWAY FROM MY . ACT NOW AND REJECT 

THE PROPOSAL TO CLOSE YSGOL LLANBEDR! This document can be copied and used in the event of an appeal 

Response 

Form 68 

There has been no proper consultation because the Council has started out with a presumption to close Ysgol 

Llanbedr. The children's information was whole misleading, the cover on it pretended that the children would be 

going to a rural school and the contents simply told the children that they would have to leave Ysgol Llanbedr. There 

is no room at Ysgol Borthyn for the number of projected pupils at Ysgol Llanbedr to be accommodated. There is no 

evidence that the educational experience will be substantially better. The facilities at Ysgol Llanbedr are 

substantially better, there is no equivalent childcare facilities at Ysgol Borthyn such as that provided by Munchkins. 

Ysgol Borthyn is located on a busy road and there is inadequate parking facilities. It the Council builds a new school 

at Glasdir there is a real risk that our children will be caught up in another upheaval and maybe forced to move 

school again. They have also be subjected to the trauma of their friends leaving Ysgol Llanbedr through the actions 

of the Associate Head appointed by the LEA. We have had no information as to the quality of the Welsh Language 

provision at Ysgol Borthyn and whether it can match that provided by Ysgol Llanbedr. We have no information as to 

whether the children at Ysgol Borthyn participate in Welsh cultural events. I consider that Ysgol Llanbedr has a 

unique caring atmosphere and enjoys very close links with the Local Community and St. Peter's Church in Llanbedr. 

The school is not in decline as misrepresented by the Authority and will return to capacity very shortly. Infact we 

have 20 children wishing to attend Ysgol Llanbedr in September 2014. It has not been explained by the Authority in 

the Consultation documentation the reason why the Ysgol Llanbedr should be closed. Because it does not appear 

that the closure will be to fund either the development on the Glasdir or the area school in Clocaenog. 

Yes 

Response Annwyl David, Re: Modernising Education – Review of Primary School provision in Ruthin. I am writing to express my Yes 

Redacti

RedactioRedaction

RedactionP
age 130



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

18 

 

Form 69 grave concerns with the process undertaken by the education department charged with reviewing primary provision 

within the Ruthin area. Despite assurances from the council’s officers of an open and transparent process my 

experience would suggest otherwise. Firstly, there seems to have been a distinct lack of clarity within the public 

domain of: 1. The CRITERIA to be used to undertake the review process of ALL schools under consideration within 

the area. 2. The TIMETABLE with which ALL schools under review would be led through this same process. 3. 

COMMUNICATION to ALL stakeholders – school governors, parents, councillors, the diocese of St. Asaph and other 

interested parties. Information and consultation could be described as partial, ad hoc and deliberately designed to 

“divide and conquer” the different groups involved. At no time was it suggested that those carrying out the 

consultation meet with ALL the interested parties together. Why? Secondly, in the light of the very poorly 

administered process of consultation, one has to question whether equity has been shown to all schools under 

consideration. For example, one village school is deemed ‘too small’ to be viable and yet other outlying schools of 

similar size are deemed ‘suitable for federation’. What and where are the criteria listed to help people understand 

how such decisions have been reached? It would appear that figures for pupils on roll and surplus places have been 

used at different times from different schools often without governing bodies being made aware of which figures 

are being quoted when. Here again, one has to question why there is not one clear process drawing on one set of 

criteria and used to assess all schools under review. Justice to all parties not only has to be promised by our local 

authorities but also has to be seen to be done! Some people would suggest including comments [as in this case for 

Ysgol Llanbedr] – “The authority recognises that this inspection was undertaken a number of years ago and should 

not be used as an indication of the current standards at the school” is felt by some to be a deliberate attempt at 

misinformation. Why otherwise include such comments? Again, without a clear indication of the whole process and 

discernment criteria people will, understandably, reach their own conclusion! The authority advises that, with the 

planned closure of Ysgol Llanbedr, “ existing pupils could transfer to Ysgol Borthyn” yet the authority only projects 

that Ysgol Borthyn’s numbers would increase by 2 pupils!?  I am unaware of any 

consultation with the Headteacher or Governing Body regarding the possibility of accommodating pupils from Ysgol 

LlanbedrCIW School or of any feasibility study regarding the use of the building or the provision of safe pick up / 

drop off points at Ysgol Borthyn. Why would the local authority make suggestions for the future movement of pupils 

from Ysgol Llanbedr to Ysgol Borthyn without at least checking feasibility? Again, without a clear indication of the 

whole process and discernment criteria people will, understandably, reach their own conclusion! I also note that the 

only potential place offered by the local authority to which parents wanting faith-based educational provision is 

Ysgol Borthyn CIW School. Why? Why is Ysgol Llanfair not considered an appropriate partner for possible 

federation? It is rural, faith-based and within travelling distance to Llanbedr. The reason for not considering 

federating Ysgol Llanbedr with Ysgol Llanfair and yet considering federating Ysgol Llanfair CIW School with Ysgol 

Pentrecelyn would seem in my opinion, to defy any logic. Consider the following criteria: Llanbedr CIW Llanfair CIW 

Redaction

P
age 131



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

19 

 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn rural rural rural faith based faith based not faith based English medium Bilingual Welsh medium It 

seems, in my opinion, that Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Llanfair schools have more in common for possible effective 

federation.[ rural, faith and language – English / Bilingual ] than the proposed federation between Ysgol Llanfair and 

Ysgol Pentrecelyn [rural and language – Welsh/ Bilingual.] Such a possibility for federation does not seem to have 

been considered by the local authority. Why? Is there a deliberate bias towards placing a Welsh-medium school 

rather than an English-medium school in partnership with Ysgol Llanfair CIW School? Again, without a clear 

indication of the whole process and discernment criteria people will, understandably, reach their own conclusion! In 

conclusion, it is my belief that the proposal to close a small, rural, faith-based school would have a serious impact 

upon the local community and could, long term damage, the nature and ethos of the communities of our area. 

Whilst I appreciate that Denbighshire County Council is obliged to follow the Assembly Government’s modernizing 

education agenda I reiterate my concern that the process, so far, is lacking any clear, discernible criteria against 

which all schools are being equally reviewed. It appears to me that a decision has been made to close Ysgol Llanbedr 

and the only real public consultation is whether people agree or not! That, in my opinion, is not an appropriate way 

of consulting or of reaching an informed decision. For justice’s sake please consider reviewing all that has taken 

place so far, for without a clear indication of the whole process and discernment criteria people will, 

understandably, reach their own conclusion that the local authority and its elected representatives feel they can run 

roughshod over the school communities they are called to serve! For Justice’s sake please think again! Should you 

wish to speak further on this important matter, please don’t hesitate in contacting me. Pob bendith i chi a’r teulu 

dros y ‘Dolig,  

 

Hardcopy 

Ref Comment Permission 

Response 

Form 1 

Closure of Llanbedr School is sad news for those with emotional attachment but 

ultimately the impact on education in the long term is more important. I was using Ysgol 

Llanbedr during the holidays as munchkins childcare facility was based there, this was 

affordable childcare for working parents and Ruthin will lose this facility.  

Yes 

Response 

Form 2 

See attached letter (Found in Appendix – redacted correspondence) Yes 

Response 

Form 3 

We feel that the size if the classes, especially as you go up the school are far too small 

which is not beneficial to the children involved.  

Yes 

Response 

Form 4 

Both my son and daughter attended Ysgol Llanbedr from the ages of 4 to 11 as we lived 

in the village. , chose to send  children 

Yes 

Redaction

Redaction Redaction

P
age 132



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

20 

 

there. The , now attend   

In my opinion the closure if Ysgol LLanbedr would be a retrograde and 

extremely short sighted move on the part of the Council. Apart from all the points 

already mentioned in the school’s favour, of which there are many, the main factors for 

me would be disruption to the pupils both physical and emotional, plus the loss of 

possibly one of the best and happiest schools in the area. Please think carefully before 

making any decision. Look at the future! Ysgol Borthyn (sadly lacking in everyway) is due 

for closure within two years! Do we want all our children to be educated under one large 

roof (and on a flood plain?) Schools such as these lack identity and individuality which 

can have a detrimental effect  on the pupils. Save your money and improve the facilities 

which already exist in the area please! 

Response 

Form 5 (1 

new) 

The surplus places currently at Ysgol Llanbedr are solely due to the headteacher issues in 

2011-2012. The school is not in decline, it is in recovery. Numbers are growing quickly 

even though the school is under review. The education standards at Ysgol Llanbedr are 

consistently high outperforming Denbighshire and Wales. The teachers have chosen to 

teach at a mixed age class school, so have the skills and ability to do this successfully. At 

Ysgol Llanbedr pupils are taught in permanent classrooms NOT  mobiles. Suggesting 

moving these pupils to Borthyn which is already too full, where mobile classrooms are 

needed is wrong. The site at Llanbedr is one of the best in the area and should be 

supported not closed because it shows up the standards of other schools. Developing 

and looking after the children is a core value for Ysgol Llanbedr; including the safe, off 

road drop off area; the wrap around care that has allowed me to return to work. We 

want our children educated in an English Medium, Rural, Faith school which has 

consistently great academic achievement. This is provided by Ysgol Llanbedr, not Ysgol 

Borthyn. Ysgol Llanbedr should not be closed.     

Yes 

Response 

Form 6 (3 

new) 

Singling out Ysgol Llanbedr for closure because of the mismanagement that occurred in 

2011-2012 is not fair. Prior to 2011 the school had pupil numbers near to capacity, for 

many years. Numbers at the school are increasing again now, quickly. This is a successful 

school, which draws pupils from Llanbedr and nearby towns and villages. These families 

have chosen a village school for their children’s primary education, suggesting sending 

these children to a town school is wrong. Llanbedr is a growing village where the 

majority of residents are English speaking , so the village should keep the village school. 

The school setting is wonderful, many other schools would love to have the facilities 

Yes 

Redaction Redaction Redaction

P
age 133



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

21 

 

offered by this school. Ysgol Llanbedr should not be closed.  

Response 

Form 7 (4 

new) 

Firstly, Ysgol Llanbedr is a beautiful school surrounded by green space, with views of the 

area of outstanding natural beauty and the local rural farming community which is an 

ideal learning environment for local children. Ysgol Llanbedr achieves excellent results 

for children.  

. We received acknowledgement  registration from Denbighshire County 

Council in September 2013, yet at no point had the Modernising Education Team 

informed us or the other parents with children registered to start in 2014 about the 

proposed closure. We were not invited to attend the consultation meeting. The decision-

making panel are being led to believe that numbers at Ysgol Llanbedr are low due to a 

natural decline in pupils, and that estimated figures may only rise by a small increment. 

This is not the case.  to start at the school in September 2014 along with 

13 other classmates in the nursery year. A large drop in pupils is due to a one off 

incident. The unusually low numbers at the school is caused by poor appointment of 

headteachers and ultimately poor management by Denbighshire County Council causing 

a number of parents to remove their children from the school. The school has 

consistently had a roll of 60-100 children in the past. The school is recovering and will 

recover. This is evident by the large number of pupils registering to start in September 

2014, despite the threat of closure. The school has a strong Governing Body and strong 

support from parents who will ensure the school returns to full capacity. During this 

difficult period at the school, Denbighshire County Council pledged their support to the 

school, but less than a year later not giving the school any time to recover, they are 

threatening closure. There is no consistency of approach by Denbighshire County Council 

to schools in the area.If the council deems schools with less than 50 pupils to be 

unsustainable, then why has a new small school been built in Llandegla, why is a small 

school in Rhewl being left out of the review until the “super-school” is built… why is Ysgol 

Llanbedr receiving different treatment to the rest? Why can’t Ysgol Llanbedr be allowed 

time to recover and postpone any decision on closure until the “super-school” on Glasdir 

is a reality. There is no cost saving to Denbighshire County Council by closing Ysgol 

Llanbedr. The council does not own the building, and any saving will be cancelled out by 

transportation costs and the additional mobile classrooms or extensions required at 

Ysgol Borthyn to accommodate the children.  The final sadness would be the detrimental 

effect on the village community of Llanbedr. We live in the village. We would like our 

Yes 

Redaction

Reda

Redaction

P
age 134



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

22 

 

children to make friends and links within the village. Ysgol Llanbedr encourages pupils to 

provide social events for the village residents and the elderly community, creating a 

connection between the generations of the village. This would be lost with the closure of 

the school.   

Response 

Form 8 (5 

new) 

Ysgol Borthyn does not have the capacity to take all the Llanbedr pupils. 

I strongly support village schools as this encourages families into our communities. 

With new houses due to be built in Llanbedr area this will have a positive impact on 

numbers in the school, so the proposal to close is a short sighted one especially given 

that the large decrease in numbers in the school last year was due to staffing issues not 

supporting year 6 pupils.  

Yes 

Response 

Form 9 (6 

new) 

Village schools are an essential part of building a rural community so important in so 

many areas of N. Wales. These ‘smaller’ communities of school kids allows strong bonds 

and academic peer groups to develop which can only be beneficial.  

Yes 

Response 

Form 10 (7 

new) 

Part of a thriving community is access to a local primary school. It fosters good relations 

between neighbours and encourages new young families to an area. It is one reason 

people move to small villages. Ysgol Llanbedr has good facilities, is a large size, could be 

further developed and is more able to provide parking so less congestion in Ruthin town 

centre. The additional cost of transporting all Llanbedr children to Ruthin does not make 

good business sense.  

Yes 

Response 

Form 11 (8 

new) 

This proposal will be a great loss to the surrounding community of Llanbedr because the 

local school is a great social hub for parents with young children in the local area to meet 

and easily support one another. Additionally it provides the local children with a decent 

friendship group that live within close proximity to one another allowing for them to 

easily meet up and further develop their independence and social skills.   

Yes 

Response 

Form 12 (9 

new) 

The proposal does not make sense.  

. The availability of a good successful local 

primary school was a major reason in my son’s family moving to Llanbedr. The school is 

growing and the children enjoy going. Do not close it.  

Yes 

 

 

 

Redaction

P
age 135



Standard Response Form: Question 5 Responses  

23 

 

 

 

P
age 136



1 

 

Appendix H 

 

Summary of Issues: Letter and Email Correspondence  

 

Ref No. Issues Raised No. of 

Respondents 

Raising Issue* 

1 Object to the closure of Ysgol Llanbedr/ Opposed to the current proposal. 44 

2 Educational standards at Ysgol Llanbedr are excellent; out performs the Denbighshire and 

Wales average at Key Stage 2; consistent educational outcomes; nurturing and caring 

environment; well-being of the pupils. 

39 

3 Impact closure will have on the community; school attracts people to live in Llanbedr; village 

has strong links with the school; shared community and school events; children should be 

educated within own community; fosters community spirit. 

38 

4 Facilities at Ysgol Llanbedr; outdoor space unrivalled; astro-turf; in an area of outstanding 

natural beauty; unique setting for a school; large playing fields; dedicated off-road car park; 

safe drop off/pick up facilities.  

34 

5 Pupil numbers: school is growing; pupil numbers for 2014 are high; 13 applications for nursery; 

will be back to capacity; future of the school is strong; thriving village school not in decline. 

31 

6 Munchkins provides on-site, affordable wrap-around-care for working families; valued 

resource within the village; closure of school would result in closure of Munchkins; other 

schools do not offer wrap-around-care; high quality care provided; thriving local business; 

30 

P
age 137



2 

 

holiday club. 

7 Faith education;  strong Christian ethos of the school; links with the local church and wider 

church family; Christian values; support from the Diocese of St.Asaph. 

29 

8 Ysgol Llanbedr has been unfairly treated within the review; other schools with similar surplus 

places have not been proposed closure; Clocaenog/Cyffylliog proposed a new school for 50 

pupils; Ysgol Bryn Clwyd and Ysgol Rhewl have high consistent surplus places; criteria has not 

been fairly applied. 

28 

9 Proposal is flawed; Inaccurate pupil projections; No evidence within the consultation 

document; no strong argument for closure 

27 

10 Parents want an English Medium, Faith Based, Rural education. 26 

11 Ysgol Borthyn is cited as an alternative school; Ysgol Borthyn is not a suitable alternative; 

educational standards are not as high; grounds and facilities are not as expansive as Ysgol 

Llanbedr; mobile classroom, do not want children taught in a mobile classroom. 

26 

12 Leadership issues during 2011-2012 have not been taken into account; resulted in low pupil 

numbers; no support from the LEA; Governing Body not at fault; mis-management by the LEA. 

26 

13 Well-being and welfare of the pupils; causing upset; disruption to their education. 21 

14 Traffic and parking issues outside of Ysgol Borthyn; no safe pick and drop off areas; congested 

and busy road; health and safety issues; risk of harm to pupils. 

21 

15 Local Development Plan: Allocation of 70 new homes in Llanbedr; children will need a school; 

new homes will generate demand for school; closure of school will not attract young families. 

20 

16 Ysgol Borthyn does not have the capacity for pupils from Ysgol Llanbedr. 19 

17 English medium school required in the area; English speaking families need English speaking 

schools. 

19 

18 Other options have not been considered; Federation or an Area School; Not a true 

consultation. 

19 

P
age 138



3 

 

19 Financial savings; stated a saving of £68,000; small savings- should not close; transport costs 

will wipe out savings made; Council do not own the school and land- no savings to be made. 

19 

20 Closure of school would result in loss of parental choice; parents have the right to choose. 17 

21 Small classes; positive for pupils; better attainment; friendships; mixed age classes benefit 

pupils. 

14 

22 Ysgol Borthyn may face closure in the future; additional disruption for pupils. 14 

23 Issues around school transport and travel times for pupils; required to travel further; away 

from the village. 

12 

24 School is being closed to gain funding for new Ruthin ‘super school’. 11 

25 Economic impact; loss of jobs at the school and at Munchkins. 9 

26 Ysgol Llanbedr should have investment; room for school to expand; eco/green school; plans 

drawn up by Governing Body for expansion. 

7 

27 Ysgol Llanbedr committed to Welsh Language and culture; classes for beginners; welsh lessons 

for pupils. 

6 

28 Partnership with Ysgol Brynhyfryd; would be lost 5 

29 Ysgol Llanbedr attracts pupils from a wide catchment area;  4 

30 Conflict of interests; have conflicts of interest at Cabinet/MET been declared;  3 

*Total of 50 responses 

P
age 139



4 

 

 

 

P
age 140



NO REDACTION NEEDED

Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



NO REDACTION NEEDED

Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



REDACTION

Page 150



REDACTION

REDACTION
REDACTION

REDACTION
REDACTION

Page 151



REDACTION

Page 152



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 153



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 154



REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 155



REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 156



Dear Sir/Madam,  
 

Please accept this email as my response to the formal consultation on 

the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr and transfer pupils from the school 

to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin. 

  

I am making this response both as a parent,a local resident born 

and bred in the area and first Language Welsh speaker. 

  

I strongly object to the proposal on the following grounds: 

  

1.       The local authority has failed to adequately explore 

alternatives to closing the school,and has not presented a clear plan 

or strategy for education in the long term, it is clear that given the 

increase in population and traffic that both Borthyn and Rhos Street 

are fast approaching a point of not fit for purpose. It should be 

priority to address the issues with the town’s schools and put in 

place a long-term solution before making irreversible decisions to 

close perfectly good rural schools.  

  

2.       I am concerned that the evidence being used by the local 

education authority to support its proposals to close Ysgol Llanbedr 

DC is flawed and fails to take into account the exceptional 

circumstances which led to a fall in Pupil numbers at the school 

following a leadership crisis some years ago. Numbers at the school 

are recovering and the intake for the coming year has improved, 

potential for further improvement is strong, yet the Council’s 

forecasts for new pupils do not seem to reflect this and they have 

chosen to ignore key facts. 

  

3.       The proposal pays insufficient regard to the growing demand 

for school places as a result of an increasing birth rate and future 

proposals for housing development in the locality, on one hand 

they argue the need for further housing development and Llanbedr 

offers ideal opportunities for this yet on the other hand they will 

stifle its ability to adequately accommodate any new residents to 

the area. 

 

Page 157



  4.       Unlike Ysgol Borthyn, the facilities and space available at 

Ysgol Llanbedr lend themselves well to future development and 

expansion, and contrary to the councils expressed goals the need 

for temporary teaching accommodation in Borthyn will increase, 

they are already in use. The option is to move our children from a 

good school building in a rural setting to a Portable Cabin. 

 

5.       Educational standards at Ysgol Llanbedr are good and generally 

above averages within Denbighshire and Wales as a whole. 

 

  

 

6.       Parking pressures and pedestrian safety issues at Ysgol Borthyn 

are likely to deteriorate should the proposal be implemented. Ysgol 

Llanbedr has ample safe parking along with grounds and play areas 

not matched by any other school in the area, unlike Borthyn that 

offers very little space for outdoor activities and is accessed by a 

very busy main road. The location of Borthyn school is totally 

inadequate, 50 years ago no problem, this is the 21st century things 

have changed. 

 

  

7.       The school plays an important role in the local community and 

its closure will have a devastating impact on Llanbedr.It provides a 

unique wrap around care system at the start and the end of day. 

There has been inadequate assessment of the potential impact of 

closure in this respect; no report has been submitted showing the 

economic impact that closure will have within Llanbedr and the 

area. Will parents be forced to move, will parents be forced to give 

up work. None of these points have been addressed. Such drastic 

decisions cannot be taken without a high degree of due diligence 

and thus far the council has not displayed anything like the required 

level of detailed analysis of all the options available and the long 

term consequences of making the wrong decision. 

  

8.       The development of a new community school next to the 

Glasdir site in Ruthin will undoubtedly have a detrimental impact on 

the school roll at Ysgol Borthyn, only a short distance away. Given 

Page 158



the state of Borthyn from a point of view of facilities and access, 

Rhos Street with access issues and a lack of space let alone its 

attempts to run two independent schools from one site. Is it not 

reasonable to conclude that the long-term plan should be to 

replace both Borthyn and Rhos Street in a modern school unit on a 

site with good access and outside space. Then and only then can a 

clear lucid assessment of rural schools be made, when alternatives 

fit for purpose are in place. For all the resources at its disposal why 

is it beyond the local council to come up with a transparent honest 

long-term plan. 

  

9.       Parents who value the strong Christian ethos provided by Ysgol 

Llanbedr and its links to the Church will find this connection greatly 

effected by a move away from a village school. Does the council not 

recognize or respect the value in faith schooling and a direct 

connection to the local church. This is not simply the closure of a 

school but the complete reorganization of a way of life afforded to 

people for many years. 

 

Yours Faithfully 

REDACTION

Page 159



REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



REDACTION

Page 163



REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 164



REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 165



Page 166



REDACTION

Page 167



REDACTION

Page 168



REDACTION

Page 169



REDACTION

Page 170



REDACTION

Page 171



REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 172



REDACTION

Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



�

�

�

�

��

����������������	����������	�����

���
�����������������������

�������	����

������	����	���

��������

������ !�

�"
��
������
���#$�%��

��	��&���'��	�	���

�

���������	
�
�������������������������������������	�������������

�

(�	�����������������	��)	����*�����*���	���������	�����)��������������������
���������

�������������)��)������������� �������	�
�������%�
��
�+������#$�,-��

�

(���������.�����������������
����)����	��������	���	����������������/�����*�	��	))�	�-�

�

����������	���������������
���������������	��������������

�

(��	��	�)�)���	�� �������	�
���� ���	���	����	���	���������������� �

-��0����������������	�������*������������	���(��	�����	�����*�����������������-��

0����1��)�������*������*�������������������)�	��	���*	���������	�������������	������	�-��(�

�	�1����������)�)������
�������1�������	��-�

�

(�.����������������	��)��
�����������������������	���������	���/���������	����

)�)������
�����
���(1���������	�����
����	�������/������	���������������	���)�)���

���
����
	�.�����	)	�������*������2����������-�

�

+��	�)�)���	�������������(����.�)	���������/�����	���������	����������	������.���

	����
�����������������	��/��	�-��(����	����	����	��������������������*	�����	���	��

���*���	
���������������	��(��)�����������������������	��	������-��(*�(�������������

�	������(���������.��������
��	���������	��������	���	������������(��	/��������������

 �������	�
���-���

�

�

-��0�����������	��	��	���
����

	))��	��	
���	���*���������	����	))��������)���������.�)�	������-��(*�������������

�	���������������������
��*�����)�	����*�����	������*��������	������	�����	�������

	�����	���-�

(���)���������������������.��)�������������)����	��������	���2������������������	����	��

���	������	���(��	���*�����������	����������	/�������))��������������������-�

�

Redaction

Reda Redaction

Redaction

Page 176



�

 �����&����������

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Redaction

Page 177



Redaction

Redaction

Page 178



Redaction

Page 179



Redaction

Page 180



Redaction

Page 181



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 182



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 183



Redacti

on

Redaction

Red

actio

Redaction

Redaction

Redacti

Redactio

Redacti

on

Page 184



Page 185



Redaction

Redacti

on

Page 186



Redaction

Redaction

Page 187



Page 188



Redaction

Page 189



Redaction

Redaction
Page 190



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 191



Redaction

Redaction

Page 192



Redaction

Redaction

Redacti

on

Page 193



Redaction

Redact

ion

Redaction
Redaction

Page 194



Reda
Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 195



Page 196



Redaction

Redaction

Page 197



Redaction

Redaction

Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Ymateb Estyn i’r cynnig i gau Ysgol Llanbedr DC ac i drosglwyddo disgyblion i 
Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthun yn unol â dyheadau rhieni. 
 

Cyflwyniad 

 

Paratowyd yr adroddiad hwn gan Arolygwyr Ei Mawrhydi dros Addysg a Hyfforddiant 

yng Nghymru. 

O dan delerau Deddf Safonau a Threfniadaeth Ysgolion (Cymru) 2013 a’i Chod 

cysylltiedig, mae’n ofynnol i gynigwyr anfon dogfennau ymgynghori i Estyn.  Fodd 

bynnag, nid yw Estyn yn gorff y mae’n ofynnol iddo weithredu yn unol â’r Cod ac nid 

yw’r Ddeddf yn gosod unrhyw ofynion statudol ar Estyn o ran materion trefniadaeth 

ysgolion.  Felly, fel corff yr ymgynghorir ag ef, bydd Estyn yn rhoi eu barn ar 

rinweddau cyffredinol cynigion trefniadaeth ysgolion yn unig. 

Mae Estyn wedi ystyried yr agweddau addysgol ar y cynnig ac mae wedi llunio’r 

ymateb canlynol i’r wybodaeth a ddarparwyd gan y cynigiwr.  

· A yw’r cynigion yn debygol o gynnal neu wella safon y ddarpariaeth 

addysg yn yr ardal? 

Mae Estyn o’r farn fod y cynnig hwn yn debygol o gynnal safonau presennol y 

ddarpariaeth addysg yn yr ardal o leiaf. 

 

Disgrifiad a manteision 

Pa mor dda y mae’r cynigiwr: 

· Wedi rhoi rhesymwaith clir ar gyfer y cynnig? 

Mae Cyngor Sir Ddinbych wedi nodi rhesymwaith clir ar gyfer y cynnig i gau Ysgol 

Llanbedr a throsglwyddo disgyblion i Ysgol Borthyn, yn amodol ar ddewis rhieni.  

Maent wedi dangos bod y cynnig yn cysylltu’n dda â’r polisi strategol a fframwaith 

polisi’r Cyngor i foderneiddio addysg.  

Mae’r cynigiwr yn datgan yn glir bod ‘moderneiddio darpariaeth addysg’ yn 

flaenoriaeth oherwydd pwysigrwydd cael adeiladau ysgol, amgylcheddau dysgu ac 

adnoddau sy’n bodloni anghenion yng Nghymru yn yr 21ain ganrif.  

Mae’r cynigiwr yn nodi bod angen i’w ysgolion allu darparu’r profiadau dysgu gorau 

posibl fel bod plant a phobl ifanc yn Sir Ddinbych yn cael y cyfleoedd ehangaf sydd 

ar gael iddynt a’u bod yn gallu cyflawni eu llawn botensial. 

 

Mae’r cynigiwr yn nodi’n glir nifer o faterion y mae angen mynd i’r afael â nhw i 

gyflawni cynaliadwyedd tymor hir.  Mae’r rhain yn cynnwys cynaliadwyedd cyffredinol 

ysgolion a darpariaeth o ansawdd uchel; lleoedd dros ben; cyflwr ac addasrwydd 

Page 244



adeiladau ysgol (gan gynnwys defnyddio adeiladau symudol); a recriwtio 

penaethiaid. 

 

· Wedi amlinellu’n glir ac yn deg beth yw’r manteision a’r anfanteision 

disgwyliedig o gymharu â’r sefyllfa bresennol? 

 

At ei gilydd, mae’r cynigiwr wedi ystyried manteision ac anfanteision disgwyliedig y 

cynnig o gymharu â’r sefyllfa bresennol mewn ffordd deg a chytbwys.  

 

Mae’r cynigiwr wedi nodi’r manteision disgwyliedig canlynol o ran y cynnig 

presennol: 

 

· byddai disgyblion yn elwa ar gael eu haddysgu mewn dosbarthiadau grwpiau 

blwyddyn unigol a byddai mwy o gyfleoedd ar gael; 

· byddai darpariaeth arall arfaethedig yn cadw’r elfen yn seiliedig ar ffydd; 

· byddai disgyblion yn cael eu haddysgu mewn cyfleusterau sy’n addas at eu diben 

gyda chyfleusterau digonol o ran neuadd a neuadd fwyta; 

· byddai disgyblion yn cael eu haddysgu mewn ysgol gyda Phennaeth parhaol 

sydd hefyd mewn sefyllfa gref i gadw Pennaeth parhaol; a  

· byddai arbediad net o £68,000 yn cael ei wneud trwy gau’r ysgol y gellid ei 

ailfuddsoddi wedyn mewn gwella darpariaeth addysgol ledled Sir Ddinbych. 

 

Mae’r cynigiwr wedi nodi anfanteision y cynnig presennol fel a ganlyn: 

 

· os yw’r cynnig presennol yn mynd yn ei flaen, byddai’r ddarpariaeth addysgol ym 

mhentref Llanbedr yn dod i ben;  

· pan fydd yr ysgol yn cau, disgwylir y bydd angen i rai plant deithio ymhellach i’r 

ysgol, yn amodol ar ddewis rhieni.  Fodd bynnag, mae’r cynigiwr hefyd yn nodi y 

byddai cludiant yn cael ei ddarparu yn unol â Pholisi Cludiant y Cyngor ac i 

sicrhau nad yw amseroedd teithio yn ormodol; 

· byddai staff yn cael eu hail-leoli neu’u diswyddo; 

· ni fyddai Cyngor Sir Ddinbych yn elwa ar werthu’r adeilad na’r safle; a  

· gallai’r gymuned golli’r cyfleuster at ddefnydd cymunedol ond mae darpariaeth 

arall ar gael yn y neuadd bentref. 

 

 

· Wedi rheoli unrhyw risgiau sy’n gysylltiedig â’r cynigion? 

 

Page 245



Mae’r cynigiwr wedi nodi’r risgiau perthnasol sy’n ymwneud â chynnal yr ethos cywir, 

trefniadau derbyn a staffio a goblygiadau ariannol sy’n gysylltiedig â’r cynnig.  Maent 

hefyd wedi nodi darpariaeth addysg arall sy’n seiliedig ar ffydd yn yr ardal a allai 

fodloni dewis rhieni.  Mae’r cynigiwr yn ystyried yr agwedd hon ymhellach yn eu 

hasesiad effaith ar gydraddoldeb. 

Mae’r cynigiwr yn rhoi ystyriaeth briodol i risg debygol y cynnig ar yr iaith Gymraeg 

a’r gymuned yn eu Hasesiadau Iaith Gymraeg ac Effaith Gymunedol.   

 

Maent hefyd wedi nodi’n ddigonol y modd y gellid rheoli’r risgiau hyn a pha fesurau y 

gellid eu defnyddio i leihau rhai o’r effeithiau andwyol a nodwyd. 

 

 

 

· Wedi ystyried dewisiadau eraill addas ac wedi rhoi rhesymau da ynghylch 

pam mae’r rhain wedi cael eu diystyru? 

 

Ystyriodd y cynigiwr ystod o ddewisiadau eraill addas sy’n cynnwys cynnal y sefyllfa 

bresennol, ehangu’r safle presennol, a ffederaleiddio’r ysgolion.  Maent wedi dangos 

manteision ac anfanteision pob opsiwn yn briodol a’u rhesymau dros yr opsiwn y 

maent yn ei ffafrio.  

 

Mae’r cynigiwr yn nodi Ysgol Borthyn fel yr ysgol arall ar gyfer disgyblion gan y 

byddai’n darparu parhad o ran addysg sy’n seiliedig ar ffydd.  Fodd bynnag, yr ysgol 

agosaf yn ddaearyddol yw Ysgol Stryd y Rhos sydd â 26 o leoedd dros ben.  Nid 

yw’r cynigiwr wedi ystyried y goblygiadau ar y cynnig os yw rhieni’n dewis ysgol arall 

heblaw Ysgol Borthyn. 

 

 

· Wedi ystyried effaith y newidiadau ar drefniadau teithio dysgwyr ac ar 

hygyrchedd y ddarpariaeth? 

 

Mae’r cynigiwr yn nodi pe bai Ysgol Llanbedr yn cau ei bod yn debygol y bydd angen 

i rai plant deithio ymhellach i ysgol arall, yn amodol ar ddewis rhieni.  

 

Mae’r cynigiwr yn awgrymu trefniadau eraill rhesymol ar gyfer cludiant ac 

amcangyfrif o’u costau cysylltiedig i’r awdurdod.  Maent wedi amlinellu bod 4 ysgol 

gynradd arall o fewn pellter rhesymol yn amodol ar ddewis rhieni. 

 

Er bod y cynigiwr yn nodi’r pellter i ddarpariaeth arall, byddai wedi bod yn 

ddefnyddiol nodi’r amseroedd teithio dilynol i ddisgyblion hefyd. 

 

 

Page 246



· Wedi dangos yn effeithiol y modd y bydd hyn yn effeithio ar leoedd dros 

ben?  Os bydd nifer y lleoedd dros ben yn cynyddu, a yw’r cynigiwr wedi 

rhoi rhesymau digonol am hyn? 

 
Mae rhagolygon rhagamcaniadau disgyblion y cynigiwr yn awgrymu y bydd ychydig 
o gynnydd yn nifer y disgyblion yn yr ysgol o 21 yn 2013 i 29 yn 2018.  Mae’n 
ymddangos y byddai canlyniad hyn yn gyfyngedig iawn wrth leihau nifer y lleoedd 
dros ben yn gyffredinol.  
 
Nid yw’r cynigiwr wedi nodi effaith debygol y cynnig wrth leihau’r lleoedd dros ben yn 
Ysgol Borthyn a/neu ysgolion eraill sy’n debygol o dderbyn disgyblion. 
 
Mae’r cynigiwr yn nodi bod lle i 54 o ddisgyblion yn adeilad presennol Ysgol Llanbedr 
ar hyn o bryd.  Ym Medi 2013, roedd 33 o leoedd dros ben (gwag) yn yr ysgol, sydd 
gyfwerth â 61% o’i holl gynhwysedd.  
 
 

· Pan mae’n berthnasol, a yw wedi rhoi ystyriaeth ddigonol i effaith y 

cynigion ar ddarpariaeth cyfrwng Cymraeg yn yr awdurdod lleol? 

 

Mae’r cynigiwr wedi rhoi ystyriaeth briodol i effaith y cynigion ar ddarpariaeth cyfrwng 

Cymraeg yn yr ardal sy’n cael ei gwasanaethu gan yr ysgolion presennol.   

 

Agweddau addysgol ar y cynnig  

Pa mor dda y mae’r cynigiwr: 

· Wedi ystyried effaith y cynigion ar ansawdd y deilliannau, y ddarpariaeth, yr 

arweinyddiaeth a’r rheolaeth? 

Mae’r cynigiwr wedi ystyried canran y disgyblion sy’n cyflawni Lefel 4+ yng Nghyfnod 

Allweddol 2 mewn perthynas â pherfformiad yn erbyn y cyfartaleddau ar gyfer yr 

awdurdod lleol a Chymru yn gyffredinol.  Fodd bynnag, nid yw’r cynigiwr wedi 

defnyddio’r data hwn i wneud cymariaethau ystyrlon ag ysgolion tebyg ac nid yw 

wedi darparu crynodeb digonol o’r hyn y mae’r data yn ei ddangos.  Maent wedi 

ystyried deilliannau arolygiad diweddaraf Ysgol Llanbedr gan Estyn hefyd.  Fodd 

bynnag, nid yw’r cynigiwr wedi ystyried deilliannau arolygiadau Estyn yn unrhyw un 

o’r ysgolion y sonnir amdanynt yn ei gynnig. 

Hefyd, nid yw’r cynigiwr wedi defnyddio ystod eang o ddangosyddion i ddadansoddi 

perfformiad yr ysgolion yn y cynnig.  Nid ydynt wedi ystyried perfformiad disgyblion y 

naill ysgol na’r llall yn y Cyfnod Sylfaen.  Byddai hefyd wedi bod yn ddefnyddiol i’r 

cynigiwr ystyried perfformiad pob ysgol o gymharu ag ysgolion tebyg ar sail cyfran y 

disgyblion sydd â hawl i gael prydau ysgol am ddim ac yn erbyn y teulu o ysgolion. 

Page 247



 

Yn sgil niferoedd bach iawn y disgyblion ym mhob grŵp blwyddyn yn Ysgol Llanbedr, 

mae cymhariaeth ystyrlon am berfformiad yn llai sicr. 

Er bod rhywfaint o ddata wedi’i gynnwys, mae’r cynigiwr yn cynnig arfarniad bras yn 

unig o effaith y cynnig ar ddeilliannau, ac mae’r ffocws ar ddarpariaeth well yn sgil 

amrywiaeth o broblemau o ran yr adeiladau a’r cyfleusterau.  Nid oes unrhyw 

ystyriaeth o ran yr effaith y gallai’r ysgol arall arfaethedig ei chael ar y meysydd 

dysgu lle mae’r ddarpariaeth bresennol yn llai na digonol (fel darpariaeth addysg 

gorfforol).   

Nid yw’r cynigiwr wedi cynnwys arfarniad ar ansawdd yr addysgu presennol.  Fodd 

bynnag, mae’r cynigiwr yn rhoi awgrymiadau clir ar botensial y cynnig i wella 

addysgu a darpariaeth. 

Nid yw’r cynigiwr wedi cynnwys arfarniad ar ansawdd presennol yr arweinyddiaeth 

a’r rheolaeth ym mhob ysgol.  Fodd bynnag, mae’r cynigiwr yn awgrymu bod 

anawsterau o ran arweinyddiaeth, recriwtio a chadw yn Ysgol Llanbedr ar hyn o bryd 

ac y gallai’r ffaith nad oes pennaeth parhaol gael effaith sylweddol ar safonau’r ysgol 

yn y dyfodol.  Fodd bynnag, nid yw’r cynigiwr yn defnyddio unrhyw dystiolaeth 

benodol yn y cynnig i gefnogi’r honiadau hyn mewn perthynas ag Ysgol Llanbedr na 

sut mae arweinyddiaeth a rheolaeth yn cymharu mewn ysgolion eraill. 

 

· Wedi ystyried effaith debygol y cynigion i sicrhau bod y cwricwlwm llawn 

yn cael ei gyflwyno yn y Cyfnod Sylfaen ac ym mhob cyfnod allweddol? 

Mae’r cynigiwr wedi ystyried bod y cwricwlwm llawn yn cael ei gyflwyno’n barhaus yn 

y Cyfnod Sylfaen ac yng nghyfnod allweddol 2 yn briodol. 

 

· Wedi ystyried effaith y cynigion ar grwpiau sy’n agored i niwed, gan 

gynnwys plant ag Anghenion Addysgol Arbennig? 

Mae’r cynigiwr yn nodi mai’r effaith fwyaf arwyddocaol i ddisgyblion fydd newid yn yr 

amgylchedd dysgu a’u hathro.  Mae’r cynigiwr yn nodi y bydd unrhyw ddisgyblion ag 

Anghenion Addysgol Arbennig sy’n mynychu’r ysgol ar hyn o bryd yn parhau i gael yr 

un addysg a chymorth ond mewn amgylchedd dysgu newydd.  Mae’r cynigiwr yn 

datgan y bydd yn rhoi cymorth a chefnogaeth i ddisgyblion ag anghenion addysgol 

arbennig sy’n profi anawsterau yn sgil newid.  Fodd bynnag, nid yw’n nodi natur y 

cymorth hwn yn y ddogfen ymgynghorol. 

Nid yw’r cynigiwr wedi ystyried effaith y cynnig ar gyfer unrhyw grŵp arall o ddysgwyr 

sy’n agored i niwed, er enghraifft plant sy’n cael gofal neu blant sy’n Sipsi Deithwyr. 

Page 248



 

· Wedi sicrhau cyn lleied o aflonyddwch ag y bo modd i ddysgwyr? 

Nid yw’r cynigiwr yn cynnwys cyfeiriad penodol at y modd y bydd yn sicrhau bod cyn 

lleied o aflonyddwch ag y bo modd i ddysgwyr. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 249



Estyn response to the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr DC and transfer pupils 

to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject to parental preference. 

This report has been prepared by Her Majesty’s Inspectors of Education and 

Training in Wales. 

Under the terms of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and its 

associated Code, proposers are required to send consultation documents to Estyn.  

However Estyn is not a body which is required to act in accordance with the Code 

and the Act places no statutory requirements on Estyn in respect of school 

organisation matters.  Therefore as a body being consulted, Estyn will provide their 

opinion only on the overall merits of school organisation proposals. 

Estyn has considered the educational aspects of the proposal and has produced the 

following response to the information provided by the proposer.  

Summary/ Conclusion 

· Are the proposals likely to maintain or improve the standard of 

education provision in the area? 

It is Estyn’s opinion that this proposal is likely to at least maintain the present 

standards of education provision in the area. 

 

Description and benefits 

How well has the proposer: 

· Given a clear rationale for the proposal? 

Denbighshire County Council has set out a clear rationale for the proposal to close 

Ysgol Llanbedr and transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, subject to parental preference.  

They have shown that the proposal links in well with the strategic policy and the 

Council’s modernising education policy framework.  

The proposer clearly states that ‘modernising education provision’ is a priority 

because of the importance of having school buildings, learning environments and 

resources that meet the needs of 21st century Wales.  

The proposer notes that its schools need to be able to provide the best possible 

learning experience so that children and young people in Denbighshire have the 

widest opportunities available to them and are able to reach their full potential. 

 

The proposer clearly notes a number of issues that need to be addressed to achieve 

long term sustainability. These include the overall sustainability of schools and high 

quality provision; surplus places; condition and suitability of school buildings 

(including the use of mobile accommodation); and the recruitment of headteachers. 

Page 250



 

· Set out clearly and fairly the expected benefits and disadvantages when 

compared with the status quo? 

 

Overall, the proposer has considered the expected benefits and disadvantages of 

the proposal when compared to the status quo in a fair and balanced way.  

 

The proposer has identified the following expected benefits of the current proposal: 

 

· pupils would gain from being taught in single year group classes and wider 

availability of opportunities; 

· proposed alternative provision would retain the faith based element; 

· pupils would be educated in fit for purpose facilities with adequate hall and dining 

facilities; 

· pupils would be taught in a school with a permanent Headteacher and which is 

also in a strong position to retain a permanent Headteacher; and 

· a net saving of £68,000 would be made by closing the school which could then 

be reinvested into improving educational provision across Denbighshire. 

 

The proposer has identified disadvantages of the current proposal as follows: 

 

· if the current proposal proceeds educational provision in the village of Llanbedr 

would cease;  

· upon the closure of the school it is expected that some children will be required to 

travel further to school; subject to parental preference. However the proposers 

also note that transport would be provided in accordance with the Council’s 

Transport Policy and to ensure that travelling times are not excessive; 

· staff would be redeployed or made redundant; 

· Denbighshire County Council would not benefit from the sale of the building or 

the site; and 

· the community could lose the facility for community use however alternative 

provision is available in the village hall. 

 

 

· Managed any risks associated with the proposals? 

 

The proposer has identified the relevant risks relating to maintaining the right ethos, 

admission arrangements and staffing and financial implications associated with the 

proposal.  They have also identified alternative faith based education provision in the 

Page 251



area which could meet parental preference.  The proposer further considers this 

aspect in their equality impact assessment. 

The proposer appropriately considers the likely risk of the proposal on the Welsh 

language and the community within their Welsh Language and Community Impact 

Assessments.   

 

They have also adequately identified how these risks might be managed and what 

measures could be used to reduce some of the adverse impacts identified. 

 

 

 

· Considered suitable alternatives and given good reasons as to why these 

have been discounted? 

 

The proposer considered a range of alternative options which include maintaining 

the status quo, expanding on the current site, and federating the schools.  They have 

appropriately shown the advantages and disadvantages of each option and their 

reasons for the preferred option.  

 

The proposer identifies Ysgol Borthyn as the alternative school for pupils as it would 

provide continuity of faith based education. However, the nearest school 

geographically is Ysgol Rhos Street which has 26 surplus places.  The proposer has 

not considered the implications on the proposal if parents choose an alternative 

school other than Ysgol Borthyn. 

 

 

· Considered the impact of the changes on learner travel arrangements and 

on accessibility of provision? 

 

The proposer notes that should Ysgol Llanbedr close it is likely that some children 

will be required to travel further to an alternative school; subject to parental 

preference.  

 

The proposer suggests reasonable alternative transport arrangements and their 

estimated associated costs to the authority.  They have outlined that there are 4 

alternative primary schools within reasonable distance subject to parental 

preference. 

 

Although the proposer notes the distance to alternative provision, it would also have 

been helpful to note the resulting journey times for pupils. 

 

 

Page 252



· Effectively shown how surplus places will be affected? If surplus places 

will be increased, has the proposer give adequate reasons for this? 

 

 
The proposer’s pupil projection forecast suggests that there will be a slight increase 
in the number of pupils at the school from 21 in 2013 to 29 in 2018.  It appears that 
this would have a very limited result in reducing surplus places overall.  
 
The proposer has not indicated the likely effect of the proposal in reducing the 
surplus places at Ysgol Borthyn and/or other schools likely to receive pupils. 
 
The proposer notes that the current capacity of the Ysgol Llanbedr school building is 
calculated at 54 pupils.  As of September 2013 the school had 33 surplus (empty) 
places; equivalent to 61% of its total capacity.  
 
 

· Where relevant, taken sufficient account of the impact of the proposals 

on Welsh medium provision within the local authority? 

 

The proposer has taken appropriate account of the impact of the proposals on Welsh 

medium provision in the area served by the present schools.   

 

Educational aspects of the proposal 

How well has the proposer: 

· Considered the impact of the proposals on the quality of the outcomes, 

provision and leadership and management? 

 

The proposer has considered the percentage of pupils achieving Level 4+ at Key 

Stage 2 relating to performance against the averages for the local authority and 

Wales overall. However, the proposer has not used this data to make meaningful 

comparisons with similar schools or provided an adequate summary of what the data 

indicates. They have also considered the outcomes of the most recent Ysgol 

Llanbedr Estyn inspection. However, the proposer has not considered outcomes of 

Estyn inspections in any of the other schools mentioned in its proposal. 

Furthermore, the proposer has not used a wide range of indicators to analyse the 

performance of the schools in the proposal.  They have not considered the 

performance of pupils within the Foundation Phase of either school.  It would also 

have been helpful for the proposer to consider the performance of each school 

compared to similar schools based on the proportion of pupils entitled to free school 

meals and against the family of schools. 

Page 253



 

Due to the very small numbers of pupils in each year group at Ysgol Llanbedr, a 

meaningful comparison about performance is less secure. 

Despite including some data, the proposer offers only a brief evaluation of the impact 

of the proposal on outcomes, with the focus being on improved provision due to a 

variety of issues with the buildings and facilities.  There is no consideration of the 

impact the proposed alternative school might have on the areas of learning where 

the current provision is less than adequate (such as physical education provision).   

The proposer has not included an evaluation on the current quality of teaching.  

However, the proposer gives clear suggestions on the potential of the proposal in 

improving teaching and provision. 

The proposer has not included an evaluation on the current quality of leadership and 

management of each school.  However, the proposer suggests that there are current 

leadership recruitment and retention difficulties at Ysgol Llanbedr and that the 

absence of a permanent headteacher could have a significant impact on the school’s 

standards in the future.   However, the proposer uses no specific evidence in the 

proposal to support these claims in relation to Ysgol Llanbedr or how leadership and 

management compare at alternative schools. 

 

· Considered the likely impact of the proposals to ensure delivery of the full 

curriculum at the foundation phase and at each key stage? 

The proposer has considered the continuing delivery of the full curriculum at the 

Foundation Phase and at key stage 2 appropriately. 

 

· Considered the impact of the proposals on vulnerable groups, including 

children with Special Educational Needs? 

 

The proposer notes that the most significant impact for pupils will be a change in the 

learning environment and their teacher.  The proposer notes that any pupils with 

Special Educational Needs (SEN) who currently attend the school will continue to 

receive the same education and support but within a new learning environment.  The 

proposer states that it will provide help and support for pupils with SEN who 

experience difficulties due to change, however it does not indicate the nature of this 

support within the consultation document. 

The proposer has not considered the impact of the proposal for any other vulnerable 

group of learners, for example looked-after children or Gypsy Traveller children. 

Page 254



 

· Ensured that the disruption to learners is minimised? 

The proposer does not include specific reference to how it will ensure that the 

disruption to learners is minimised. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 255



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yr Ymgynghoriad Ffurfiol ar y cynnig i gau  

Ysgol Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd  

ar 31 Awst 2014 a throsglwyddo’r disgyblion i  

Ysgol Borthyn, Rhuthun  

yn amodol ar ddewis y rhieni 

 
Rhagfyr 2013 

Page 256



 

2 

 

Yr Ymgynghoriad Ffurfiol ar y cynnig i gau Ysgol Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd ar 31 Awst 2013       

a throsglwyddo’r  y disgyblion i Ysgol Borthyn, Rhuthun yn amodol ar ddewis y rhieni 

Mae Undeb Cenedlaethol Athrawon Cymru (UCAC) yn gwerthfawrogi’r cyfle hwn i ymateb i’r 

Ymgynghoriad Ffurfiol ar y cynnig uchod a weithredir yn  unol â gofynion Deddf Safonau a 

Threfniadaeth Ysgolion (Cymru) 2013. Byddwn yn fwy na pharod i ymhelaethu ar y sylwadau hyn a’u 

trafod unrhyw bryd. 

Mae UCAC yn cydnabod dyhead Cyngor Sir Ddinbych i  foderneiddio’r ddarpariaeth addysg yn y Sir 

yn unol â’r Fframwaith Polisi Moderneiddio Addysg a fabwysiadwyd yn 2009 ac eisoes wedi ymateb 

ym mis Mawrth eleni i’r  ymgynghoriad anffurfiol i’r Ddarpariaeth Addysg Gynradd yn Ardal Rhuthun.  

Mae gan yr Undeb bryder am oblygiadau ymateb yn rhy slafaidd i dargedau Llywodraeth Cymru o ran 

lleoedd ‘Dros Ben’  a theimlwn bod hyn yn gyrru’r agenda’n ormodol. Mae’r data a gyflwynir yn 

cadarnhau bod y niferoedd yn Ysgol Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd  bellach yn isel ac wedi gostwng yn 

ddramatig  rhwng 2009 a 2013. Mae’r data hwn, fodd bynnag, yn awgrymu bod  ffactorau ac eithrio 

gostyngiad yn y genedigaethau wedi arwain at y newid hwn, yn arbennig o ddarllen bod Arolwg Estyn 

yn 2009 yn gadarnhaol a bod ‘safonau addysgol yn yr ysgol yn dda ac maent wedi gwella’ (Paragraff 

9.1) Rhaid gofyn, felly, a roddwyd digon o ystyriaeth i’r ffactorau a arweiniodd at y gostyngiad hwn ac 

a ddadansoddwyd yn ddigon manwl y  rhagolygon niferoedd yn wyneb y  bwriad i adeiladu 71 o 

anheddau yn lleol yn y dyfodol.  

Mae’r Undeb yn mawr obeithio nad yw’r cynnig hwn yn gosod cynsail o weld rhagoriaeth i 

ddarpariaeth drefol ar draul gwarchod addysg wledig o fewn y Sir. Nid yw  canoli’r ddarpariaeth 

addysgol o reidrwydd yn cynnig y ddarpariaeth orau i blant na’r gymuned.  

Mae’r Undeb yn croesawu’r ffaith bod yr awdurdod wedi cynnal asesiad o’r Effaith ar y Gymuned ac 

ar yr Iaith Gymraeg, ac hefyd wedi cynnal Asesiad o’r Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb.  Mae’n amlwg bod 

gweithgareddau cymunedol sylweddol wedi eu canoli o gwmpas adeilad a thir yr ysgol yn Llanbedr 

Dyffryn Clwyd. Wrth bwyso a mesur effaith negyddol colli’r ysgol ar y gymuned mae’r Adroddiad yn 

awgrymu y gellid gwneud rhywbeth am hyn ‘....gellid mabwysiadu mesurau i leihau’r effaith..’  

(Paragraff 11.2),   ‘....gallai’r awdurdod lleol.. fabwysiadu nifer o fesurau posibl i sicrhau bod 

cymuned Llanbedr DC yn parhau i ffynnu...’  (Paragraff 11.5)  ‘.. mesurau posibl..’ (Paragraff 13.3). 

Os symudir ymlaen i gyflwyno Cynnig Ffurfiol i gau’r ysgol, byddai’n rhesymol i opsiynau a 

phosibiliadau o’r fath fod yn llawer mwy diffiniedig a phenodol.  

Mae’r Undeb yn rhannu pryder yr Awdurdod am ddiffyg ymgeiswyr am swyddi penaethiaid, ond nid 

cau ysgolion bach yw’r ateb i’r diffyg hwnnw. Rydym yn pwyso ar y Cynulliad ac ar bob Awdurdod 

Addysg i fod yn fwy rhagweithiol wrth ymateb i’r diffyg hwn drwy hybu datblygiad proffesiynol 

athrawon, yn arbennig mewn rheolaeth ganol. Cytunwn bod yr ymrwymiad dysgu yn ffactor sy’n 

gwneud i rai beidio ymgeisio am swydd pennaeth, ond y mae’r holl feirniadaeth a sylwadau negyddol 

am addysg ac ysgolion yn y wasg y dyddiau hyn yn gymaint o ffactor hefyd.  

 

 

Page 257



 

3 

 

A chymryd y bydd bwrw ymlaen efo’r ‘cynnig’ hwn  yn digwydd, mae gan yr Undeb bryder 

gwirioneddol y bydd  hi’n hwyr yn y dydd ar y penderfyniadau hynny yn cael eu cadarnhau ac y bydd i 

hyn oblygiadau i swyddi. Mae  UCAC yn  gadarn o’r farn y dylid diogelu swyddi i’r eithaf a hynny drwy 

annog cydweithrediad yr ysgolion lleol fydd â swyddi i’w llenwi; yn arbennig os ydynt yn derbyn 

disgyblion o’r ysgol sy’n cau.  Mae’n hanfodol bod yr undebau perthnasol yn cael eu cynnwys mewn 

trafodaethau ar adleoli neu ddiswyddiadau. 

I Gloi 

Os bydd y Cyngor yn penderfynu cyflwyno Rhybudd Statudol  ar sail yr Ymgynghoriad Ffurfiol hwn,  

pwysleisiwn fod angen iddo fod wedi rhoi sylw  i’r pryderon a godir yn yr ymateb hwn, yn arbennig 

felly o ran  gwarchod buddiannau’r staff a chymuned weithgar Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd.  

 

Page 258



 

4 

 

 

 

Page 259



The Formal Consultation on the proposal to close Ysgol Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd on the 31
st

 of 

August 2014 and transfer pupils to Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin subject on parental preference 

The National Union of Teachers in Wales (UCAC) appreciates this opportunity to respond to the 

consultation regarding the Formal Consultation on the above proposal which is being implemented 

in line with the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013.  We will be more than happy to 

expand on these comments at to discuss them at any time.  

UCAC acknowledges the intentions of Denbighshire County Council to modernise the education 

provision in the county in line with the Modernising Education Policy which was adopted in 2009 and 

has already responded in March of this year to the informal consultation on Primary School 

provision in the Ruthin area.   

The Union is concerned about the implications of responding too slavish to Welsh Government 

targets regarding surplus places and feel that this is driving the agenda excessively. The data 

presented confirms that the pupil numbers at Ysgol Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd is now low and has fallen 

dramatically between 2009 and 2013. However, this data indicates that other factors excluding the 

fall in the birth rate has led to this change especially after reading the 2009 Estyn inspection which 

was positive and that ‘educational standards in the school are good and have improved (paragraph 

9.1). Therefore a question to be asked is, has sufficient consideration been given to the factors that 

led to this decline and has the additional 71 dwellings planned to be built been sufficiently, analysed 

and included in the pupil projections. 

The Union hopes that this proposal doesn’t set a precedent of the superiority of town provision 

being at the expense of safeguarding rural provision in the County. Centralising the education 

provision does not necessarily provide the best provision to children or the community. 

The Union welcomes that the authority has undertaken an assessment of the effect on the 

community and the Welsh language and also an equality impact assessment. It is clear that there are 

significant community activities centred around the school building and school grounds within 

Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd. In analysing the negative effect of losing the school on the community the 

report suggests that it could do something regarding this ‘ ….. it could adopt measures to lessen the 

impact..’ (paragraph 11.2), ‘… the authority could adopt a number of possible actions to ensure that 

the community of Llanbedr DC continues to thrive…’ (Paragraph 11.5) ‘…possible actions (Paragraph 

13.3). If a Formal proposal is presented to close the school, it would be reasonable for the options 

and possibilities to be far more defined and specific.   

The Union shares the authorities concern regarding the lack of applicants for Head teachers jobs, but 

closing small school isn’t the solution to this shortcoming. We are pressing on the Welsh Assembly 

and on every Authority to work proactively to respond to this shortcoming through professional 

development of teachers especially in middle management. We agree that a teaching commitment 

is one factor that influences on individuals not to apply, but also the negative criticism and negative 

comments in the press regarding education and school is also a significant factor. 

Assuming that this ‘proposal’ will be progressed, the Union is concerned that it will be late in the day 

when the decisions are confirmed and that there will be obligations for jobs. UCAC is steadfast in ts 

opinion that jobs should be protected by encouraging the cooperation of other local schools which 

Page 260



will have vacancies to fill; especially if they are receiving pupils from the school that is closing. It is 

imperative that the relevant unions are included in the discussion regarding redeployment or 

redundancy. 

To surmise 

If the Authority decides to publish a Statutory Notice on the basis of this formal consultation, we 

emphasise the need to respond to the concerns raised in this response especially regarding 

protecting staff benefits and the vibrant community of Llanbedr Dyffryn Clwyd.  

Page 261



Page 262

This page is intentionally left blank



Faith in education

Page 263



Audience  Faith communities; headteachers; senior management; teachers; 
governing bodies; colleges; training providers; local authorities; 
SACREs; church diocesan authorities; teachers’ unions; national 
bodies in Wales with an interest in religious education; individuals 
with an interest in the role of faith in the education system.

Overview  This document provides an overview of the organisation and role of 
faith in the education system, including the role of schools of a 
religious character in the context of the wider schools system.  

Action None.
required  

Further Enquiries about this guidance should be directed to: 
information Curriculum Division
 Department for Education and Skills
 Welsh Government
 Cathays Park
 Cardiff
 CF10 3NQ

 Tel: 029 2082 1750
 e-mail: curriculumdivision@wales.gsi.gov.uk
               
Additional  Can be obtained by visiting the Welsh Government’s website at
copies www.wales.gov.uk/educationandskills

Related  Faith in the system (Department for Children, Schools and Families,
documents   September 2007)
 
 

Faith in education

Ref: CAD/GM/0183  
ISBN: 978 0 7504 6359 1 
© Crown copyright 2011  

Page 264



1Faith in education

Contents

Foreword by the Minister for Education and Skills   2

Introduction  3

What is the historical basis for a faith dimension  
within education? 4

What is the National Purpose for Schools in Wales? 6

What are the main school types and their associated 
religious characteristics? 7

What statutory provision exists in relation to the faith 
dimension in education? 9

What is the distinctive ethos of schools with a religious  
character and how does it make a positive contribution  
to wider society?  11

What are the arrangements for admission? 15

How does the sector ensure diversity when meeting the  
needs of learners? 16

What is the shape of the curriculum?  20

What is the provision for RE in all maintained schools? 22

How are skills and issues of learning across the  
curriculum met and interpreted? 25

How is personal and social education (PSE) delivered? 27

What is the role of collective worship? 29

What do the faith communities in Wales have to  
offer other schools and colleges not in the sector? 31

Conclusion  33

Appendix: Wales – Diocesan boundaries 34

  

Page 265



2 Faith in education

The Welsh Government believes strongly in celebrating the different 
and diverse cultures within Wales. Schools with a religious character 
are one aspect of the diversity within our communities, and the 
Welsh Government acknowledges the significant part faith has 
played in the development of the education system in Wales. Today, 
schools with a religious character continue to fulfil a valuable role in 
Welsh society.

The Welsh Government has produced this document jointly with 
representatives of providers of publicly funded schools with a 
religious character in Wales; these are the Church in Wales and the 
Catholic Education Service of England and Wales and I would like to 
thank both organisations for their commitment to the development 
of this document.

The aim of this document is to outline the nature of schools with 
a religious character in Wales at the present time, to delineate the 
ethos and character of these schools, to challenge preconceptions, 
and to emphasise and celebrate diversity. 

In outlining the current structure of the sector, it is important to note 
that the nature of faith-based publicly funded education in Wales is  
predominantly of Christian denomination, and by necessity the 
descriptive information in this document has been drawn from a 
Christian perspective. However, this document has also been carefully 
designed to be a useful document for other denominations and 
faiths. 

Faith in education portrays the dynamic, progressive nature of 
education with a religious character in Wales, and celebrates the 
unique character of faith schools in our culture.

Leighton Andrews 
Minister for Education and Skills

Foreword by the Minister for Education 
and Skills

Page 266



3Faith in education

Introduction 

The Welsh Government and providers of schools with a religious 
character (commonly known as faith schools) set out in this 
document our shared understanding of the very positive contribution 
such schools make to the publicly funded system of education in 
Wales. This document reflects on, celebrates and communicates our 
shared enterprise in order to both sustain and develop further our 
mutual understanding and ways of working. 

The Welsh Government acknowledges as reasonable the aspiration 
of parents and carers to educate their children in the context of a 
faith worldview. Our purpose here is to highlight the ways in which 
such schools are distinctive, but not exclusive, in how they approach 
education, promote community cohesion and help learners flourish 
and reach their potential. We hope to dispel some of the common 
myths and unhelpful presuppositions that commentators can 
sometimes express with regard to the place of such schools within 
the system. We aim, thereby, to promote respectful and intelligent 
dialogue and affirm our mutual understanding of the appreciable 
and constructive contribution schools with a religious character make 
to our common life as a nation. 

While the document is primarily concerned 
with publicly funded schools which, in the 
present Welsh context, are all Christian, 
much of what is set out here is applicable 
to schools of other faiths, both within 
the existing independent sector and in 
any future maintained school established 
by a different religious tradition. Indeed, 
our shared aim is to foster greater 
partnership and cohesion among all the 
providers of education in Wales, wishing 
to acknowledge the contribution that all 
schools make – whether they are religious 
in character or not – to improving our 
society by educating the whole person and 
enabling learner well-being.  

Each of the schools in the faith sector approach the shared vision, set 
out here, inspired by the life, words and actions of its faith-founder, 
expressing a genuine openness and desire to nurture the spiritual 
dimension of the lives of young people. As significant partners in 
education within Wales, we wish to convey our genuine commitment as 
integral and accountable partners in public life, consciously seeking to 
promote, through education, a more humane, just and inclusive society. 

Learners from Bishop of Llandaff Church in Wales High School 

at worship in Llandaff Cathedral.

Page 267



4 Faith in education

What is the historical basis for a faith 

dimension within education?

Faith organisations have an exceptionally long and pioneering 
tradition of providing education in Wales, dating back to medieval 
times but essentially consolidated through provisions made in the 
Victorian era. The church schools founded in the nineteenth century 
aimed to offer basic education to the poor at a time when the state  
made no such provision. The early providers were motivated by the  
firm Christian conviction that each child was made in God’s image 
and that free access to education would help them realise their 
potential, flourish as human beings and thus escape poverty and 
degradation. As the state and faith communities are now partners in 
the provision of education, the role of the faith providers in  
education has evolved. The present purpose is not simply to provide 
the basic education needed for human dignity and a fair society, but  
to offer young people the explicit opportunity to explore a spiritual 
dimension to their lives while in education. Moreover, with a proven 
historical commitment towards inclusion, schools with a religious 
character are proactive in the provision they make for those with 
additional learning needs, helping them to achieve their full potential 
while in education. Both the Welsh Government and schools with 
a religious character believe that such historical goals remain valid 
today and make a significant case for offering parents/carers and 
children an additional choice when it comes to high-quality school 
provision. 

Schools with a religious character now play an invaluable role as  
first-class providers within the system, providing an approach to 
education that helps to make an increasingly diverse Wales, a more 
tolerant nation characterised by justice and prosperity. As a family 
of schools, schools with a religious character share many common 
values and hold a mutual interest and respect for one another’s 
ethos and spirituality. The schools are full partners with the Welsh 
Government in public life and together we wish to draw attention 
to our shared priorities, common purpose and overlapping values. 
We do this as the basis for greater mutual understanding and 
respect between us, while remaining true to the diversity of faith 
perspectives among the providers and respecting the dignity of all 
faith positions in Wales. 

Page 268



5Faith in education

 
Meeting the needs of those with additional learning needs

In 2009, Cardiff local authority (LA) approached the Bishop of Llandaff Church in Wales 
High School with a proposal to open an extension to the school to provide education 
for learners with an Autism Spectrum Condition (ASC). The learners would include some 
who were unlikely to be able to be integrated into the mainstream school as well as 
others who might be able to share some of the regular classes. The school was chosen 
from Cardiff schools as a result of the success that it had developed with inclusion and 
especially with learners with special educational needs. Following staff and governor 
consultation, the LA made a bid to the Welsh Government for a capital grant and was 
successful in being granted over £4 million. The LA were able to add to this to allow a 
£5.2 million budget for the development. Temporary buildings for learners opened in 
September 2009 and two classes of six children are currently at the school. Each class 
has its own teacher and two classroom assistants. 

The Marion Centre, as it is named, develops its own curriculum and tries to mirror the  
Key Stage 3 curriculum wherever possible. Integration of the learners is enabled through  
personalised learning so that some learners can join mainstream classes where it is  
appropriate to do so. The Marion Centre learners can also access some of the specialist  
facilities in the school such as music rooms and food technology rooms. All opportunities 
for integration are developed from coming to the dining hall to collect lunch to joining 
in whole school Eucharist and the annual Eisteddfod.

Significantly, the Marion Centre has been a focus for other learners in the school who 
wish to learn more about children with an autism spectrum condition. Lunchtime clubs 
and social events allow integration of all learners. Staff development has also enabled a 
growing awareness of learners with additional learning needs and this has been a clear 
focus for the whole school. 

Inclusive education is integral to the mission at Bishop: a school that aims to include 
learners from all parts of society. This exciting development is a good example of the 
creative partnership between the Bishop of Llandaff High School, Cardiff LA and the 
Welsh Government.

CASE STUDY

Page 269



6 Faith in education

What is the National Purpose for Schools 

in Wales?

The Welsh Government wholeheartedly supports parents’/carers’ 
aspiration to educate their children within a faith context and  
expresses this support in a variety of ways, up to and including 
maintained denominational schools, where reasonable and 
appropriate to do so. Local authorities maintain a range of different 
types of school. While each type of school is different in its 
characteristics, their common purpose is expressed in the National 
Purpose for Schools in Wales1, which envisages that all schools:

• enable all children and young people to develop their full
potential by acquiring skills, knowledge, understanding and 
attitudes, including personal, social and emotional skills, to enable 
them to become economically, socially and personally active 
citizens and lifelong learners

• promote a culture of social inclusion and respect for diversity,  
particularly through developing the well-being of learners and  
personalising their learning

• establish strong professional learning communities in schools  
where practitioners can develop and share their professional  
knowledge in learning and teaching

• offer children and young people a curriculum that engages and  
motivates them to learn and to achieve their potential

• provide a learning community for all those engaged in school life, 
with children and young people and their families at the centre,  
and including governors, teachers, other school staff and adults  
training to work in schools

• be a key player with other schools and partner service providers  
in planning and delivering integrated services for children and  
young people to improve their well-being 

• provide or facilitate education so that schools contribute to  
meeting the needs of the community and engage the community  
as partners to ensure that all schools are community focussed.

1 
www.sefwales.co.uk/sef-p2-home/sef-p2-about-sef/sef-p2-about-sef-sef-and-schools/

sef-p2-sef-national-purpose-for-schools/sef-p2-sef-national-purpose-for-schools-2.htm

Page 270



7Faith in education

What are the main school types and their 

associated religious characteristics?

In delivering this common purpose for all learners, local authorities 
maintain four different types of school each with their distinct 
duty of governance and approach to issues of ethos. Schools 
with a religious character sit comfortably within a typology that is 
characterised by the four types of provision described and set out 
below.

Community schools are maintained by the local authority, which is 
the admissions authority for that school. While these schools meet 
the legislative requirements for a daily act of worship and the delivery 
of statutory religious education (RE), they may not in themselves have 
a distinctive religious character. By contrast, voluntary controlled 
schools, although maintained by the local authority (which, again, 
is the school’s admissions authority), nevertheless may well have a 
religious character, receive input from the relevant diocesan authority 
and even opt into a denominational syllabus for the delivery of  
statutory RE. Schools of the third category, voluntary aided 
schools, are once again maintained by the local authority but are 
their own admissions authority. They may have a religious character 
and are the employer of the staff and owner of the land and 
premises. Schools in this category have considerable diocesan input, 
with the school and/or faith community contributing to their capital 
requirements in the case, that is, of schools with a religious character. 
Foundation schools are also maintained by the local authority 
and are their own admissions authority, and may have a religious 
character, as well as acting as the employer of the staff and owning 
the school’s land and premises. 

Page 271



8 Faith in education

Voluntary  
aided school 
with religious 
character

Voluntary 
controlled 
school

Foundation 
school 
(without 
foundation)

Foundation 
school  
(with 
foundation)

Community 
school –  
may not 
have a 
religious 
character

Staff employer Governing body Local  
authority

Governing 
body

Governing 
body

Local  
authority

Owner/holder 
of school’s  
site and 
buildings

Charitable 
foundation

Charitable 
foundation

Governing 
body

Charitable 
foundation

Local  
authority

Owner/holder 
of playing 
fields

Local authority  
(usually)

Local authority 
(usually)

Governing 
body  
(usually)

Charitable 
foundation 
(usually)

Local  
authority

Admissions 
authority

Governing body Local authority Governing 
body

Governing 
body

Local  
authority

Religious 
education

Denominational 
body

Standing 
Advisory 
Councils on 
Religious 
Education 
(‘SACRE’)

(denominational 
if parents/carers 
request it)

SACRE SACRE SACRE

School typology and religious characteristics

Page 272



9Faith in education

What statutory provision exists in relation 

to the faith dimension in education?

The system outlined on the previous page, consisting of voluntary 
schools supported by faith organisations and those schools without 
a religious character, is at the heart of the state school system in 
Wales. The Welsh Government continues to support the benefits 
to society that this system brings, both for parental choice and in 
the interests of raising standards through encouraging constructive 
diversity. The duality of the system offers learners the opportunity to 
be educated within or outside of a faith-based setting in accordance 
with the wishes of their parents/carers. This accords with the duty 
under Article 2 of Protocol 1 of the European Convention on Human 
Rights (ECHR): ‘to respect the right of parents to ensure education 
and teaching in conformity with their own religious and philosophical 
convictions‘. Accordingly, the Welsh Government welcomes the 
contribution schools with a religious character make to the school 
system – both as a result of their historical role and as present day 
partners in contributing to a more diverse school system with greater 
opportunities for parental choice and learner engagement.

Within the maintained system, the Welsh Government provides 
statutory support to education that recognises a religious dimension. 
This support is governed by way of statutory provision, regulations, 
guidance and the provision of funding and includes: 

• continuing statutory provision for the existence of state-supported
denominational schools, maintained by local authorities and 
funded by the Welsh Government through the Revenue Support  
Grant to local authorities

• support for denominational post-16 provision via direct funding  
from the Welsh Government

• continuing statutory provision for the right of voluntary aided  
schools to follow their own denominational RE curriculum,   
to give preference to members of the faith when appointing  
teachers, and to apply admissions requirements which prioritise  
applications from children of the faith of the school where such  
schools are oversubscribed

• comparable statutory provision in the case of other schools with  
a religious character to appoint a proportion of teachers adhering  
to the faith of the school to appropriate reserved positions

• provision for all schools with a religious character to appoint  
governors to the governing body expressly to safeguard that  
character

Page 273



10 Faith in education

• a statutory requirement for an act of collective worship of a  
broadly Christian character in all state schools, whether a school  
has a religious character or not

• provision for statutory RE in the curriculum in all schools

• support for locally-determined agreed RE syllabuses through
SACRE.

Children from around Wales take part in displays of traditional dancing at the 

Senedd, during the Year of Catholic Education celebration.

Page 274



11Faith in education

As with all maintained schools, the providers of schools with a 
religious character in Wales share the common purpose outlined on 
the previous pages. They have wide-ranging commitments centred 
on the well-being and education of the young people in their care. 
Schools with a religious character fulfil this common purpose by 
intentionally predicating their approach to education on a vision of 
what it means to flourish as a human being, a vision made explicit 
by:

• cherishing the dignity of the human person within each 
individual – including both learners and staff

• promoting a strong sense of well-being and facilitating the
welfare of all learners

• offering high standards of education in line with the National
Purpose and encouraging young people to achieve their full  
potential

• striving to meet the personalised needs of all learners in the 
context of their individual faith journey and offering them 
opportunities to explore the spiritual dimension to life

• promoting community cohesion and social well-being by combating 
excessive individualism and encouraging young people to engage  
with others to discover and understand what they hold in common

• fostering a positive attitude to the diversity of faith and all other  
strands of equality that make up the common good

• working in a spirit of partnership with the Welsh Government,  
Estyn, local authorities and regional consortia. 

Governors and staff of schools with a religious character are guided 
by these commitments in a way that enables them not only to meet 
the National Purpose and fulfil their legal requirements, but also to  
promote a positive attitude to diversity and operate as full and 
creative partners in public life. The distinctive ethos of schools in  
this sector enables learners to make a positive contribution to society 
precisely because they inspire learners to grapple successfully with 
questions of meaning and significance, ensuring young people 
develop into healthy and balanced individuals, mindful of their civic 
duties and capable of putting their faith at the disposal of society’s 
well-being. This premise is an important component of education 

What is the distinctive ethos of schools 
with a religious character and how does 
it make a positive contribution to wider 
society? 

Page 275



12 Faith in education

within this sector: young people are encouraged to explore how 
their faith can support the common good and to listen to each 
other’s beliefs in the cause of building a just and harmonious society. 
Schools with a religious character thus inculcate an ethos that offers 
an intentional approach to education, encouraging learners to draw 
on the value of faith as social capital to promote their own  
well-being alongside honouring the well-being of others.

 
Ethos Ambassadors

St Joseph’s Catholic School and Sixth Form Centre in Port Talbot takes as its ethos 
statement: ‘Becoming fully human in Christ’. Like other schools in the sector, the school 
aims to develop all aspects of humanity among learners, taking as its inspiration the 
words of Jesus found in St John’s Gospel: ’I have come that they may have life and have 
it to the full’ John 10:10. 

In order to safeguard and promote its ethos, St Joseph’s elects two students from the 
sixth form to act as Ethos Ambassadors, in addition to the traditional roles of Head Boy 
and Head Girl. The Ambassadors work with the School Chaplain and play a full and active 

role in the spiritual and liturgical life of the school. 
The Ambassadors are trained to assist and support 
learners lower down the school, encouraging them 
to actively participate in worship, helping them to 
prepare prayers and readings appropriate for the 
liturgy.  

The Ethos Ambassadors are also involved in the 
internal retreat programmes and 
reconciliation/restorative services and work alongside 
the staff and learners to encourage the participation  

 and involvement of students. They are heavily 
involved in Christian-based charity work and help raise money for CAFOD, distributing 
Christmas hampers to the elderly and needy, sponsoring children in The Good Hope 
School in Uganda and assisting Father Giovanni Cefai in his missionary work in Peru, and  
learning from the process. Along with several other sixth form students, the Ethos 
Ambassadors attend the Welsh Annual Pilgrimage to Lourdes where they assist with the  
care for the sick. 

The Ambassadors are currently looking to set up a ‘liturgy group‘ in school with a view 
to further developing the spirituality of learners and offering opportunities for 
learner-initiated prayer. They are an important means of sustaining and promoting the 
ethos of the school. 

CASE STUDY

Ethos Ambassadors dressing the altar ready 

for mass.

Page 276



13Faith in education

How do staffing arrangements in the faith sector 
help ensure this religious ethos?

One of the ways in which schools with a religious character ensure 
that they sustain a clear religious ethos is through the recruitment 
of members of staff who fully support and contribute to the 
distinctiveness of the school. In all maintained schools – including 
those without a religious character – the governing body plays a key 
role in the governance and staffing structure of the school and in 
schools with a religious character, statutory provision exists to enable 
the governing bodies to safeguard and develop their faith-based 
ethos. In the case of voluntary aided schools with a religious 
character, the governing body has the statutory right to give 
preference to members of the faith when appointing all teachers. 
In voluntary controlled and foundation schools, the governing body 
may give preference to members of the faith when appointing up to 
one-fifth of teachers to ‘reserved posts’. These teachers are selected 
for their appropriateness to give RE in line with the expectations of 
the faith organisation.

The Catholic Bishops of England and Wales summarised the 
importance of recruitment in their Memorandum on Appointment of 
Teachers to Catholic Schools: 

The preservation and development of the quality and distinctive  
nature of Catholic schools depends on the faith, practice and  
commitment of the teachers in the schools, working with their  
Governing Bodies.2 

The posts of headteacher, deputy headteacher and head or 
coordinator of RE are to be filled with baptised and practising 
Catholics. Similarly, the National Sociey for the Promotion of Christian 
Education encourages schools to balance the need to secure a 
religious ethos with that of ensuring a diverse staff community when 
it states: 

Schools may choose to employ practising Christians in some key  
posts. These usually include the Headteacher and, where 
appropriate, the Head of RE and Chaplain. Staff members 
generally come from a wide variety of social, cultural and religious 
backgrounds and this adds to the rich tapestry of the schools.3

2 
www.cesew.org.uk/standard.asp?id=267

3
 www.churchofengland.org/education/national-society/staffing-governance.aspx

Page 277



14 Faith in education

Careful staffing arrangements within schools in the sector enable 
them to create and develop a distinctive ethos with a faith-inspired, 
varied and hospitable culture of learning.

Those schools with a religious character currently working within 
the system in Wales are all from Christian faith organisations and 
approach issues of school leadership with a clear understanding of 
the nature of Christian authority and of the priority for leadership to  
serve its learners. They should take as their model the servant 
leadership of Christ, combining a desire to face difficult issues with 
courage and deep sensitivity to the needs and feelings of those most 
affected. In the future there may be maintained schools of other 
faith traditions and the Welsh Government would welcome and 
expect that they too would adopt a staffing structure and leadership 
approach that seeks to serve the best interest of learners.

Page 278



15Faith in education

What are the arrangements for 

admission?

All schools with a religious character are part of the learning 
community in their locality but, due to their special character, draw 
from a wider geographical area than a comparable school without a 
religious character. Indeed, those of a voluntary aided status will act 
as their own admissions authorities. This means that such schools 
are able to determine their own admissions policies, within the 
framework of the School Admissions Code. In supporting this, the  
Welsh Government has high expectations as to how the governing 
body will discharge this authority, ensuring due regard to learners 
in the wider area the school serves and the impact on other schools 
and education providers. Both the Welsh Government and faith 
providers are committed to fair admission arrangements which are 
easy for parents/carers to understand and contribute to fair access 
by all families, sometimes admitting learners not of the faith where 
circumstances allow and where the needs of the learner are best met 
from within a faith-based context. While mindful of the distinctive 
needs of its own sector, schools with a religious character act with 
sensitivity to the wider interest by collaborating with other providers 
and are committed to partnership working, as encouraged by Welsh 
Government initiatives.

 
Diversity in admission and culture

Admissions at Ysgol Gynradd Gatholig Ein Harglwyddes, Bangor help to create anything 
but a monochrome culture. This Catholic school has 120 children on the roll for whom 
57 per cent English is an additional language. This school serves a diverse community 
such that the countries/languages represented in the school in 2011 were as follows: 
India – Malayalam, Hindi, Tamil; Philippines – Filipino, Tagalog; Sri Lanka – Sri Lankan; 
China – Cantonese, Mandarin; Iraq – Arabic; Iran – Arabic, Farsi; Kurdistan – Kurdish; 
Ghana – Ghanaian; Zimbabwe; Tanzania – Swahili; Rwanda – Rwandan; Zambia – 
Bemba; Malawi – Chichewa; South Korea – Korean; Poland – Polish; Portugal –  
Portuguese; France – French; Spain – Spanish; England – English; Ireland – Irish Gaelic; 
Wales – Welsh.

CASE STUDY

Page 279



16 Faith in education

How does the sector ensure diversity 
when meeting the needs of learners?

There are 253 schools in Wales with a religious character representing 
14 per cent of all maintained schools in Wales and educating a 
significant proportion of Wales’ learners. In common with all other 
maintained schools, these schools are expected to provide an 
environment which offers good-quality pastoral care and ensures 
inclusion of all children, including those looked after, those from 
minority ethnic backgrounds and those with additional learning needs. 
This is important, as contemporary Wales presents a significant diversity 
of faith, language, culture and geography. There is a misconception 
that schools with a religious character serve a sectarian interest, are 
monochrome in their intake and outlook and bring together a socially 
narrow learner population. Evidence shows that schools in the sector 
draw learners both from their local neighbourhood and the wider 
community, often providing an environment of rich social diversity 
and one that can be less easy for schools serving a single focused 
community to achieve. In Catholic schools in Wales, for example, 
a third of all learners do not belong to the faith community and in 
many other schools with a religious character, a significant number of 
open places are offered to those of another faith (or indeed without 
particular religious affiliation). Growing collaboration across the faith 
consortia is also helping to develop constructive links between schools 
in different parts of Wales, with opportunities for partnership with 
learners in areas with a differing social or geographical make-up. There 
is scope to develop this further and we support the recommendations 
of the Respect and resilience4 document that schools should build 
active links between and across communities, and signal our 
willingness to look for opportunities to share good practice among 
schools and thereby enrich the learning experiences of learners. 
Professional Learning Communities also offer further opportunities for  
teachers within and beyond the faith sector, with many excellent 
partnerships in local school clusters, irrespective of whether they have a 
religious character or not.

What are the arrangements for inspection?

As discussed earlier, there exists a wide range of legislation and 
guidance governing the delivery of learning and in the management 
of relationships with their learners. This legislation applies equally 
to all maintained faith schools. Faith schools are subject to regular 
inspection by Estyn and in addition, the faith organisations undertake 
their own inspection of the religious life of their schools (known in

4 www.wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/110209respecten.pdf

Page 280



17Faith in education

schools as the Section 50 Inspection)5. This dual system of inspection 
has provided a very constructive opportunity for the faith community 
to work in partnership with Estyn, thereby avoiding narrow insularity 
and ensuring public accountability and compliance with statutory 
procedures. This strong partnership has led to the development of a  
protocol for Estyn and Section 50 inspectors alike, and a fruitful 
dialogue that encourages diocesan teams to support the 
improvement of standards within their schools. The recent Estyn 
agenda has placed a particular focus on considering issues of  
‘well-being’ and schools with a religious character bring a particular 
perspective to this priority in a way that can develop and enhance 
a judgement. The aspiration to raise standards across Wales and to 
identify and share excellent practice, is a key concern of the Section 
50 inspection and, alongside Estyn’s agenda, helps to support schools 
in not only developing religious literacy but in delivering high-quality 
learning for all its learners.

How does the ethos of schools in the sector actively 
promote inclusion and community cohesion?

With learner diversity an important feature of the sector, schools 
with a religious character seek to create learning communities 
with a strong commitment to inclusion. Schools in the sector aim 
to demonstrate this by the way in which we welcome and teach 
learners with different needs and from different backgrounds. 
Guiding this vision is the belief that each child is fundamentally equal 
and is a unique gift of God. Respecting the dignity of all is driven 
by the concept of loving God through loving your neighbour, a 
belief lived out in school communities by welcoming and celebrating 
differences, and viewing them as positive contributions to life in the  
world. As such, schools in the sector are committed to enabling each  
person to reach his or her potential and be mindful of that 
entitlement in others. We believe that the quality of life within a 
community can be measured by its commitment to the care of the 
weakest and the vulnerable and by respect for their dignity. The 
ethos of schools in the sector holds that every individual has huge 
potential which faith inspired education seeks to harness, enabling 
each individual to flourish and make a unique contribution to the 
school and wider community.

5 The Education Act 2005 Section 50 states that in schools with a religious character, the

governing body is responsible for ensuring that collective worship and denominational 

education is inspected.

Page 281



18 Faith in education

Like all maintained schools, faith schools also promote inclusion 
through improving attendance and behaviour. Evidence shows that 
when learners are treated with respect and receive high-quality 
learning and teaching experiences, they are more likely to attend on a 
regular basis and less likely to face sanctions (and exclusions) for poor 
behaviour.

Alongside the commitment to inclusion stands a duty to promote 
community cohesion. Many of the schools are rich in ethnic diversity 
and prioritise the respectful teaching of other faiths alongside the 
exploration of our own. We are helped in this commitment by the work 
of the National Society6 and the Catholic Education Service7 of England 
and Wales who together, define community cohesion as embracing:

• a common vision and sense of belonging by all communities

• equality of opportunities and striving for excellence, which
 ensures all children and young people are able to access   
 appropriate education and welfare support, helping them to  
 achieve their full potential

• similar life opportunities available to all

• strong and positive relationships in the workplace, in schools and  
 in the wider community.

This approach to cohesion is one that mirrors the understanding 
shared recently in the Welsh Government document Respect and 
resilience8. This document states that cohesion focuses on how 
people live alongside each other with mutual understanding and 
respect, where every person has the equal chance to participate 
and has equal access to services. Schools with a religious character 
bring to this concern the constructive contribution of their faith 
perspective, where cohesion is valued as a means of integration, 
differences are valued, and shared values are celebrated as a means 
of holding people together. As one learner quoted in the Respect 
and resilience document: “I like my school community because it’s 
like a jigsaw puzzle. Without one piece it’s never complete”. This 
duty to promote cohesion builds on the existing good practice 
of schools in this sector and is one to which we wholeheartedly 
re-affirm our commitment.

6 www.churchofengland.org/education/national-society/staffing-governance/community- 

 cohesion.aspx
7 www.bit.ly/communitycohesion
8 www.wales.gov.uk/docs/dcells/publications/110209respecten.pdf

Page 282



19Faith in education

 
Inclusion and cohesion 

St Mary the Virgin Church in Wales Primary in Butetown is a school in the heart of 
Cardiff’s historic Tiger Bay and reflects the community’s traditional multiculturalism, 
with approximately 70 per cent of the learners coming from Muslim homes. The school 
ethos is one of Christian inclusiveness where sensitivity to the spiritual, emotional and 
religious needs of all members of the school community is viewed as fundamental. This 
cultural sensitivity enables St Mary’s to create an ethos where barriers that can often 
divide the society are embraced and celebrated within the life of the school as a source 
of community celebration. 

Learners bring with them a wide range of religious and cultural experiences, providing 
a focus for sharing values, beliefs and commitments. These principles are demonstrated 
on a day-to-day basis within the school timetable. In addition to daily collective worship, 
on a Wednesday, the Christian and non-Muslim learners attend a full Eucharist service 
at the Parish Church, while the Muslim learners take part in an assembly supported 
by Muslim members of staff and occasionally the Imam of the local mosque. Prayers 
are said at the end of each day and before lunch. On a Friday, when a whole school 
achievers assembly is held, all children say the school prayer and Muslim children lead an 
Islamic prayer. 

Welsh language lessons are used in the classroom as a way of bringing children 
together. Many learners join the school without a wide vocabulary in English, and so 
the Welsh lessons are viewed as a fantastic opportunity for the children who are fluent 
in English to learn a subject together, from the same starting point as their classmates. 
The school takes every opportunity to allow children to celebrate their own particular 
cultural background and has created a prize-winning Islamic community garden, as well 
as regularly hosting storytellers and poets from a variety of cultural backgrounds. 

CASE STUDY

Page 283



20 Faith in education

Like all maintained schools, faith-based providers are committed 
in line with legislation and guidance to ensuring ‘a balanced and 
broadly based curriculum’ offering personalised learning and equality 
of opportunity for all learners. Achieving a broad and balanced 
curriculum requires schools with a religious character to follow the 
same curriculum standards as all other maintained schools in Wales, 
but with an approach that also reflects the schools’ values and 
beliefs. This includes the contribution that the school curriculum 
makes to learners’ spiritual, moral, social and cultural development, 
RE, collective worship, sex and relationship education and education 
about careers and the world of work. 

The school curriculum for Wales expressly secures for all learners, 
irrespective of social background, age, disability, gender and gender 
reassignment, sexual orientation, race and religion or  
belief/non-belief, access to the relevant skills, knowledge and 
understanding necessary for life. The national curriculum applies 
to learners of compulsory school age in all maintained schools, 
regardless of the religious character of the school. For each national 
curriculum subject, programmes of study set out what learners 
should be taught. Attainment targets and level descriptions set out 
the expected standards of learners’ performance.

While all aspects of the national curriculum are important in helping 
learners develop a range of skills, knowledge and understanding, 
literacy skills, particularly in Welsh and English, are especially 
important for schools with a religious character. Not only are 
such skills important in themselves but they take on an additional 
significance in the faith context as learners are helped to explore, 
understand and interpret religious texts in order that they can  
make balanced decisions and implement religious teachings in their 
lives. Learners are also encouraged to make use of a range of  
up-to-date sources to help them explore and discuss important issues 
and reach balanced judgements when challenging traditional and 
contemporary human, religious and ultimate questions that might 
impact on their own beliefs and values. Advances in science, for 
example, and a genuine appreciation of the critical scientific method, 
are taught responsibly. Science lessons are approached with a view 
to their contributing to the wider task of helping learners develop 
their understanding of meaning and significance in life by providing 
opportunities for critical exploration. Along with mathematics, 
schools in the sector recognise that science can help learners explore 
the complexity and order that can be found in the natural world and 
in doing so, provide them with an inspiration for awe and wonder.  

What is the shape of the curriculum? 

Page 284



21Faith in education

 
Art and cultural exploration 

Magor Church in Wales Voluntary Aided Primary School and Nursery Unit serves the 
community of Magor and Undy as well as a number of rural Monmouthshire villages. 
Culturally, the school has hardly any children from an ethnic minority background or 
those who use English as an additional language. The school is therefore mindful of the 
need to raise the children’s awareness of cultural differences in order to develop within 
them an understanding and respect for the influence of culture on the way people dress 
and appear.

Using art, the school has developed a project that aims to promote cultural literacy in 
its learners. The project builds on the fact that Christianity is a world religion but then 
goes on to explore how Christ is portrayed in various art forms from around the world. 
Through exploring a number of images the children engage with the fact that different 
cultures ‘see’ Jesus from within their own cultural frames of reference. The children 
display an amazing depth of knowledge and understanding of the project and often 
respond in a profound way by producing their own insightful and often beautiful artwork. 

CASE STUDY

Learners at Ysgol Gynradd Gatholig Ein Harglwyddes, Bangor learning 

about electricity.

Page 285



22 Faith in education

What is the provision for RE in all 
maintained schools?

All maintained schools – whether they have a religious character or 
not – are required to teach RE from Foundation Phase to age 19.  
While RE is part of the basic curriculum, it is not part of the national  
curriculum and is therefore not subject to statutorily prescribed 
attainment targets, programmes of study or assessment 
arrangements. Schools without a religious character, voluntary 
controlled and foundation faith schools, make use of the locally 
agreed RE syllabus, taking advice from the SACREs to help ensure 
that each RE syllabus reflects the religious make-up of the local 
area. In this regard, Wales enjoys a great deal of partnership and 
collaboration between the SACREs and the Welsh Government such 
that each agreed syllabus is now based on the National exemplar 
framework for religious education for 3 to 19-year-olds in Wales 
(Welsh Assembly Government, 2008). The Framework provides a 
skills-based approach to programmes of study and level descriptions 
for each age range. 

The Framework identifies three interrelated and equally important 
core skills for RE in providing opportunities for learners (from all 
faiths or none) to, firstly, engage with fundamental questions, 
secondly, explore religious beliefs, teachings and practices and, finally, 
to enable learners to express a personal response. The Framework 
stresses the importance that RE makes towards developing, in 
learners, respect for and sensitivity to the views of others through 
open, reflective, analytical debate and questioning. The Framework 
is itself an excellent example of the Welsh Government working 
collaboratively with local SACREs (and their faith representatives) in 
ensuring high-quality provision for RE in schools across the system.

What is the nature of RE in schools with a religious 
character?

For all children and young people in schools with a religious 
character, RE is a proper subject in its own right within the school’s 
curriculum. RE is a rigorous academic discipline and must be taught 
as such, developed and resourced with the same commitment as  
any other subject. In schools with a religious character RE is regarded 
as being at the heart of the curriculum, bringing together and 
informing the whole curriculum and life of the school. It aims to 
deepen learners’ understanding of their faith, not in a way that 
indoctrinates, but rather to promote knowledge and understanding 

Page 286



23Faith in education

of the particular faith upon which it focuses. More widely, RE in the 
sector helps students explore their response of faith to the ultimate 
questions of human life, its origin and purpose. It is also concerned 
with teaching the skills required to engage in critical examination of 
and reflection upon a variety of religious beliefs and practices. When 
taught well, RE will also foster appropriate attitudes: for example, 
respect for the truth, respect for the views of others, awareness of 
the spiritual, of moral responsibility, of the demands of religious 
commitment in everyday life and especially of the challenges and 
rewards of living in a multicultural, multi-faith society and world.

Depending on the type of school, the nature of the trust deed and 
the preference of parents/carers, schools with a religious character 
will therefore view RE as a core subject and will either follow the 
locally agreed syllabus as mentioned or an appropriate  
denominational/religious syllabus. Every denominational/religious 
syllabus is distinctive in that it focuses on specific core religious 
beliefs, the way the religious teachings, as expressed through the 
Holy Book(s) and other religious writings convey the essentials of 
the faith and the main ethical traditions and practices that guide 
believers’ lives. In addition to focusing on the religious tradition 
of the school, schools in the sector will also study a range of 
other religions/beliefs. It is recognised that an awareness of the 
tenets of other faiths not only includes all learners but it promotes 
understanding and respect and equips learners with the skills, 
knowledge and understanding needed to prepare them for life in 
the twenty-first century, as well as helping them become responsible 
‘global’ citizens. 

In all schools with a religious character learners will be required to 
undertake appropriate external qualifications in religious studies in  
order to embed the skills, knowledge and understanding of the 
religious tradition of the school. While this is likely to be the main 
focus of study, schools might also encourage learners to explore other 
religious traditions or undertake a more philosophical/ethically focused 
course. Where schools are involved with the Welsh Baccalaureate, 
schools welcome the opportunity to explore religious  
content/issues/values as an integral part of the course.

Page 287



24 Faith in education

 
Religious extremism: the Getting on Together (GOT) project

The Bishop of Llandaff Church in Wales High School has been working with two 
other high schools in Cardiff (not of the sector) to pilot a project aimed at examining 
religious extremism, and particularly the perversion of the non-violent message of the 
Islamic faith. The project works with learners to help counter prejudice, discrimination, 
intolerance and radicalisation in both black and white young people. As a corollary, the 
project also aims to heighten tolerance and respect for all and to create a more cohesive 
community. The 2008 pilot was funded by the Welsh Government and developed by five 
University professors, the South Wales Police, the Church in Wales, the Muslim Council 
of Wales, the South Wales Jewry, the Catholic Archbishop of Wales and the Cardiff 
Hindu Community. GOT has received wide acclaim and among the expert evaluations 
of the project is that of Professor Vincent Biondo, Assistant Professor, California State 
University, who states:

 The GOT Program is the pinnacle accomplishment of the successful interfaith efforts  
 in Cardiff . . . That the Welsh Assembly and Church in Wales are working with the  
 Muslim Council of Wales on the GOT Program demonstrates forward thinking in  
 itself.

CASE STUDY

Page 288



25Faith in education

How are skills and issues of learning 
across the curriculum met and 
interpreted?

Some of the common requirements of the curriculum are embraced 
as opportunities to directly support learner cultural literacy and the 
place that faith has played in shaping the values of nationhood. In 
particular the Curriculum Cymreig will inevitably cover the spread of 
faith in Wales, Europe and the World and will explore how religious 
values and beliefs are expressed both locally and globally. In all 
schools with a religious character learners will be encouraged to 
foster an awareness of a range of cultures and religious traditions so 
as to gain understanding of their shared mutual values and beliefs.

All maintained schools in Wales are required to teach Education for 
Sustainable Development and Global Citizenship (ESDGC) across 
the curriculum. We believe that ESDGC has an important part to 
play in helping young people develop a full understanding of their 
roles as citizens in a modern, diverse society. In our schools, ESDGC 
is explored within a range of subject areas, but with a particular 
emphasis on the values and beliefs promoted by the faith tradition. 
For example, a Church in Wales or Catholic school believes that 
ESDGC will be enriched by focusing on the foundational concept 
of God’s relationship with humanity – and each living creature – as 
Creator of the natural world. The school will ensure learners reflect 
on the responsibility that this relationship places on Christians as 
stewards. 

 
Curriculum Cymreig

Penboyr Church in Wales Primary School in Carmarthenshire is proud of its clear and 
positive engagement with its local Welsh-speaking community. Penboyr’s Christian 
character is founded on a strong relationship with the local church, and the school 
cherishes and promotes its language and culture as a Welsh-medium provision. This is 
reflected through the curriculum where Welsh is the language of the classroom. The 
school values the importance of Welsh as the first language of most local families. 
This is an important part of the school’s vision to help its learners take the early steps 
of their learning in preparation for life, understanding the value of their cultural and 
linguistic heritage and setting this in the context of the challenges and opportunities of 
contemporary Wales. Penboyr School is therefore confident to describe itself as ‘a family 
where we learn together’, affirming a shared commitment to ‘develop a sense of moral 
values and an awareness of the spiritual dimensions of life in a Christian environment, 
enabling each child to grow to participate fully in a society where both English and 
Welsh are used as a means of communication’. 

CASE STUDY

Page 289



26 Faith in education

Where learners engage with work-based learning in our schools they 
focus on developing the whole person rather than predominantly 
on skills that prepare them for prospective careers. The emphasis is 
on vocation, with each learner encouraged to develop and use their 
talents with enterprise, and as a means to serve God and contribute 
meaningfully to society.

 
Sponsoring The Good Hope School in Uganda

Awareness, service and, of course, gratitude are all themes in classrooms throughout 
schools in Wales. In any school, learners are encouraged to become involved in activities 
that allow them to reach out to the wider community and to those less fortunate than 
themselves. Recently, Pope Benedict XVI said: ’It is the desire of the Church to transform 
the world with the proclamation of the Gospel of love, and to bring the light of God into 
this world.’ The Pope encouraged Catholics to ‘reach out to the ends of the earth’ through 
means of prayer for, and financial support to those disadvantaged. In answering this call, 
St Joseph’s Catholic School and Sixth Form Centre in Port Talbot reached out to form a link 
with The Good Hope School in Uganda in 2007. They initially sponsored 17 children, paying 
for the children’s school uniform, their education and two substantial meals a day for a year. 
Since then, through an active fundraising campaign, learners have been able to increase 
the number of individual student sponsorships and are now responsible for the education 
of all of the children in the scholarship class at the Good Hope School. Learners have also 
purchased sewing machines, musical instruments, books and art equipment for the school 
as well as several bicycles for use by the learners who have to travel a long distance every 
day to school. The letters received from the learners of Good Hope are heart-warming 
and express gratitude for the significant difference this sponsorship is making in their lives. 
Learners at St Joseph’s are equally appreciative of the learning they have received from their 
ongoing engagement with Good Hope School and the enrichment it has brought to their 
understanding of issues of aid and development. 

CASE STUDY

Page 290



27Faith in education

How is personal and social education 
(PSE) delivered?

In schools with a religious character PSE broadly follows the 
PSE framework but with the additional and discernable quality 
that emphasises the development of the whole person and the 
importance of faithfulness in relationships. A school with a religious 
character will stress the importance of developing mutual respect and 
tolerance together with an aspiration to inspire learners with a desire 
to help create and persevere a world of peace, justice and equality. 
PSE is embedded in every aspect of the curriculum and encompasses 
self-respect, self-esteem and confidence. It stresses that there is 
zero tolerance on all forms of bullying (including racist, sexist and 
homophobic bullying). A school with a religious character is likely 
to want to mirror the activities of the local/global faith community, 
encouraging learners to seek active and charitable involvement 
within society. Learners will also be encouraged to consider 
involvement in the school council to help them become responsible 
citizens, and many will undertake peer mentoring to support their 
fellow learners, helping them to deal with general pastoral issues and 
matters of faith.

In the delivery of the PSE programme, schools in the sector emphasise 
the important role that the family and faith community plays in 
conveying values and responsible attitudes towards relationships 
and especially the integrity of sexual relations. Where sex education 
is provided, it will reflect the sexual ethics of the faith community 
to which the school belongs and will uphold the values and beliefs 
of the faith community and the role of the family as the primary 
educator. This is helped by the responsibility vested in the governing 
body for the school’s sex and relationships education policy and the 
important role played by foundation governors in its development.

How are learners encouraged to develop their 
spirituality?

In the interests of providing a broad and balanced curriculum for 
all learners, schools with a religious character also place significant 
emphasis on the spiritual development of learners. Through every 
aspect of school life, including the curriculum, learners are given 
opportunities to explain and explore their relationship with God and 
practice their faith through stillness, worship and reflection. As part 
of their spiritual development, learners are encouraged to develop 
self-esteem, respect for others and awe and responsibility for the 
natural world. They are also encouraged to grapple with challenging 
religious, human and ultimate questions.

Page 291



28 Faith in education

 
Developing spirituality in nursery children

At Magor Church in Wales Primary, spirituality is approached relationally as a means 
of developing a child’s relationship with God, others and self. Self-esteem is therefore 
viewed as an important aspect of spirituality; if a child knows that they are of ultimate 
worth to God then the child will be able to value themselves and show respect to 
others. Moreover, a child who knows that they are loved by God, will ultimately 
learn respect and care for the world that God has made. In light of this, in delivering 
spirituality, the use of the outside as a learning environment takes on special importance.

In the photographs the nursery children can be seen experiencing the power of the wind 
turning the windmill; they learn to appreciate that plants need water, light, warmth and 
soil to grow. Observing seeds germinating and growing, as well as watching the recently 
planted willow tunnel bursting into leaf, creates a tangible sense of awe and wonder 
among the children. In this way, children in a Church in Wales nursery setting learn 
about God’s creation and the biblical story of Creation thereby comes alive for them. 
They develop a spiritual awareness that if the plants are not cared for, they will soon 
wither and die and thereby learn the importance of caring for God’s creation. Spirituality 
becomes earthed in the urgent expression of care for the environment and in a call for 
the stewardship of all that God has given.

CASE STUDY

Page 292



29Faith in education

Collective worship for all learners in school has been a statutory 
feature of state education since the 1944 Education Act (and 
maintained in the School Standards and Framework Act 1988). The 
Welsh Office Circular 10/94 describes collective worship in schools as 
offering:

. . . the opportunity for pupils to worship God, to consider the  
spiritual and moral issues and explore their own beliefs; to   
encourage participation and response, whether through active  
involvement in the presentation of worship or through listening  
to, watching and joining in the worship offered; and to develop  
community spirit, promote common ethos and shared values, and  
reinforce positive attitudes.

In schools without a religious 
character, acts of worship must be 
‘wholly or mainly of a broad Christian 
character’ but in schools with a 
religious character, collective worship 
is offered in accordance with the 
practices of the school’s particular 
religious designation. We believe that 
when embedded throughout the 
life of the school, collective worship 
helps promote its ethos: it sets the 
tone of each day, establishes the 
school as a community and builds up 
its distinctive religious character. As 
such, collective worship in schools 
with a religious character helps to 

promote the spiritual development of all members of the school 
community and as explicit community acts, overcomes excessive 
individualism. Worship celebrates the shared values that join staff 
and learners together. It offers a constructive opportunity to explore 
a faith worldview, critically grapple with questions of meaning and 
significance, practice stillness and explore the spiritual dimension 
of life in a way that contributes to the development of healthy, 
balanced and reflective personhood. 

In partnership with the Welsh Government, schools with a religious 
character are mindful that a school’s policy on collective worship 
must take account of the varied backgrounds of the learners (and 
staff) as well as of their ages and aptitudes. In this spirit, the schools 
respect the right of parents/carers to withdraw their children from 

What is the role of collective worship?

Collective worship at Ysgol Gynradd Gatholig Ein Harglwyddes, 

Bangor.

Page 293



30 Faith in education

 
Leavers’ worship at Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School, Rhyl

The photo below was taken at the Year 11 Celebration Mass and Presentation of 
Progress Files at Blessed Edward Jones Catholic School, Rhyl. The mass marked a 
moment of transition in the learners’ lives and was a very special event. The students 
really rose to the occasion and were proficient in taking part in the mass, playing the 
music and singing solos. The Head Boy and Head Girl also gave a welcome presentation. 
The worship engendered a wonderful sense of community. Gifts were presented to all 
teaching staff as an expression of appreciation by the learners. The local church was 
packed out with students, school staff, parents, family and friends and proved to be 
a very special evening with prayers offered for the students preparing for their GCSE 
examinations.

CASE STUDY

collective worship if they so wish, and acknowledge the change in 
the law that now allows sixth form learners, if they desire, to be able 
to withdraw from collective worship. Where this is the case, some 
schools in the sector may arrange alternative activities that pursue 
similar objectives and nurture students’ spiritual, moral, social and 
cultural development.

Page 294



31Faith in education

What do the faith communities in Wales 
have to offer other schools and colleges 
not in the sector?

Firmly rooted in their local community, the faith communities in 
Wales value the daily contact they have with schools in their area 
and especially the welcome they receive from those schools that 
are not of a religious character. Faith organisations are in a position, 
and are willing, to offer practical input of a kind that can impact on 
the life, work and witness of schools with whom we are in creative 
partnership. Thus, the faith communities are keen to support schools 
in the provision of collective worship not only by facilitating them but 
also by providing resources and ideas or making connections with the 
broader faith community and thereby ensuring a broad and balanced 
programme for assemblies. Local faith communities also support the 
religious education syllabus, offering expertise, resources and field 
visits in order to enrich and develop the subject. Furthermore, given 
that faith communities are themselves founded on clearly articulated 
attitudes and values, they are often in a prime position to help 
schools to develop core values and set a clear ethos for a cohesive 
community, and are keen to do so. 

As we look to the future, and work toward even greater partnership 
within the system, the faith providers are keen to explore more ways 
in which the resources and expertise it holds can be shared with all 
schools in Wales. One promising area for development lies in the 
area of pastoral care. Here the faith community has a particular 
expertise that has the potential to be used more widely in schools. 
Essential skills around counselling, chaplaincy and pastoral care 
could (and are being) supported by appropriate personnel within the 
faith community and can often prove to be very effective where the 
counsellor or pastoral carer is a person recognised and yet separate 
from the school community. More generally, the faith community 
is keen to support the whole vocation to teach. Research shows 
that many teachers express a strong sense of vocation when talking 
about their work, and also that a significant number of teachers are 
members of faith communities. Engagement within that community 
at local level can provide support and encouragement that expressly 
recognises the worth and value of the teaching profession. We 
will continue to work together to take forward these important 
opportunities, eager to demonstrate our commitment to all learners 
in Wales regardless of their religious affiliation.

Page 295



32 Faith in education

 
Faith communities and local community schools

On the outskirts of Bridgend, Canon Edward Evans has developed a new focus for 
his ministry supporting the work of the local community schools in his parish. Nearby 
Laleston Primary School and Bryntirion Comprehensive School have valued the 
engagement and support of Canon Evans and strong relationships, built over time, have 
developed trust, friendship and support. Initially, the relationship with the schools was 
practical, with the local cleric involved with collective worship and available to offer 
practical help on religious matters. In return, the schools were able to offer a venue for 
local community events. As relationships strengthened, pastoral support began to be 
offered, with Canon Evans providing a pastoral presence in the school for learners and 
staff. From this, a spiritual dimension has emerged, with both schools able to express a 
broad and inclusive set of values that underpin their life, modelled on an open, inclusive 
relationship with their local church community.

CASE STUDY

Page 296



33Faith in education

Conclusion

In this document, the Welsh Government and the faith communities 
have set out our shared vision of the integral and positive part that 
schools with a religious character play in the publicly funded school 
system and in wider society. We offer our combined statement as 
a positive contribution to an informed debate as to how all schools 
in the maintained sector can continue to work with each other 
and help create a system of education founded on integrated, 
cohesive and sustainable communities. This document confirms our 
commitment both to build bridges towards greater mutual trust 
and understanding within and beyond the system and to re-affirm 
our pledge to nurture learners in their faith and foster within them 
a motivation towards the common good in the promotion of a just 
and inclusive society. We value the partnerships that exist between 
us and wish to use the resources offered by our distinctiveness as 
schools that contribute positively to the system, rather than a means 
of ensuring exclusivity. For we share the view that faith in education 
provides much positive social capital in supporting and enriching the 
system, contributing exciting and fruitful perspectives on the goals of 
public education.

Page 297



34 Faith in education

Appendix: Wales – Diocesan boundaries

© Crown copyright. All rights reserved. 

Welsh Government.  

Licence number: 100017916 

Cartographics

Roman Catholic diocesan boundary 

Church in Wales ecclesiastical boundary

Local authority boundary 

Page 298



  

Report To:   Cabinet  
 

Date of Meeting:  14 January 2014 
 

Lead Member / Officer:  Bobby Feeley / Phil Gilroy 
 

Report Author: Phil Gilroy 
 

Title:  Framework for Integrated Services for Older People 
 

 

1. What is the report about?  
 

This report informs Members about the intentions of Welsh Government to establish 
integrated health and social care services for older people with complex needs.   
 

2. What is the reason for making this report?  
 

A decision is required on the attached draft Statement of Intent document (appendix 
1) that Welsh Government have requested be submitted by the end of January 2014.  
The statement is a regional document as requested by Welsh Government but 
highlights areas of good practice that have developed in Denbighshire. 
 

3. What are the Recommendations? 
 

That Cabinet agrees that the attached draft Statement of Intent be submitted to 
Welsh Government as an initial regional response to the Welsh Government 
document “A Framework for Delivering Integrated Health and Social Care” (July 
2013) (appendix 2).   

 
4. Report details. 
 
4.1 “A Framework for Delivering Integrated Health and Social Care” states that, for 

older people with complex needs, it wants to bring an end to ‘fragmented care’ 
that ‘wastes resources, effort and opportunities’ and it sets out ‘essential 
requirements that must be put in place as the standard model across Wales’. 

 
4.2 The document defines integrated care for people needing care and support as:  

“My care is planned by me with people working together to understand me, my 
family and carer(s), giving me control, and bringing together services to 
achieve the outcomes important to me.” 
 
Regionally, we have also suggested an organisational definition as: 
“A single system of needs assessment, commissioning, and/or service 
provision that aims to promote alignment and collaboration between the care 
and the cure sectors”. (Ham, 2008) 
 

4.3 The Welsh Government document requires a series of actions to be 
undertaken regionally and the focus of this report is on those actions required 
by the end of January 2014. 

 
4.4 All local partners must sign off and publish a Statement of Intent on Integrated 

Care, setting out clearly how:  
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 299



  

• they will build an appropriate workforce across all partners as an early 
opportunity to enhance the citizen’s experience;  

• they will ensure a relentless focus on delivering locality based citizen 
centred, co-produced services, focusing upon the pivotal role of primary 
care services in delivering person centred care.  

• they will maintain robust local partnership arrangements that reflect a 
willingness to delegate responsibilities;  

• they will provide leadership and commitment at all levels and across all 
sectors, with explicit governance and accountability arrangements;  

• a single commissioning plan will operate across partners, moving over 
time to a consistent approach across Wales;  

• collaborative resource management will be managed through options such 
as a financial governance framework; joint commissioning plans and 
intentions; pooled and/or integrated budgets; 

• pooled budget arrangements will be extended, stating first what these 
currently are .  

 
4.5 Also, in developing the service, partners should develop shared local health 

and social care outcome measures that will demonstrate the impact of 
integration and drive further progress.  

 
4.6 Nationally, the development of integrated service delivery for all people with 

complex care and support needs is supported by relevant professional bodies 
such as the Association of Directors of Social Services (ADSS) as a way of 
improving outcomes for people in need while managing the increasing 
demands resulting from demographic change and reductions in funding for 
Local Government. 

 
4.7 The regional statement identifies a number of future intentions, including the 

exploration of: 

• Strengthening governance arrangements, 

• Reviewing existing partnerships, 

• Developing joint commissioning strategies, 

• Identifying existing resources at Locality levels and exploring the potential 
for pooled budgets to deliver improved outcomes for individuals and 
organisations, 

• Developing co-located teams with single line management arrangements, 

• Developing a shared information system, 

• Developing outcome-focused, citizen-directed services, 

• Implementing a county-based Single Point of Access, 

• Implementing the new Welsh Government Guidance “Integrated 
Assessment Process for Older People”. 

 
Any changes to current arrangements arising from this exploration will be 
brought back to Scrutiny and Cabinet for comment and a decision. 

 
4.8 Locally, Denbighshire has a history of working jointly with health services 

through a number of successful service developments, including: 
 

• Integrated Mental Health Teams 

• Denbighshire Health & Social Care Board 

• Community Equipment Service 

Page 300



  

• Co-located Learning Disability Service 

• Seasonal Planning 
 
 and the intentions in the statement do not affect the future developments we 

are working on locally such as the Single Point of Access, joint locality teams 
or roll out of Enhanced Care at Home. 

 
4.9 The work to develop the co-located team in Hafan Lles was intended to be the 

start of more formal integration in North Denbighshire.  This was put on hold 
as the new Health Board came into existence but the direction of travel from 
Welsh Government gives us an impetus to refocus on this and, in doing so, to 
ensure that it also reflects the issues facing rural areas. 

 
4.10 In addition, Denbighshire County Council and Betsi Cadwaladr University 

Health Board have reached agreement on the arrangements for delivering the 
first phase of a Single Point of Access for community health and social care 
services.  This will be in place by April 2014 and is a key strand for the delivery 
of integrated services. 

 
4.11 As part of the work for the single point of access, a range of shared outcome 

measures have been developed that will be able to inform how well integration 
is working for people in need as well as organisations.  The key questions are: 

 

• Will it improve quality of life? 

• Will it improve the quality of care? 

• Will it improve the citizen’s experience? 

• Will it maximise cost efficiencies? 
 
4.12 All of this work is governed through a structure that includes Locality 

Leadership Teams and The Denbighshire Health & Social Care Board, at 
which sit senior managers and politicians from the Council as well as senior 
managers from the Health Board. 

 
4.13 The statement has been written on a regional, sub-regional and on a county 

wide basis, acknowledging that, at the time of writing, no statement has been 
received from the Commission for Public Services on future local government 
arrangements.. 

 
4.14 While acknowledging that there is no single model across North Wales for 

integrated services, the components of a service model identified in the 
statement are ones the group recognise as meeting 4 key themes identified by 
older people when asked about the service difficulties they experienced, 
namely: 
 

• co-ordination of care,  

• continuity of care,  

• straightforward and consistent referral and communication systems 

• access to services 
 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 
The development of integrated health and social care services contributes to the 
corporate priorities: 

Page 301



  

 

• Vulnerable People are protected and are able to live as independently as 
possible 

• Modernising the council to deliver efficiencies and improve services for our 
customers 

 
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
Integration is intended to reduce management costs within community services and 
this is reflected in the budget plan for Adult & Business Services over the next 3 
years. 
 
7. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

undertaken on the decision?  The completed EqIA template should be 
attached as an appendix to the report. 

 
An Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken as part of the exploration, with a 
particular emphasis on issues relating to Welsh language and rurality. 
 
8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 
The draft Statement of Intent in appendix 1 has been developed by a regional multi-
agency group that has included the Head of Adult & Business Services for 
Denbighshire.  The statement has been discussed at the Health & Social Care Board 
and Partnership Scrutiny Committee, the latter of which expressed support for the 
statement but added: 
 
Whilst the Committee acknowledges that the current financial climate within which 
both local government and the health services operate, along with staffing structure 
uncertainties within the Health Board and uncertainties surrounding future local 
government structures in Wales, do pose a risk to the vision outlined in the 
Statement of Intent, the principles are to be commended.  Consequently, every effort 
should be made to ensure that sufficient human and financial resources are available 
to deliver the seamless/integrated services outlined in the Statement for the benefit of 
local residents.   
 
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 
The detailed development of an integrated provision will have to be assessed as 
detailed proposals emerge to ensure that governance and financial arrangements are 
fully considered and that costs are equitably absorbed among partners.   
 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 
Working together with other agencies through integrated service delivery can bring 
risks associated with sharing responsibility for different organisational functions.  This 
is mitigated through effective governance structures including the Denbighshire 
Health & Social Care Board. 

 
11. Power to make the Decision 
 
S.111 Local Government Act 1972. 

Page 302



Draft document v.0.6 

 

Integrated Health and Social Care Services for Older People with Complex Needs 

North Wales Statement of Intent 

1 Introduction 

The following paper constitutes the Statement of Intent on Integrated Care for Older 

People with Complex Needs between the North Wales Local Authorities and Betsi 

Cadwaladr University Health Board.  

 

It has been developed jointly by colleagues from the North Wales Authorities and Betsi 

Cadwaladr University Health Board, to provide a single regional statement. 

 

Across North Wales, there is a strong recognition of the need to work within a regional 

footprint—both to accommodate the LHB structure and to maximise efficiencies; whilst 

also being responsive to local need and historical service developments.  This results in 

service planning and delivery needing to operate on a regional, sub-regional, county and 

locality level.  

Currently the LHB’s clinical management structure is under review, whilst Local 

Authorities are awaiting the outcome of the Williams Review - this inevitably leads to a 

level of organisational uncertainty.  However, the paper has been written to reflect the 

strategic intent of Partners, with the vision, aims and objectives for integration across 

North Wales able to be actioned regardless of future organisational structures.  

The need to take a more robust and immediate approach to the Integration of Services 

for Older People, has been clearly disseminated by the Minister and Deputy Minister for 

Health and Social Services.  This message is one that partner agencies across North 

Wales welcome and indeed there are many examples of strong partnership working 

which demonstrate the commitment to this approach.  Partners intend to build on this in 

order to develop an ambitious agenda which pushes existing boundaries and develops 

new, innovative services and systems. 

 

“Integrated working” can have a variety of interpretations and, for the purposes of this 

report, we are using the following (organisational) definition: 

 

“A single system of needs assessment, commissioning, and/or service provision that 

aims to promote alignment and collaboration between the care and the cure sectors” 

(Ham, 2008). 

 

This definition, should also be considered against the narrative to explain integrated care 

and support to the citizens, developed by National Voices: 

 

“I can plan my care with people who work together to understand me and my carer(s), 

allow me control and bring together services to achieve the outcomes important to me”(i) 

Page 303



Draft document v.0.6 

 

We understand that Integrated Care is not about structures, organisations or pathways 

per se, nor about the way services are commissioned and funded.  Its primary purpose is 

to ensure that citizens have a better experience of care and support, experience less 

inequality and achieve better outcomes.  However, within the current financial climate, it 

is also essential to recognise the imperative for any change to be at least cost neutral in 

the long term.  When considering any move to Integration, we need to ask the following: 

 

• Will it improve quality of life? 

• Will it improve the quality of care? 

• Will it improve the citizen’s experience? 

• Will it maximise cost efficiencies? 

 

The paper is also predicated on the understanding that health, social care, third sector 

and independent services should be designed and delivered to promote and maximise 

well-being, enabling the person to live independently in their community for as long as 

possible with services being provided in the person’s own home or within community 

settings to avoid the need for ongoing, acute or institutional care.  These core features 

are the underpinning foundation for recent joint policy - Setting the Direction, Sustainable 

Social Services, Delivering Local Health Care and  A Framework for Delivering Integrated 

Health and Social Care.  They are also fundamental to the new Older People’s 

Assessment Framework and the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Bill. 

 

Through integrated working Partners would expect to utilise their combined skills, 

knowledge, experience and resources to deliver better outcomes for Older People, 

specifically:  

 

• Promote citizen ownership and control over their personal well-being and care needs, 

creating an independent rather than a dependent care culture 

• Support older people to live independently and be connected to their home and 

community, with the aim of reducing the possibility of loneliness and isolation 

• Provide proactive as well as reactive care, considering ways in which the individuals 

needs can be met through a variety of supports within the community and 

irrespective of their eligibility criteria  

• Streamline services and care to better meet the individual needs of the older person 

• Reduce duplication and increase awareness of services delivered across all sectors 

to older people 

• Reduce the inappropriate use of  longer term and more intensive or acute care 

• Drive down the cost of caring for older people 

 

2  Conceptual Framework 

In order to plan for and describe the development of Integrated Services, this Statement 

of Intent has utilised  a Partnership Continuum(ii) (see Appendix 1) which can be applied 

Page 304



Draft document v.0.6 

 

at Strategic, Managerial and Service Delivery levels, with implementation possible on a 

regional, subregional, county and locality basis. 

Integrated working will naturally develop at a different pace for different services in 

different Localities across North Wales.  However, we will ensure that learning is shared 

through partnership structures in a timely fashion to inform new developments.  This may 

be, for example, through a shared website with a resource library and common templates 

for key documents and/or regular learning events. 

  

Learning from key documents such as “Collaboration in Social Services Wales”(iii), 

“Making integrated care happen at scale and pace”(iv) and other experiences nationally 

have highlighted the issues which help and hinder integration and will bring pragmatism 

to our debate. 

 

3  Model for the Integration of Health and Social Care Services for Older People 
 
Within North Wales, there is no one agreed model for integration which encapsulates all 
public health, primary, community, acute, social care, independent and third sector 
services.  However the following components of a service model: 
 

• Integrated Structures within a Governance Framework 

• Operational/Service Integration 

• Prevention and early intervention 

• Intermediate Care/Short Term Intervention 

• Longer Term Community Support 

• Sub Acute/In-patient Care 

• Planned workforce 

• Streamlined back office functions 
 
are ones that partners recognise which can meet the 4 key themes identified by older 
people when asked about the service difficulties they experienced ie: 
 
• co-ordination of care,  

• continuity of care,  

• straightforward and consistent referral and communication systems,  

• access to services(v):- 

 
The development of a North Wales Integrated Service Model for Older People is a clear 
priority for Partners and one which we will work to achieve over the next 12 months. In 
this undertaking, we recognise that there may be variations between the 6 Local 
Authority Areas as to which of the components listed above will be adopted, at what 
stage in the Partnership Continuum and whether at strategic/managerial or service 
delivery level. 
 
 
 
 

Page 305



Draft document v.0.6 

 

4  Current Arrangements and Future Intent 

The following sections provide a baseline of current “integration” together with the intent 
and aspiration for the future in North Wales. 

 

4.1 Leadership to Drive the Vision 

 

Current arrangements 

 

i) The North Wales Regional Leadership Board is comprised of: 

 

• The Leaders and Chief Executives of the six North Wales Councils 

• The Chair and Chief Executive of the Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 

• The Chair and Chief Officer of the North Wales Fire and Rescue Service 

• The Police and Crime Commissioner for North Wales  

• The Chief Constable of North Wales Police 

 
A key objective for the North Wales Regional Leadership Board is the promotion of 
joint working between local authorities and between local authorities and other public 
services like police, health and fire. To this end it manages a portfolio of collaborative 
projects. 

 
ii)  Partnership working within North Wales is further supported by the Social Services 

and Health Programme Board.  This Board is chaired by a sponsoring Chief 
Executive and its membership consists of Directors of Social Services, Lead or 
Executive members for Social Care, Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board officers 
and WLGA, WG and SSIA representatives. 

 
iii) Social Services Directors also meet formally with BCUHB Executive Directors on a 

quarterly basis at the NWSSIC/BCUHB Quarterly Strategic Forum. 
 
iv) Each LSB, within its Single Integrated Plan, has a commitment to improve 

collaborative working. 
 
v)  Locality working is the foundation for Integrated services in North Wales.  Within the 

joint working arrangements in North Wales key partners come together at the 
(regional) Community Services Partnership Forum.  This Forum includes 
representatives from BCUHB (in relation to public health, primary care, community 
health services and mental health), independent contractor professions, social 
services (from each of the six Local Authorities) and the 3rd Sector. 

 
The Forum was originally established to drive forward the development and 
implementation of locality working and other key elements for delivering community 
services laid out in Setting the Direction.   
Discussion is now underway to ascertain whether the Forum can take a broader 
strategic role to become a regional Delivery Group which has the responsibility of 
driving forward all the required actions outlined in both “A Framework for Delivering 

Page 306



Draft document v.0.6 

 

Integrated Health and Social Care” and “Delivering Local Health Care”.  Through this 
Forum, the needs of the older population of North Wales for co-ordinated and 
consistent service delivery will be planned, using locality, county, regional and 
national data. 

 
Future intent 
 
i) The need for strong county governance structures which promote and support joint 

leadership at strategic, managerial and service delivery levels has been recognised, 
with a local Framework structure (attached as Appendix 2) showing the links between 
localities, counties and the whole region of North Wales. This has been adapted to 
meet the needs of each County.  The County Forum level of the framework has been 
established with a key intent to support integrated working by unlocking barriers and 
unnecessary bureaucracy. 

 
 ii) The new Chair of Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board has recently instigated a 

Partnership Review, the findings of which will help to inform strategic plans for 
Integration 

 
4.2  Commissioning 
 
Current arrangements 
 
i)  The BCUHB Director of Public Health Annual Report 2012 provides information on, 

and further links to, population needs assessment and priorities relating to the health 
and well-being of older people across North Wales. 

 
ii) As an initial move towards a single commissioning plan, a regional working group 

comprising social care and health managers has been established to scope existing 
provision and identify the continuum of community based services which come under 
the broad umbrella of “intermediate care services”. 

 
iii)  The North Wales Commissioning Hub for high cost, low volume placements is a 

positive example of regional joint commissioning activity and one which can be built 
on to develop joint procurement of residential placements, oversee a regional 
contract and ensure a consistent approach to fee setting. 

 
Future Intent 
 
i) Commissioning is a broad concept and there are many definitions. It can be 

described as the means to secure the best value for local citizens and taxpayers.  It 
is the process of translating aspirations and need, by specifying and procuring 
services for the local population which deliver the best possible health and wellbeing 
outcomes for individuals and provide the best possible health and social care 
provision within the best use of available resources. 

 
ii) For Older People’s services, such benefits can be realised by planning and 

commissioning services jointly across social care and health in partnership with the 
3rd and independent sector at a locality, county and regional level.  An initial element 
of this activity will be the development of a Market Position Statement. 

Page 307



Draft document v.0.6 

 

 
iii) Risk stratification will also be incorporated as this enables appropriate services to be 

targeted in order that pro-active, personalised care planning can be achieved.  Users 
who require case management due to the complexity and unpredictability of their 
condition could then expect to receive care via co-ordinated care pathways that will 
ensure a smooth transition between services. 

 
iv) A key issue will be to ensure that providers of health and social care services operate 

in an enabling culture, supporting independence and avoiding unnecessary 
escalation, e.g. hospital admission.   

 
4.3  Resource Management/Pooled Budgets 
 
Current arrangements 
 
i) All counties have a Pooled Budget for Community Equipment Services. 
 
ii) In Denbighshire, there is also a pooled budget agreed for the provision of health and 

social care support workers. 
 

Other LA information to be added 

 

Future intent 

 

i) All organisations are required to make significant efficiencies over the next few years 

and this could be a barrier to the further development of formal pooled budgets. 

However, it could also be argued that pooling budgets could lead to efficiencies. As 

with any aspect of Integration, the rationale for taking such action requires the citizen 

and organisational benefits to be explored. This is an identified objective in respect of 

the Intermediate Care services working group referenced above. 

 

ii) However, it is clear that we need to have an improved understanding of the 

resources available within the County, preferably by locality, so as an initial step 

partners will work together to map out the current budget, estate and staffing 

currently allocated to services for Older People. 

 
4.4 Managerial/Service Integration 
 
4.4.1 Workforce 
 
Current arrangements 
 
i) All organisations provide staff development opportunities that support staff from both 

health and local authorities as well as utilising Social Care Workforce Development 
grants to support developments in the 3rd and independent sector. 

 

Page 308



Draft document v.0.6 

 

ii) In Denbighshire, there is a single line management arrangement for Adult Mental 
Health Services and co-location of health and social care staff for Learning Disability 
Services and a small team for Older People’s Services.   

 
Other LA  information to be added eg re ECS 
 
Future intent 
 
i) There is an ambition across North Wales to move to a more integrated workforce 

structure for Older People.  The predictions for future demand will be based on 
demographic change and the shift of services from ongoing, acute or institutional 
care to the community, whilst also taking into account additional demand arising from 
the need to address well-being, social inclusion, public health and the expected rise 
in the management of chronic conditions. 

 
ii)  We will determine the workforce required to meet the agreed Integrated Service 

Model for Older People to ensure that we have sufficient staff with the right skills in 
the right place.  It is axiomatic that this is a particular challenge for the rural areas of 
the region. 

 
iii)  We will explore opportunities for the joint location of teams - noting the need for 

pragmatism in the shared cost implications of such provision. 
 
iv) Shared arrangements have been identified as key in leading change and cutting 

across the fragmented services and silo working that characterise dysfunctional 
systems.  We need to develop well co-ordinated, integrated pathways to ensure that 
citizens do not experience disconnect.  We intend to commence discussion to 
explore the options of establishing joint Locality Managers who would have 
operational and developmental responsibility for the management of a complex range 
of specialist, multi-agency services in a cost effective and responsive way, integrating 
established practices and multi-disciplinary staff across care pathways. 

 

v) A recent Partnership Assessment exercise undertaken by the Locality Teams in  
each County has provided an analysis of current working arrangements and identified 
areas for improvement. This assessment will provide a baseline for the future. 

 
4.4.2 Back Office functions 
 
The need to ensure that Integration is based on a whole systems/organisational 
approach is highlighted in “Collaboration in Social Services in Wales”(ii).  This document 
evidences the risks to developing integrated services when all key departments, e.g. 
finance, human resources, information, are not engaged in the journey from the outset. 
They need to be involved in agreeing the level to be achieved on the Partnership 
Continuum.  Effective integrated working needs to be supported by policies and 
procedures that are at best joint and at least aligned.  There is also a need for shared 
training programmes, “joint” data management and information systems that “talk” to 
each other.  
 

Page 309



Draft document v.0.6 

 

For the Health Board, support functions such as HR, payroll and procurement are 
provided by the all Wales Shared Services Partnership.  
 
However, effective integrated working would best be supported by policies and 
procedures that are at best joint and at least aligned and we will explore this in the 
context of the all Wales Partnership.   
 
Current arrangements 
 
i) In Denbighshire, the co-located Learning Disability Team use a single client 

database, PARIS, which is managed by the Local Authority.  There are WASPI 
agreements in a number of services to support joint working. 

 
Other LAs to include any examples of co-ordinated systems and processes  
 
Future intent 
 
i) Within North Wales we will consider how development of joint information systems 

can be taken forward within the current model of the shared services partnership.  
This will consider the national procurement programme for a Community Care 
Information System. 

 
ii) The intention is to support the integrated working objectives which in themselves 

deliver improvements for individuals and more efficient working practices. In general 
a single agile system for community health and social care would enable: 

 

• Improved decision making – through access to more complete data. This should 
improve patient outcome and help avoid admissions and improve service planning 

• Improved coordination – between authorities and thereby resulting in efficiencies 
and better service to patients 

• Improved patient safety - through less transcription errors,  improved timeliness, 
reduction in ‘lost’ referrals, traceability to one point 

• Reduced visits to base – through access to information on the move 

• Reduced duplication in data capture and checking information  

• Reduction in unnecessary interventions 

• Increased confidence in the identity of the patient  
 
4.5 Citizen Centred /Co-produced services 
 
Current arrangements 
 
In North Wales, we recognise the value not only of adopting healthy lifestyle behaviours, 
but ensuring strong social networks are in place to support individuals.  Being an active 
member of a community can increase the level of control people have over their lives and 
contribute to improved health and well-being.  Co-production – using the experience, 
knowledge and abilities of professionals, partner agencies, people using services and 
their communities – can contribute to improved outcomes.  It can also help ensure that 
better value for money is achieved and can help in empowering communities. 
 

Page 310



Draft document v.0.6 

 

The Director of Public Health’s Annual Report 2013 recognises and supports the 
importance of such approaches.  “Co-production means that people share decisions 
about their health and wellbeing with health and social care professionals.  It means that 
health and social care workers move towards a facilitation role and away from the 
traditional fixing role.  It means a shift of power, and it means that everyone needs the 
skills to take part in shared decision making.” 
 
Co-production approaches are being used in the planning and development of some 
community based initiatives and the six Local Authorities are developing a shared 
understanding of this methodology.  
 
We are also exploring the potential development of social enterprise schemes – 
businesses that trade to tackle social problems, improve communities, people’s life 
chances, or the environment.  The Local Authorities and the Health Board have identified 
the need to develop a shared approach to social enterprise as part of the 
transformational change required for the implementation of the Social Services and 
Wellbeing Bill.  Our proposals for use of the funding for implementation include the 
commissioning of expertise to support us in this approach. 
 
(all to insert examples) 
 
In Denbighshire – the North Denbighshire community healthcare services project has 
been working with service user and community representatives, who are taking part in 
the development of proposals for the planned new community hospital in the locality.  We 
are exploring the potential for social enterprise or entrepreneurship to support local 
people becoming involved in the hospital facilities and services, working with other local 
agencies. 
 
Future Intent 
 
i) We will explore together how we can build on early work on co-production, working to 

embed the principles into our planning and development of future services.   
 
The Local Authorities and the Health Board will work with LA Regeneration 
departments and established social enterprises across North Wales to research, 
explore and learn more about the development of social enterprises and co-
operatives. Although there are examples of well-established social enterprises 
operating across North Wales there is room to learn from these, develop these 
further and to establish Social Enterprises and / or Co-operatives in other service 
areas. North Wales will undertake a series of events to learn more about the 
development of such initiatives and will strive to establish further initiatives across 
social care and health services. 

 
(Any county-specific initiatives??) 
 
ii)  The Locality Leadership Team recognises the need for an Outcomes Focused 

approach, in working directly with older people and also when developing services. 
 

The new Assessment Framework will ensure outcomes are captured by whichever 
professional undertakes the assessment, whilst the recent regional document 

Page 311



Draft document v.0.6 

 

“Developing Joint Outcomes for Localities” will enable partners to agree the priority 
outcomes to be achieved through respective organisational actions 

. 
iii) The provision of pathways that encompass self-management through to end of life 

care will be developed. 
 
Should also include Older People’s Strategy Work in this section? 
 
4.6 Service Delivery Integration 
 
Current arrangements 
 
In Denbighshire, Community Mental health Teams for adults are provided through a 
single line management structure.  The Health & Social Care Support Workers are 
managed locally by the Local Authority through a pooled budget.  The Local Authority 
provides professional input to the Enhanced Care Service and supported the Seasonal 
Plan. 
 
Each LA needs to state here what they are currently doing jointly with Health/ other 
partners 
 
Future Intent 
 
As above 
 
In Denbighshire, the Local Authority is working with BCU in the development of the 
North Denbighshire Healthcare Complex and the Llangollen Primary Care Centre and the 
roll out of Enhanced Care Services in the Central and South Locality area. 
 
4.7 Engagement  
 
Current arrangements 
 
Within the regional Locality model, Locality Stakeholder Groups were identified as the 
mechanism for engaging directly with the population, to discuss current provision and 
identify future need/ options for change.  This approach was initially used to debate 
changes to health provided community services.    
 
Local Service Boards are developing engagement strategies to enable local communities 
to be better able to understand the work of the LSBs.  Similarly, shared engagement 
strategies around the Single Integrated Plans are being used or developed. 
 
Initial exploration of shared approaches to engagement and consultation has 
commenced through the North Wales Consultation Officers group, which comprises 
representatives of the six Local Authorities and more recently the Health Board.   
 
The advantages of a shared approach are recognised in the Guidance for Engagement 
and Consultation on Changes to Health Services, which anticipates that in engagement 
and consultation, Local Service Board partners should be fully involved to ensure that 

Page 312



Draft document v.0.6 

 

proposals are seen and addressed within the context of the “whole system” of public 
service provision. 
I 
n Denbighshire, there is an Older People’s Strategy Group, a My Life, My Way Group 
and contracts with 3rd sector organisations for advocacy and consultation in order to 
inform service quality and developments.  We are currently engaging with groups to 
explore ‘Supporting Independence in Denbighshire’, characterised by ‘SID’, an older man 
representing individuals with a range of different social, health and care needs and how 
services can support his independence and wellbeing. 
 
Each LA needs to state here what else they are currently doing jointly with Health/ other 
partners eg shared participation strategy 
 
Future Intent 
The need to review the working and focus of Locality Stakeholder Groups has been 
identified and will be discussed within the Community Services Partnership Forum.  
These groups present an opportunity for a shared approach between the six Local 
Authorities and the Health Board. 
 
We will explore opportunities for development of shared engagement and 
communications.  As part of the transformational change under the Social Services and 
Wellbeing Bill, it is proposed that a regional strategy is developed to be delivered over 3 
years which would secure effective communication, including consideration of suitable 
materials such as banners, leaflets, materials for media and engagement with 
communities.  This is to underpin a shared approach to community engagement and 
information. 
 
We will continue to explore and identify opportunities for bringing together of activities on 
the spectrum of participation - communication, information, engagement and 
consultation, shared decision making – within the governance arrangements of each 
organisation. 
 
Need to add Welsh Language issues here? 
 
 
4.8 Transforming Access 
 
Current arrangements 
 
Each LA needs to state here what  else they are currently doing jointly with Health/ other 
partners 
 
In Denbighshire, there has been a project team developing a Single Point of Access 
(SPoA) for health and social care services for adults.  Agreement has been reached on 
what will be included in Phase 1 of the development, in order to use the learning from this 
to inform both local and regional approaches. 
 
Future Intent 
 
SMW to ask Alwyn Jones to provide a statement re regional working 

Page 313



Draft document v.0.6 

 

 
In Denbighshire, during Phase 1 the SPoA will:  
 
o Process all referrals for health and social care community services to support 

Denbighshire residents’ hospital discharge. 
o Process all Enhanced Care Referrals for North and Central & South Denbighshire 
o Process all other referrals for District Nursing team in Rhyl.  (For referrals for all other 

District Nursing teams, the SPOA will forward referrals to the appropriate office for 
onward processing) 

o Process all referrals for Community Therapy services in Denbighshire (but not ‘self- 
referrals’) 

o Process all referrals for Community Hospitals and prepare and submit ‘bed-states’ 
(twice daily). 

o Fulfil First Contact Team responsibilities to Adult Social Care services  
o Coordinate a service response according to an individual’s presenting needs. 
o Where multiple referrals are made for a patient/service user the SPoA will inform the 

referrer and all services which other services are to be involved, with details of each 
care coordinator where appropriate. 

o Offer telephone advice, information and signposting (or referral as appropriate) to 
non-statutory sector community services in Denbighshire. 

o Maintain and develop the Directory of Services for Denbighshire, publish the 
information on the Family Information Service website and become involved in future 
public-information developments in the county. 

o Record and analyse SPOA activity. 

The SPOA workers will be co-located and managed by a single Team leader but their 
work will not be fully integrated.  A ‘health’ staff member will always be on duty to lead on 
Health referrals and a Social Services staff member will be on duty to lead on Social 
Services referrals.  All workers will be familiarised with each other’s procedures so that 
work can be shared but workload will be managed according to the resources available.  
Exceptions will be noted and capacity will be monitored daily by the Team Leader so that 
issues can be escalated immediately. 
 
D)  Assessment of Older people  
 
Future intent 
 
We will implement the Guidance in respect of Integrated Assessment, Planning and 
Review Arrangements for Older People, as required by Welsh Government on December 
2nd 2013, recognising this action as being the catalyst to support the broader integration 
of care. 
 

5 References  

 

(i)  Integrated Care and Support—our shared commitment 

      National Collaboration for Integrated Care and Support, May ‘13 

(ii)  adapted from Community Based Collaborations 

       Oregon Centre for Community Leadership 1994 

Page 314



Draft document v.0.6 

 

(iii)  Collaboration in Social Services Wales,  

       SSIA 2013 

(iv)  Lessons from experience—Making integrated care happen at scale and pace 

        King’s Fund, March 2013 

(v)  Mc Cormack et al  2008 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 315



Draft document v.0.6 

 

      Appendix 1 

 

Partnership Continuum     

Levels 

 

Purpose 

 

Networking 

 

*  Dialogue and common understanding 

*  Clearing house for information 

*  Create base of support  

 

Cooperation 

or Alliance 

 

*  Match needs and provide coordination 

*  Limit duplication of services 

*  Ensure tasks are done  

 

Coordination 

 

*  Share resources to address common issues 

*  Merge resource base to create something new  

 

Coalition 

 

*  Share ideas and be willing to pull resources from 

existing systems 

*  Develop commitment for a minimum of three years  

 

Integration 

 

*  Accomplish shared vision and impact benchmarks 

*  Build interdependent system to address issues and 

opportunities  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 316



Draft document v.0.6 

 

Appendix 2 

COUNTY STRUCTURE FOR INTEGRATED COMMUNITY BASED SERVICES 

 

LA (Partnership )Scrutiny/Cabinet                                   Health Board                                   

           

                  BCUHB Executive Team 

      LSB     

       

 

             

COUNTY FORUM 

  

Social Services and Health                                            Community Services 

         Programme Board                                                    Partnership Forum 

                  

                                                                                 

NWASH/NWSSIC                                                         

                                                                       

SSD Management Team          Joint Locality Board                         CPGs 

 

 

 

                                             

Locality Leadership Team                  Locality Leadership Team                        

Locality Leadership Team  

 

Version 5-5/11/13             direct reporting  informing 

Page 317



Page 318

This page is intentionally left blank



A Framework for Delivering 
Integrated Health and Social Care
For Older People with Complex Needs

Welsh Government

Consultation Document 

Date of issue: 22 July 2013
Action required: Responses by 31 October 2013

Number: WG19385

Page 319



Overview 

Demographic and other trends in Wales mean 
that there is increased demand for both acute 
and community care services for older people, 
particularly those aged 85 and more. Frailty, 
dementia and the effects of multiple chronic 
conditions are more prevalent in this population 
group.  Building on investment in collaborative 
working over the last ten years and more, 
Ministers believe that these changes require a 
new prioritised and robust response to integrate 
health and social services for older people with 
complex needs

A task group of NHS, Third Sector and local 
authority social care leaders has been working 
with and advising Welsh Government during 
the development of the Framework, and also 
considering options to support roll out and 
implementation.  At this stage, we would 
welcome your views on the proposed Framework 
for Integration. 

We are committed to further dialogue at 
a national and regional level to shape how 
integration in Wales is progressed which will 
be taken forward initially through the meetings 
of the Health Minister with LHB Chairs and the 
Deputy Minister’s National Partnership Forum 
for Social Services which includes cross party 
local government representation. The Welsh 
Government led Multi-stakeholder Task Group 
will also need to have an on-going co-ordinating 
role and in supporting development and 
implementation of the Framework.

Ministers want to give priority and momentum 
to the Framework and to allow partners the 
opportunity to plan for implementation of 
integrated services during 2013/14 before 
implementation commences fully from 
April 2014.  Ministers have asked that each local 
health board and local government partnership 
should on a public services foot print basis, 
develop an agreed Statement of Intent for 
integration of health and social services and 
submit these by the end of January 2014 for 
consideration.

It would therefore be helpful to receive your 
initial views and comments on the Framework 
and the way forward outlined by end 
October 2013. We would welcome shared 
responses across partnership groupings in line 
with locally agreed preferences. 

How to respond 

Please respond by email or in hard copy  

Social Services Directorate
Department of Health and Social Services
Welsh Government
Crown Buildings
Cathays Park
Cardiff
CF10 3NQ

Email:FrameworkIntegratedServicesOlderPeople 
ComplexNeeds @wales.gsi.gov.uk

Further information and related 
documents 

Large print, Braille and alternate language 
versions of this document are available 
on request. 

Contact details

For further information: 

Social Services Directorate
Department of Health and Social Services
Welsh Government
Crown Buildings
Cathays Park
Cardiff
CF10 3NQ

Email:FrameworkIntegratedServicesOlderPeople 
ComplexNeeds @wales.gsi.gov.uk

Data protection 

How the views and information you give us 
will be used

Any response you send us will be seen in full by 
Welsh Government staff dealing with the issues 
which this consultation is about. It may also be 
seen by other Welsh Government staff to help 
them plan future consultations.

The Welsh Government intends to publish a 
summary of the responses to this document. 
We may also publish responses in full. Normally, 
the name and address (or part of the address) 
of the person or organisation who sent the 
response are published with the response. 
This helps to show that the consultation was 

Page 320



© Crown Copyright 2013

carried out properly. If you do not want your 
name or address published, please tell us 
this in writing when you send your response. 
We will then blank them out.

Names or addresses we blank out might still 
get published later, though we do not think 
this would happen very often. The Freedom of 
Information Act 2000 and the Environmental 
Information Regulations 2004 allow the public 
to ask to see information held by many public 
bodies, including the Welsh Government. 
This includes information which has not been 
published. However, the law also allows us to 
withhold information in some circumstances. 
If anyone asks to see information we have 
withheld, we will have to decide whether to 
release it or not. If someone has asked for their 
name and address not to be published, that is 
an important fact we would take into account. 
However, there might sometimes be important 
reasons why we would have to reveal 
someone’s name and address, even though 
they have asked for them not to be published. 
We would get in touch with the person and 
ask their views before we finally decided to 
reveal the information.

Page 321



Contents

Joint Foreword 

1. Overview and Strategic Context 

2. The Case for Change  

3.     What do we want to achieve? 

4. Making it Happen  

5. Measuring Success  

6. The next steps   

Annexe A - Maturity Matrix 

Page 322



1

Joint Foreword 

Mark Drakeford AM, Minister for Health and Social Services 
Gwenda Thomas AM, Deputy Minister for Social Services 

It is excellent news that people in Wales are living longer and healthier lives than 
ever before.  We now need to ensure that our services adjust to help people of all 
ages enjoy their lives to the full in line with the commitment in our Programme for 
Government to ‘develop high quality, integrated, sustainable, safe and effective 
people-centred services that build on people’s strengths and promote their well-
being’.

We know that there is going to be a greater demand in future for care services for 
older people, particularly those aged 85 and more. Together for Health sets out our 
ambition for person-centred health services provided as close to home as possible. 
Sustainable Social Services envisages a social care service based on outcomes 
focused portable assessments and enabling people to make informed decisions, with 
more consistent care eligibility and planning.  The Social Services and Wellbeing 
(Wales) Bill will significantly strengthen the legislative requirements for Health 
Boards and Local Government to integrate services.

Our policy aim is to improve existing services and develop a wide range of 
preventative services that can help people of all ages manage their own lives at 
home and avoid as far as possible having to go into hospital or residential care.

The core concern of this framework is to bring an end to fragmented care that 
confuses and frustrates providers and recipients alike.  Fragmentation wastes 
resources, effort and opportunities.  The document sets out essential requirements 
that we believe must be put in place as the standard model across Wales. We are 
not at this point looking to structural changes to achieve this, but change there must 
be.

It complements the framework for developing community services issued by Welsh 
Government in June 2013, Delivering Local Health Care: accelerating the pace of 
change. The two should be implemented through a single process of rapid, 
integrated action, involving local health boards, local government and their partners 
in the independent and third sector partners.

This Framework has been developed with the NHS, Local Government, Directors of 
Social Services and the Third Sector, and others such as Care Forum Wales have 
indicated their support for this approach. We encourage all interests to do the same 
to improve the services we provide to older people in Wales. It is this practice of ‘co-
production’ that we wish to see both in the planning and the delivery of services and 
extending to include those who receive the services.

We commend it to you and would ask that you let us have your views and comments 
on it.

Page 323



2

1. Overview and Context

Wales already has a higher proportion of people over 85 than the other countries of 
the United Kingdom and it is likely to rise in the next decade. If services are to help 
older people have a happy, independent life, action is needed now to ensure the 
right services are in place, especially in light of the current financial challenges.  
Services that are fragmented or unreliable or undermine people’s ability to live where 
and how they would like will neither use increasingly scarce resources well nor meet 
the needs of people who need support. 

A new pattern of services is needed, building on, adapting and developing the good 
foundations already in place. Recognising the growing evidence that demonstrates 
the benefits of integration, this document sets out how the Welsh Government 
ambition for truly integrated health and social care services for older people is to be 
implemented. Partners across Wales are expected now to move rapidly on making 
this model the norm. A marked change is needed over the next three years.

The term ‘integration’ has many definitions which reflect the spectrum of levels at 
which integration can take place. Integration is the opposite of fragmentation. For 
people needing care and support it should mean:

‘My care is planned by me with people working together to understand me, my 
family and carer(s), giving me control, and bringing together services to 
achieve the outcomes important to me.‘ 

To achieve this, care delivery must be aimed at achieving improved user and patient 
care through better co-ordination of services. Integration requires a combined set of 
methods, models and processes that seek to bring about this improved co-
ordination. 

The essential elements are that:

- service providers take down the barriers that have prevented effective 
collaboration and shape the service around a common understanding of the 
outcomes important to the individual

- the recipient will have a greater say and more control over the care received. 

This framework:

 summarises the relevant policy and key principles;  

 provides clear definitions; 

 sets out the Welsh Government’s expectations for how all the different 
partners need quickly to develop and deliver integrated health and social care 
services, not as something extra but as the normal way of working; 

 identifies what the evidence indicates as the core requirements on which to 
base local planning and delivery; and 

 states the outcome-based indicators that will help establish the present 
baseline position and measure progress. 

It is anticipated that this approach will make health and social care outcomes better 
and more consistent, and strengthen community-based care. Good multi-disciplinary 
assessment will become standard practice, the role of the GP more central, and 

Page 324



3

early intervention, reablement and intermediate care part of a single co-ordinated 
system. Dignity and privacy will be protected. 

While it takes time to achieve this, there is already good practice in place on which 
we must build. Examples include the areas that have pioneered frailty services, joint 
locality teams and community resource teams, and in mental health and learning 
disability services.  There has also been solid progress in creating integrated support 
for families with complex needs. The principles applied there and lessons learned 
will be essential in supporting rapid progress.  

2. The Case for Change 

People in Wales are living longer and healthier lives than ever before, and services 
to meet their needs must keep up.  Wales has the highest rate of growth for those 
aged 85 years and over of the UK countries - by 2030 people aged over 85 will jump 
by 90%, to 85,000

Older people have higher levels of frailty, dementia and chronic conditions, often in 
combination with each other - already there are more than 42,000 people with 
dementia in Wales, which affects two thirds of older people in residential care, and 
by 2021 the number is projected to rise by 30% and as much as 44% in some rural 
areas.

This will drive a growing demand for services.  Community services and home based 
care will have to expand at a time when real term resource increases to meet this 
growing demand is no longer assured. 

There is research and anecdotal evidence that services are fragmented, both within 
and across organisational and sectoral boundaries.  Like others, older people want 
to be in control of their own lives and continue to be part of and contribute to their 
community.  This implies that services should offer graduated, co-ordinated support 
to help them live independently in their own home for as long as possible.  Evidence 
shows how disrupting older people’s usual living arrangements can very quickly 
undermine their confidence and capability, even to the extent of making it impossible 
for them to live independently as before.

Providing community-based, fully co-ordinated services that are designed to support 
them and give them a say and the chance retain control of their lives is clearly the 
model that older people want and need to experience. Services that are co-
ordinated and work as one can best achieve that.

This also chimes with the wish of people working within health and social care 
services.  They recognise the need to empower older people, and welcome models 
of care and support that respects people’s broader sense of personal wellbeing and 
a strong community. 

Refocusing services, then, is a high priority area. Integrated models can better meet 
older people needs. They can also help address the increasing demand for care and 
support both now and in the future.  Not changing is simply not an option.  Urgent 
action is needed. 

Page 325



4

Change is achievable.  There are already many examples across Wales of good 
integrated working including through: single agency responsibility for certain mental 
health services, integrated children’s services - Integrated Family Support Service 
and Families First, integrated hospital discharge services, joint reablement and 
rehabilitation services and joint equipment stores.  The Welsh Government ‘Invest to 
Save’ funding already supports frailty service models across much of Wales. On an 
on-going basis, the Invest to Save process, the Regional Collaboration Fund and the 
Wales Council for Voluntary Action’s Wales Wellbeing Bond provide partners with 
access to resources to support further development.

Further progress is essential, and quickly.  LHB and related Councils must plan a 
year on year increase in shared budgets and resources and set a specific locally 
agreed target for the proportion of resources relating to older people that are 
committed to a pooled budget. Action is essential now on what the King’s Fund 
describe as a ‘burning platform’ with no alternative but to accelerate the pace and 
scale of developing integrated health and social care as core services. 

3. What do we want to achieve? 

The recognition that change is essential opens an opportunity to create a new truly 
integrated system.  It should have two main characteristics.   

1. It should be a consciously planned and managed system, built on ambition.  
Working closely together to reduce barriers between them, local partners will 
need to refocus their activities around those receiving care.  This will require 
attention to:

 preventative interventions that stop an avoidable slide into increasing 
dependency upon services;  

 locating and linking services in community settings with smooth 
transitions between different elements and into more specialised 
services;

 creating fully integrated referral pathways that enable service users too 
easily cross organisational and sectoral boundaries without any harm 
or loss; 

 capturing once, and addressing all the needs of the service user 

 a balanced set of services operating where necessary 24 hours a day, 
integrating early intervention services, support for independent living, 
rehabilitation and reablement, intermediate care, end of life care  and 
pathways into specialist services and less often used services; 

 full engagement all parts of secondary care focusing especially on 
those points of the pathway where the risk of undermining 
independence is greatest;

 enabling service users to take part in developing their plan of care, with 
a named single point of contact, and to express their views regarding 
how the care is delivered; 

Page 326



5

 enabling carers to take part in developing the plan of care, receive an 
assessment of their support needs, have access to relevant, up-to-date 
and targeted information at every stage and express their views 
regarding how the care is delivered; 

 initiate joint action when young carers are identified who may appear to 
be at risk or a ‘child in need’ because of their caring role are identified 

2. It should be built with and for service users and the local community. Services 
should not be designed and run with out reference to the people they serve.  The 
definition of integration in Section 2 focuses on the experience of the recipient of 
services.

There must then be a strong commitment in developing services to increase the 
voice of the users and the community.  This should aim both to support and 
facilitate community wellbeing in the broader sense and also to encourage and 
help individuals and communities to take more responsibility and control for 
themselves.

Services should recognise that communities and individuals are themselves 
assets.  Together service providers and recipients can help create a more 
effective service.  Professionals have specific training, experience and skills while 
the recipient of care knows best his or her needs, preferences and situation.  
Planners and others need to build on this potential to ‘co-produce’ the best 
service and best outcomes.

The same idea of co-production can apply in developing healthier communities 
and reducing dependency.  A fully integrated approach can also build on 
community-oriented actions such as:

 specific initiatives to develop social networks; 

 encouragement for volunteering, including time banking; 

 working on ‘community currencies’ which not only strengthen the social 
resilience of communities, but also local economies; 

 developing models of social enterprise. 

3. There must be a real commitment to constant monitoring and improvement.  
Explicitly moving to a more integrated approach means that responsibilities are 
sometimes not so clear.  The partners will need to work closely together to 
ensure there are safe and clear governance arrangements for delegating 
responsibilities, sharing resources, and ensuing accountability.  There must be 
careful attention to reviewing quality and outcomes, even more important when 
services are in flux.

Page 327



6

4. Making it Happen 

In making the necessary changes, a decision has been made that at this point 
reforms to structures are ruled out, but change there must be. The requirement 
therefore is that local bodies now progress along a clearly defined path, linking at 
each stage their actions to those being delivered in parallel in response to Delivering
Local Health Care. 

In doing so they should draw on the mass of evidence that suggests that, while there 
are many ways of integrating care, the key principles remain consistent.  These have 
been helpfully summarised by the King’s Fund1 and based on their work sixteen 
issues are set out in the box below that must be taken into account in developing 
and mainstreaming integrated services for older people over the next three years. 

The core planning issues  

To be clear about:

1: our common cause – why we are doing this 
2: our shared narrative - why integrated care matters 
3: our persuasive vision – what it will achieve 
4: shared leadership – how we are going to do this 
5: how to build true partnership 
6: what services and user groups offer the biggest benefits 
7: how to build from the bottom up and the top down 
8: how to pool resources
9: how to use commissioning, contracting, money and the independent sector 
to create integration 
10: how to avoid the wrong sort of integration
11: how to support and empower users to take more control  
12: how to share information safely 
13: how to use the workforce effectively 
14: how to set objectives and measure progress 
15: how to avoid being unrealistic about the costs
16: how to build this into a strategy 

Actions required:

1. Local partners must by end of December 2013 assess their current situation 
and action required, both at footprint and locality/cluster level, against the 16 
issues in the box above, and define local action required.  

2. All local partners must by end of January 2014 sign off and publish a 
Statement of Intent on Integrated Care.

1
Making integrated care happen at scale and pace: Lessons from experience. London: King’s Fund, 

March 2013

Page 328



7

The Statement must include the baseline assessment required under 1 above 
and set out clearly how:

 they will build an appropriate workforce across all partners as an early 
opportunity to enhance the citizen’s experience; 

 they will ensure a relentless focus on delivering locality based citizen 
centred, co-produced services, focusing upon the pivotal role of primary 
care services in delivering person centred care. 

 they will maintain robust local partnership arrangements that reflect a 
willingness to delegate responsibilities; 

 they will provide leadership and commitment at all levels and across all 
sectors, with explicit governance and accountability arrangements; 

 a single commissioning plan will operate across partners, moving over 
time to a consistent approach across Wales; 

 collaborative resource management will be managed through options such 
as a financial governance framework; joint commissioning plans and 
intentions; pooled and/or integrated budgets.  

 how pooled budget arrangements will be extended, stating first what these 
currently are . 

3. The Welsh Government will use the baseline assessments in the Statement of 
Intent as a means of reviewing progress in delivering the requirements in this 
document.

4. Also by end of January 2014, in developing the service, partners should, 
using the evidence base and their own experience and assets, develop 
shared local health and social care outcome measures that will demonstrate 
the impact of integration and drive further progress.  

5. Partners should ensure by September 2014 that local planning mechanisms 
reflect the requirement that collaborative planning at local level is based upon 
a citizen-centred model that allows older people in Wales to have a voice and 
to retain control of their life.   

6. Partners need to by December 2014 to have developed within mainstream 
services for older people integrated services for older people with complex 
needs, designed in line with this Framework will be embedded.

The maturity matrix included at Annex A in this Framework provides an additional 
tool for partners to use to establish the current position of collaborative service 
planning and delivery locally, and to organise the journey forward and capture 
progress.

Page 329



8

5. Measuring Success 

Recognising and reporting success in integrating health and social care services is 
essential. All partners will already have performance targets and outcome measures 
in place that gauge progress in developing integrated services.   

As stated above local partners will be expected to establish their baseline position, 
both at a public service footprint and locality/cluster level against the 16 issues and 
to set these out in the Statement of Intent and also to agree their own priorities and 
measures for use in assessing the pace of change.  These should be reported to the 
LHB Board and the Local Authority and to other interested bodies on a regular basis.    

In addition, the Welsh Government will use the key indicators below adapted from 
the Audit Commission’s ‘Joining up health and social care: Improving value for 
money across the interface’ (December 2011), along with data available on carers to 
monitor progress. 

The Performance Indicators: Indicator Anticipated direction of 
travel

1 Emergency admissions to hospital for people 
aged 65 and over

Decrease

2 Emergency bed usage for people aged 65 and 
over

Improved performance 
benchmarked against CHKS © 
Peer Group

3 Shift in balance from care home to home care 
provision

More people supported to live 
in their own homes

4 Admissions and re-admissions avoided by 
appropriate community based intervention 
models

Increase

5 Falls data captured and submitted to the 
Reducing Harm from Falls Collaborative 

Continuous improvement  
Benchmarked with 
collaborative  

6 Admissions to care home direct from acute 
hospital

Decrease

7 Discharge to usual place of residence Increase

8 Number of people choosing where to die (end of 
life services)  

Increase

9 Unplanned hospital attendances Decrease

10 Readmission within 14 days of discharge  Decrease

11 Delays in transfer of care due to waits for 
packages of care or modifications to the home 
environment

Decrease

12 The proportion of carers assessments 
undertaken

Increase

Page 330



9

6. The next steps  

A 12 week consultation process will now commence.  This will seek not only 
responses to specific issues, for example how best to capture and measure success, 
but will also give people using services and carers, the public, interested 
organisations, local statutory bodies and providers, and others an opportunity to 
share their views on the overall intentions and the proposed approach. 

Responses should be sent by 31 October to: 

Social Services Directorate 
Department of Health and Social Services 
Welsh Government 
Crown Buildings 
Cathays Park 
Cardiff
CF10 3 NQ 

Page 331



A Maturity Matrix to Support Health and Social Care Integrated Care Partnerships 

?0
Using the matrix: Identify the level you believe your partnership has reached for each key element and then draw an arrow to the level you   the level you intend to reach within the 
 next 12 months.  Review the partnership’s maturity matrix position on a frequent basis. 

Progress Levels     

Key Elements     
No

Basic level 
Principle accepted and commitment to 
action 

Early progress 
Early progress in development 

Results 
Initial achievements evident 

Maturity  
Comprehensive 
Assurance in place 

Exemplar 
Others learning from our 
consistent achievements 

Purpose and vision Purpose debated and agreed.  
Values and priorities agreed, and 
documented. Political agreement to 
integration confirmed and documented 
cross Health, Social Care, Third Sector 
and Partners.  ‘Health and Social Care 
Integration Partnership’ (H&SCIP*) 
understands its role. 

Priorities and stretch goals 
have been agreed with 
stakeholders =.  Robust 
mechanism for adding and 
removing services and/or care 
settings agreed.  Plans rooted 
in local population needs. 

Evidence priorities are being 
met, with progress towards 
stretch goals in some areas.  
Evidence of citizen 
engagement and public 
accountability testing purpose 
and vision.  Existing 
partnership work considered. 

Systematically match 
how purpose dovetails 
with population needs.  
Evidence that integrated 
care is enhancing the 
quality of services and 
experience for the citizen 

Confidence in achieving purpose 
and vision as population health 
benefitting in accordance with 
plans.  Local health planning, 
local authority commissioners, 
third sector and other partners 
have been influenced.  Evidence 
of reduction of waste and 
duplication through tackling 
duplication and fragmentation 

Strategy  All stakeholder strategies relevant to work 
gathered and timetable set for developing 
integrated strategy.  Base for all ‘H&SCIP’ 
strategic decisions.  Political sign-off of 
strategy by all partners 

Strategy development 
underway.  Arrangements in 
place for areas of joint 
planning/commissioning and 
investment opportunities. 

‘H&SCIP’ has a current 
published strategy, which 
includes improvement 
milestones and how they will 
be measured and monitored. 

Strategy refined in light 
of successful 
achievement of 
milestones, and new 
intelligence and 
aspirations 

Strategy has benefitted other 
health and social care economies, 
as well as influencing the 
strategic direction of all local 
partner organisation. 

Leadership of the local health and social care 
integration economy 

‘H&SCIP’ leadership agreed and 
appointed.  Key stakeholders aware of 
leaders and how to contact.  Relevant 
stakeholders identified and invited to 
participate.  Local health, social care, third 
sector and partner resources understood. 

Leadership development for 
‘H&SCIP’ discussed and 
agreed.  Development plans 
initiated.  Stakeholders 
understand leadership issues.  
Relevant stakeholders 
regularly attend and provide 
input into work programme 

Results of partnership working 
systematically reviewed.  
Relationships with partners are 
positive and ongoing dialogue 
about planning, 
commissioning, contracting 
decisions and joint investment 
opportunities.  Public health 
voice is evident in decisions. 

Review of success of 
leadership approach.  
Ongoing succession 
plans in place.  Benefits 
of partnership working 
have enabled the 
majority of stakeholders 
to meet their 
improvement objectives 
and resource allocation. 

Benefits of partnership working 
have enabled majority of 
stakeholders to exceed their 
improvement objectives.  
Outcomes improved and this is 
traceable back to initiatives from 
the ‘H&SCIP’ 

Governance  Membership and terms of reference for the 
‘H&SCIP’ Board drafted and shared. 

‘H&SCP’ board set up and first 
annual cycle of business 
agreed.  Relationships with 
relevant local organisations 
being developed. 

Local stakeholders have 
clearly incorporated ‘H&SCIP’ 
Board accountabilities into 
their own governance 
arrangements. 

‘H&SCIP’ Board has 
reviewed its first year of 
working through a 
structured annual review 
process and made 
improvements to 
structure and 
organisation 

Good governance benefits 
identified and the ‘H&SCIP’ Board 
know better governance practice 
has influenced local partner 
organisations. 

Information and intelligence Information requirements identified and 
format of initial dashboard agreed 

Developed a dashboard of key 
information and information 
improvement continues.  KPIs 
reflect shared performance 
objectives across health, social 
care and partners 

‘H&SCIP report confidence 
with levels of intelligence they 
receive, and that information 
systems are reliable and 
working.  H&SCIP receiving 
evidence of performance 
improvement against KPIs. 

‘H&SCIP’ informed by 
real-time intelligence, 
demonstrating improved 
outcomes, quality and 
efficiency across health 
and social care. 

A single information system 
established and utilised across 
the partners.  Outcomes and 
performance benchmark against 
best performers. 

Expertise and skills Skills and expertise for ‘H&SCIP’ have 
been identified and agreed 

Induction and development 
plans for ‘H&SCIP’ partners 
and staff are up and running 

The ‘H&SCIP’ influencing skills 
are evident by success in 
positive change to local 
planning and the pattern of 
local service provision. 

The ‘H&SCIP’ supports 
LHBs, Local Authorities, 
Third Sector and 
partners by valuing key 
planning/skills.  The 
H&SCIP Board acts as a 
forum to bring in 
specialist skills and 
expertise to support 
planning/commissioning. 

The ‘H&SCIP’ influences the 
organisational development of 
partner organisations.  The local 
health and social care economy is 
recognised as being a good 
career choice for 
planning/commissioning 
professionals. 

1 0 2 53 4

*The H&SCIP is generic term for the purpose of this matrix.  Please replace with your local equivalent.                                                                                          Source: Adapted from the London Health and Wellbeing Board Maturity Matrix

10

P
age 332



Consultation
Response Form Your name:  

Organisation (if applicable): 

email / telephone number: 

Your address: 

Question XX: We have asked a number of specific questions. If you have any 
related issues which we have not specifically addressed, please use this 
space to report them: 

Please enter here: 

Responses to consultations are likely to be made public, on the 
internet or in a report.  If you would prefer your response to remain 
anonymous, please tick here:  

Page 333



Page 334

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
Report To:   Cabinet 
 
Date of Meeting:     14th January 2014 
 
Lead Member / Officer:  Councillor Hugh Irving/Sue Lewis 
 
Report Author:  Sue Lewis 
 
Title:      Common Allocations Policy – Single Access Route to Housing 
 

 
1. What is the report about?  
 
1.1 The report updates members on the development of a Single Access Route to Housing 

(SARTH) across the North East Wales sub region and seeks approval of the Common 
Allocations Policy CAP) for implementation locally. 

 
2. What is the reason for making this report? 
 
2.1 To provide information regarding the details of the revised CAP following the consideration 

of feedback from the CAP consultation, research and legal opinion.  The CAP has been 
agreed by the SARTH steering group and is going through the committees/boards of the 
partners organisations.    

 
2.2 To seek approval to continue with the project and implement the CAP locally from late 

2014.   
 

3. What are the Recommendations? 
 

3.1 For members to consider the CAP and to approve the new allocations policy for 
Denbighshire (appendix A). 

 

4. Report details. 
 

4.1 SARTH (Single Access Route to Housing) is a partnership project between all the major 
social landlords in north east Wales, covering in the local authority areas of Conwy County 
Borough, Denbighshire, Flintshire and Wrexham County Borough. The partners are Conwy 
County Borough Council, Denbighshire County Council, Flintshire County Council, 
Wrexham County Borough Council, Cartrefi Conwy, Clwyd Alyn Housing association, 
Cymdeithas Tai Clwyd, North Wales Housing and Wales and West Housing. 

 

4.2 Aim  
 

4.2.1 All partners recognise there is far greater demand for rented homes in the region with 
relatively few vacancies within Council/housing Association properties.  The overall aim of 
SARTH is to provide a common access route to a range of affordable housing options 
which is transparent, legal, efficient and accessible to all sections of the community.  
SARTH will improve the service to customers by providing a single, common waiting list 
with one allocation policy across Local Authorities and Housing Associations across North 
East Wales.  The allocation of social housing must be fair, consistent, and prioritise those 
people within our communities according to their housing needs. 

 
4.2.2 The SARTH policy moves away from focusing purely on social housing and towards 

providing realistic advice on a range of housing options.  Denbighshire receives 
approximately 1050 housing applications per annum but only has 200 vacancies per year.  

Agenda Item 7

Page 335



  

The application forms involve significant administration in terms of printing, inputting, 
pointing and dealing with queries.  Many of these applicants have low points and are 
unlikely to be allocated housing in their chosen areas.  The SARTH CAP policy aims to 
provide useful, consistent housing advice to all requesting it.  The aim is to help customers 
make informed choice and will cover the whole range of affordable housing options 
including social housing, private rented accommodation, home ownership and other 
alternatives.  This approach helps to manage expectations and for customers to understand 
fully their realistic housing options. 

 

4.2.3 The draft policy is simpler to understand than the current points based system.  Applicants 
are given reasonable preference determined by a banding scheme which lists people in 
date order of their application within each band.  Reasonable preference is given to those 
who fall within the statutory categories such as homelessness, overcrowding, living in 
unsanitary conditions, medical grounds or hardship.   
 

4.2.4 The priority given to applicants within the banding scheme will vary according to whether 
the applicant has an urgent housing need, whether the applicant has a local connection and 
the date order of the application.  Applicants who are not in the categories entitled to 
reasonable preference will not be given any priority in the banding scheme and will not be 
recorded on the housing register.  However, advice and assistance will be provided to 
assist those applicants find affordable housing that meets their need. The policy allows for 
applicants to be dropped to a lower banding where their behaviour affects their suitability to 
be a tenant.  Appendix A provides further details. 

 
4.2.5 The public consultation on the Common Allocation Policy took place between 4th March 

and 30th April 2013 including surveys to 10% of applicants on the register and 10% of 
tenants in their housing stock.  Each partner placed the survey and draft policy on their 
website.  There were local consultation events, a regional stakeholder event and coverage 
in the local press.  There were 450 survey responses and the key findings were: 

 

� 90% of people responding stated they agreed with the proposal for a single register. 
� 80% of people agreed with the proposal to only put people with a recognised housing need 
on the register. 

� 82% of people agreed with the proposed banding scheme 
� 89% of people agreed that people with a local connection be given priority over those with 
no local connection. 

  
4.2.6 Following the consultation there were some amendments to the policy in line with feedback 

received.  The Draft Common Allocation Policy was submitted for legal opinion in August 
2013 and the Regional Steering Group has now agreed that this final version be submitted 
for political approval by all the partner organisations.  The policy will remain subject to 
annual review. 

 
4.3 Regional Policy and Register 
 
4.3.1 The core aim of the regional project has been to develop a Joint Allocation Register and a 

Common Allocations Policy across the North East Wales sub region.  Currently all the 
partner organisations have their own IT systems.  This means that the region can 
implement a Common Allocation Policy relatively easily.  However, the development of a 
regional register to support the policy is more complex and requires an IT system to be 
purchased or developed.  The regional project has carried out some work to consider the 
most appropriate IT solution to support the policy and further work is required.  A further 
report will be taken to Scrutiny once the options and costs are evaluated fully. 

 

Page 336



  

4.3.2 In light of additional pressures facing Local Authorities, Denbighshire believes there needs 
to be additional work to identify cost savings and benefits of a regional register before 
investment in a new IT system can be proposed.  However, the regional policy can be 
implemented with county based common housing registers where the Local Authority can 
host the system for the Housing Associations in the Local Authority. 

 
4.4 Local perspective 
 
4.4.1 Denbighshire County Council is committed to continuing with the regional project but would 

also like to seek approval to move ahead locally within the county. Homelessness, housing 
options and warden services are currently undergoing a restructure and the CAP can only 
be implemented once this is finalised.  This is likely to be approximately September 2014 
for the Local Authority and Denbighshire Housing Associations.  The consultation feedback 
demonstrates support for the new policy, enhanced housing options advice and only 
allowing those with an identified housing need to be added to the register. 

 
4.4.2 Denbighshire County Council has taken a step towards delivering the enhanced service by 

focusing more and more on the housing option approach in recent years where there is a 
threat of homelessness.    The CAP will involve an increased demand for housing options 
advice and this is being fed into the restructure as part of a wider duty which will be placed 
on the Local Authority in terms of homelessness under the new housing legislation being 
developed currently. 
 

4.5      Housing Register 
 

4.5.1 The proposals above to adapt local management of the register can commence from 
approximately September 2014. However, the full move across to a common housing 
register shared with Housing Associations will require a more phased approach.  The 
current housing register is based on a points system and contained within Capita Open 
Housing.  

 
4.5.2 The proposal would be to progress the implementation phase to prepare for a move across 

to the new banding system.  This would include working with Corporate IT to develop a test 
system that could run behind the existing register so that any impacts can be assessed with 
a full move over planned for autumn 2014.  The IT development will need to include options 
for hosting the register and providing access to Housing Associations.  The necessary IT 
development time would give officers in the team the opportunity to carry out cleansing 
work on the current register by contacting people on the register to discuss their current 
application and status and ensure all information is fully up to date and explain the changes 
to the register and allocations policy.   

 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 

5.1 The project links directly into the following corporate priorities: 
 

• Ensuring access to good quality housing 
 

• Responding to demographic change 
 

• Customer focus approach – improving service delivery a single contact point and early 
realistic housing options advice 

 
 
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
 6.1 The project has secured the following funding: 

Page 337



  

 

• Nearly £120,000 of Social Housing Management Grant (SHMG) has been provided from 
the Welsh Government to fund this innovative project. The project is awaiting confirmation 
of the amount for 2014/15 from Welsh Government. 

 

• The SHMG element has been match funded by the partners of the project 

 
7. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) undertaken 

on the decision?  The completed EqIA template should be attached as an appendix to 
the report. 

 
7.1   A full project wide Equality Impact Assessment has been undertaken with assistance from 

Tai Pawb (see Appendix B). 
 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 

The SARTH project originated from a Scrutiny discussion involving Housing Services and 
Housing Associations on 16th September 2010.  The project has been to a range of 
committees including: 

 

•    Various scrutiny committees – Communities and Partnerships 
  

• Informal Cabinet – 4th July 2011 
 

• Communities Scrutiny - 14th June 2012 
 

•    Public consultation on CAP – March to April 2013 
 

•  Regular project groups – SARTH steering and working groups 
 

• Partnerships Scrutiny on 19th December 2013 – please refer to appendix C for key points 
from the discussion 

 
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

 

The capital and revenue costs to deliver the IT solution will need to be clearly identified & 
contained within the available funding when confirmed. The IT costs will need to be agreed 
with all partners & closely monitored against the funding.  Associated benefits will need to 
be determined once the preferred IT solution has been identified. 
 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 

10.1 The risks for each project are monitored and evaluated regularly as part of the project 
management approach by the Project Manager and each of the organisations involved. 

 

11. Power to make the Decision 
 

Section 167 of the Homelessness Act 1996 as amended by the Homelessness Act 2002 
relates to allocations. 

Page 338



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

Common Allocations Policy 

 

A Single Access Route to Housing for north east Wales 

 

All the major social landlords in the local authority areas of Conwy County Borough, Denbighshire 

and Flintshire have come together to design a single access route to housing. The partners in this 

collaboration are: 

 

• Conwy County Borough Council 

• Denbighshire County Council 

• Flintshire County Council 

• Cartrefi Conwy 

• Clwyd Alyn Housing Association 

• Cymdeithas Tai Clwyd 

• North Wales Housing 

• Wales & West Housing 

 

All partners recognise that there is high demand for rented homes in the region and too few 

vacancies to meet demand. We must be realistic about this. It requires us to do two things: 

 

Firstly, we will provide the best, most useful, consistent and accessible advice and information to 

everyone who comes to us looking for housing. We aim to help customers make the most informed 

choice about how to find a home to meet their needs. This advice must cover the whole range of 

affordable housing options, including social housing, private rented accommodation, home 

ownership and other alternatives. 

 

Secondly, we will allocate our social housing stock in a transparent, fair, consistent and accessible 

way, which prioritises the people in our communities according to their housing needs and which 

meets our legal requirements. 

 

Working together to these ends, we can share our strengths and good practice and place the 

customer at the heart of everything we do. We will simplify the access route to advice and to 

housing with one clear purpose: to help people find a home to meet their needs.  

  

Page 339



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

Overview of the Common Allocations Policy 

 

This Common Allocations Policy (CAP) has been developed by all partners in collaboration and sets 

out how partners will achieve the following aim: 

 

• To allocate our social housing stock in a transparent, fair, consistent and accessible way, 

which prioritises the people in our communities according to their housing needs and which 

meets our legal requirements. 

 

Legal Context 

 

This policy is fully compliant with the Housing Act 1996 as amended by the Homelessness Act 2002 

which provides the legislative policy for allocations policy. The following aspects of this Act have 

guided the development of this policy: 

• Section 167(2) of the Housing Act 1996, as amended by the Homelessness Act 2002, requires 

that this policy ensures that housing is allocated so that reasonable preference is given to 

people who fall within certain categories (as defined in section 8 below).  

• Section 167(2) also provides that additional preference may be given to people falling within 

these categories who have urgent housing needs. 

• Section 167(2A) provides that within the group of applicants who must be given reasonable 

preference, priority may be given to applicants who have a local connection with the local 

authority area as defined in section 10 below. 

• Section 167(2A) provides that within the group of applicants who must be given reasonable 

preference, priority may be reduced where there is evidence of any behaviour by an 

applicant (or a member of their household) which effects their suitability to be a tenant or 

because of financial resources available to the person, which it would be reasonable for 

them to use to meet their housing needs. 

 

The partners to this policy have also taken into account the contents of the “Code of Guidance for 

Local Authorities: Allocation of Accommodation and Homelessness 2012”, published by the Welsh 

Assembly in August 2012. 

 

Consistency combined with a local approach 

 

The common allocation policy delivers a uniform assessment of housing need across the region, 

providing fairness and consistency to the customer, taking into account people’s individual needs 

and expressed preferences. 

 

The policy has been designed so that each partner is able to target the housing stock in each county 

at the people in their own communities who are most in housing need. 

 

Page 340



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

There is a consistent application process for customers. Each partner with properties in an area 

chosen by an applicant will be aware of the application and able to give the applicant the 

appropriate priority in the allocation process. 

 

The common approach delivers both choice and ease of access to customers and an efficient means 

for partners to consistently meet housing need.  

 

The Housing Register and the Banding Scheme 

 

The policy is founded on the principle that reasonable preference in the letting of housing 

accommodation will be given to those persons who fall within the statutory categories set out in 

section 8 below. The relative priority given to applicants within these categories is determined by 

the banding scheme, according to whether they have an urgent housing need, whether they have a 

local connection and the date order of their application. 

 

Applicants who are not in the categories entitled to reasonable preference will generally not be 

given any priority in the banding scheme and will not be recorded on the housing register. This is 

because of the limited supply of social housing and the responsibility to prioritise those in housing 

need. However, the advice and information offered to all customers will allow them to seek 

alternatives which will give them a greater chance of finding new accommodation. 

 

 

Realistic Housing Options Advice 

 

An enhanced housing options advice service will be provided for everyone who contacts any of the 

partners looking for somewhere to live.  

When they first contact us, all customers will be asked where they would like to live and what their 

needs and preferences are.  They will be advised of the full range of options open to them in their 

chosen areas and can then decide where their best options lie, whether via social housing or another 

alternative, taking into account supply and demand.  

 

Advice and information on how to make an application and how houses are allocated will be 

available free of charge. Any assistance that a person may need to apply for housing will also be free 

of charge. 

 

An applicant shall also be entitled, upon request, to such general information as will enable them to 

assess: 

• How their application is likely to be treated under this policy (including in particular whether 

they are likely to be regarded as a member of a group of people who are to be given 

preference). 

• Whether housing accommodation appropriate to their needs is likely to be made available 

to them and, if so, how long it is likely to be before such accommodation becomes available 

for allocation to them. 

Fair and Equal Access 

Page 341



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

 

All partners are committed to providing equality of opportunity to all applicants who apply for 

housing and this policy has been subject to an equality impact assessment. This policy does not 

discriminate against any person on the grounds of race, gender, sexuality, age, disability, class, 

appearance, religion or religious beliefs, responsibility for dependents, unrelated criminal activity, 

being HIV positive or having AIDS, or any other matter which might cause a person to be treated 

with injustice.  

 

All partners will comply with the statutory requirements relating to equal opportunities and all 

relevant codes of practice. The monitoring of allocations under the policy will take place to ensure 

that everyone is treated fairly and equitably. All applicants applying for social housing across the 

authorities will have their housing need assessed in a uniform way. Whenever we communicate with 

customers we will do so in the most appropriate language for the customer and will employ 

alternative forms where appropriate. 

 

Scope of the Policy 

 

This policy applies to all allocations of social housing made by partner landlords in the local authority 

areas stated in the introduction. However, this policy does not cover exchanges arranged between 

existing council and RSL tenants. 

 

  

Page 342



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

Part One: Introduction 

 

1. Guiding Principles 

The policy is based on the following guiding principles: 

• To ensure that preference for social housing is given to those in housing need 

and that those in greatest need are given the highest priority. 

• To give higher priority to applicants with a local connection to the area for 

which they are making an application than to those who have no such 

connection 

• To ensure that the system is fair, confidential and accessible to all potential 

applicants. 

• To make the best use of all the available housing stock 

• To ensure consistency in the way in which applicants are treated by all the 

partner organisations 

• To provide a responsive service that treats everyone as an individual 

• To empower applicants and support them to make informed and realistic 

choices about where they want to live 

• To provide appropriate, accurate and realistic advice relating to the 

availability of affordable housing at the point of application 

• To maximise applicant satisfaction and improve the applicant service 

 

2. Choice 

 
Applicants can exercise choice in relation to social housing. They will be asked to indicate 

the types of property they wish to be considered for in terms of location, property type and 

floor level. The property type they are eligible for will be determined not only by their 

preference but also by their household, as described in section 13 below. 

 

3. Applications from people with support needs 

 

Partners are committed to ensuring that applicants with support needs are provided with 

the correct level of support to enable them to access housing and to maintain their tenancy. 

To this end partners will be working with the relevant statutory and voluntary partners in 

order to agree an appropriate model for ensuring that support needs are addressed. 

 

4. Confidentiality 

 

4.1. Members operating the policy will take reasonable steps to verify information 

provided by applicants in support of their applications. This may include undertaking 

a home visit and making enquiries of third parties such as health professionals or 

previous landlords. 

4.2. Information provided by applicants will be retained securely and confidentially by all 

partner organisations. 

4.3. Applicants may request a copy of information held by partners about their 

application, which will include information provided by third parties unless there are 

Page 343



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

exceptional circumstances where it is necessary to protect the identity of the third 

party concerned. In such exceptional circumstances, every effort will be made to 

convey to the applicant the information that has been obtained from the third party 

in a reduced form. 

4.4. Partners will share relevant information with other partners prior to an offer of 

housing. 

 

5. False Information 

 

Applicants who give false or misleading information may have their application 

rejected or their tenancy terminated. In some cases this may also result in criminal 

prosecution, substantial fines and even imprisonment. 

 

Part Two: Eligibility  

 

6. Eligibility for allocation of social housing 

 
6.1. Unless an applicant falls within one of the specified ineligible groups referred to 

below, applications for social housing will be considered from any person or persons 

over the age of 16, including existing tenants.  
6.2. In compliance with the provisions of the Housing Act 1996 (as amended by the 

Homelessness Act 2002) the following categories of applicant are ineligible for the 

allocation of social housing: 

• Applicants subject to immigration control, unless they have been granted a 

status which renders them eligible, e.g. persons with refugee status, persons 

who have been granted Humanitarian Protection, persons who have been 

granted Discretionary Leave to Remain and persons who have been granted 

Exceptional Leave to Remain.   

• Applicants from abroad who are not subject to immigration control and who 

are not habitually resident in the Common Travel Area (i.e. the UK, Channel 

Islands, Isle of Man and the Republic of Ireland). Exceptions to this are 

outlined in Regulation 5 of the Allocation of Housing (Wales) Regulations 

2003. 
6.3. As provided by section 160A(7) of the 1996 Housing Act (as amended by the 2002 

Homelessness Act), the following category of person may be deemed to be ineligible 

for the allocation of housing accommodation: 

• Applicants, or members of their household, who have been guilty of 

unacceptable behaviour serious enough to render them unsuitable to be a 

tenant of a partner landlord. The only behaviour that can be regarded as 

unacceptable is behaviour by the person that would have entitled a local 

authority to an outright possession order, if the person had been a secure 

tenant of the local authority at the time. 

In assessing whether an applicant is ineligible due to unacceptable behaviour, 

the partner landlord will consider: 

Page 344



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

 

1. Where there is evidence of unacceptable behaviour, was it serious 

enough for a possession order to have been granted (which includes 

consideration of the statutory discretionary grounds for possession 

and questions of reasonableness)? 
2. Was the behaviour serious enough to render the applicant or 

household member unsuitable to be a tenant (which involves 

consideration as to whether an immediate possession order was 

made or might have been made as opposed to a suspended order)? 
3. Does the behaviour continue to be unacceptable at the time of 

application? 

 
Partner organisations will act reasonably and consider each application on its 

merits. We will take into account the applicant’s personal circumstances (and 

those of the applicant’s household), including his or her health and medical 

needs, dependents and any other factors relevant to the application. In 

particular, the partners will consider any mitigating circumstances relating to 

mental or physical disability, or mental health. Previous unacceptable 

behaviour may not justify a decision to treat the applicant as ineligible where 

the applicant can show that the behaviour has improved. 

 

6.4. Applicants deemed ineligible for housing will be provided with advice and guidance 

regarding their housing options from the Housing Options team when they contact 

the service. 
6.5. Applicants deemed ineligible for housing will be notified of the decision and grounds 

of this in writing. They will also be informed of their right to request a review and 

their further right to appeal any decision upon review.  
6.6. Where the assessing partner has reason to believe that the applicant may have 

difficulty in understanding the decision, arrangements will be made for the 

information to be explained in person, with appropriate support or translation where 

necessary. Furthermore, in cases where the partner has reason to believe that the 

applicant cannot be sent written notification or has not received it, the partner will 

make available at their offices a written statement of the decision and the reasons for 

it, so that the applicant or someone who represents the applicant may collect it 

within a reasonable time. 

 

  

Page 345



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

Part Three: The Allocations Scheme 

 
This policy uses a banding scheme in order to prioritise applicants. The scheme is described 

in this section. It follows housing law regarding reasonable preference, additional 

preference and local connection. It also makes provision for reducing priority under certain 

circumstances. These concepts are explained in the following sections.  

 

7. The shared housing register 

 

7.1. As set out in the introduction, each customer contacting a partner organisation will 

be given housing options advice to enable them to consider their best options for 

finding accommodation. The advice will be tailored to individual circumstances, 

including whether the customer is in housing need. All customers may make an 

application for social housing. 

7.2. The banding scheme is designed to give priority to applicants in housing need. The 

categories of housing need in the scheme are based on the reasonable preference 

categories set out in section 167 of the 1996 Housing Act, which are stated in section 

9 below. Applicants who are given a banding will be recorded on the housing register, 

whose purpose is to manage applications from people in housing need. 

7.3. Applicants who do not fall into any of the categories in the banding scheme will be 

given no preference for housing and will not be recorded on the housing register. 

Other housing options available to them will be made clear. 

7.4. Customers who are eligible for the allocation of social housing but not given any 

priority in the scheme and not recorded on the register are still eligible to apply for 

social housing in situations where a vacancy occurs which cannot be let to anyone in 

any of the bands. In such situations, partner landlords may seek to let the property 

via other means, for example by advertising. In this case, any customer eligible for the 

allocation of social housing (including those not on the register), would be able to 

apply to live in the property and have their application considered. 

 

8. Reasonable preference 

 
The banding scheme ensures that reasonable preference is given to those applicants 

who fall within on or more of the following categories: 
1) those who are homeless within the meaning of Part 7 of the 1996 Act; this 

includes people who are intentionally homeless, and those who are not in 

priority need; 
2) those who are owed a duty by any housing authority under section 190(2), 

193(2), or 195(2) of the 1996 Act (or under section 65(2) or 68(2) of the 

Housing Act 1985) or who are occupying accommodation secured by any 

housing authority under section 192(3);  
3) those occupying unsanitary or overcrowded housing or otherwise living in 

unsatisfactory housing conditions; 
4) those who need to move on medical or welfare grounds including grounds 

relating to a disability; and 

Page 346



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

5) those who need to move to a particular locality in the district of the housing 

authority, where failure to meet that need would cause hardship to 

themselves or to others. 

 

9.  Additional preference 

 
The allocation policy gives additional preference to people who fall within the 

reasonable preference categories and who are deemed to have urgent housing 

needs. 

 

10.  Local Connection  

 

10.1. For determining priorities in allocating housing accommodation to people 

who fall within the five reasonable preference categories, any local connection 

(within the meaning of section 199 of the 1996 Act, as amended by section 315 of the 

Housing and Regeneration Act 2008) that an applicant has with a relevant local 

authority area, or in rural areas with a community council area, will be taken into 

account, in the manner set out in this section.  

10.2. In this policy, by the phrase “local connection” is meant a connection 

between a person and a local authority area, i.e. Conwy, Denbighshire or Flintshire. 

 

10.3. An applicant may have a local connection to a local authority area if the 

applicant or a member of their household has a connection for any of the following 

reasons: 

• They have been resident in the local authority area for the previous 12 

months. 

• They were resident in the local authority area for 3 out of the previous 5 

years. 

• They have family associations in the area. Family associations normally arise 

when someone has a parent, adult child, brother or sister who has resided in 

the area for a period of at least 5 years at the date of application and both the 

person and the locally residing relative in question indicate a wish for them to 

be near them. 

• They either provide support for or receive support from some person or 

specialist provision in the local authority area. 

• They have been in employment in the local authority area for the last twelve 

months. 

• They have been offered a job in the local authority area but have a disability 

and are unable to take up the job offer because of the difficulty of finding 

adequate accessible housing in the area 

• They need to move to the local authority area so that a member of their 

household with a disability can attend a school or receive specialist support, 

but are unable to do so because of the difficulty in finding adequate accessible 

housing in the area. The need must be as a consequence of the disability and 

the need to move to that local authority area must be evidenced. 

Page 347



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

• They are serving in the Armed Forces and are either employed or resident in 

the local authority area. 

• They are serving in the Armed Forces or are former members of the Armed 

Forces who are not currently employed or resident in the local authority area 

but have previously been resident in the local authority area, including 

residency as a result of a former posting in the area while serving in the 

Armed Forces. 

10.4. In the situation where a local authority partner has accepted a full duty 

towards an applicant under homelessness legislation, the applicant will be deemed as 

having a local connection to the relevant local authority area for the purposes of this 

allocation policy. 

10.5. An applicant may have a local connection to one local authority area within 

the north east Wales region but not to another. As a result, if an applicant applies to 

more than one county, they may be placed in different bands with respect to 

different local authority areas. 

10.6. Partners will retain the capacity to refine local connection criteria in 

particular circumstances via the use of local lettings policies, as per section 17 below. 

 

11.  The banding scheme 

 

11.1. The banding scheme consists of four bands, from one to four in descending 

order of priority.  
11.2. The band which an applicant can be placed in depends on whether they fall 

within one or more of the reasonable preference categories (as defined in section 8), 

whether they have an urgent housing need (as defined in section 9) and whether they 

have a local connection (as defined in section 10). When a property becomes 

available for letting, all applicants for whom the property is suitable (see section 13 

below on the allocation of vacant properties) will be ranked in order of priority as 

follows. Applicants in band one will be given highest priority and then applicants in 

band two and so on. Within each band, applicants will be ranked by order of the date 

of their application for housing or the date of their application to transfer, with the 

applicant waiting the longest given highest priority. 
11.3. The banding scheme is described in the appendix to this policy. The bands are 

summarised as follows: 

• Band 1 is for applicants who fall within one or more of the reasonable 

preference categories, have an urgent housing need and have a local 

connection 

• Band 2 is for applicants who fall within one or more of the reasonable 

preference categories, do not have an urgent housing need and have a local 

connection. The only exception is that applicants who are intentionally 

homeless and entitled to reasonable preference will not be placed in band 

two even if they have a local connection, unless they fall within one of the 

other reasonable preference categories (i.e. categories 3, 4 or 5 in section 8). 

• Band 3 is for applicants who fall within one or more of the reasonable 

preference categories, have an urgent housing need but do not have a local 

connection. 

Page 348



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

• Band 4 is for: 

a. applicants who fall within one or more of the reasonable 

preference categories but do not have an urgent housing need 

and do not have a local connection and; 

b. applicants who are intentionally homeless and have a local 

connection, but do not have an urgent housing need and, aside 

from being intentionally homeless, do not fall within any other 

reasonable preference category. 
11.4. Exceptional circumstances may arise in which a partner landlord determines 

that a management move is necessary for one of their tenants. This may only be done 

when the circumstances or the urgency of the circumstances are not adequately 

covered by the banding scheme. In this situation, the partner landlord may allocate a 

property to the particular resident in preference to applicants on the common 

register, irrespective of the banding scheme or date of application. Such management 

moves must be authorised and will be audited. 

 

12.  Reduced priority 

 
12.1. In compliance with provisions set out in the 1996 Housing Act, section 167 

(2A), this policy allows that certain applicants who are entitled to reasonable 

preference may have their priority within the allocations scheme reduced because of 

any behaviour of the applicant (or a member of their household) which effects their 

suitability to be a tenant. This definition is distinct from that which entitles landlords 

to deem an applicant ineligible for social housing, as set out in section 6 above. 
12.2. Categories of behaviour which may result in applicants being given reduced 

priority are as follows (in each case the behaviour may be on the part of any member 

of the household):  

• Applicants who have engaged in anti-social behaviour and who have not 

maintained a satisfactory undertaking to address that behaviour.  

• Applicants who have been convicted of using their home for immoral or 

illegal purposes. 

• Current tenants who have been subject to action for breach of tenancy. 

• Tenants wishing to transfer where their current property is in such poor 

condition that it cannot be re-let within a reasonable timescale. 

• Applicants who have rent arrears owing to a current or previous landlord and 

who have not made and maintained a satisfactory arrangement to repay the 

debt. 

• Applicants who have deliberately provided false or misleading information or 

failed to disclose information relevant to their application. In these cases 

applicants will be asked to complete a new application. The date of this new 

application will be taken and they may be given reduced preference for the 

new application. 

• Applicants who have refused two reasonable offers. In this case applicants 

will be removed from the register and if they re-apply may be given reduced 

priority. 

Page 349



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

• Applicants who are deemed to have deliberately worsened their housing 

circumstances. For example, this may apply where an applicant gives up 

settled accommodation in order to move into less settled or overcrowded 

accommodation. 

• Applicants who have behaved in a way which affects their suitability to be a 

tenant (or whose household contains a member who has done this). 
12.3. In compliance with provision set out in the 1996 Housing Act, section 167 

(2A), this policy also allows that certain applicants who are entitled to reasonable 

preference may have their priority within the allocations scheme reduced because of 

financial resources available to the person, which it would be reasonable for them to 

use to meet their housing needs. This may apply for example when the person has 

legal or financial interests in a property and/or sufficient income or savings. 

12.4. In deciding whether to reduce priority, the administering organisation will act 

reasonably and consider each application on its merits. It must have regard to the 

applicant’s personal circumstances (and those of the applicant’s household), 

including his or her health and medical needs, dependents and any other factors 

relevant to the application. In particular, it must consider any mitigating 

circumstances relating to mental or physical disability, or mental health.  

12.5. When considering cases of behaviour, previous behaviour may not justify a 

decision to reduce preference where that behaviour can be shown by the applicant to 

have improved. 

12.6. All decisions regarding reducing priority must be approved by a senior officer 

of the administrating organisation. Cases of reduced priority will be monitored and 

the process reviewed as part of the annual review. 

12.7. The sanction imposed on an applicant if a decision is taken to reduce priority 

will be to reduce priority to band 4. Applicants who are already in the lowest band 

cannot have their priority reduced. 
12.8. In circumstances where an applicant has their priority reduced they will be 

provided with appropriate advice and guidance and support. 
12.9. Applicants who are given reduced priority will be notified of the decision and 

the grounds of this in writing. They will have the right to appeal and to ask for the 

decision to be reviewed. If a decision is reviewed, the applicant will be informed of 

the decision of the review and the grounds for it. 
12.10. Applicants who have their priority reduced because of unacceptable 

behaviour will be informed that if they change their behaviour and present 

satisfactory evidence of this, they will have the sanction removed. In this situation, 

the date of application for the purposes of ranking of applicants in any shortlist will 

be the date when the reduction of preference was removed.  
 

12.11. Rehousing of some applicants with an offending background may be subject 

to Multi Agency Public Protection Agreements (MAPPA). In such circumstances 

housing allocation arrangements will be based on the appropriate risk assessment 

criteria with the relevant agencies concerned. 

 

13.  Allocation of vacant properties 

 

Page 350



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

13.1. At the point of application, applicants are asked about their choice of area 

and property type. However, each property type is usually only let to particular 

categories of household. The guidelines for this matching are given below. 
13.2. Some types of property are designated for specific categories of applicant. 

The main examples of this are: 

• Designated sheltered housing schemes have age restrictions which apply to 

tenants and members of their households. 

• Homes that have been purpose built, adapted or are considered accessible by 

people with mobility needs will be offered first to people whose physical 

needs are suited to the property. 

• Houses will normally only be let to families with children, where this is the 

children’s principal home. 

• Some flats and maisonettes will have restrictions regarding pets 

  

Page 351



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

13.3. Applicants will normally be registered for property types on the basis of the table 

below. Note that a household would be eligible for an additional bedroom for each child or 

other member of the household over 16, where they are not members of a couple. Couples 

are expected to share a bedroom. 

Household make up Number of bedrooms 

Single person 1 bedroom or bedsit 

Pregnant women (in couple or single) 1 or 2 bedroom 

Couple 1 bedroom 

Couple or single parent with one child under 16 2 bedrooms 

Two person household not in couple 2 bedrooms 

Couple or single parent with two children under 

16 of same sex, or with two children of opposite 

sex, both under 10 

2 bedrooms 

Couple or single parent with two children under 

16 of opposite sex, with at least one child over 10 

3 bedrooms 

Couple or single parent with three children under 

16 

3 bedrooms 

Couple or single parent with four children under 

16, in any of the following cases: 

- all of same sex; 

- 2 boys and 2 girls 

- 3 of one sex and 1 of the other sex, 

where at least 2 children of different 

sex are under 10 

3 bedrooms 

Couple or single parent with four children under 

16, 3 of one sex and 1 of the other sex, where 

either the 3 of one sex are all over 10 or the child 

of the other sex is over 10 

4 bedrooms 

Couple or single parent with five children under 

16 

4 bedrooms 

Couple or single parent with more than five 

children under 16 

4 or more bedrooms 

 

The table above is a general guide only and procedure may vary in areas due to local 

demand, supply, special circumstances or any local letting policies. Situations which may 

require a variation from the table include: 

• Where there is a limited supply of properties with a small number of 

bedrooms relative to demand and there is a reasonable supply of properties 

with a large number of bedrooms relative to demand, applicants may be 

considered for and offered properties with more bedrooms than they 

require; 

• Where an applicant is in urgent need, but the supply of suitable properties is 

limited, they may be considered for and offered properties with more 

bedrooms than they require; 

• Where an applicant is homeless, but the supply of suitable properties is 

limited, they may be considered for and offered properties with more 

bedrooms than they require. 

• Where pregnancy or the age of household members mean that the 

household would qualify for a larger property within a reasonable period of 

Page 352



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

time, applicants may be allowed to register for properties which they would 

currently under-occupy. 

In each case an affordability assessment will be made and the applicant’s 

ability to afford the rent would be taken into account in determining 

whether to offer the property.  

13.4. Applicants who require an additional bedroom for a non-resident carer will 

normally be registered for properties with an additional bedroom. 

 

14. Who Can Be Considered As Part of The Household    
 

14.1. When assessing an application the partners will consider the circumstances 

of the household. A household is considered to be:  

• Persons who are part of the household at the date of registration, or at the 

start of the tenancy in the case of existing tenants, and are still in occupation 

• Partners who are living together in a relationship 

• Children born since the registration date, or the start of the tenancy, or other 

dependent children joining the household where the applicant or tenant is 

the principal carer of the child. Evidence will need to be produced to confirm 

dependent relationship(s). Tenants must inform the organisation of any 

change to their household 

• An adult relative who has become a member of the household because they 

are in need of support and cannot live independently. (this also applies to 

transfer applications) 

• Housing applications from partners who are not living together due to lack of 

space in either of their accommodations will be considered as a household 

with both accommodations being taken into account when assessing the 

application  

 

15. Offers and refusals 

 

15.1. Applicants have a choice as to whether to accept an offer of a property. If a 

property is refused without good reason, housing options will contact the applicant to 

discuss their reasons. If as a result of two unreasonable refusals, it is considered that 

the applicant’s requirements are unlikely to be met, the applicant will be removed 

from the register, subject to right to review. They will be notified of this decision and 

the grounds in writing and of their right to review. Where necessary, this notification 

will be done in an alternative language or form. Any re-application may be given 

reduced priority. 

15.2. Applicants owed a duty under homelessness legislation may be offered a 

property which falls outside their preferred options. Such offers will be made in line 

with the relevant statutory procedures. If such a reasonable offer is refused, then the 

applicant may have their priority within this policy reduced, in line with the section 

on reduced priority. In these circumstances applicants are entitled to a time limited 

review and if this found in their favour, they would be reinstated. 

 

16.  Removal from the register 

Page 353



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

 
16.1. Under certain circumstances, applicants may be removed from the register. 

These are as follows: 

16.2. Applicants who have provided false or misleading information or failed to 

disclose information relevant to their application. In these cases applicants will be 

asked to complete a new application. The date of this application will be taken and 

they may be given reduced preference for this new application, as stated above 

16.3. Applicants who have refused two reasonable offers. In this case they will be 

removed from the register and if they re-apply may be given reduced priority. 

16.4. Applicants who fail to respond to correspondence including offer letters 

within the set response times. These applicants will be removed from the register 

through a formal notification and appeal process. 

 

 

17. Local Lettings Policies 

 

17.1. The policy recognises that partners may wish to include policies designed to 

tackle local housing issues through the use of local letting policies. 

17.2. All local lettings policies will be based on a sound evidence base and will be 

developed after a robust assessment of this evidence base has been carried out.  

17.3. Examples of local housing issues which may require local lettings policies 

include: 

• concentrations of deprivation 

• under occupation 

• overcrowding 

• facilitating tenant employment through job related moves 

• the needs and sustainability of rural communities, for example where 

affordability of housing is an issue. 

• allowing transfers for existing social tenants even where they do not have 

reasonable preference. 

• Some properties, usually in defined locations, can only be let subject to 

additional occupation criteria as they are subject to a Planning Obligation 

under s106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

• Regeneration areas 

• Large new developments 

17.4. The development of local lettings policies will follow the protocol which 

accompanies this policy and may be modified from time to time. This protocol and 

local lettings policies will be reviewed and monitored via a mechanism set up by the 

partner organisations.  

 

 

18. Monitoring and review of Allocations policy 

 

18.1. The operation of the policy will be monitored on an on-going basis. It will also 

be subject to an annual review. Where appropriate, recommendations for alterations 

Page 354



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

will be submitted for approval. These would then have to be ratified by each partner 

before being adopted. 

 

19. Reviews and appeals 

 

19.1. An applicant has the right to be informed, upon request, of any decision 

about the facts of their case which is likely to be, or has been, taken into account in 

considering whether to allocate housing accommodation to them. 

19.2. An applicant has the right to request a review of any decision made in 

relation to their housing application, including: 

(a) any decision about the facts of their case which is likely to be, or has been, 

taken into account in considering whether to allocate housing 

accommodation to them; 

(b) any decision as to their eligibility for the allocation of social housing; 

(c) any decision as to the assessment of their application in relation to the 

banding scheme; 

(d) any decision made in relation to removing an applicant from the register in 

accordance with section 16; 

(e) any decision in relation to reducing priority in accordance with section 12; 

(f) any decision made by one of the local authority partners in relation to 

whether there is reason to believe that they are homeless or threatened with 

homelessness and, if so, any consequent decisions relating to eligibility for 

assistance, to any duties owed, to notifying or referring to another authority, 

to the suitability of accommodation offered or any other matter relevant to 

their housing application. 

 

19.3. On a request for a review being duly made, the partners shall review the 

decision. 

19.4. Applicants will be informed of the decision of the review and the grounds for 

it. 

Page 355



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

Appendix: The Banding Scheme 

The criteria for determining which band an applicant is placed in are set out below. All 

decisions taken will be consistent with this scheme.  

 

BAND 1 

This band applies to those applicants who meet the following criteria: 

 

1. They fall within one or more of the 5 reasonable preference categories 

set out in section 8 of this policy; AND 

2. They have an urgent housing need (as in the examples below); AND 

3. They have a local connection as defined in section 10 of this policy 

Examples of Urgent Housing Need: 

 

1. Urgent medical, welfare or disability related need 

 

Applicants whose household includes someone who: 

(a) has a medical condition which is life-threatening or likely to become so, and 

which is directly linked to their housing conditions and likely to improve with 

rehousing 

(b) has been assessed by the relevant practitioner as having a need to move 

urgently to an accessible property. 

(c) Has a serious physical or mental illness, disability or medical condition or 

behavioural disorder, which is causing serious dysfunction to themselves or 

the family unit such that they are completely unable to cope in their present 

accommodation and re-housing would alleviate the problem. For example, 

terminal illness or advanced progressive condition. 

(d) Is hospitalised and is unable to return to their home as it is totally unsuitable 

for their long term needs by way of design, location and/or is unsuitable for 

disabled adaptations. 

(e) is disabled and unable to access essential facilities within the property e.g. 

bathing or WC, or access to the property itself is totally unsuitable. The 

property cannot be economically adapted to meet their needs. 

(f) needs to move to provide support to a relative or person with serious illness, 

disability or medical condition and that person can only cope in their present 

accommodation with the applicant’s support. 

(g) is living in overcrowded accommodation which leaves the person vulnerable 

to serious infection, for example where they are suffering from late stage 

HIV. 

 

Evidence will be required in these cases to support the validity of the claim 

 

2. Loss of home as result of a disaster: 

Awarded to applicants with a reasonable prospect of an accommodation offer 

within a relatively short period who suddenly and permanently lose their existing 

Page 356



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

home as a result of a disaster. 

 

3. Leaving armed forces or serious injury whilst serving in armed forces: 

 

(a) Any applicant who needs to move to suitable adapted accommodation 

because of a serious injury, medical condition or disability which he or she, or 

a member of their household, has sustained as a result of service in the 

Armed Forces. 

(b) People needing accommodation because of leaving the armed forces and the 

loss of military accommodation. People who have left the armed forces 

under Discharge as of Right (DAOR) are excluded from this provision and will 

not be given band one status under this category. 

 

 

4. People accommodated by the local authority in care or approved supported 

housing who are deemed ready to move on 

 

5. Urgent cases where the household needs access to social housing to prevent a 

child from being taken into/remaining in care 

Examples include: 

 

(a) Foster parents who urgently need accommodation to take a child.. 

(b) Cases where a child care plan has identified the need for accommodation to 

prevent the child being looked after by the authority (e.g. for child in 

need/looked after child/child protection). 

 

 

6. Existing tenants who are either under-occupying by one or more bedroom and 

wish to transfer to a smaller property or who are occupying an adapted 

property which they do not need, provided that one of the following applies: 

• They are suffering financial hardship because of welfare reform; 

• Their moving would release a property for someone in urgent need who 

would otherwise probably have to wait an unreasonably long time to be 

re-housed. 

 

7. Homeless due to violence or threat of violence : 

 

Those owed a full homelessness duty as a result of violence or threats of violence 

likely to be carried out and who as a result require urgent re-housing including: 

(a) Victims of domestic or other violence; 

(b) Victims of hate incidents (including crimes and non-crimes in policing 

terms and this will cover victims of hate violence, threats of violence and 

hate harassment of any kind; 

Witnesses of crime, or victims of crime, who would be at risk of intimidation 

amounting to violence or threats of violence if they remained in their current 

homes. 

Page 357



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

 

8. Exceptional case of urgent need where the circumstances or the urgency of the 

circumstances are not dealt with elsewhere in this scheme. 

Such cases may or may not be transfer tenants. Each case will be judged, 

authorised and recorded according to the agreed procedure and regularly 

monitored. 

 

 

 

BAND 2 

This band applies to those applicants who meet the following criteria: 

 

1. They fall within one or more of the 5 reasonable preference categories 

set out in section 8 of this policy; AND 

2. They have a local connection as defined in section 10 of this policy; AND 

3. They do not have an urgent housing need 

 

The only exception is that applicants who are intentionally homeless and entitled to 

reasonable preference will not be placed in band two even if they have a local 

connection, unless they fall within one of the other reasonable preference 

categories (i.e. categories 3, 4 or 5 in section 8) 

Examples of those who will fall within this band are as follows: 

 

1. Applicants who are homeless within the meaning of Part 7 of the Housing Act 

1996, with the exception of applicants who have become homeless 

intentionally under the definition of intentionality contained in section 191 of 

the 1996 Act. 

 

This category includes homeless applicants both in priority need and not in 

priority need, provided they have not become homeless intentionally. 

 

The definition of homelessness used is contained in sections 175-177 of the 

Housing Act 1996 Part 7. Under this definition a person who does not have 

accommodation which is legally and physically available to them to occupy and 

which is reasonable for them to occupy would be classed as homeless. This 

includes the following: 

• Applicants who have no accommodation available to them where they 

can live with other people who normally live with them as a member of 

their family or other people who might reasonably be expected to live 

with them. 

• Applicants who have accommodation available to them but the partners 

agree that it would not be reasonable for them to continue to occupy it. 

• Applicants who have accommodation but they cannot secure access to it 

or, in the case of a moveable structure such as a caravan, there is no 

lawful place they can live in it. 

 

People will be accorded this status depending on an assessment by the relevant 

Page 358



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

local authority’s homelessness team or the team of a contracted out service as 

applicable. Applicants who refuse a reasonable offer made to them under 

homelessness legislation may have their priority reduced. 

 

2. Applicants who are owed a duty by a local housing authority under section 

193(2) or 195(2) of the Housing Act 1996, who are occupying accommodation 

secured by any such authority under section 192(3) of the 1996 Act, or who are 

unintentionally threatened with homelessness within 56 days and are in 

priority need. 

 

This category includes applicants who are: 

 

(a) unintentionally homeless and in priority need and who have been accepted 

as being owed a full duty under section 193(2); 

(b) unintentionally homeless and not in priority need but for whom 

accommodation has been made available by the authority under section 

192(3); 

(c) unintentionally threatened with homelessness in the next 56 days and are in 

priority need (this includes those unintentionally threatened within 28 days, 

in priority need and owed a duty under section 195(2) of the 1996 Act). 

 

This category does not include applicants who have become homeless, or are 

threatened with homelessness, intentionally. 

 

People will be accorded this status depending on an assessment by the relevant 

local authority’s homelessness team or the team of a contracted out service as 

applicable. Applicants who refuse a reasonable offer made to them under 

homelessness legislation may have their preference reduced. 

 

 

3. Applicants suffering from unsatisfactory housing conditions 

 

This category includes the following: 

 

(a) Applicants whose current property: 

(a) lacks a bathroom with facilities or the facilities are located in an 

insanitary location e.g. within kitchen; 

(b) lacks a kitchen and/or appropriate facilities; 

(c) lacks an inside W/C; 

(d) lacks a hot or cold water supply to the property due to defect with 

the property; 

(e) lacks an electrical supply due to defect with property; 

(f) lacks a gas supply due to defect with property where such a supply is 

required to operate existing or necessary services such as heating. 

(b) Applicants who share facilities with occupiers who are not part of the 

applicant’s household on a permanent basis. This applies to the sharing of a 

kitchen, bathroom/shower or toilet. 

Page 359



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

(c) Applicants living in overcrowded housing. A housing situation is deemed to 

be overcrowded if it lacks at least one bedroom. This must be on a 

permanent basis. The following are taken to be minimum bedroom 

requirements: 

a. A married couple or couple living together need one bedroom. 

b. A married couple or couple living together with a child under 12 

months need one bedroom. 

c. A single person over the age of 16 or a single parent needs one 

bedroom (applicable to a single parent with a child under 12 months). 

d. A child 10-16 can only share a bedroom with a child of the same sex. 

(d) Applicants who have been referred by environmental health for re-housing 

because they are living in accommodation where category 1 hazards exist. 

Note that all customers residing in insanitary or hazardous housing will be 

referred to environmental health in order to resolve the problem and enable 

the customer to remain in their home. The person would only be referred for 

re-housing if, despite their best efforts, it is the opinion of environmental 

health that the problem cannot be resolved within a reasonable period of 

time. 

 

 

 

4. People who need to move on medical or welfare grounds (including grounds 

relating to disability) 

 

The following categories of applicant would qualify: 

a) Applicants whose household includes someone with a medical condition 

which is directly linked to unsuitable housing and where re-housing is 

necessary to significantly improve their health. 

b) Current accommodation presents access problems to a member of the 

household which have a detrimental impact on their welfare, which 

cannot be resolved in the current property and would be significantly 

alleviated if they were suitably re-housed. Such cases would be assessed 

by the relevant practitioner as requiring a move to an accessible 

property. 

c) Applicants whose household includes someone who has social care needs 

which are not being met and re-housing is necessary to significantly 

improve their care. 

 

5. People who need to move to a particular locality, where a failure to do so 

would cause hardship 

 

Cases include: 

a) It is unreasonable for the applicant to stay in their current property due 

to exceptional financial hardship. 

b) The applicant or member of their household is at risk of being admitted 

to residential care or hospital if re-housing is not made. 

c) The applicant needs to move due to relationship breakdown and there is 

Page 360



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

a need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children associated. 

d) The applicant is a care leaver, vulnerable and has a high housing need 

that is best met by the provision of long term settled housing. Applicants 

must be a former ‘relevant child’ as defined by the Children Leaving Care 

Act 2000. 

e) The applicant or member of their household has permanent employment 

which cannot continue unless they live in a specific locality within the 

area and are otherwise adequately housed. 

f) The applicant is giving or receiving essential support, which can only be 

delivered if they live in a specific locality within the area. 

 

6. Exceptional case of housing need where the circumstances are not dealt with 

elsewhere in this scheme. 

 

Such cases may or may not be transfer tenants. Each case will be judged, 

authorised and recorded according to the agreed procedure and regularly 

monitored. 

 

 

 

BAND 3 

This band applies to those applicants who meet the following criteria: 

 

1. They fall within one or more of the 5 reasonable preference categories set 

out in section 8 of this policy; AND 

2. They have an urgent housing need; AND 

3. They do not have a local connection as defined in section 10 of this policy 
 

Examples of urgent housing need are as follows: 

 

1. Urgent medical, welfare or disability related need 

 

Applicants whose household includes someone who: 

 

(a) has a medical condition which is life-threatening or likely to become so, and 

which is directly linked to their housing conditions and likely to improve with 

rehousing 

(b) has been assessed by the relevant practitioner as having a need to move 

urgently to an accessible property. 

(c) Has a serious physical or mental illness, disability or medical condition or 

behavioural disorder, which is causing serious dysfunction to themselves or 

the family unit such that they are completely unable to cope in their present 

accommodation and re-housing would alleviate the problem. For example, 

terminal illness or advanced progressive condition. 

(d) Is hospitalised and is unable to return to their home as it is totally unsuitable 

for their long term needs by way of design, location and/or is unsuitable for 

disabled adaptations. 

Page 361



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

(e) is disabled and unable to access essential facilities within the property e.g. 

bathing or WC, or access to the property itself is totally unsuitable. The 

property cannot be adapted to meet their needs. 

(f) is living in overcrowded accommodation which leaves the person vulnerable 

to serious infection, for example where they are suffering from late stage 

HIV. 

 

Evidence will be required in these cases, in line with the agreed procedures, to 

support the validity of the claim 

 

 

 

2. Loss of home as result of a disaster 

 

Awarded to applicants with a reasonable prospect of an accommodation offer within 

a relatively short period who suddenly lose their existing home as a result of a 

disaster. 

 

3. Leaving armed forces or serious injury whilst serving in armed forces 

 

(a) Any applicant who needs to move to suitable adapted accommodation 

because of a serious injury, medical condition or disability which he or she, or 

a member of their household, has sustained as a result of service in the 

Armed Forces. 

(b) People needing accommodation because of leaving the armed forces and the 

loss of military accommodation. People who have left the armed forces 

under Discharge as of Right (DAOR) are excluded from this provision and will 

not be given band one status under this category. 

 

 

4. People accommodated by the local authority in care or approved supported 

housing who are deemed ready to move on 

 

5. Urgent cases where the household needs access to social housing to prevent a 

child from being taken into/remaining in care 

Examples include: 

(a) Foster parents who urgently need accommodation to take a child. 

Cases where a child care plan has identified the need for accommodation to 

prevent the child being looked after by the authority (e.g. for child in 

need/looked after child/child protection). 

 

6. Exceptional case of urgent need where the circumstances or the urgency of the 

circumstances are not dealt with elsewhere in this scheme  

Such cases may or may not be transfer tenants. Each case will be judged, 

authorised and recorded according to the agreed procedure and regularly 

monitored. 

 

Page 362



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

 

 

 

BAND 4 

This band applies to those applicants in either of the following cases: 

 

a. They fall within one or more of the 5 reasonable preference categories set 

out in section 8 of this policy AND they do not have a local connection as 

defined in section 10 of this policy AND they do not have an urgent housing 

need; 

b. They are intentionally homeless and have a local connection, but do not 

have an urgent housing need and, aside from being intentionally homeless, 

do not fall within any other reasonable preference category. 

 

Examples of those who will fall within this band are as follows: 

 

1. Applicants who are homeless within the meaning of Part 7 of the Housing Act 

1996. 

 

This category includes homeless applicants both in priority need and not in 

priority need, and who are homeless either unintentionally or intentionally. 

 

The definition of homelessness used is contained in sections 175-177 of the 

Housing Act 1996 Part 7. Under this definition a person who does not have 

accommodation which is legally and physically available to them to occupy and 

which is reasonable for them to occupy would be classed as homeless. This 

includes the following: 

• Applicants who have no accommodation available to them where they 

can live with other people who normally live with them as a member of 

their family or other people who might reasonably be expected to live 

with them. 

• Applicants who have accommodation available to them but the partners 

agree that it would not be reasonable for them to continue to occupy it. 

• Applicants who have accommodation but they cannot secure access to it 

or, in the case of a moveable structure such as a caravan, there is no 

lawful place they can live in it. 

 

 

People will be accorded this status depending on an assessment by the relevant 

local authority’s homelessness team or the team of a contracted out service as 

applicable. 

 

2. Applicants who are owed a duty by a local housing authority under section 

190(2), 193(2) or 195(2) of the Housing Act 1996 (or under section 65(2) or 

68(2) of the housing Act 1985) or who are occupying accommodation secured 

by any such authority under section 192(3) of the 1996 Act. 

Page 363



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

 

This category includes applicants who are: 

 

(a) unintentionally homeless and in priority need and who have been accepted 

as being owed a full duty under section 193(2); 

(b) unintentionally homeless and not in priority need but for whom 

accommodation has been made available by the authority under section 

192(3); 

(c) threatened with homelessness in the next 28 days and owed a duty under 

section 195(2) of the 1996 act (i.e. have not intentionally become so 

threatened and are in priority need); 

(d) are owed a section 190(2) duty, have been assessed as being in priority need, 

but are intentionally homeless and have been provided with accommodation 

for a period of time to enable them to secure their own accommodation. 

 

People will be accorded this status depending on an assessment by the relevant 

local authority’s homelessness team or the team of a contracted out service as 

applicable. 

 

3. Applicants suffering from unsatisfactory housing conditions 

 

This category includes the following: 

 

 

(a) Applicants whose current property: 

a. lacks a bathroom with facilities or the facilities are located in an 

insanitary location e.g. within kitchen; 

b. lacks a kitchen and/or appropriate facilities; 

c. lacks an inside W/C; 

d. lacks a hot or cold water supply to the property due to defect with 

the property; 

e. lacks an electrical supply due to defect with property; 

f. lacks a gas supply due to defect with property where such a supply is 

required to operate existing or necessary services such as heating. 

(b) Applicants who share facilities with occupiers who are not part of the 

applicant’s household on a permanent basis. This applies to the sharing of a 

kitchen, bathroom/shower or toilet. 

(c) A housing situation is deemed to be overcrowded if it lacks at least one 

bedroom. This must be on a permanent basis. The following are taken to be 

minimum bedroom requirements: 

a. A married couple or couple living together need one bedroom. 

b. A married couple or couple living together with a child under 12 

months need one bedroom. 

c. A single person over the age of 16 or a single parent needs one 

bedroom. (applicable to a single parent with a child under 12 

months). 

d. A child 10-16 can only share a bedroom with a child of the same sex. 

Page 364



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

(d) Applicants who have been referred by environmental health as residing in 

insanitary or hazardous housing posing a category 1 hazard, where it has been 

impossible for the environmental health department to satisfactorily resolve the 

issue. 

Note that all customers residing in insanitary or hazardous housing will be referred 

to environmental health in order to resolve the problem and enable the customer to 

remain in their home. The person would only be referred for re-housing if, despite 

their best efforts, it is the opinion of environmental health that the problem cannot 

be resolved within a reasonable period of time.  

 

4. People who need to move on medical or welfare grounds (including grounds 

relating to disability) 

 

The following categories of applicant would qualify: 

a) Applicants whose household includes someone with a medical condition 

which is directly linked to unsuitable housing and where re-housing is 

necessary to significantly improve their health. 

b) Current accommodation presents access problems to a member of the 

household which have a detrimental impact on their welfare, which 

cannot be resolved in the current property and would be significantly 

alleviated if they were suitably re-housed. Such cases would be assessed 

by occupational therapy as requiring a move to an accessible property. 

These cases will be managed through an accessible housing register. 

c) Applicants whose household includes someone who has social care needs 

which are not being met and re-housing is necessary to significantly 

improve their care. 

 

5. People who need to move to a particular locality, where a failure to do so 

would cause hardship 

 

Cases include: 

a) It is unreasonable for the applicant to stay in their current property due 

to exceptional financial hardship. 

b) Applicants who need to downsize because they are unable to afford their 

current property due to welfare reform. 

c) The applicant or member of their household is at risk of being admitted 

to residential care or hospital if re-housing is not made. 

d) The applicant needs to move due to relationship breakdown and there is 

a need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children associated. 

e) The applicant is a care leaver, vulnerable and has a high housing need 

that is best met by the provision of long term settled housing. Applicants 

must be a former ‘relevant child’ as defined by the Children Leaving Care 

Act 2000. 

 

6. Exceptional case of housing need where the circumstances are not dealt with 

elsewhere in this scheme. 

 

Page 365



APPENDIX A - SARTH CAP for north east Wales version 2a 

 

Such cases may or may not be transfer tenants. Each case will be judged, 

authorised and recorded according to the agreed procedure and regularly 

monitored. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 366



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

SARTH Common Allocations Policy Equality Impact Assessment 

 

1. Aims and Objectives of the project, policy, function, service or proposal being assessed 

  Action Points (these have been transferred 

to section 3) 

Is this an existing project, 

policy, function or service, a 

review or a new proposal?  

New policy; existing function  

What are the aims and 

objectives of the service? 

AIM: To allocate our social housing stock in a transparent, fair, 

consistent and accessible way, which prioritises the people in 

our communities according to their housing needs and which 

meets our legal requirements. (p.2 in CAP) 

OBJECTIVES (GUIDING PRINCIPLES, p. 5 in CAP): 

 

Name of project, policy, function, service or 

proposal being assessed 

 

SARTH Common Allocations Policy (CAP) 

Names and roles of officers completing this 

assessment 

 

Gary Jordan (Cartrefi Conwy), Roy Carroll (Tai Clwyd), Nik Weatherall (WWH), Neil Moffat (Clwyd 

Alyn), Viv Perry(North Wales Housing), Faye Davies (FCC), Dawn Kent (FCC) 

Department or Directorate  Housing Departments in each partner 

Contact details of lead officer for this 

assessment 

Lead Officers as on SARTH Steering group 

Date assessment completed 

 

13.06.13. P
age 367



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

• To ensure that preference for social housing is given to 

those in housing need and that those in greatest need are 

given the highest priority. 

• To give higher priority to applicants with a local connection 

to the area for which they are making an application than 

to those who have no such connection 

• To ensure that the system is fair, confidential and 

accessible to all potential applicants. 

• To make the best use of all the available housing stock 

• To ensure consistency in the way in which applicants are 

treated by all the partner organisations 

• To provide a responsive service that treats everyone as an 

individual 

• To empower applicants and support them to make 

informed and realistic choices about where they want to 

live 

• To provide appropriate, accurate and realistic advice 

relating to the availability of affordable housing at the 

point of application 

• To maximise applicant satisfaction and improve the 

applicant service 

What are the main activities 

of the service?  

To allocate social housing and provide housing options 

advice. 

 

 

Will the service be 

contracted out or 

commissioned?  

 

No  

P
age 368



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

Will it be delivered in 

partnership? 

 

 

Delivery is to be decided by all partners. Delivery may be led by 

one or more partners. 

This should be monitored for equality impact 

when decision is made. 

Which staff members will 

carry out the function? 

To be decided. Will be designated officers in administering 

partner organisations. 

Lets to be done by each partner landnord. 

This should be monitored for equality impact 

when decision is made. Comprehensive 

training will be required for those involved in 

delivery of function 

Who is responsible for the 

service?  

 

 

Heads of service for each partner. 

 

 

Whose needs is this service 

designed to meet? How does 

it fit in with the wider aims 

of the organisation?  

 

Everyone who comes to us looking for housing: 

- To offer advice to each customer on affordable housing 

- Register those identified by policy to be in need 

- Allocate social housing to those identified to be in most 

need 

 

The policy fits with the wider aims of each partner. 

1. There should be a fundamental review of 

monitoring to determine how to monitor the 

effect of advice: 

- Storing information 

- Monitoring outcomes 

- Record all responses, including those 

who do not want to say/respond 

- How will IT allow us to do this? – this 

should be considered when specifying 

and procuring IT 

2. Each partner to provide reference for 

where it fits with wider aims 

P
age 369



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

Are there any aspects of the 

service which will be 

governed by the service 

provider’s judgement? If so, 

is there clear guidance for 

staff to prevent any bias?  

Yes, decisions relating to the following: 

Eligibility (section 6); 

Local connection (section 10); 

Banding and registration (section 11 and appendix); 

Reduced priority (section 12); 

Allocation in relation to household size (section 13 and 14); 

Offers and refusals (section 15) 

Removal from the register (section 16); 

Development of local letting policies (section 17); 

Review of allocation policy (section 18); 

Reviews and appeals (section 19) 

 

Robust procedures must be developed to give 

guidance for interpreting the scheme. The 

procedural document should be developed as 

a live document and continually reviewed. 

Training should be provided on interpretation 

of policy. 

Links should be made to legislation, e.g. 1996 

housing act and 2002 homelessness act, as 

stated in policy. 

These aspects should be considered when 

determining service model used. 

 

 

2. Notes on analysis 

Each partner carried out an analysis of their register to assess the impact of the proposed policy. This involved reassessing 

applicants and banding them in the new scheme. Cartrefi Conwy carried this out for their whole register. Other partners 

carried through partial analyses, depending on what was possible with their registers. Each partner looked at cases to 

estimate the impact. There was no observed impact resulting from moving from the current scheme to a banding scheme. 

This was judged to be consistent with the intended approach to base the scheme on the housing act categories. However, 

various actions were identified to ensure there was no impact resulting from how the policy is implemented and 

administered. These are set out below. 

P
age 370



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

Cartrefi Conwy mapped the points awarded to current applicants onto the proposed SARTH Banding scheme. An analysis 

was then made of different size properties in Llandudno and in Penmaenmawr to look at the potential impact on the 

protected characteristics. 

Clwyd Alyn examined their list and estimated which current applicants would no longer be registered because they would 

not meet the criteria. This allowed them to consider whether this effect disproportionately affected any group. 

Flintshire council and North Wales Housing examined a particular area, in Connah’s Quay and Colwyn Bay respectively, 

and re-banded the applicants in the SARTH bands. This allowed them to see whether there was any disproportionate 

effect on any group. 

The results are set out in the table below. 

Age Impact or potential impact of the change to proposed SARTH banding scheme Actions to mitigate 

Identify the 

impact/potential 

impact of the service 

on older people and 

younger people.  

 

No observed impact due to banding scheme. 

Flintshire County Council (FCC) looked at 2 bed properties in Connah’s Quay. No significant 

impact by age. 

Cartrefi Conwy (CC): considered 1,2,3 and 4 bed properties in Penmaenmawr. There was no 

significant swing from one age group to another. 

Clwyd Alyn (CAHA): examined which applicants would be removed from the list. Estimated this 

to be 329 out of 2109, and there is normal spread across age groups:  

Age group Number of people 

17-24 57 

25-44 147 

 

P
age 371



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

45-59 65 

60+ 59 

 

North Wales Housing (NWH): Looked at Colwyn Bay flat 1 or 2 bed. Ages range across age 

spectrum and are spread across the bands. No identified impact. 

Gender Impact or potential impact Actions to mitigate 

Identify the 

impact/potential 

impact of the service 

on women, men and 

transgender people.  

FCC: allocations to couples are slightly raised in the model. This is not significant. 

CAHA: the split between males and female main applicants in the group who come off the 

register in the model is as expected: Male=119; female=210. This is similar to the overall 

picture. 

CC: Overall, there is no significant impact. The case of I bedroom properties shows on first 

examination, some impact. However, the nature of the impact varies when we look at 

different bands. To enable this analysis, we looked at how many people ell into each band in 

the proposed policy. This determined the size of the groups into which to break the current 

register. We then broke the current register into the same size groups, so we can compare the 

same segments of the list. We included group 5, corresponding to the people who would be 

removed from the register in SARTH (44 applicants) and the people who fell into the bottom 

group of 44 in the current register. This gives the following table: 

Band/ group 

CC 
current 
register   

SARTH 
proposed 
scheme     

  F M F M TOTAL 

1 1 5 5 1 6 

2 15 24 9 30 39 

Procedural clarification is needed 

regarding when people are 

deemed to be sharing facilities. 

The EIA has been done by Cartrefi 

Conwy on the assumption that 

people still living at home, but 

over 18, are viewed as sharing 

facilities with people not part of 

their household and hence given 

band 2 or 4, depending on local 

connection. If the interpretation 

is counter to this, a further 

analysis should be done to ensure 

no impact occurs, particularly in 

relation to I bedroom properties.  

P
age 372



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

3 0 0 0 0 0 

4 9 7 5 11 16 

Unregistered/5 17 27 23 21 44 
 

We see more females in band 1 compared to group 1 in the current register and also more 

females in band 5 (unregistered compared to bottom of current register); we see more males 

in bands 2 and 4. Overall, we might interpret this has a swing in favour of males, though the 

increased number of females in band 1 might mean that in reality more females would be re-

housed – it would depend on supply. 

However, when we look at the reasons for these changes, we see that they are a result of 

justifiable policy decisions and not arbitrary discrimination: 

In considering actual examples of female applicants who have moved down the list and would 

be unregistered in SARTH, we see that they are all either owner-occupiers or private tenants 

who are under-occupying. They get points for this in Cartrefi Conwy’s scheme but would not 

get any priority in SARTH, because they are not tenants of a partner landlord. So, this apparent 

negative impact on females is due to the policy of giving priority to under-occupying tenants of 

partner landlords but not to other people under-occupying, and is a policy decision in 

response to welfare changes. 

On the other hand, the observed swing from males to females at the very top of the list (band 

1 in SARTH compared to the top 6 on Cartrefi Conwy’s current list) is simply a result of the 

SARTH policy of prioritising under-occupation of their tenants and of urgent medical. In this 

case, these were disproportionately female. 

When we considered 2,3 and 4 bedroom properties in Penmaenmawr, we did not observe 

similar swings and similar skewed consequences of the SARTH policy. Overall, we have the 

following results for Penmaenmawr applicants: 

P
age 373



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

Band/ 
group 

CC 
current 
register   

SARTH 
proposed 
scheme     

  F M F M   

1 4 5 8 1 9 

2 46 32 41 37 78 

3 1 0 1 0 1 

4 11 8 7 12 19 

5 69 40 74 35 109 
 

Overall, the picture shows no significant impact in any direction. 

Regarding the interpretation of the policy we make the following comment: In making their 

analysis, Cartrefi Conwy followed their own current policy regarding when to classify people as 

sharing facilities. This means that people who stay at home and live with their parents would 

get sharing facilities points when they become 18 9cartrefi Conwy call this “insecure tenancy” 

but classify it as sharing facilities for pointing. The partnership needs to agree the procedural 

interpretation of 2sharing facilities” in the SARTH policy and ensure that the decision does not 

impact one group over another. If the procedural decision is different to Cartrefi Conwy’s 

interpretation, then an analysis of the impact should be made, in particular in relation to I 

bedroom properties, where this may have most impact. Whilst this was brought out by the 

analysis of sex, it is a more general point and will be recorded as such in section 3 of this 

document. 

NWH: no significant change was observed. 

Disability Impact or potential impact Actions to mitigate 

P
age 374



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

Identify the 

impact/potential 

impact of the service 

on disabled people 

(ensure consideration 

of a range of 

impairments, e.g. 

physical, sensory 

impairments, learning 

disabilities, long-term 

illness).  

Partners found it difficult to transfer the information on their current registers across to the 

SARTH bands in order to re-band applicants. Partners acknowledged the general difficulty in 

determining when to award medical or disability points and the difficulty in determining the 

exact reason why points or bands were awarded in their current schemes in order to translate 

this into the SARTH scheme. 

This is evidence that the wording should be changed slightly to make this task more precisely 

achievable. It is suggested that we change the band 1 category 1© definition to: “has serious 

physical or mental illness, disability or mental condition or behavioural disorder, which is 

causing serious dysfunction to themselves or the family unit such that they are completely 

unable to cope in their present accommodation and re-housing would alleviate the problem. 

For example, terminal illness or advanced progressive condition.” 

The purpose of this is to make it clear that this case is at a higher level of unsatisfactory 

housing than the band 2 case. This will allow the assessing organisation to differentiate more 

easily between levels of medical need and award bands in a way that does not significantly 

change how prioritisation is done. On the other hand the development of the accessible 

housing register should deliver a better service to customers. Moreover, the decision to allow 

disabled people to register on the general needs and accessible registers will increase options. 

This way, adaptable properties will also be available.  

NWH: limited evidence that disabled people might be more advantaged - of 11 disabled 

people in the list for Colwyn bay, 4 moved from band 2 to band 1. 

Ensure procedural guidance is 

clear to guide assessment. 

Ensure evidence is required. 

Ensure implementation and 

training emphasize equal access 

to housing and policy of giving 

disabled people preference for 

adapted housing and giving 

disabled people access to 

adaptable housing. 

Race/Ethnicity Impact or potential impact Actions to mitigate 

P
age 375



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

Identify the 

impact/potential 

impact of the service 

on Black and minority 

ethnic (BME) people.  

The data is partial because of people not giving information. But what we have shows very few 

people from different ethnicities on the registers, which reflects the general population. 

For example, CAHA evidence shows 18 out of 329 people removed from the register are non 

white British. 

This reflects the background population: 

DCC: 99.3% are white British 

FCC: 97.8% white British 

CCBC: 98.2 white British 

 

Sexual Orientation Impact or potential impact Actions to mitigate 

Identify the 

impact/potential 

impact of the service 

on gay, lesbian and 

bisexual people.  

There are too few people on the register who state they are not heterosexual for meaningful 

analysis. 

 

Try and make monitoring better 

going forward to enable analysis. 

Gender Re-

assignment/ Identity 

Impact or potential impact Actions to mitigate 

Identify the 

impact/potential 

impact on 

transgender people. 

There is not enough data on the register for meaningful analysis Try and make monitoring better 

going forward to enable analysis. 

Pregnancy and Impact or Potential impact Actions to Mitigate  

P
age 376



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

Maternity 

 

 

No observed impact. In CAHA analysis, 47 out of 329 who come of the list are pregnant. This 

reflects the background data for the whole list. 

 

Marriage/Civil 

Partnership 

Impact or Potential impact Actions to Mitigate 

 No observed impact.  

Religion and belief Impact or potential impact Actions to mitigate 

Identify the 

impact/potential 

impact of the service 

on people of different 

religious and faith 

groups. 

 

No observed impact. 

CAHA results table for applicants who would come off the list: 

Religion Number of people 

Hindu 1 

Muslim 1 

Christian 67 

No religion 61 

Not known/didn’t say 199 

FCC and NWH also observed no impact. 

 

Language Impact or potential impact Actions to mitigate 

P
age 377



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

Identify the 

impact/potential 

impact of the service 

on people of different 

language groups. 

 

CAHA results table for applicants who would come off the list: 

Preferred Language of 

communication 

Number of people 

Welsh 1 

Hungarian 1 

English 182 

Not declared 142 
 

 

Transfer tenants Impact or potential impact Actions to mitigate 

Identify the 

impact/potential 

impact of the service 

on transfer tenants 

CAHA: 50 out of 329 applicants coming off the list are transfer tenants. These were tenants 

who were not in housing need and so this is a reasonable impact. 

 

 

 

3. Actions identified 

Policy Amendments – these have been incorporated into the revised policy and taken to steering group 

Strand Observation   Task  

Disability Partners identified the difficulty in reassessing 

applicants in order to estimate the impact. It was 

agreed that the wording should allow the assessment to 

prioritise in a similar way to how partners currently 

prioritise and thus should not have a substantial impact. 

On the other hand the development of the accessible 

Change the band 1 category 1© definition to: “has serious physical 

or mental illness, disability or mental condition or behavioural 

disorder, which is causing serious dysfunction to themselves or the 

family unit such that they are completely unable to cope in their 

present accommodation and re-housing would alleviate the 

problem. For example, terminal illness or advanced progressive 

P
age 378



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

housing register should deliver a better service to 

customers. Moreover, the decision to allow disabled 

people to register on the general needs and accessible 

registers will increase options. This way adaptable 

properties will also be available.  

 

condition.” 

Sexual 

Orientation 

 

DCC report feedback that young people sometimes 

become homeless because of issues related to 

them coming out in their local community. This 

may relate to hate crime or fear of violence and 

should be considered a reason to give band 1 

priority 

Do we need to amend wording in scheme to make it clear 

that this qualifies as band 1? 

Pregnancy/

Maternity 

 

In policy, a pregnant woman is eligible for 1 or 2 

bedrooms and may justifiably refuse a 1 bed. Same 

argument would hold where pregnant woman 

already has children and would become eligible for 

more than 2 bedrooms. 

Insert statement in policy that where woman is pregnant a 

review of their bedroom entitlement would be undertaken 

and they may be eligible for larger property? 

 

 

Procedures outcomes – to be done during development of procedures and on-going 

Strand Observation   Task  

all Judgements are required in making assessments in relation to, e.g.: 

• Eligibility (section 6); 

• Local connection (section 10); 

• Banding and registration (section 11 and appendix), 

Ensure all areas where staff must make judgements 

have clear guidance and governance relating to 

equalities considerations and legislation. 

P
age 379



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

including application form and medical assessment; 

• Reduced priority (section 12); 

• Allocation in relation to household size (section 13 and 

14); 

• Offers and refusals (section 15) 

• Removal from the register (section 16); 

• Development of local letting policies (section 17); 

• Review of allocation policy (section 18); 

• Reviews and appeals (section 19) 

all ASB. Policy proposes sanctions which can be applied if people have 

ASB. Policy has been amended to clearly state that each case must be 

examined in light of mitigating circumstances, including mental 

health.  

Procedural developments need to ensure guidance is 

given on fair implementation of this. 

All The analysis was made on the assumption that people who are over 

18 and sharing facilities at home with their parents or others would 

be classified as sharing facilities.  

Procedural clarification is needed regarding when 

people are deemed to be sharing facilities. The EIA has 

been done by Cartrefi Conwy on the assumption that 

people still living at home, but over 18, are viewed as 

sharing facilities with people not part of their household 

and hence given band 2 or 4, depending on local 

connection. If the interpretation is counter to this, a 

further analysis should be done to ensure no impact 

occurs, particularly in relation to I bedroom properties. 

disability Giving false information. People with mental health problems or 

disability may give false information unintentionally or without 

understanding the consequences.  

Guidance on how to deal with this fairly is required. 

P
age 380



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

disability Convictions and evictions – sections on sanctions. These may 

have happened illegally or without reasonable consideration of 

the person’s disability or condition. 

procedures should clarify that individual 

circumstances relating to disabality or mental 

health may have led to evictions or convictions and 

these may mitigate the sanctions we would want 

to apply. 

disability People with a disability may require longer to arrange viewings 

or to make a decision on accepting or refusing an offer. 

procedures must make clear that more time and 

support may be required for viewings and 

acceptance/refusals. 

disability Some people may require larger properties/extra bedrooms 

for, e.g. carer or storage of equipment. 

The procedural document should give examples 

and clarify interpretation. 

Disability and 

ethnicity 

Complicated forms can be a barrier to those with learning 

difficulties or sensory impairment or language difficulties. 

Reliance on telephone or internet may also disadvantage 

certain people with communication difficulties. 

Ensure forms are as clear and simple as possible. 

Access to the service should be by a diverse variety 

of means, including face to face, possibly with 

support, e.g. at central location or home visit. 

Ensure support is available and easily accessible for 

people to get advice and to apply. Ensure 

procedures and training makes clear duty to ensure 

access and support applicants. Need to ensure 

information is provided in alternative forms. 

ethnicity Gypsy and traveller customers: how would they be treated 

under the scheme if they wanted to leave their nomadic life? 

Procedures should make clear that in this case, the 

applicant should be referred to homelessness, 

which would assess the case and this would 

normally apply. Awareness should be raised within 

P
age 381



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

this community about allocations. 

ethnicity Some people will require communication in different languages Procedures must make clear that we will 

communicate in different languages and offer 

support. 

Religion and 

belief 

People may require particular facilities in a property for 

religious or cultural reasons. For example, Muslims or Jews may 

require two sinks in the kitchen or a shower. 

Procedures must make clear that this would 

constitute reasonable grounds for refusal of 

viewing or offer. 

Religion and 

belief 

People within some religions/cultures may seek 

viewings/interviews with staff of particular gender and require 

particular cultural sensitivities to be met, e.g. taking off of 

shoes in house. 

Procedures and training should ensure these 

factors are widely known and followed in the 

service. 

Religion and 

ethnicity 

Extended families are more likely in certain cultures. There is a 

danger that properties will not be available for such large 

families or that officers may not consider the extended family 

as part of the household. 

Procedures should ensure it is clear that extended 

families can be part of household. Shortage of 

certain property types should be considered in 

relation to demand and development. Recording of 

enquiries, need and advice given will allow this to 

be monitored in relation to extended family size. 

Sexual 

Orientation 

 

DCC report feedback that young people sometimes become 

homeless because of issues related to them coming out in their 

local community. This may relate to hate crime or fear of 

violence and should be considered a reason to give band 1 

priority 

Procedures should highlight this possibility that 

someone may be fleeing hate crime or threat /fear 

of violence in relation to sexuality. This should be 

followed by homeless teams and homeless 

assessment should ensure correct communication 

P
age 382



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

to application officers so correct banding is 

awarded. 

Age ASB is related to age and so younger applicants will be more 

affected by sanctions than older, on average. 

 

Procedures should make clear that implementation 

of policy should be fair, reasonable and legal. 

Pregnancy/M

aternity 

 

In policy, a pregnant woman is eligible for 1 or 2 bedrooms and 

may justifiably refuse a 1 bed. Same argument would hold 

where pregnant woman already has children and would 

become eligible for more than 2 bedrooms. 

Procedures should make clear that it is reasonable 

for someone to refuse a property when they are 

pregnant and will require extra bedroom within 

short space of time. This would apply whenever the 

future birth of a child may mean they become 

eligible for a larger property. Insert statement in 

policy that where woman is pregnant a review of 

their bedroom entitlement would be undertaken 

and they may be eligible for larger property. 

Welsh 

language 

Policy and approach needs to be bilingual. 1. Adhere to Welsh language legislation. 

2. Ensure policy is available in Welsh. 

4. Do housing options services need to be bilingual 

or have proportion of Welsh speaking officers? This 

may vary by area. 

 

P
age 383



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

Service delivery development outcomes – to be done during service delivery development and ICT specification 

Strand Observation  Task 

all Assess delivery structure re. impact on equality, particularly in relation to 

partnership working 

Assess delivery structure re. impact on equality, 

particularly in relation to partnership working 

all Monitoring: service delivery design should enable better recording of 

information on need and outcomes of advice given, in relation to equality 

and housing need IMPORTANT: specify IT to record presenting need in 

relation to equality and outcomes of getting advice. 

Monitoring: service delivery design should enable 

better recording of information on need and 

outcomes of advice given, in relation to equality and 

housing need. 

Specify IT to record presenting need in relation to 

equality and outcomes of getting advice. 

Take this forward constructively with IT suppliers 

gender Location of HOT centres should not discourage women (or any other 

group) from attending 

 

Disability and 

ethnicity 

Policy talks about need to make some things clear “in writing”. Need 

to ensure information is also provided in other forms. 

 

Disability and 

ethnicity 

Complicated forms can be a barrier to those with learning difficulties 

or sensory impairment. Reliance on telephone or internet may also 

disadvantage certain people with communication difficulties. 

Ensure forms are as clear and simple as possible. 

Access to the service should be by a diverse 

variety of means, including face to face, possibly 

with support, e.g. at central location or home 

visit. Ensure support is available and easily 

accessible for people to get advice and to apply. 

Ensure procedures and training makes clear duty 

to ensure access and support applicants. 

Religion and 

ethnicity 

Extended families are more likely in certain cultures. There is a 

danger that properties will not be available for such large families or 

that officers may not consider the extended family as part of the 

household. 

Procedures should ensure it is clear that 

extended families can be part of household. 

Shortage of certain property types should be 

considered in relation to demand and 

development. Recording of enquiries, need and 

advice given will allow this to be monitored in 

P
age 384



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

relation to extended family size. – ICT 

implications 

Age Having particular properties designated for particular age groups should 

be justified on basis of need. 

 

This issue should be noted and fed into housing 

strategy by individual partners, to ensure the age 

designation of properties accords with recognised 

housing need.  

SARTH ICT should be specified to enable collecting of 

data on need in relation to age. 

Age Changes to housing benefit for people 35 and under - assumption they will 

share accommodation. 

Needs monitoring. 

Budgeting advice should include this. 

Welsh 

language 

Policy and approach needs to be bilingual. 1. Adhere to Welsh language legislation. 

2. Ensure all customer facing material is bilingual. 

4. Do housing options services need to be 

bilingual or have proportion of Welsh speaking 

officers? This may vary by area. 

 

Training outcomes – to be done in lead up to implementation and on-going 

Strand observation Task 

all Equality awareness and issues should be embedded in 

service. 

Setting up of HOTs must include equality training. 

Training outcomes should be embedded so that they are done for all 

new staff on ongoing basis. 

Gender identity Officers are not allowed to ask for evidence of gender 

reassignment and must be confidential. 

Training must make clear what is good practice in relation to gender 

reassignment/identity.  

all Tasks require judgements Training must ensure all areas where staff must make judgements have 

clear guidance and governance relating to equalities considerations and 

legislation. 

all As in procedures table Pick up all the tasks listed under the policy and procedures above and 

cover in training. 

P
age 385



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

 

Promotion and Marketing outcomes– to be done in lead up to implementation and on-going 

Strand Observation task 

ethnicity Migrant workers should have awareness raised regarding 

rights and options 

Promotion of SARTH leading up to implementation to migrant groups 

age Older people may not be aware of the policy or register or 

their options and hence miss out on opportunities. 

 

Promotion of SARTH leading up to implementation to older people and 

groups 

All  Awareness raising through community channels to all sections 

of community. 

Awareness raising through community channels to all sections of 

community. 

 

AHR development outcomes – being taken forward now by project officer and Jane Richardson. This to be fed through AHR group 

Strand Observation task 

disability How will property type and matching of person to property be done? Develop matching policy. 

disability Service needs to be accessible to all people with physical or mental 

disability and all vulnerable people. 

Ensure service is accessible. 

Develop links with support agencies 

 

 

 

P
age 386



APPENDIX B - SARTH CAP equality impact assessment 13 June 2013 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 387



P
age 388

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C – Partnership Scrutiny on 19
th

 December 2013 

The following key points from the discussion: 

The Committee: 

· welcomed the clarity on the definition of local connection.  However, concerns were 
raised with respect to potential future pressures on social care budgets if a 
disproportionately high rate of elderly/disabled tenants from outside the county 
access pensioner/sheltered housing accommodation in the county on the basis of 
family association/support connection.  The Committee felt that trends required close 
monitoring in order to identify potential pressures 

· welcomed the fact that the Policy will be reviewed on an annual basis 

· endorsed the ‘Guiding Principles’ as outlined in the draft CAP.  However, the 
Committee is keen that its concerns, with respect to certain registered social 
landlords’ (RSLs) lack of commitment to property maintenance which has resulted in 
certain areas of the county suffering from poor quality housing, be noted.  Whilst it 
acknowledges that the majority of elected members’ concerns may well be 
addressed through the provisions of the new Housing Bill the Committee did request 
that every effort is made via the Policy’s Steering Group to ensure that all RSLs 
operating in Denbighshire undertake to maintain their properties to the required 
standards and conform to Welsh Housing Quality Standards (WHQS) in order to 
safeguard tenants 

· asked that details of all consultations that have taken place within Denbighshire 
(particularly during 2013) and with the public and stakeholders be incorporated into 
the report to Cabinet 

· asked that the report to Cabinet also include details of each partner’s financial 

contribution towards the IT solution project to support the Policy and that the IT 

project will be tailored to keep within the budget allocation and will be fully evaluated 

and presented to members prior to its purchase 

Page 389



Page 390

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
Report To:   Cabinet 
 
Date of Meeting:  14th January 2014 
 
Lead Member / Officer: Julian Thompson-Hill / Paul Mcgrady 
 
Report Author: Rod Urquhart 
 
Title: Business Rates Policy Developments in Wales 
 

 
 
1. What is the report about?  
 

Legislative changes to Business Rates to promote new developments and to 
bring back into use long term empty properties. 

. 
2. What is the reason for making this report?  
 

The Council needs to adopt the two new schemes 
 
3. What are the Recommendations? 
 
3.1 That members formally adopt the ‘model resolutions’ and ‘model application 

forms’ for both schemes as set down by the Welsh Government. 
 
4. Report details. 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
4.1  The Welsh Government has recently brought in two new schemes in respect 

of Business Rates (Open for Business and New Developments). Both 
schemes are designed to promote growth and increasing levels of 
employment on a national scale. 

 
4.2 The ‘Open to Business Scheme’ has been designed to bring back long term 

empty retail properties (particularly high street shops) into use. There are strict 
guidelines for this scheme such as:  

 

• The maximum Rateable Value cannot exceed £45,000 

• The property has been unoccupied for a continuous period of 12 months 

• The maximum amount of relief is 50% 

• The scheme will run from 1st Oct 2013 to 1st April 2015 (18 months) 

• The relief can be awarded for up to 12 months 

• Any sum of this award and any other funding must be less than the state 
aid de minimis (currently 200,000 Euros over a three year period) 

• This relief is not available to public bodies e.g. Central or Local 
Government  

Agenda Item 8

Page 391



  

 
4.3 The ‘New Development Scheme’ has been designed to promote new 

developments. Again there are strict guidelines for this scheme such as:  
 

• There is no maximum Rateable Value  

• The property must have been completed on or after 1st Oct 2013 

• The scheme will run from 1st Oct 2013 to 1st Oct 2016 (3 years) 

• The maximum amount of relief is 100% 

• This relief can be awarded for up to 18 months 

• Any sum of this award and any other funding must be less than the state 
aid de minimis (currently 200,000 Euros over a three year period) 

• This relief is not available to public bodies e.g. Central or Local 
Government 

  
4.4 Full details of the schemes, application forms and model resolution are shown 

in Appendices to this report. 
 
4.5 Any relief that is awarded will be repaid to the Local Authority, through the 

audited Annual National Non Domestic Rates Return.  
 
4.6 The Welsh Government has put forward model resolutions to the scheme and 

model application forms. There is a requirement to provide regular reports to 
the Welsh Government on the progress of the schemes, how many new jobs it 
has created etc 

 
Issues 

 
4.7  There are clearly some opportunities within this new framework to re-

invigorate the high streets and promote further property development and 
economic growth. 

 
4.8 A small working group has been created to include planning, economic 

development / regeneration and Finance to ensure this relief is maximised. 
 
4.9 It is suggested that publicity is sought for both new schemes in order to 

maximise the potential, this could be done at limited cost by advertising on our 
web site and through commercial groups. 

 
4.10 There will also be the need to produce statistical reports, by existing systems, 

on a regular basis to the Welsh Government showing the take up of the 
schemes, the number of new jobs created and the value of the relief that has 
been awarded. 

 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 

By implementing this scheme we will meet our objective of ‘Developing the 
local community’. 
 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 

Page 392



  

There will be no additional costs in administering the scheme. Any costs of 
marketing etc will be fully met from existing budgets. The costs of granting the 
relief will be fully funded by the Welsh Government. 

 
7. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

undertaken on the decision?  The completed EqIA template should be 
attached as an appendix to the report. 

 
Not applicable as this was undertaken by the Welsh Government 
 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 

None. 
 
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 

 
There are no financial implications for the Council and this represents a good 
opportunity to encourage business development 
 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 

There is a risk that if Denbighshire does not implement the scheme it will go 
against National Policy. 

 
11. Power to make the Decision 
 

Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act (LGFA) 1988 

Page 393



Page 394

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 
 
RESOLVED 
 
1. Section 47 (discretionary relief) of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 
(the Act) will apply as regards the hereditaments described below in 
accordance with the rules described in relation to those hereditaments. 
 
It is reasonable for the Council to make this decision having regard to the 
interests of persons liable to pay council tax set by the Council. 
 
2. Relief is not available under this resolution in respect of any hereditament 
which is occupied by - 

- the Welsh Ministers, a Minister of the Crown or government department, 
- any public authority (including any local authority), 
- the holder of any public office, or 
- the Crown. 

 
For the avoidance of doubt, in respect of any chargeable day, rate relief under 
this resolution is not available in addition to any other relief or business rates-
related support for the same day. Business rates-related support includes 
grant under the Welsh Government’s “Enterprise Zone Business Rates 
Scheme”. 
 
 
First category of hereditament (New Development) 
 
3. Paragraph 7 of this resolution applies to a hereditament in respect of 
chargeable days described in paragraph 4 if the following conditions are 
fulfilled in respect of any such day (and subject to paragraphs 2, 3 and 4) - 
 
(a) on the day none of the hereditament is occupied; 
 
(b) on the day the ratepayer is the owner of the whole of the hereditament; 
 
(c) the hereditament is shown for the day in the Council’s local non-domestic 
rating list in force for the relevant chargeable financial year; 

 

(d) the hereditament is wholly or mainly comprised of qualifying new 
structures where the completion date for the structures is on or after 1 
October 2013 but before 1 October 2016; 

 

(e) the hereditament is unoccupied on the completion date; 

 

(f) any rate relief granted in consequence of this paragraph would not be 
incompatible with article 107(1) of the Consolidated Version of the Treaty on 
the Functioning of the European Union; 

 

Page 395



(g) the owner of the hereditament has submitted an application to the Council 
requesting that paragraphs 1 to 7 of this resolution together with the annex 
apply to the hereditament, together with such information as is necessary for 
the Council to establish that the conditions above are fulfilled; 

 

(h) where the Council has requested further information to establish that the 
condition in paragraph (f) continues to be met, the owner of the hereditament 
has supplied that information to the satisfaction of that Council; 

 

(i) the application to the billing authority relates to the chargeable days (as 
described in paragraph 4) during the period no longer than 18 months 
beginning with the completion date for the hereditament. 

 

4. The chargeable days are those days after the expiry of the following period, 
namely – 

- in the case where the hereditament is one described in regulation 4(a) of the 
Non-Domestic Rating (Unoccupied Property) (Wales) Regulations 2008, three 
months; 

- in the case where the hereditament is one described in regulation 4(b) of 
those Regulations, six months. 

 

If this resolution is applied to a hereditament which is subsequently occupied 
(and therefore rates are payable in the normal way) and then subsequently 
unoccupied, this resolution will not re-apply until the expiration of any further 
applicable period under those Regulations.  

  

5. Where the owner disposes of the hereditament, the discretionary relief 
available in respect of the hereditament under this resolution will continue to 
apply provided that, within 28 days after the date of the disposal, the new 
owner notifies the Council in writing of the disposal and provides it with 
information to establish that the condition in paragraph 3(f) continues to be 
met. 

 
6. For the purposes of paragraph 3 of this resolution – 
 

 “completion day” means, in relation to structures, the day on which the 
building or part of the building of which the new structures form part is 
ready for occupation for the purpose for which it was constructed unless a 
completion notice has been served in respect of the such a building or part 
of a building, in which case the completion date is the date specified in that 
notice;  

“qualifying new structures” means those structures which fall within the 
criteria described in the annex to this resolution. 

 
7. The chargeable amount is 0. 

Page 396



 

 

 

 

Second category of hereditament (Open for Business) 

 

8. Paragraph 10 of this resolution applies to a hereditament in respect of 
chargeable days during the period beginning on 1 October 2013 and ending 
on 31 March 2016 if the following conditions are fulfilled in respect of any such 
day (subject to paragraph 2)- 

 
(a) on the day the hereditament is occupied; 
 
(b) on the day the occupier is the occupier of the whole of the hereditament; 
 
(c) the hereditament is shown for the day in the Council’s local non-domestic 
rating list in force for the relevant chargeable financial year; 
 
(d) on the day the rateable value of the hereditament is no greater than 
£45,000; 
 
(e) prior to the occupier occupying the hereditament the hereditament was not 
occupied for a continuous period of 12 months or longer; 
 
(f) either – 
 

(i) when last previously occupied, the hereditament was in use wholly 
or mainly for retail purposes, or 
 
(ii) where the hereditament has never previously been occupied, it is in 
use  wholly or mainly for retail purposes; 
 

(g) the first day of occupation by the occupier is during the period beginning 
on 1 October 2013 and ending on 31 March 2015. 
 
(h) the application to the billing authority relates to the chargeable days  
during the period no longer than 12 months beginning with the first day of 
occupation by the occupier; 
 

(i) any rate relief granted in consequence of this paragraph would not be 
incompatible with article 107(1) of the Consolidated Version of the Treaty on 
the Functioning of the European Union; 
 

(j) the occupier of the hereditament has submitted an application to the 
Council requesting that paragraphs 1 and 2 and 8 to 10 of this resolution 
apply to the hereditament, together with such information as is necessary for 
the Council to establish that the conditions above are fulfilled; but where, by 

Page 397



virtue of an arrangement between the occupier and another person (“L”), L 
agrees to pay the rates, an application may only be made jointly by the 
occupier and L, and in such cases L must undertake to apply the relief for the 
benefit of the occupier; 

 

(k) the application under paragraph (h) is submitted to the Council no later 
than (a) 6 months after the first day of occupation or (b) if earlier, 30 June 
2015; 

 

(l) where the Council has requested further information to establish that the 
condition in paragraph (i) and the undertaking mentioned in paragraph (j) 
continue to be met, the occupier of the hereditament has supplied that 
information to the satisfaction of that Council. 

 
 
9. For the purposes of paragraph 8 of this resolution – 
 

(a) a hereditament is used for retail purposes if a trade or business is 
carried on there which consists wholly or mainly of the provision of goods 
or services for the personal use of members of the public who visit the 
hereditament; 
 
(b) "goods" includes - 

(i) meals or refreshments for consumption on or off the hereditament 
on which they are sold or prepared; and 
(ii) intoxicating liquor for consumption on or off the hereditament on 
which it is sold; 
 

(c) “personal use” means unconnected with a trade or business; 
 
(d) "services" excludes provision of sleeping accommodation. 

 
10. The chargeable amount is one half of the amount which would have been 
payable if it was calculated in accordance with the formula  - 
                                                   
                                                  (A x B) divided by C 
 
 and for these purposes A, B and C have the meanings given in section 44(2), 
(4) and (6) of the Act. 
 

Page 398



 
Annex  
 
Criteria for qualifying new structures. 
 
Meanings  
 
 “structures” means:  
 

a) foundations and/or  
b) permanent walls and/ or  
c) permanent roofs  

 

 “mainly” means more than half.  
 
General 
This resolution is not intended to capture properties that have been 
refurbished: it is intended to capture those that have been the subject of 
substantial structural construction, so for example those properties that are 
built on existing foundations or built around a retained façade are likely to 
benefit from the relief.  
 
Splits, mergers, and changes to existing hereditaments  
Where a hereditament is created as a result of a split or merger of other 
properties, or where the existing hereditament is altered for example with an 
extension, the same test will apply i.e. the hereditament must be wholly or 
mainly comprised of new structures completed within the necessary 
timeframes to benefit from the discretionary relief under the resolution. There 
will be some instances where this is not clear cut (such as where a 
hereditament is formed from the merger of a hereditament that comprises 
mainly or wholly of new structures with a hereditament that comprises 
structures that are not new) – the relief will only be available where the new 
hereditament wholly or mainly comprises qualifying new structures.  
 

Examples of qualifying properties 

Example 1 – A new build property and an existing property 

 

1. Property A is an office block built from scratch, completed on 1 April 

2014. Property B is an office block built in the late 1990s. 

2. All of Property A’s structures comprise qualifying new structures - the 
foundations, permanent walls and permanent roof were completed on 1 

 
 

A 

 
 

B 

Page 399



April 2014. The structures would be considered ‘new’ until 30 
September 2015 and as such the hereditament would be eligible for 
relief for any period for which empty property rates are payable up to 
then. 

 
3. None of Property B’s structures comprise qualifying new structures - 

the foundations, permanent walls and permanent roof were completed 
in the late 1990s and as such, the hereditament would not be eligible 
for this relief.  

 

Example 2 – A new build property splits and merges with an existing 

property 

 

4. Property A is an office block built from scratch, completed on 1 April 

2014. Property B is an office block built in the late 1990s.  

5. Part of property A splits and merges with property B. Two new 

hereditaments are formed on 1 October 2014 – A1 and B1.  

6. All of Property A1’s structures comprise qualifying new structures - the 
foundations, permanent walls and permanent roof were completed on 1 
April 2014. The structures would be considered ‘new’ until 30 
September 2015 and as such the hereditament would be eligible for 
relief for any period for which empty property rates are payable up to 
30 September 2015. 

 
7. Some of Property B1’s structures comprise qualifying new structures – 

as some of the foundations, permanent walls and permanent roof were 
completed on 1 April 2014. However as more than half of the 
hereditament’s structures were completed in the late 1990s, the 
hereditament would not be eligible for this relief.  

 

Example 3 – three new build properties (with different completion dates) 

merge 

 

 

 

A 

 

 

C 

 
 

                D        

 

 

B 

 

 

A 

 

 

B 

 
 
A1 

  
 

    B1             

Page 400



8. Property A is an office block built from scratch, completed on 1 April 

2014. Property B is an office block built from scratch, completed on 1 

May 2014. Property C is an office block built from scratch, completed 

on 1 June 2014.  

9. The properties subsequently merge to form a new hereditament on 1 
July 2014 – property D. The structures of properties A, B and C equally 
make up Property D’s structure.  

 
10. Until 30 September 2015 property D comprises wholly of qualifying 

new structures as the structures were completed less than 18 months 
previously, as well as being completed after 1 October 2013 and before 
30 September 2016. Between 1 October 2015 and 31 October 2015 
property D comprises mainly of qualifying new structures as two thirds 
of the structures were completed less than 18 months previously, as 
well as being completed after 1 October 2013 and before 30 
September 2016. From 1 November 2015 property D does not 
comprise wholly or mainly of qualifying new structures as only one third 
of the structure was completed more than 18 months previously.  On 
that basis Property D would be eligible for relief for any period for which 
empty property rates are payable up to 31 October 2015. 

 
Example 4 – a single hereditament comprising a large site with 3 
separate small single storey properties and a car park is redeveloped. 
One of the small properties is demolished and a new large office block 
is built on the site of the small property and the car park. The site 
continues to be a single hereditament.  
 

 

11. The foundations, permanent walls and permanent roof of the new office 

block were completed on 1 April 2014 and comprise more than the 

aggregate amount of foundations, permanent walls and permanent 

roofs of the two remaining small properties.  On that basis the 

hereditament would be eligible for relief for any period for which empty 

property rates are payable up to 30 September 2015.  

 

 

 

 

New office block        

 

 

 

 

 

 

Car park 

Page 401



Page 402

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
Report To:   Cabinet 
 
Date of Meeting:  14 January 2014 

 
Lead Member / Officer:  Julian Thompson-Hill / Paul Mcgrady 
 
Report Author: Rod Urquhart 
 
Title: Discretionary Rate Relief 
 

 
 
1. What is the report about?  
 

To review the levels of Discretionary Rate Relief awarded to Charities and 
Non Profit making organisations. 

 
2. What is the reason for making this report?  
 

To receive an update on the current levels of cost to Denbighshire County 
Council, to consider actions necessary to generate savings for Discretionary 
Rate Relief (DRR) for 2015-16 and to consider further amendments to the 
Discretionary Rate Relief Criteria. 

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 
 

That Members approve the proposed amendments to the Discretionary Rate 
Relief Criteria to be applied from 1st April 2014 for new applicants and 1st April 
2015 for existing applicants, as set out in paragraphs 4.1 – 4.9 below. 

 
4. Report details. 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The objective of discretionary rate relief is to give assistance to charitable and 
nonprofit making organisations that may for example have difficulty in paying 
their rates and are of benefit to the local community, such as village halls. 

 
 As part of the Mid Term Financial Plan covering the period 2014/15 to 

2016/17, significant savings are required as a result in the reduction in 
Government Grants. 

 
 In order to meet these savings a complete review of the organisations 

receiving Discretionary Rate Relief has been undertaken. A review of the 
guidelines was undertaken in 2012 and the organisations were notified of the 
levels of relief for 2013/14. Under the current legislation as we are part way 
through 2013/14 the earliest we can amend the rate relief from is 2015/16 for 
the existing applicants, but with immediate effect for any new applications. 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 403



  

 
4.0 PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE DRR CRITERIA TO BE APPLIED 

FROM 1st APRIL 2014 NEW CASES & 1st APRIL 2015 FOR EXISTING 
ORGANISATIONS 

 
4.1 National or Regional Charities 
 Currently a number of National or Regional Charities receive top up relief, 

whilst a check on the Charity Commission website indicates that they make 
annual surpluses in excess of £1 million + or have unrestricted reserves, again 
in the millions of pounds. It is recommended that no further relief, other than 
the 80% Mandatory Relief is awarded in these cases as clearly there is the 
ability to pay the Business Rates liability. 

 
4.2 £26,000 annual surplus and £100,000 unrestricted reserves cap. 
 Reviewing the accounts for the organisations in receipt of DRR for 2013-14 

has also highlighted that several clearly have the means to pay their business 
rates either through their annual surpluses or through their unrestricted 
reserves  

 
4.3 It is therefore proposed that the Discretionary Rate Relief criteria be amended 

to include a requirement that the average annual surpluses (based on the two 
most recent sets of accounts) should not exceed £26,000 (the average annual 
earnings of a full time worker).  This would ensure that resources are spent on 
those organisations in genuine need of relief.         

 
4.4 It is also proposed that a condition around unrestricted reserves is added to 

the DRR criteria to include a requirement that unrestricted reserves should not 
exceed £100,000.  Restricted reserves would not be taken into account. 

 
4.5 Bar provision 

The current criterion for DRR specifies that ‘bar provision in facilities should be 
to assist the organisation in providing a sporting purpose service’.  It is 
suggested this is amended so that bar income is ancillary to the organisation, 
rather than the main income stream. It could be argued that this is acceptable 
for a Bowls Club as it is clear that the main purpose of the club is to play bowls 
(and thus the provision of the bar is ancillary to the bowling).   

 
4.6 However, with respect to Social Clubs in some cases the bar appears not to 

be an ancillary service as it is not clear what other regular activities/provision 
is on offer at the Club other than a bar.  Up to now all Social Clubs have been 
in receipt of 100% DRR, as it is recognised that they have a value to the local 
community particularly in terms of community space available for hire.  
However, if the criteria are to be applied fairly and consistently, it could be 
argued that in future such organisations should not be granted DRR or at a 
reduced rate.  

 
 
 
 

Page 404



  

4.7 If at any point in the future an application for DRR came in from a social club 
where the bar was still not an ancillary service, but the accounts were 
suggesting that the social club was not in a position to pay their business 
rates, they would be eligible to apply for Section 49/Hardship Relief.  If an 
application came in from a social club and it was found that the bar provision 
was less than 50% of the income (i.e. it was an ancillary service) the club 
would be eligible for 100% DRR.  

 
4.8 Football Clubs  

Similarly, the Football clubs are primarily funded through bar receipts, albeit 
that the proceeds are then re-invested to run the football club. As with bowls 
clubs it could be argued that this is acceptable as it is clear that the main 
purpose of the club is to play football (and thus the provision of the bar is 
ancillary to the football).   

 
4.9 Housing Associations 

In line with many other authorities’ consideration for Discretionary Rate Relief 
should be reviewed, as in many cases the Housing Association is making a 
substantial annual surplus and has unrestricted cash reserves. Clearly in 
these cases there is an ability to pay the rates due. However any Housing 
Association, disaffected by the suggested changes could be considered for 
S49 Hardship Relief, which would have a lower cost to the Council. 

 
4.10 FORECAST SAVINGS FOR 2015-16 
 
4.11 The budget for Discretionary Rate Relief and Hardship Relief for 2013-14 is 

£113k. The total spend to date is £142,884. If no more applications are 
received or approved during this financial year the cost savings will be 
£63,516  

 
4.12 Appendix 1 shows the projected cost for 2014/15 and 2015/16, based on a 

forecast increase in inflation. However for 2015/16 there is also a savings 
projection based on these estimates.   

 
 
  ARGUMENTS/CONCLUSIONS 
 
4.13 There are both ethical and financial reasons for the Council to ensure that the 

DRR and Section 49 Schemes are applied consistently and fairly to rural 
businesses, charitable and nonprofit making organisations that may have 
difficulty in paying their rates and are of benefit to the local community. 

 
4.14 It is proposed that the Discretionary Rate Relief criteria be amended as per 

Appendix 2, to include a requirement that the average annual surpluses 
(based on the two most recent sets of accounts) should not exceed £26,000.  
(the average annual earnings of a full time worker).  This would ensure that 
resources are spent on those organisations in genuine need of relief.         

 
4.15 It is also proposed that a condition around unrestricted reserves is added to 

the DRR criteria to include a requirement that unrestricted reserves should not 

Page 405



  

exceed £100,000.  This will ensure that those organisations that have the 
means to pay their business rates pay their business rates, but protect those 
organisations that have expenditure planned for the future in 
earmarked/restricted reserves.      

 
4.16 It is proposed that the current criteria for DRR which specifies that ‘bar 

provision in facilities should be an ancillary service’ is applied more rigorously, 
which would result in social clubs whose bar income exceeds 50% of its 
overall income no longer eligible for DRR. 

 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 

The effective targeting of relief will ensure organisations providing services for 
vulnerable people are protected. 

 
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 

The costs associated with the reviews are within the current budgets. There 
will be a recurring saving of £63,516 to the Council’s revenue budget from 
2015/16 as a result of the changes to the treatment of Discretionary Rate 
Relief 

 

7. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 
undertaken on the decision?  The completed EqIA template should be 
attached as an appendix to the report. 

 

Not applicable as the guidelines are being changed rather than creating a new 
policy. 
 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 

None 
 
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 

The proposals enable the Council to continue to support organisations with 
rate mandatory relief but place restrictions on discretionary relief for certain 
organisations. Given the difficult financial situation the Council will be facing in 
2015/16 it needs to review all expenditure and reduce accordingly. 

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 

If there is not a robust set of guidelines relating to the award of Discretionary 
Rate Relief then further pressures will be put on the Council’s budgets. 

 
11. Power to make the Decision 

Discretionary Rate Relief is awarded under Section 47 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1988. 

Page 406



Mandatory & Discretionary Relief 2013/14

account_id account_holder1 addr1 addr2 addr3 Debit Mand Relief Disc Relief Charge Cost to DCC No DRR S49 Suggested Saving Notes

20003565 TRUSTEES OF THE DYSERTH URDD URDD HALL 29 CWM ROAD DYSERTH £2,923.20 -£2,338.56 -£584.64 £0.00 £438.48 £438.48 £292.32 No Change 0

20004433 CARTREF NI LTD OLD BANK CHAMBERS HIGH STREET ST ASAPH £2,180.80 -£1,744.64 -£436.16 £0.00 £327.12 £327.12 £218.08 No Change 0

20020439 CYMDEITHAS Y CWM COMMUNITY CENTRE ACERDDU RHEWL £1,160.00 -£928.00 -£232.00 £0.00 £174.00 £174.00 £116.00 No Change 0

20021692 SOCIETY OF ST VINCENT DE PAUL 1A ABBEY STREET RHYL £1,438.40 -£1,150.72 -£287.68 £0.00 £215.76 £215.76 £143.84 No Change 0

20023552 RHYL DISTRICT GUIDE ASSOCIATION RHYL DISTRICT GUIDE HEADQUARTERS TYNEWYDD ROAD RHYL £2,598.40 -£2,078.72 -£519.68 £0.00 £389.76 £389.76 £259.84 No Change 0

20023589 THE PRESTATYN NORTH WEST JUBILEE COMMUNITY CENTRE SEABANK DRIVE PRESTATYN £3,340.80 -£2,672.64 -£668.16 £0.00 £501.12 £501.12 £334.08 No Change 0

20023654 DENBIGH YOUTH PROJECT ROCK HOUSE HIGHGATE DENBIGH £1,670.40 -£1,336.32 -£334.08 £0.00 £250.56 £250.56 £167.04 No Change 0

20023943 THE PRESTATYN & DISTRICT GIRL GIRL GUIDES HEADQUARTERS R/O PARISH CHURCH HIGH STREET £2,273.60 -£1,818.88 -£454.72 £0.00 £341.04 £341.04 £227.36 No Change 0

20024606 THE MELIDEN COMMUNITY 10 FFORDD TALARGOCH MELIDEN PRESTATYN £2,598.40 -£2,078.72 -£519.68 £0.00 £389.76 £389.76 £259.84 No Change 0

20024708 TY CARADOC COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION TY CARADOC CARADOC ROAD PRESTATYN £1,809.60 -£1,447.68 -£361.92 £0.00 £271.44 £271.44 £180.96 No Change 0

20025025 DYSERTH BOWLING CLUB THE PAVILION OFF THOMAS AVENUE DYSERTH £1,763.20 -£1,410.56 -£352.64 £0.00 £264.48 £264.48 £176.32 No Change 0

20025074 THE FIRST RHUDDLAN SCOUT TROOP THE ODYN PRINCES ROAD RHUDDLAN £765.60 -£612.48 -£153.12 £0.00 £114.84 £114.84 £76.56 No Change 0

20026851 THE RHYL & DISTRICT MUSICAL MEETING ROOM VALE ROAD RHYL £2,204.00 -£1,763.20 -£440.80 £0.00 £330.60 £330.60 £220.40 No Change 0

20027269 RHYL (NO 283) UNIT SEA CADET RHYL SEA CADETS MARINE LAKE WESTBOURNE AVENUE £1,995.20 -£1,596.16 -£399.04 £0.00 £299.28 £299.28 £199.52 No Change 0

20029247 THE   RHYL COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION COMMUNITY CENTRE FFORDD LAS RHYL £2,784.00 -£2,227.20 -£556.80 £0.00 £417.60 £417.60 £278.40 No Change 0

20029265 CYMDEITHAS TAI CLWYD CYF LLYS GWYN 63 VALE STREET DENBIGH £1,321.45 -£1,057.16 -£264.29 £0.00 £198.22 £198.22 £132.15 No DRR £198.22 Housing Association

20029265 CYMDEITHAS TAI CLWYD CYF LLYS GWYN 63 VALE STREET DENBIGH £3,387.84 -£2,710.27 -£677.57 £0.00 £508.18 £508.18 £338.79 No DRR £508.18 Housing Association

20029338 THE RHYL SILVER BAND R/O 16/18 ELWY STREET RHYL £962.80 -£770.24 -£192.56 £0.00 £144.42 £144.42 £96.28 No Change 0

20029849 THE SAMARITANS OF RHYL & CLWYD 23 BEDFORD STREET RHYL £2,598.40 -£2,078.72 -£519.68 £0.00 £389.76 £389.76 £259.84 No Change 0

20030584 THE RHYL & DISTRICT RUGBY CLUB SPORTS GROUND WAEN ROAD RHUDDLAN £2,784.00 -£2,227.20 -£556.80 £0.00 £417.60 £417.60 £278.40 No Change 0

20030608 THE WAEN PARISH HALL WAEN GOLEUGOED INDEPENDANT CHAPEL WAEN ST ASAPH £475.60 -£380.48 -£95.12 £0.00 £71.34 £71.34 £47.56 No Change 0

20035636 THE ALBERT WILSON MEMORIAL FIELD ALBERT WILSON MEMORIAL FIELD CAMPING SITE FFORDD PENRHWYLFA £696.00 -£556.80 -£139.20 £0.00 £104.40 £104.40 £69.60 No Change 0

20055565 THE RHYL LITTLE THEATRE LTD LITTLE THEATRE VALE ROAD RHYL £1,322.40 -£1,057.92 -£264.48 £0.00 £198.36 £198.36 £132.24 No Change 0

20061205 BODELWYDDAN COMMUNITY CENTRE BODELWYDDAN COMMUNITY CENTRE ABERGELE ROAD BODELWYDDAN £1,600.80 -£1,280.64 -£320.16 £0.00 £240.12 £240.12 £160.08 No Change 0

20067894 RHYL ADVENTURE PLAYGROUND ADVENTURE PLAYGROUND HQ RHYDWEN CLOSE RHYL £3,155.20 -£2,524.16 -£631.04 £0.00 £473.28 £473.28 £315.52 No Change 0

20069221 CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU 11 WATER STREET RHYL £2,111.20 -£1,688.96 -£422.24 £0.00 £316.68 £316.68 £211.12 No Change 0

20069436 1ST RHYL SCOUT GROUP RHYL SCOUT GROUP TYNEWYDD ROAD RHYL £2,227.20 -£1,781.76 -£445.44 £0.00 £334.08 £334.08 £222.72 No Change 0

20078175 THE RHYL & PRESTATYN UNIT 2 THE LIGHTHOUSE BUSINESS PARK BASTION ROAD £3,712.00 -£2,969.60 -£742.40 £0.00 £556.80 £556.80 £371.20 No Change 0

20078197 THE   RHYL COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION WELLINGTON COMMUNITY CENTRE WELLINGTON ROAD RHYL £3,990.40 -£3,192.32 -£798.08 £0.00 £598.56 £598.56 £399.04 No Change 0

20078302 ACTION FOR CHILDREN GLAN-Y-MOR FAMILY CENTRE 36 SANDRINGHAM AVENUE RHYL £3,897.60 -£3,118.08 -£779.52 £0.00 £584.64 £584.64 £389.76 No DRR £584.64 National Charity

20083776 THE RHYL COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION COMMUNITY CENTRE TYNEWYDD ROAD RHYL £2,598.40 -£2,078.72 -£519.68 £0.00 £389.76 £389.76 £259.84 No Change 0

20084519 NSPCC GROUND FLOOR WARREN HOUSE WARREN DRIVE £1,473.36 -£1,178.69 -£294.67 £0.00 £221.00 £221.00 £147.34 No DRR £221.00 National Charity

20084519 NSPCC GROUND FLOOR WARREN HOUSE WARREN DRIVE £579.68 -£463.74 -£115.94 £0.00 £86.96 £86.96 £57.97 No DRR £86.96 National Charity

20086753 BODELWYDDAN CASTLE TRUST BODELWYDDAN CASTLE TRUST BODELWYDDAN CASTLE BODELWYDDAN £26,680.00 -£21,344.00 -£5,336.00 £0.00 £4,002.00 £4,002.00 £2,668.00 No DRR £4,002.00 £535k unrestricted

20091354 ST KENTIGERN HOSPICE ST KENTIGERN HOSPICE UPPER DENBIGH ROAD ST ASAPH £14,384.00 -£11,507.20 -£2,876.80 £0.00 £2,157.60 £2,157.60 £1,438.40 No Change 0

20094411 RHUDDLAN COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION COMMUNITY CENTRE PARLIAMENT STREET RHUDDLAN £3,433.60 -£2,746.88 -£686.72 £0.00 £515.04 £515.04 £343.36 No Change 0

20096939 THE AMBULANCE HALL COMMITTEE AMBULANCE HALL PRIOR STREET RUTHIN £1,160.00 -£928.00 -£232.00 £0.00 £174.00 £174.00 £116.00 No Change 0

20099949 RUTHIN SCOUT GROUP THE SCOUT HALL MILL STREET RUTHIN £1,484.80 -£1,187.84 -£296.96 £0.00 £222.72 £222.72 £148.48 No Change 0

20101159 LLANDEGLA MEMORIAL HALL LLANDEGLA MEMORIAL HALL ADJ CASTELL LLANDEGLA £1,693.60 -£1,354.88 -£338.72 £0.00 £254.04 £254.04 £169.36 No Change 0

20101251 TRUSTEES OF COCOA & READING MEETING ROOM CHURCH SQUARE LLANDYRNOG £454.72 -£363.78 -£90.94 £0.00 £68.21 £68.21 £45.47 No Change 0

20102298 CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU MARKET STREET RUTHIN £1,090.40 -£872.32 -£218.08 £0.00 £163.56 £163.56 £109.04 No Change 0

20103382 LLANGOLLEN INTERNATIONAL MUSICAL INTERNATIONAL EISTEDDFOD COMMITTEE ABBEY ROAD LLANGOLLEN £6,148.00 -£4,918.40 -£1,229.60 £0.00 £922.20 £922.20 £614.80 No Change 0

20103462 TRUSTEES WELFARE HOUSE WELFARE HOUSE MARKET STREET LLANGOLLEN £614.80 -£491.84 -£122.96 £0.00 £92.22 £92.22 £61.48 No Change 0

20103508 LLANDYRNOG VILLAGE HALL COMMITEE THE VILLAGE HALL LLANDYRNOG DENBIGH £4,036.80 -£3,229.44 -£807.36 £0.00 £605.52 £605.52 £403.68 No Change 0

20103699 PWLLGLAS VILLAGE HALL COMMITTEE VILLAGE HALL PWLLGLAS RUTHIN £1,624.00 -£1,299.20 -£324.80 £0.00 £243.60 £243.60 £162.40 No Change 0

20103702 NEUADD ELEANOR MANAGEMENT NEUADD ELEANOR LLANFAIR DYFFRYN CLWYD RUTHIN £2,111.20 -£1,688.96 -£422.24 £0.00 £316.68 £316.68 £211.12 No Change 0

20103906 NORTH WALES WILDLIFE TRUST UNIT 7, LOGGERHEADS COUNTRY PARK LOGGERHEADS LLANFERRES £245.92 -£196.74 -£49.18 £0.00 £36.89 £36.89 £24.59 No Change 0

20105979 ROYAL AIR FORCE ASSOCIATION CANALSIDE GARDENS ABBEY ROAD LLANGOLLEN £1,786.40 -£1,429.12 -£357.28 £0.00 £267.96 £267.96 £178.64 No DRR £267.96 National Charity

20106085 E C T A R C ECTARC PARADE STREET LLANGOLLEN £6,148.00 -£4,918.40 -£1,229.60 £0.00 £922.20 £922.20 £614.80 No DRR £922.20 £100K Ann Surplus

20106121 CARROG VILLAGE HALL COMMITTEE COMMUNITY CENTRE OLD NATIONAL SCHOOL CARROG £962.80 -£770.24 -£192.56 £0.00 £144.42 £144.42 £96.28 No Change 0

20106187 ST JOHNS AMBULANCE HEADQUARTERS ST JOHN'S AMBULANCE BRIGADE PARADE STREET LLANGOLLEN £426.88 -£341.50 -£85.38 £0.00 £64.04 £64.04 £42.69 No DRR £64.04 National Charity

20106256 SEFYDLIAD COLEG Y GROES THE COLLEGE R/O LONDON ROAD CORWEN £556.80 -£445.44 -£111.36 £0.00 £83.52 £83.52 £55.68 No Change 0

20106278 PENTREDWR & DIST COMMUNITY COMMUNITY CENTRE PENTREDWR LLANGOLLEN £800.40 -£640.32 -£160.08 £0.00 £120.06 £120.06 £80.04 No Change 0

20106427 OWAIN GLYNDWR MEMORIAL HALL OWAIN GLYNDWR MEMORIAL INSTITUTE GLYNDYFRDWY CORWEN £1,368.80 -£1,095.04 -£273.76 £0.00 £205.32 £205.32 £136.88 No Change 0

20107271 CORWEN ROYAL BRITISH LEGION BRITISH LEGION GREEN LANE CORWEN £1,044.00 -£835.20 -£208.80 £0.00 £156.60 £156.60 £104.40 No DRR £156.60 Social Club

20107511 GWYDDELWERN COMMUNITY CENTRE COMMUNITY CENTRE R/O ROSE AND CROWN GWYDDELWERN £2,041.60 -£1,633.28 -£408.32 £0.00 £306.24 £306.24 £204.16 No Change 0

20107635 POPETH CYMRAEG CYFYNGEDIG CANOLFAN IAITH CLWYD BRIDGE STREET DENBIGH £4,988.00 -£3,990.40 -£997.60 £0.00 £748.20 £748.20 £498.80 No Change 0

20108387 CORWEN WAR MEMORIAL PARK RECREATION GROUND GREEN LANE CORWEN £5,104.00 -£4,083.20 -£1,020.80 £0.00 £765.60 £765.60 £510.40 No Change 0

20108398 LLANGOLLEN TOWN SILVER BAND BAND ROOM PARADE STREET LLANGOLLEN £846.80 -£677.44 -£169.36 £0.00 £127.02 £127.02 £84.68 No Change 0

20108536 GLYNDWR WOMENS AID UNITS 1 (GND FLR) 6/9 (1ST FLR) & 12/14 (2ND FLR) AT 12/14 HALL SQUARE £2,134.40 -£1,707.52 -£426.88 £0.00 £320.16 £320.16 £213.44 No Change 0

20109551 DENBIGHSHIRE FEDERATION OF W I GND AND 1ST FLRS 67 VALE STREET DENBIGH £2,320.00 -£1,856.00 -£464.00 £0.00 £348.00 £348.00 £232.00 No Change 0

20109802 LLANDRILLO COMMUNITY MANAGEMENT PUBLIC LIBRARY PENTRE BACH LLANDRILLO £1,531.20 -£1,224.96 -£306.24 £0.00 £229.68 £229.68 £153.12 No Change 0

20109959 CYMDEITHAS TAI CLWYD CYF 54 VALE STREET DENBIGH £3,155.20 -£2,524.16 -£631.04 £0.00 £473.28 £473.28 £315.52 No DRR £473.28 Housing Association

20110683 THE LANDMARK TRUST PLAS UCHAF LLANGAR CORWEN £742.40 -£593.92 -£148.48 £0.00 £111.36 £111.36 £74.24 No DRR £111.36 National Charity

20110810 G W A TY GLYNDWR VALE STREET DENBIGH £1,670.40 -£1,336.32 -£334.08 £0.00 £250.56 £250.56 £167.04 No Change 0

20110945 CYMDEITHAS THEATR TWM O'R NANT MEMORIAL HALL STATION ROAD DENBIGH £1,392.00 -£1,113.60 -£278.40 £0.00 £208.80 £208.80 £139.20 No Change 0

20120745 TREFNANT VILLAGE HALL & MEMORIAL VILLAGE HALL DENBIGH ROAD TREFNANT £2,250.40 -£1,800.32 -£450.08 £0.00 £337.56 £337.56 £225.04 No Change 0

Saving to DCCCurrent Charges

P
age 407



20126549 AGE CONCERN NORTH WALES CENTRAL UNITS 2 & 3 GRD FLR UNITS 10 & 11 1ST FLR 12/14 HALL SQUARE £2,691.20 -£2,152.96 -£538.24 £0.00 £403.68 £403.68 £269.12 No DRR £403.68 National Charity

20129071 RHUDDLAN BOROUGH TALKING 1 VICTORIA AVENUE PRESTATYN £1,832.80 -£1,466.24 -£366.56 £0.00 £274.92 £274.92 £183.28 No Change 0

20134809 LLANELIDAN VILLAGE HALL CMT'E PRIMARY SCHOOL LLANELIDAN RUTHIN £1,044.00 -£835.20 -£208.80 £0.00 £156.60 £156.60 £104.40 No Change 0

20134901 1ST LLANGOLLEN SCOUT GROUP LLANGOLLEN SCOUTS & GUIDES ASSOC WEST STREET LLANGOLLEN £603.20 -£482.56 -£120.64 £0.00 £90.48 £90.48 £60.32 No Change 0

20135686 PRESTATYN ROYAL BRITISH LEGION OLD RADAR STATION HILLSIDE GWAENYSGOR £1,206.40 -£965.12 -£241.28 £0.00 £180.96 £180.96 £120.64 No DRR £180.96 Social Club

20136510 NORTH WALES MUSIC TUITION 1ST FLR ANNSVILLE HIGH STREET RHUDDLAN £1,078.80 -£863.04 -£215.76 £0.00 £161.82 £161.82 £107.88 No Change 0

20151591 PRESTATYN & MELIDEN COMMUNITY 28/30 MELIDEN ROAD PRESTATYN £3,387.20 -£2,709.76 -£677.44 £0.00 £508.08 £508.08 £338.72 No Change 0

20157267 RFCA FOR WALES CADET CENTRE & ACIO CRESCENT ROAD RHYL £7,656.00 -£6,124.80 -£1,531.20 £0.00 £1,148.40 £1,148.40 £765.60 No DRR £1,148.40 Govt funded MOD

20157269 RFCA FOR WALES CADET HUT GAS WORKS LANE PRESTATYN £1,322.40 -£1,057.92 -£264.48 £0.00 £198.36 £198.36 £132.24 No DRR £198.36 Govt funded MOD

20157285 RFCA FOR WALES THE CADET CENTRE FFORDD LAS DENBIGH £1,009.20 -£807.36 -£201.84 £0.00 £151.38 £151.38 £100.92 No DRR £151.38 Govt funded MOD

20157287 RFCA FOR  WALES CADET CENTRE PARK ROAD RUTHIN £1,125.20 -£900.16 -£225.04 £0.00 £168.78 £168.78 £112.52 No DRR £168.78 Govt funded MOD

20157291 RFCA FOR WALES ADJ DINAS BRAN SCHOOL DINBREN ROAD LLANGOLLEN £719.20 -£575.36 -£143.84 £0.00 £107.88 £107.88 £71.92 No DRR £107.88 Govt funded MOD

20157485 CANOLFAN CAE CYMRO ASSOCIATION COMMUNITY CENTRE CLAWDDNEWYDD RUTHIN £3,433.60 -£2,746.88 -£686.72 £0.00 £515.04 £515.04 £343.36 No Change 0

20157647 THE BENEFIT ADVICE SHOP 19 BEDFORD STREET RHYL £2,737.60 -£2,190.08 -£547.52 £0.00 £410.64 £410.64 £273.76 No Change 0

20157943 NACRO CYMRU MARINE VILLA 1 CRESCENT ROAD RHYL £1,624.00 -£1,299.20 -£324.80 £0.00 £243.60 £243.60 £162.40 S49 £162.40 Swap to Hardship

20158042 THE VALE OF LLANGOLLEN CANAL THE ARMOURY BERWYN STREET LLANGOLLEN £1,740.00 -£1,392.00 -£348.00 £0.00 £261.00 £261.00 £174.00 S49 £174.00 Swap to Hardship

20158117 BRITISH AGENCIES FOR ADOPTION 19 BEDFORD STREET RHYL £1,125.20 -£900.16 -£225.04 £0.00 £168.78 £168.78 £112.52 No DRR £168.78 National Charity

20158118 SHELTER CYMRU UNIT D4, MORFA CLWYD MARSH ROAD RHYL £417.60 -£334.08 -£83.52 £0.00 £62.64 £62.64 £41.76 No DRR £62.64 £500k Unrestricted

20158147 ERYRYS YOUTH CLUB ST DAVIDS COMMUNITY CENTRE ERYRYS MOLD £1,392.00 -£1,113.60 -£278.40 £0.00 £208.80 £208.80 £139.20 No Change 0

20158225 RNLI UNIT 9, FFORDD RICHARD DAVIES ST ASAPH BUSINESS PARK ST ASAPH £24,128.00 -£19,302.40 -£4,825.60 £0.00 £3,619.20 £3,619.20 £2,412.80 No DRR £3,619.20 National Charity

20158502 EIRIANFA ASSOCIATION EIRIANFA FACTORY PLACE DENBIGH £5,568.00 -£4,454.40 -£1,113.60 £0.00 £835.20 £835.20 £556.80 No Change 0

20158546 NEWVOL   (DENBIGHSHIRE NAYLOR LEYLAND INSTITUTE WELL STREET RUTHIN £4,361.60 -£3,489.28 -£872.32 £0.00 £654.24 £654.24 £436.16 No Change 0

20159119 VALE OF CLWYD MIND ASSOCIATION 4 ROSEMARY LANE DENBIGH £1,624.00 -£1,299.20 -£324.80 £0.00 £243.60 £243.60 £162.40 No DRR £243.60 £800k unrestricted

20159120 RNLI LIFEBOAT STATION PROMENADE EAST PARADE £22,156.00 -£17,724.80 -£4,431.20 £0.00 £3,323.40 £3,323.40 £2,215.60 No DRR £3,323.40

20160069 LLANGOLLEN RAILWAY TRUST LIMITED LLANGOLLEN STATION ABBEY ROAD LLANGOLLEN £12,760.00 -£10,208.00 -£2,552.00 £0.00 £1,914.00 £1,914.00 £1,276.00 S49 £1,276.00 Swap to Hardship

20160081 WEST RHYL YOUNG PEOPLES PROJECT WEST RHYL YOUNG PEOPLES CENTRE 17 BEDFORD STREET RHYL £4,408.00 -£3,526.40 -£881.60 £0.00 £661.20 £661.20 £440.80 No Change 0

20160467 THE LANDMARK TRUST DOLBELYDR TREFNANT DENBIGH £1,392.00 -£1,113.60 -£278.40 £0.00 £208.80 £208.80 £139.20 No DRR £208.80 National Charity

20160654 CITIZENS ADVICE BUREAU 23 HIGH STREET DENBIGH £5,800.00 -£4,640.00 -£1,160.00 £0.00 £870.00 £870.00 £580.00 No Change 0

20160930 THE GOODMAN & RUTHIN CHARITY LLYS GOODMAN CHURCH WALKS RUTHIN £928.00 -£742.40 -£185.60 £0.00 £139.20 £139.20 £92.80 No Change 0

20160979 LLANGOLLEN MUSEUM LIMITED LLANGOLLEN MUSEUM PARADE STREET LLANGOLLEN £8,236.00 -£6,588.80 -£1,647.20 £0.00 £1,235.40 £1,235.40 £823.60 S49 £823.60 Swap to Hardship

20161247 CYMDEITHAS TAI CLWYD 52 VALE STREET DENBIGH £289.21 -£231.37 -£57.84 £0.00 £43.38 £43.38 £28.92 No DRR £43.38 Housing Association

20161352 SUSTRANS LIMITED 2ND FLOOR 17 WELL STREET RUTHIN £366.56 -£293.25 -£73.31 £0.00 £54.98 £54.98 £36.66 No change 0

20161426 CYMDEITHAS TAI CLWYD CYF 4 WYNNS PARK COTTAGES YSTRAD ROAD DENBIGH £812.00 -£649.60 -£162.40 £0.00 £121.80 £121.80 £81.20 No DRR £121.80 Housing Association

20161816 SOCIETY OF JESUS TRUST OF 1929 ST BEUNO'S COLLEGE RHUALLT ROAD TREMEIRCHION £11,136.00 -£8,908.80 -£2,227.20 £0.00 £1,670.40 £1,670.40 £1,113.60 No DRR £1,670.40 National Charity

20161964 RHYL SHOPMOBILITY 155 HIGH STREET RHYL £3,944.00 -£3,155.20 -£788.80 £0.00 £591.60 £591.60 £394.40 No DRR £591.60 Charity Shop

20162113 THE GELLIFOR COMMUNITY CENTRE THE COMMUNITY CENTRE AT GELLIFOR SCHOOL GELLIFOR £1,345.60 -£1,076.48 -£269.12 £0.00 £201.84 £201.84 £134.56 No Change 0

20162410 CLWYD ALYN HOUSING ASSOCIATION CLWYD ALYN HOUSING ASSOCIATION OFFICES AT CRESCENT COURT CRESCENT ROAD £3,294.40 -£2,635.52 -£658.88 £0.00 £494.16 £494.16 £329.44 No DRR £494.16 Housing Association

20162500 KINGS HALL - NEUADD Y BRENIN CLUBROOMS KINGS AVENUE PRESTATYN £1,508.00 -£1,206.40 -£301.60 £0.00 £226.20 £226.20 £150.80 No Change 0

20162995 THE NORTHAMPTON DISTRICT SCOUT YOUTH HOSTEL & GWINDY COTTAGE CYNWYD CORWEN £2,366.40 -£1,893.12 -£473.28 £0.00 £354.96 £354.96 £236.64 No Change 0

20163027 FAMILYLINK INTERNATIONAL 26 B&C, KINMEL STREET RHYL £974.40 -£779.52 -£194.88 £0.00 £146.16 £146.16 £97.44 S49 £97.44 Swap to Hardship

20163346 RHYL STEAM PRESERVATION TRUST MARINE LAKE MINIATURE RAILWAY WESTBOURNE AVENUE RHYL £580.00 -£464.00 -£116.00 £0.00 £87.00 £87.00 £58.00 No Change 0

20163819 LLANFWROG COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION LAND AT JUNCITION OF LON FAWR MWROG STREET RUTHIN £7,076.00 -£5,660.80 -£1,415.20 £0.00 £1,061.40 £1,061.40 £707.60 No Change 0

20163941 CLWYD ALYN HOUSING ASSOCIATION 72, FFORDD WILLIAM MORGAN ST ASAPH BUSINESS PARK ST ASAPH £72,848.00 -£58,278.40 -£14,569.60 £0.00 £10,927.20 £10,927.20 £7,284.80 No DRR £10,927.20 Housing Association

20163948 NORTH WALES INTERNATIONAL COUNCIL OFFICES UPPER DENBIGH ROAD ST ASAPH £614.80 -£491.84 -£122.96 £0.00 £92.22 £92.22 £61.48 No Change 0

20163956 ST KENTIGERN HOSPICE UNITS 5-12 VICTORIA TRADING ESTATE ABERGELE ROAD BODELWYDDAN £4,454.40 -£3,563.52 -£890.88 £0.00 £668.16 £668.16 £445.44 No DRR £668.16 Charity Shop

20164123 W C V A OFFICES - MORFA HALL BATH STREET RHYL £14,732.00 -£11,785.60 -£2,946.40 £0.00 £2,209.80 £2,209.80 £1,473.20 S49 £1,473.20 Swap to Hardship

20164153 LING TRUST LTD Y FELIN AND HOLIDAY COTTAGES CARROG CORWEN £487.20 -£389.76 -£97.44 £0.00 £73.08 £73.08 £48.72 S48 £48.72 Swap to Hardship

20164541 FAMILYLINK INTERNATIONAL 26A, KINMEL STREET RHYL £426.88 -£341.50 -£85.38 £0.00 £64.04 £64.04 £42.69 S49 £42.69 Swap to Hardship

20164616 VISION SUPPORT ROOMS GFO2-GF04 GF06 GF07 & GF10 - MORFA HALL BATH STREET £2,459.20 -£1,967.36 -£491.84 £0.00 £368.88 £368.88 £245.92 No DRR £368.88 £1.4m unrestricted

20164635 VALE OF CLWYD MIND UNIT 3, STATION SQUARE RAILWAY STATION RHYL £2,157.60 -£1,726.08 -£431.52 £0.00 £323.64 £323.64 £215.76 No DRR £323.64 £800k unrestricted

20164746 COMMUNITY TRANSPORT ASSOCIATION ROOMS SF7A SF08 & SF12 MORFA HALL BATH STREET £2,459.20 -£1,967.36 -£491.84 £0.00 £368.88 £368.88 £245.92 No Change 0

20164857 NEWVOL (DENBIGHSHIRE UNIT W4, MORFA CLWYD MARSH ROAD RHYL £454.72 -£363.78 -£90.94 £0.00 £68.21 £68.21 £45.47 No Change 0

20164858 SHELTER CYMRU UNIT 5, STATION SQUARE RAILWAY STATION RHYL £3,294.40 -£2,635.52 -£658.88 £0.00 £494.16 £494.16 £329.44 No DRR £494.16 £500k Unrestricted

20165120 ST KENTIGERN HOSPICE UNIT 15 VICTORIA TRADING ESTATE ABERGELE ROAD BODELWYDDAN £464.00 -£371.20 -£92.80 £0.00 £69.60 £69.60 £46.40 No DRR £69.60 Charity Shop

20165181 RSPCA VALE OF CLWYD BRANCH 1 VAUGHAN STREET RHYL £1,554.40 -£1,243.52 -£310.88 £0.00 £233.16 £233.16 £155.44 S49 £155.44 Swap to Hardship

20165484 ROE PLAS MEADOWS CHARITY COUNCIL MEETING ROOM HIGH STREET ST ASAPH £1,044.00 -£835.20 -£208.80 £0.00 £156.60 £156.60 £104.40 No Change 0

20165797 GRWP LLANDRILLO MENAI PEN Y BRYN CROWN LANE DENBIGH £1,647.20 -£1,317.76 -£329.44 £0.00 £247.08 £247.08 £164.72 No Change 0

20165877 VALE OF CLWYD MIND ASSOCATION 15 BEDFORD STREET RHYL £1,832.80 -£1,466.24 -£366.56 £0.00 £274.92 £274.92 £183.28 No DRR £274.92 £800k unrestricted

20165908 CYNNIG GLYNDWR CYF UNIT B3, TREM Y DYFFRYN COLOMENDY INDUSTRIAL ESTATE DENBIGH £823.60 -£658.88 -£164.72 £0.00 £123.54 £123.54 £82.36 No Change 0

20165909 CYNNIG GLYNDWR CYF UNIT B4, TREM Y DYFFRYN COLOMENDY INDUSTRIAL ESTATE DENBIGH £823.60 -£658.88 -£164.72 £0.00 £123.54 £123.54 £82.36 No Change 0

20165931 CLWYD ALYN HOUSING ASSOCIATION NEW HORIZON/GORWEL NEWYDD 76-82 WEST PARADE RHYL £2,691.20 -£2,152.96 -£538.24 £0.00 £403.68 £403.68 £269.12 No DRR £403.68 Housing Association

20165933 THE ROYAL BRITISH LEGION 15 WELL STREET RUTHIN £1,508.00 -£1,206.40 -£301.60 £0.00 £226.20 £226.20 £150.80 No DRR £226.20 National Charity

20166005 THE SCALA PRESTATYN COMPANY LTD SCALA CINEMA & ARTS CENTRE 43-49 HIGH STREET PRESTATYN £11,136.00 -£8,908.80 -£2,227.20 £0.00 £1,670.40 £1,670.40 £1,113.60 S49 £1,113.60 Swap to Hardship

20166227 DENBIGHSIRE HOME-START LTD UNIT A4 TREM Y DYFFRYN COLOMENDY INDUSTRIAL E £1,925.60 -£1,540.48 -£385.12 £0.00 £288.84 £288.84 £192.56 No Change 0

20166564 CYFLE   BARNARDO'S CYMRU UNIT 2 PANTON HOUSE PANTON HALL DENBIGH £3,526.40 -£2,821.12 -£705.28 £0.00 £528.96 £528.96 £352.64 No DRR £528.96 National Charity

20166569 DENBIGHSHIRE VOLUNTARY SERVICES UNIT W1, MORFA CLWYD MARSH ROAD RHYL £450.08 -£360.06 -£90.02 £0.00 £67.52 £67.52 £45.01 No Change 0

20166882 CYMRYD RHAN LTD CROWN HOUSE CROWN LANE DENBIGH £638.00 -£510.40 -£127.60 £0.00 £95.70 £95.70 £63.80 No Change 0

20166936 THE STROKE ASSOCIATION UNIT 2 AT UNIT 56 CWRT CARLTON/CARLTON COURT FFORDD WILLIAM MORGAN £11,368.00 -£9,094.40 -£2,273.60 £0.00 £1,705.20 £1,705.20 £1,136.80 No DRR £1,705.20 National Charity

20166997 MENTER IAITH SIR DDINBYCH 1ST FLOOR STUDIO DIAMOND BUILDINGS 6 HIGHGATE £2,088.00 -£1,670.40 -£417.60 £0.00 £313.20 £313.20 £208.80 No Change 0

20167037 LING TRUST LTD SANDRINGHAM HOUSE THE SQUARE CORWEN £939.60 -£751.68 -£187.92 £0.00 £140.94 £140.94 £93.96 S49 £93.96 Swap to Hardship

20167145 NACRO CYMRU 15A BRIDGE STREET DENBIGH £1,206.40 -£965.12 -£241.28 £0.00 £180.96 £180.96 £120.64 S49 £120.64 Swap to Hardship

20167206 UNLLAIS MENTAL HEALTH AGENCY 1ST FLOOR 11 VALE STREET DENBIGH £1,392.00 -£1,113.60 -£278.40 £0.00 £208.80 £208.80 £139.20 No Change 0

P
age 408



20167256 DENBIGHSHIRE VOLUNTARY SERVICES UNIT W11 MORFA CLWYD MARSH ROAD £464.00 -£371.20 -£92.80 £0.00 £69.60 £69.60 £46.40 No Change 0

20167306 MARIE CURIE CANCER CARE UNIT W8, MORFA CLWYD MARSH ROAD RHYL £454.72 -£363.78 -£90.94 £0.00 £68.21 £68.21 £45.47 No DRR £68.21 National Charity

20167307 MARIE CURIE CANCER CARE UNIT W9, MORFA CLWYD MARSH ROAD RHYL £454.72 -£363.78 -£90.94 £0.00 £68.21 £68.21 £45.47 No DRR £68.21 National Charity

20167308 MARIE CURIE CANCER CARE UNIT W10 MORFA CLWYD MARSH ROAD £459.36 -£367.49 -£91.87 £0.00 £68.90 £68.90 £45.94 No DRR £68.90 National Charity

20167342 ABANDONED ANIMALS ASSOCIATION LITTLE PYDEW FARM FFORDD FFYNNON PRESTATYN £2,157.60 -£1,726.08 -£431.52 £0.00 £323.64 £323.64 £215.76 No DRR £323.64 £400k unrestricted

20167362 YSGOL EMMANUEL UNIT 1 VICTORIA BUSINESS PARK VICTORIA ROAD £3,340.80 -£2,672.64 -£668.16 £0.00 £501.12 £501.12 £334.08 No Change 0

20167366 YSGOL EMMANUEL UNIT 4 VICTORIA BUSINESS PARK VICTORIA ROAD £2,459.20 -£1,967.36 -£491.84 £0.00 £368.88 £368.88 £245.92 No Change 0

20167367 YSGOL EMMANUEL UNIT 3 VICTORIA BUSINESS PARK VICTORIA ROAD £1,624.00 -£1,299.20 -£324.80 £0.00 £243.60 £243.60 £162.40 No Change 0

20167382 SALFORD COMMUNITY LEISURE LTD THE SALFORDS CHILDRENS HOLIDAY CAMP 86 VICTORIA ROAD WEST PRESTATYN £1,554.40 -£1,243.52 -£310.88 £0.00 £233.16 £233.16 £155.44 No DRR £233.16 National Charity

20167557 DENBIGHSHIRE CARE & REPAIR UNIT A11, COLOMENDY BUSINESS UNITS TREM Y DYFFRYN COLOMENDY INDUSTRIAL E £2,644.80 -£2,115.84 -£528.96 £0.00 £396.72 £396.72 £264.48 No Change 0

20167582 WALES & WEST HOUSING ASSOCIATION COMMUNAL AREAS NANT Y MOR MARINE ROAD £10,092.00 -£8,073.60 -£2,018.40 £0.00 £1,513.80 £1,513.80 £1,009.20 No DRR £1,513.80 Housing Association

20167752 THE CHARITY OF THE SCHOOL BRYNTYSILIO HALL LLANTYSILIO LLANGOLLEN £9,744.00 -£7,795.20 -£1,948.80 £0.00 £1,461.60 £1,461.60 £974.40 S49 £974.40 Swap to Hardship

20167794 RHYL CITY STRATEGY COMMUNITY TASTE ACADEMY EAST PARADE RHYL £6,380.00 -£5,104.00 -£1,276.00 £0.00 £957.00 £957.00 £638.00 No Change 0

20167813 NORTH DENBIGHSHIRE DOMESTIC 10 BRIGHTON ROAD RHYL £2,505.60 -£2,004.48 -£501.12 £0.00 £375.84 £375.84 £250.56 No Change 0

20167853 PRESTATYN HIGH SCHOOL PTA 3-5 WELLINGTON ROAD RHYL £1,627.18 -£1,301.74 -£325.44 £0.00 £244.08 £244.08 £162.72 No Change 0

20167853 PRESTATYN HIGH SCHOOL PTA 3-5 WELLINGTON ROAD RHYL £5,125.61 -£4,100.49 -£1,025.12 £0.00 £768.84 £768.84 £512.56 No Change 0

20167887 DIAL A RIDE (DENBIGHSHIRE) LTD UNITS W6 & W7 MORFA CLWYD MARSH ROAD £1,299.20 -£1,039.36 -£259.84 £0.00 £194.88 £194.88 £129.92 No Change 0

20167921 AUTISM INITIATIVES UK 3 CROWN MEWS CROWN LANE DENBIGH £3,016.00 -£2,412.80 -£603.20 £0.00 £452.40 £452.40 £301.60 No DRR £452.40 National Charity

20167934 W C V A ROOM FF04 MORFA HALL BATH STREET £649.60 -£519.68 -£129.92 £0.00 £97.44 £97.44 £64.96 S49 £64.96 Swap to Hardship

20167964 DENBIGHSHIRE VOLUNTARY SERVICES UNIT C3 MORFA CLWYD BUSINESS CENTRE MARSH ROAD RHYL £1,276.00 -£1,020.80 -£255.20 £0.00 £191.40 £191.40 £127.60 No Change 0

20167984 THE PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH OF WALES SALEM CHAPEL WARREN ROAD RHYL £2,505.60 -£2,004.48 -£501.12 £0.00 £375.84 £375.84 £250.56 No DRR £375.84 Church

20168074 THE ROYAL BRITISH LEGION 4, WHITE ROSE CENTRE HIGH STREET RHYL £15,892.00 -£12,713.60 -£3,178.40 £0.00 £2,383.80 £2,383.80 £1,589.20 No DRR £2,383.80 Charity Shop

20168100 NORTH EAST WALES SELF ADVOCACY UNIT B10 TREM Y DYFFRYN COLOMENDY INDUSTRIAL ESTATE DENBIGH £835.20 -£668.16 -£167.04 £0.00 £125.28 £125.28 £83.52 No Change 0

20168307 THE PUBLIC SAFETY CHARITABLE WIFI SITE AT UNIT 92 BOWEN COURT FFORDD WILLIAM MORGAN ST ASAPH BUSINESS PARK £46.40 -£37.12 -£9.28 £0.00 £6.96 £6.96 £4.64 No DRR £6.96 National Charity

20168334 ROYAL AIR FORCES ASSOCIATION 11, WHITE ROSE CENTRE HIGH STREET RHYL £20,880.00 -£16,704.00 -£4,176.00 £0.00 £3,132.00 £3,132.00 £2,088.00 No DRR £3,132.00 National Charity

20168337 ROYAL AIR FORCES ASSOCIATION UNIT F, WHITE ROSE CENTRE HIGH STREET RHYL £26,912.00 -£21,529.60 -£5,382.40 £0.00 £4,036.80 £4,036.80 £2,691.20 No DRR £4,036.80 National Charity

20168562 WALSH FUNDRAISING ANGLIA HOUSE (STATION YARD) NEWMARKET ROAD DYSERTH £15,544.00 -£12,435.20 -£3,108.80 £0.00 £2,331.60 £2,331.60 £1,554.40 No DRR £2,331.60 National Charity

20168585 THE VALE OF LLANGOLLEN CANAL OLD ARMOURY BUILDING BERWYN STREET LLANGOLLEN £812.00 -£649.60 -£162.40 £0.00 £121.80 £121.80 £81.20 S49 £81.20 Swap to Hardship

20168672 THE PUBLIC SAFETY CHARITABLE WIFI @ 4 WELLINGTON ROAD RHYL £46.40 -£37.12 -£9.28 £0.00 £6.96 £6.96 £4.64 No DRR £6.96 National Charity

20168715 CYMDEITHAS TAI CLWYD CYF 56 VALE STREET DENBIGH £823.60 -£658.88 -£164.72 £0.00 £123.54 £123.54 £82.36 No DRR £123.54 Housing Association

20168734 DIAL A RIDE (NORTH DENBIGHSHIRE) UNIT E7, MORFA CLWYD INDUSTRIAL CENTRE MARSH ROAD £1,160.00 -£928.00 -£232.00 £0.00 £174.00 £174.00 £116.00 No Change 0

20168779 THE TRUSTEES OF HENLLAN PUBLIC CONVENIENCE TY COCH STREET HENLLAN £580.00 -£464.00 -£116.00 £0.00 £87.00 £87.00 £58.00 No Change 0

20168784 THE PUBLIC SAFETY CHARITABLE WIFI AT 8A BODFOR STREET RHYL £46.40 -£37.12 -£9.28 £0.00 £6.96 £6.96 £4.64 No DRR £6.96 National Charity

20168786 ACCESS 2 ADVOCACY 30 BEDFORD STREET RHYL £1,786.40 -£1,429.12 -£357.28 £0.00 £267.96 £267.96 £178.64 No Change 0

20168817 NACRO CYMRU CLWYD BUILDINGS CLWYD STREET RHYL £11,368.00 -£9,094.40 -£2,273.60 £0.00 £1,705.20 £1,705.20 £1,136.80 S49 £1,136.80 Swap to Hardship

20168819 CYMDEITHAS TAI CLWYD CYF UNIT A8, COLOMENDY BUSINESS UNITS TREM Y DYFFRYN COLOMENDY INDUSTRIAL E £2,923.20 -£2,338.56 -£584.64 £0.00 £438.48 £438.48 £292.32 No DRR £438.48 Housing Association

20168842 AGE CONCERN NORTH WALES CENTRAL UNIT 16 AT 12/14 HALL SQUARE DENBIGH £150.80 -£120.64 -£30.16 £0.00 £22.62 £22.62 £15.08 No DRR £22.62 National Charity

20168877 THE PUBLIC SAFETY CHARITABLE WIFI SITE AT 1 VALE STREET DENBIGH £9.41 -£7.53 -£1.88 £0.00 £1.41 £1.41 £0.94 No DRR £1.41 National Charity

20168881 CLWYD LEISURE LIMITED 24, WHITE ROSE CENTRE HIGH STREET RHYL £14,616.00 -£11,692.80 -£2,923.20 £0.00 £2,192.40 £2,192.40 £1,461.60 Swap £730.80 To 100% DRR

20169072 THE SOUTH DENBIGHSHIRE COMMUNITY CANOLFAN BLAS AR FYW LONDON ROAD CORWEN £3,340.80 -£2,672.64 -£668.16 £0.00 £501.12 £501.12 £334.08 No Change 0

20169159 THE PUBLIC SAFETY CHARITABLE WIFI SITE AT 79 HIGH STREET PRESTATYN £46.40 -£37.12 -£9.28 £0.00 £6.96 £6.96 £4.64 No DRR £6.96 National Charity

20169185 NSPCC NSPCC/CHILDLINE AT TRIGG HOUSE WARREN DRIVE PRESTATYN £16,269.87 -£13,015.90 -£3,253.97 £0.00 £2,440.48 £2,440.48 £1,626.99 No DRR £2,440.48 National Charity

20169334 JIGSAW A3 HANOVER BUSINESS CENTRE THE ROE ST ASAPH £139.98 -£111.98 -£28.00 £0.00 £21.00 £21.00 £14.00 No Change 0

20169364 RHYL SEA CADETS UNIT 1 WESTBOURNE AVENUE RHYL £4,093.37 -£3,274.70 -£818.67 £0.00 £614.00 £614.00 £409.34 S49 £409.34 Swap to Hardship

( 183 rows)

£687,635.92 -£550,108.75 -£137,527.17 £0.00 £103,145.38 £103,145.38 £68,763.59 £63,516.13

P
age 409



P
age 410

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 

DCC Rate Relief Criteria 

 
1 Introduction  
 
If an organisation occupies a property on which it pays National Non Domestic 
Rates (NNDR) it may be eligible for up to 100% Discretionary Rate Relief if it 
is operated within some or all of the following guidelines appropriate to the 
particular organisation. 
 
The guidelines for determining relief are not intended to be a rigid set of rules; 
neither are all the guidelines applicable to every organisation. Each case will 
be judged on its merits taking into account the contribution which each 
organisation / business makes to the County’s amenities, objectives and its 
residents’ lifestyles and wellbeing.    
 
 
2 Qualifying Property  
 

Property Eligible for Rate Relief   Rate Relief  Amount of Relief  

Property wholly or mainly used for 
charitable purposes which is occupied by a 
registered charity or registered Community 
Amateur Sports Club (CASC) or can 
clearly demonstrate it meets the conditions 
set down in the Charities Act 2006 & 2011. 

 

Mandatory 

Discretionary  
  

80% 
 
 
20% (maximum) 

Property, all or part of which is occupied 
for the purposes of a non-profit making: 
 
a) Institution or other organisation whose 
main objects are philanthropic or religious 
or concerned with social welfare, 
education, science, literature or the fine 
arts. 
 
b) Club ,society or other organisation and    
  is used for the purposes of recreation.    
 

 
 
 
               
Discretionary  

 
 
 
 
100% (maximum)  

Property, all or part of which is occupied 
for the purposes of a profit making 
organisation 

Discretionary 100% (maximum) 

Charity Shop – where solely or mainly 
selling donated goods 

Mandatory 
 

80% 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 411



 
3 Scope 
 
The guidelines will be adhered to by all staff and members involved with 
consideration of Rate Relief applications. 
 
 
 
4 Applications  
 
Applications must be supported by the organisation’s constitution, main 
purposes and objectives e.g. written constitution, memorandum of 
association, membership rules etc.  For registered charities these will be 
available to view on the Charity Commission website. 
 
For an established body a full set of audited accounts for the latest financial 
year at the application date will be required to be supplied.  If the applicant is 
a newly formed organisation or company then a copy of the projected 
accounts with the business plan will be required. 
 
Details will be required as to how the organisations / businesses meet the 
criteria within the guidelines. 
 
Applications from excepted businesses / organisations that cannot be 
considered are those occupied by a billing or precepting authority e.g. Parish, 
District or County councils or Police Authorities.  
 
5 Period of Relief 
 
Relief will be granted for up to a maximum period of two years at a time, 
however interim reviews will be conducted on an annual basis. The granting 
of relief will be reviewed at the conclusion of this period and those in receipt of 
relief will be asked to supply or confirm relevant information for the purposes 
of the review. 
 
6 Approval 
 
Initial recommendations are to be made by the Revenues Officer (NNDR) with 
final approval from the Head of Revenues and Benefits. 
 
Applicants will be notified in writing of any decision whether they are 
successful or not.  A revised bill will be sent where appropriate.   
 
There is no stated time limit for applications to be made in respect of 
discretionary relief; however authorities must determine applications within six 
months after the end of the financial year for which the application for relief is 
made. If a decision is not made on an application until more than 6 months 
after the end of the financial year in respect of which the application is made, 
the decision is invalid.  
 

Page 412



 
7 Legal Powers 
 
Relief is granted in accordance with the following legislation as appropriate: 

• Section 43 of the Local Government Finance Act (LGFA) 1988 

• Section 47 LGFA 1988 

• Section 47-49 LGFA 1988  

• Section 45 LGFA 1988  
 
 
8 Costs to the Council  
 
Rate Relief Cost Apportionment  
 
Where top up relief is granted, the cost of granting that relief is borne by the 
National Pool and the Tax payers of Denbighshire in the following proportions: 
 

 National 
Pool 

DCC 

Charitable Bodies top up Relief 25% 75% 

Community Amateur Sports Club (CASC)  25% 75% 

Non Profit Making Organisations e.g. 
sports & social Clubs,  

90% 10% 

Hardship Discretionary Relief  75% 25%  

Profit Making Organisations 0 100% 

 
 
9 Rights of Appeal 
 
Unsuccessful applicants should, in the first instance put in writing their 
reasons for not agreeing with any decision to the Revenues Officer (NNDR).  
If they remain aggrieved following the response to this ‘first’ appeal they 
should write to the Head of Revenues and Benefits who will arrange for their 
case to be brought before the Head of Finance and Assets and the Cabinet 
Lead Member. 
 
If the applicant is still aggrieved then following the Liability Order hearing at 
the Magistrates Court they would be required to submit the relevant details to 
the High Court for a Judicial Review.   
   
 
 
 

Page 413



Guidelines Rate Relief 

 
 
Mandatory Relief  
 
This is granted where the ratepayer of a property is a charity or the trustees of 
a charity and 

• the property is wholly/mainly used for charitable purposes (including 
charity shops, where the goods sold are mainly donated and the 
proceeds are used for the purposes of the charity) or 

• the ratepayer of a property is registered with Her Majesty’s Revenues 
and Customs (HMRC) as a Community Amateur Sports Club (CASC). 

 
Registration under the Charities Act 1993 as amended is conclusive 
evidence of charitable status. Bodies which, under the 1993 Act, are 
excepted from registration or are exempt charities are also eligible for 
mandatory relief. 
 
Other organisations, not specifically registered as Charities with the 
Charity Commissioner may also qualify for relief, as long as they can 
meet the charitable objectives as set down by the Charities Act 2006 & 
2011. 
 
CASCs will have a Certificate of Registration issued by HMRC, a copy 
of which will prove their status. 
 
Providing the above criteria are met 80% mandatory relief will be 
granted.  This is fully funded from the National Pool. 

 
 
Discretionary Rate Relief  
 
The Council has the discretion to increase rate relief up to 100% so as to 
reduce the ratepayer’s liability still further and the policies detailed below are 
to be followed when dealing with an application. 
 
When deciding whether to award discretionary rate relief consideration should 
be given to the interests of the taxpayers of Denbighshire as the Council must 
bear a percentage of the cost of any relief granted; the remainder is borne by 
the Non-Domestic Rating Pool.  
 
Discretionary Rate Relief Cost Apportionment 
  

 National 
Pool  

DCC 

Charitable Bodies top up Relief’ 25% 75% 

CASC  25% 75% 

Non Profit Making Organisations  
Sports & social Clubs,  

90% 10% 

Profit Making Organisations 0 100% 

Page 414



 
The guidelines for determining relief are not intended to be a rigid set of rules; 
neither are all the guidelines applicable to every organisation. Each case will 
be judged on its merits taking into account the contribution which each 
organisation / business makes to the County’s amenities and its residents 
lifestyles and wellbeing.    
 
Those organisations applying for relief whose work involves young children, 
young people or vulnerable adults must be able to demonstrate that 
appropriate checks have been carried out on staff and volunteers, and that 
sound child protection policies are in place. 
 
 

Charitable Organisations ‘Top Up’ Discretionary Rate Relief Criteria  
 
Up to 20% Discretionary Rate Relief may be given. However there are some 
exceptions. 
 

• Where the charity is a national or regional charity, rather than a local 
charity, however a locally affiliated charity such as Citizens Advice 
Bureau should be considered.  

• Where the organisation is a Housing Association 

• Where the organisation has either a significant operating surplus 
(above £25k) or in excess of £100k in unrestricted reserves. 

 
Charity Shops  
 
Mandatory relief will be granted where the ratepayer for a property is: 
  

• a charity or the trustees of a charity and  

• donated goods relate to more than 50% of total sales and 

• the proceeds of goods (after any deductions for expenses) are applied 
for the purpose of the charity  

 
Providing the above criteria are met 80% mandatory relief will be granted. 
 
Discretionary Rate Relief will not be awarded in respect of charity shops and 
relief will be limited to the 80% mandatory entitlement.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 415



Not for Profit Organisations, Clubs and Societies 
  
The Council has the discretion to award up to 100% Discretionary Rate Relief 
to organisations whose main objects are charitable or philanthropic, or 
concerned with education, social welfare, science, literature, fine arts or 
recreation. The determination of charitable status largely relies on case law 
which has established 4 main divisions of charity: 

 

• relief of poverty 

• advancement of religion 

• advancement of education and 

• other trusts beneficial to the community and not falling under the other 
headings. 

 
Criteria 
Discretionary relief can only be awarded if the organisation is not excepted (a 
billing authority or precepting authority) and 
 

1 The main objects of the 
organisation are concerned with 

• relief of poverty 

• advancement of religion 

• advancement of education 

• social welfare 

• science 

• literature 

• fine arts  

• recreation  

• in other ways that are 
beneficial to the community 

2 Meets local needs in the County 
and benefits local people 

• If the premises are used for 
the purposes of a national 
organisation or a semi-
national organisation the 
Council will not normally grant 
any discretionary relief. 

 

• If the premises are used for a 
local organisation the extent 
to which the County and its 
residents benefit from the 
organisation will be taken into 
account.  

3 Provides a valuable service to the 
community 

• which is complementary to 
those services provided by or 
supported by the Council or 

 

• which relieves the need for 
the Council to provide such 
services. 

4 Is open to all sections of the • or access is restricted by 

Page 416



community providing a service for a 
specific sector of the 
community for justifiable 
reasons such as addressing 
inequality 

5 Is able to demonstrate that the 
way in which it operates does not 
discriminate against any section of 
the community 

• please see (1) below 

6 Is non-profit making  • as a guide, no more than 12 
months expenditure in 
unrestricted reserves unless a 
Business Plan exists detailing 
how these reserves are to be 
used to the benefit of the local 
community 

 

If the organisation has licensed bar facilities - please see (2) below. 
 
If the organisation requires a membership or entry fee – please see (3) below. 
 

(1) Discrimination 
 

In order to qualify for Discretionary Rate Relief clubs must be able to show 
that all facilities are available to members without discrimination.  
Discrimination includes indirect discrimination and encompasses: 
 

• Discrimination on grounds of ethnicity, nationality, sexual orientation, 
religion or beliefs. 

 

• Discrimination on grounds of sex, age or disability, (except as a 
necessary consequence of the requirements of a particular sport). 

 
This does not prevent a club from having different classes of membership 
depending on: 

• The age of the member 

• Whether the member is a student 

• Whether the member is waged or unwaged 

• Whether the member is a playing or a non-playing member 

• How far from the club the member lives or 

• Any restriction on the days or times when the member has access to 
the club’s facilities 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 417



Sports Clubs 
 
There are additional considerations in the case of sports clubs.  If a club 
effectively discriminates by only accepting members who have already 
reached a certain standard, rather than seeking to promote the attainment of 
excellence by enhancing access and the development of sporting aptitude, 
then it does not have an open membership policy. It follows that a club 
selecting members on the basis of existing attainment would not come within 
the requirements. 
 
Although clubs should be open to all without discrimination, single sex clubs 
may be permitted where such restrictions are not discriminatory in intent but a 
genuine result of physical constraints (such as changing room facilities) or the 
requirements of the sport. 
 
 
(2) Organisations with Licensed Bar Facilities 
 
Sports Clubs/Other Organisations 
  
Any Discretionary Rate Relief award will be aimed at the sporting activity of 
the club. 
 

• If the bar income aids the overall operation and development of the 
organisation this would be allowable as long as the sporting activity 
remains the overall objective of the organisation. It should be noted the 
bar income should be ancillary to primary function, rather than being 
the main function. This will be particularly relevant where the 
organisation is the only such one in the Parish. 

  
 (3) Membership and Entry Fees 
 
If the organisation requires a membership or entry fee the Council will give 
regard as to whether: 
 

• The subscription or fees are set at a high level which excludes the 
general community. 

• Fee reductions are offered for certain groups such as under 18s or 
over 60s. 

• Membership is encouraged from particular groups such as young 
people, older age groups, persons with disabilities or ethnic minorities 

• Facilities are available to people other than members, e.g. schools, 
public sessions. 

• 75% of the Clubs/organisations members should reside in the 
Denbighshire area. 

 
Where the Council gives relief, practice has been to award 100% to Clubs and 
organisations, and 25% to Golf Clubs which operate bar facilities.   
 
 

Page 418



Community Amateur Sports Clubs (CASC) 
 
If a sports club is registered with HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) as a 
CASC it will be entitled to 80% mandatory relief. The club may also be 
awarded 20% discretionary rate relief.  Normally sports clubs that can register 
with HM Revenue & Customs as a CASC and have not done so will not be 
awarded discretionary rate relief.  
 
Details can be found on the HMRC website at: 
http://www.hmrc.gov.uk/casc/index.htm 
 
 
Profit Making Organisations 

With effect from 1st April 2012 The Council has the discretion to award up to 
100% Discretionary Rate Relief to profit making organisations.  Each 
application should be accompanied by a copy of the business plan and 
cashflow forecast for the development plus, in the case of established 
companies, an up to date copy of the current trading accounts plus copies of 
the last two years audited accounts. 

A. A blanket approach, either to give or not to give relief, will not be 
adopted by the Authority, as each application should be considered on 
its own merits. 

B. Any application will consider the impact on the positive promotion of 
Denbighshire and its facilities. 

C. Where the granting of the relief would have an adverse effect on the 
financial interests of local tax payers, the case for reduction of rates 
may still on balance outweigh the cost to the local tax payers.  

D. The 'interests' of local tax payers in an area may go wider than direct 
financial interests. For example, where the employment prospects 
would be worsened by a company transferring to another region 
outside Denbighshire, or the amenities of an area might be reduced by, 
for instance, the loss of the only shop in a village. 

E. Discretionary relief will only be awarded to a business actively trading 
from the address for which the claim is being made. 

F. The relief will normally be awarded in respect of new start up 
companies or expanding companies moving to larger premises, who 
can show that the business will bring new or increased benefit to the 
local community and will develop and enhance the local area. 

G. This relief will be granted for a period of six months. If a further period 
is requested then a further application, accompanied by an up to date 
copy of the current trading accounts is to be provided within 30 days of 
the expiry of this period. 

 

Page 419



Hardship Relief 

Up to 100% relief can be awarded. 

Legislative requirements (Section 49, Local Government Finance Act 1988) - 

The billing authority has the power to reduce the amount a person is liable to 
pay provided the Authority is satisfied that the following apply: 

• The ratepayer would sustain hardship if the authority did not grant 
relief;  And 

• It is reasonable for the Authority to grant the relief having due regard to 
the interests of the Council Tax payers. 

Although there is no statutory definition of hardship some guidance has been 
provided by the government to assist in the consideration of hardship 
applications. 

H. A blanket approach, either to give or not to give relief, should not be 
adopted by the Authority, each application should be considered on its 
own merits 

I. Any relief granted should be the exception rather than the rule 

J. The test of hardship need not be confined to 'financial', all relevant 
factors affecting the ability of a business to meet its liability for rates 
should be taken into account 

K. The 'interests' of local tax payers in an area may go wider than direct 
financial interests. For example, where the employment prospects 
would be worsened by a company going out of business, or the 
amenities of an area might be reduced by, for instance, the loss of the 
only shop in a village 

L. Where the granting of the relief would have an adverse effect on the 
financial interests of local tax payers, the case for reduction of rates 
may still on balance outweigh the cost to the local tax payers.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 420



Council Policy Guidelines for Hardship Relief  

A. Any decision must be balanced against the wider interests of the tax 
payers of the County. 

B. There must be proof that hardship exists. 

C. Evidence must be provided to support the application.  

D. A copy of the previous two years audited accounts for the organisation 
should be provided.  

E. The amount of rates that will be remitted will depend upon the 
circumstances of each case.  

F. Applications will be effective for a specific period and may then be 
reviewed. Relief will be withdrawn on the sale of the business. 

G. The purpose of this policy is to support local businesses in the 
community. 

 

25% of the cost of this relief is met by the Authority. 

 

 

Page 421



Page 422

This page is intentionally left blank



Report To:    Cabinet 
 
Date of Meeting:   14th January 2014 
 
Lead Member/Officer: Julian Thompson-Hill/Paul McGrady 
 
Report Author:  Paul McGrady, Head of Finance & Assets 
 
Title:     Budget 2014/15  
 

 
1. What is the report about?  
The report provides an update of the budget setting process and details 
proposals to be approved by County Council to set the council’s revenue 
budget for 2014/15.   
 
2. What is the reason for making this report?  
The Council is legally required to set a balanced and deliverable budget 
before the start of each financial year and to set the resulting level of Council 
Tax to allow bills to be sent to residents.  
  
3. What are the Recommendations? 
That Cabinet supports the budget proposal for 2014/15 as shown in Appendix 
1 and recommends accordingly to full Council. 
 
That Cabinet recommends the resulting 3.5% increase in the level of Council 
Tax for 2014/15 to full Council. 
 
4. Report details 
Analysis of the Draft Local Government Settlement and the consequences for 
the council indicated that savings of approximately £8.5m would be required. 
This was confirmed in the Final Settlement received in December. 
 
The budget process has so far resulted in savings of £1.7m for 2014/15 being 
approved by County Council in September (Phase 1) and £4.7m (Phase 2) on 
3rd December. The details of these savings are enclosed as Appendix 2.  
 
The Phase 1 savings were items that had been proposed as part of the 
2012/13 and 2013/14 Service Challenge process and had been debated 
accordingly. Phase 2 savings were presented to a member budget workshop 
on 21st October and each proposal was presented by lead cabinet members, 
providing details of the saving, the impact and an assessment of risk. This 
was the second of three budget workshops held to inform the debate around 
the 2014/15 budget. Following the workshop, elected members were invited 
by the Lead Member for Finance & Assets and the Head of Finance & Assets 
to comment on any of the proposals prior to the council meeting in December.  
 
Phases 1 and 2 identified savings of £6.459m, leaving a gap of approximately 
£2.0m to find. This gap was the focus of a third budget workshop held on 
December 9th.  

Agenda Item 10

Page 423



 
The event was attended by 31 members. The papers presented at the 
workshop were circulated in advance to all members and have been 
published on Modern.gov and are therefore available to all members to 
access.  
 
The key theme of the workshop was to present details and options to be 
considered to bridge the £2m budget gap for 2014/15.  
 
The key information presented included: 
 

• An update of the in-year position of social care and education budgets 

• Analysis of school funding  

• Options to increase school budgets 

• Review of balances and reserves 

• Corporate Plan update 

• Council Tax options 

• Additional Savings Proposals 

• Recommendation 

Appendix 1 shows the details of the proposals to bridge the £2m gap. The 
additional saving proposals for 2014/15 relate to bringing forward savings 
previously identified for 2015/16 and total £395k. Of this, £95k relates to 
bringing forward restructures in Business Planning & Performance and £300k 
is the proposed removal of the budgeted contribution to balances one year 
earlier than originally planned. The recommendation included a proposal to 
use a general balances as part of the budget in 2014/15.  Although the 
workshop was an informal event, there was general acceptance of the 
recommendation to balance the budget with further debate required around 
the level of Council Tax increase.  
 
Final budget proposals and the level of Council Tax for 2014/15 will have to 
be agreed by County Council in February 2014. At the latest budget 
workshop, some views were expressed informally about what the level of 
Council Tax increase should be. The options and implications are set out in 
the table below: 
 

 
 
The table shows that at a 3.5% increase, the budget is balanced. At the 
budget workshop there was debate around the level of Council Tax with some 
members requesting consideration of a lower level. 
 

Increase Gross C/Tax Net Additional

Increase Benefit Increase Income

 % £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

2.75% 1,119.31 -279.83 839.48 -228.95 

3.00% 1,221.06 -305.27 915.80 -152.63 

3.50% 1,424.57 -356.14 1,068.43 0.00

4.00% 1,628.08 -407.02 1,221.06 152.63

Page 424



Appendix 1 shows the savings proposals and it is clear that services will find it 
difficult to deliver any further savings in 2014/15 at this stage. This would 
leave balances as the only source of funding to fill any gap left by a lower 
Council Tax. 
 
The proposals in Appendix 1 already include the use of £500k of balances 
and deleting the budget that ‘tops up’ our balances each year. The importance 
of appropriate levels of balances has been highlighted over the past year with 
major flooding events in Ruthin, St Asaph and Rhyl and county wide problems 
with snow as well as an unexpected major claim from our previous insurance 
company. In each case we have been able to respond appropriately in the 
knowledge that funds are available to pay for any response and subsequent 
works. With uncertainties around the future of local government and 
increasing incidents of bad weather reducing balances further is not the most 
desirable course of action. 
 
The use of balances also does not solve the underlying issue – it merely uses 
cash to temporarily plug a permanent hole in the Council’s finances and so 
defers the problem to another day.  The budget for 2014/15 does not allow for 
any service specific cost pressures.  Inflation has been built into the budget 
assumptions corporately to include items such as energy, pay and additional 
employer’s pension costs.  Investment in priorities is proposed at a level of 
£750k.  The delivery of the Corporate Plan is dependent on both budget and 
cash resources to facilitate Prudential Borrowing. 
 
The proposed allocation of investment funding for 2014/15 is: 

 £’000 
 
Modernising Education/21st Century Schools 650 

Highways - Road Improvements 100 

750 
 
The investment in education includes £318k of savings agreed with schools 
as part of the Phase 2 budget savings. The allocation to Highways is match-
funding to the allocation provided by Welsh Government to facilitate borrowing 
for road improvements.  
 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
Effective management of the council’s revenue and capital budgets and 
delivery of the agreed budget strategy underpins activity in all areas, including 
corporate priorities. 
 
The budget proposals contain £750k funding for 21st Century Schools, 
Modernising Education and improving Highways in line with the Corporate 
Plan 
 
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

Page 425



The saving target for 2014/15 is £8.5m. The council’s net revenue budget will 
be £187m compared to £191m in 2012/13. The cash reduction in the council’s 
revenue settlement from Welsh Government is -4.6%.  
 
7. What consultations have been carried out?  
Prior to approval by county Council, the savings agreed so far have been 
discussed with Heads of Service and Lead Members, presented to member 
budget workshops and have been circulated to staff. The final proposals to 
balance the budget have been discussed in detail at a member workshop and 
members have been give the opportunity to raise issues prior to the final 
report going to Council. The Corporate Governance Committee has been 
provided with regular updates as it has an oversight role to the budget 
process.    
 
This is the third formal report with budget recommendations. The previous two 
have also been through workshops, Cabinet and full Council and been 
reviewed by the Corporate Governance Committee. 
 
8. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
The council faces significant financial challenges over the coming years. The 
budget as proposed is realistic and deliverable. It makes sufficient savings to 
balance our position, protects front line services from major reductions and 
allows investment of £750k into Council priorities.  
 
The use of balances as proposed is not ideal, but gives the Council some 
breathing space to develop further savings proposals for 2015/16. The 
Council will still have sufficient balances to deal with any reasonable 
contingencies. 
 
9. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce 

them? 
If the budget is not agreed within the relevant timescale then the Council will 
be breaking the law. This is the most challenging financial period the council 
has faced and failure to deliver the agreed budget strategy will put further 
pressure on services in the current and future financial years. Effective budget 
monitoring and control and early reporting of variances will help ensure that 
the financial strategy is achieved.    
 
The budget process and medium term financial plan assumptions are risks 
identified both in the corporate and departmental risk registers. The corporate 
risk register and mitigating actions is regularly reviewed by CET.  
 
10. Power to make the Decision 
Local authorities are required under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 
1972 to make arrangements for the proper administration of their finances. 
  
  

Page 426



Appendix 1 Budget Proposal 2014/15

Cabinet January 2014

Proposal to Finalise Revenue Budget 2014/15

£'000

Budget Shortfall 2014/15 -2,000

Pensions

300

Funding School Protection

577

Budgeted Contribution to Balances

300 *

Council Tax 

228

Sub Total 1,405

Service Savings Brought Forward from 2015/16

Business Planning & Performance

The Head of Service has proposed that two savings scheduled

for 2015/16 could be brought forward. These are:

Partnerships & Communities Restructure (Phase 2)

68 *

Improvement Team Restructure (Phase 2)

Deletion of a post. 27 *

Total Service Savings Brought Forward 95

Total of Proposals 1,500

Use of Council's General Balances 500 *

Budget Shortfall 2014/15 0

Note - those items marked * will have an impact on 2015/16. 

Bringing savings of £395k forward increases the saving requirement by the same 

amount in 2015/16. Use of balances means that £500k will have to be funded in

2015/16. Bringing savings forward and using balances therefore creates an

additional pressure of £896k in 2015/16.

Passport the additional Deprivation Grant included in the 

Settlement to schools as well as additional corporate investment of 

£322k in school infrastructure through the Corporate Plan. The 

proposal means the council does not need to increase the general 

revenue budget as previously assumed.

A budgeted contribution to balances of £300k was due to be 

deleted as a budget saving in 2015/16. It is proposed to bring this 

forward to 2014/15.

Assume Council Tax is increased by 3.5%. The additional income 

raised is affected by the Council Tax Benefit system which reduces 

the sum by approximately 25%.

This involves the deletion of one post and the transfer of a 

commissioning post to grant funding. The transfer will require WG 

approval.

Revised assumptions around pension costs. Regulations are 

changing from April allowing staff to elect to pay in less and receive 

a smaller pension. Employer's contributions would also reduce. 

Saving is based on actuarial assumtion on level of take-up.

Page 427



Page 428

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 : PHASE 2 SAVING PROPOSALS 2014/15 Phase 1

Service Area Description Savings Agreed

   2014/15 20/14/15 2015/16

CORPORATE  EFFICIENCIES £k £k £k

Reduce Contingency for balances and impact of 

Recession 

Phase out budget provision over 3 years 300

Workforce Efficiencies Includes Removal of Essential Car User Allowance 363

Modernising the Council Agreed target per 2013/14 Budget only - further projects being developed 

and will be apportioned to Services

300

Removal of one-off funds Social Care Additional Funds in 12/13 905

Carbon Reduction Commitment Dropping out of payment scheme 150

Capital Financing Budget Repayment of loans to generate ongoing revenue saving 250

Single Status Scheme now fully implemented, no additional budget needed 315

Property Running Costs Energy efficiency, NNDR reductions 120

Insurance Premiums Negotiated reductions in some premiums 20

Inflation Budget Balance of 2013/14 allocation 142

LDP contribution Reduce Corporate contribution to LDP from £25k p.a to £15k p.a 10

963 1,912 0

SERVICE EFFICIENCIES

 Communication, Marketing & Leisure

Modernise Library Service Provision Better use of space eg Gallery, Museum, TIC, location and suitability of 

some buildings etc

30

Scala Reduced Council subsidy 12

Clwyd Leisure Reduced Council subsidy 50

ECTARC Reduced Council subsidy 10 20

Ruthin Craft Centre Reduce Council's financial support 20

Llangollen Pavilion Reduce Council's financial support 25

Youth Services Reconfiguration of elements of the service 40

147 60 0

Highways & Environmental Services

Renegotiate recyclate and disposal contracts Contracts currently being tendered - increased competition likely to drive 

down prices

27

Environmental Services Other Small savings 10

WAG Waste Target Pressures Increase in Landfill Tax, costs of collection etc -50

Reduced subsidy of School Meal Service Increased take up of meals 50

Management Restructure Integration of Environment & Highways into one structure 400

Emergency Planning Savings arising from joint service with Flintshire 30

Waste Management Efficiencies from investment in transfer station and reduced contribution 

to Sustainable Waste Management Grant reserve

200

Fleet Efficiencies Reduction in vehicle numbers 80

Building Cleaning Renegotiation of Contracts 100

37 810 0

 Planning and Public Protection

Review Pest Control Only carry out statutory part of function 20

Review of Planning Policy Service Reduce LDP contribution 10 10

Review of CCTV service Reduction of overtime costs and collaborative project 0 65

Review of Management Management Restructure 30

60 75 0

Adults & Business  Services
Cefndy Healthcare Planned reduction in Council subsidy 31

Impact of investment in reablement Reduced need for care services as more people are able to live 

independently for longer

75

Residential Care - Impact of Extra Care Less people needing residential care due to preventative services and 

more independent living opportunities

150

Reablement Intervention Reduce need for care services through targetted intervention 13

Telecare Regional partnership will reduce running costs 10

Systems Thinking and Vacancy Control Process improvements to reduce admin and other costs 90

Social Care Regional Board - Procurement Hub Better commissioning of high cost placements 18

Service Managers Streamline Management structure 60

Day & Work Opportunities Modernise Day & Work Opportunities (Learning Disability) 50

Mental Health Services Reduce management commitment within service 46

Welfare Rights Service Channel Shift 50

387 231 0

School Improvement & Inclusion

Special Education Review of Recoupment and Out of County Placements 200

Pupil Support University related fees 8  

ABA Specific budget no longer required 25

Training 20% reduction in budget 6

Outreach Budget Re-alingment 5

Music & Arts Review of Service Provision 52  

0 296 0

Customers & Education Support

Supplies & Services Targeted reduction in spend 30

0 30 0

Children's Services

Budget used to fund external placements for looked 

after Children to reflect revised demand

Currently exceptionally high due to type of placements. These will change 

as certain individuals become adults

64

West Rhyl Young Peoples Project Reduce / remove grant funding 41

Social Care Regional Board - Procurement Hub Better commissioning of high cost placements 17

Legislative changes Cost implications of Southwark Judgement and other legislative changes

Outcome Agreement Funding no longer needed in CS 69

Tir Na Nog Reconfigure service provision 64

Staffing Budgets Adjust budgets to account for staff turnover 195

122 328 0

Housing & Community Development

Various small savings

Review of Economic & Business Development Review of Management Structure 20 30 40

Non HRA Review of commissioning 10 10

20 40 50

Finance & Assets

Property Services Management Restructure and review of process / admin 100 50

Finance Includes not replacing vacant posts and reduction in hours 75 75

Internal Audit Not replacing vacant post and reduction in hours 25  

0 200 125

HR

Training Re provision of service 10 15

Occupational Health Review of service 3

Lead Business Partner Efficiency saving 3

Capital Financing Investment repaid following 2010 Restructure 12

0 28 15

Legal & Democratic Services

Registration of Electors Capacity within the budget for canvassers fees 30

Registrar Improved efficiencies within the service 20

Civics Reduction in resource available for civic events 5

Legal Library Reduce expenditure on publications 8

Administration Review administration provison 20

0 83 0

Business Planning & Performance

Improvement Team Delete Vacant Manager Post 54

Partnership & Communities Team Delete Performance Officer Post 45

Programme Office Reduce Core Funding 13

Partnership & Communities Team Restructure Phase 2 (net savings) 0

0 112 0

Schools

School Reorganisation Non-pupil related elements of budget (Area 2) 150

School Reorganisation Saving related to Formula Review for Middle Schools 80

Schools Release of Non-delegated contingency fund 200

School Reorganisation Non-pupil related elements of budget (Area 1) 88 62

0 518 62

Total Service Savings 773 2,811 252

Total Council Savings 1,736 4,723 252

Total Savings Identified Phases 1 &2 6,459 252

Includes Modernisation Targets of 300

Phase 2

Savings Agreed

Page 429



Page 430

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Additional Budget Savings 2014/15  

14 January 2014 
 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 431



 

 

Additional Budget Savings 2014/15 
 

Contact: 
 

Paul McGrady 

Updated: 14 January 2014 
 

  
 
1. What type of proposal / decision is being assessed? 
 

Other 

 
 

2. What is the purpose of this proposal / decision, and what 
change (to staff or the community) will occur as a result of its 
implementation? 

 

Sets out required savings for 2014/15 

 

3. Does this proposal / decision require an equality impact 
assessment?  If no, please explain why. 

 Please note: if the proposal will have an impact on people (staff or the 
community) then an equality impact assessment must be undertaken 

 

Yes Most of the proposals are of a technical nature and do not 
affect any groups with protected characteristics. The only 
proposal that may impact on specific groups is the proposal 
to increase Council Tax.  

 
 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

Workshops undertaken with Councillors. There is no requirement to publicly 
consult on Council Tax proposals. 

 
 

5. Will this proposal / decision have a positive impact on any of 
the protected characteristics (age; disability; gender-
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and 
maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation)? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

No 

Page 432



 

 

 
 

6. Will this proposal / decision have a disproportionate negative 
impact on any of the protected characteristics (age; disability; 
gender-reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and 
sexual orientation)? 

 

Council Tax is not based on any of the protected characteristics as it is a property 
based tax. It is possible that older people or those with disability may be on lower 
incomes and therefore may face problems with payment. This is offset by the 
means tested Council Tax benefits available to all and the additional pensioner 
grant for Council Tax made available by the WG for 2014/15 

 

7. Has the proposal / decision been amended to eliminate or 
reduce any potential disproportionate negative impact?  If no, 
please explain why. 

 

No See 6 above 

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
No       

 

Action(s) Owner By when? 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Please describe> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

<Unrestrict editing to insert additional rows> <Enter Name> <DD.MM.YY> 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal / decision will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date: as part of the 
2015/16 
budget 
process 

 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

Paul McGrady 14/01/14 
 
 

Page 433



 

 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Page 434



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

 
 
 

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

18 February 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 2 Advocacy Provision for Children 
and young people in North 
Wales 

To commission a regional  
N. Wales advocacy service 
for vulnerable children and 
young people  

Tbc Cllr Bobby Feeley / 
Michelle Hughes 

 3 North Wales Residual Waste 
Project 

To agree contractual 
arrangements for the 
disposal of the council’s 
residual waste. 

Tbc Cllr David Smith / 
Steve Parker / Jim 
Espley 

 4 Street Naming Policy To consider amendments to 
the current Street Naming 
Policy and to adopt the new 
Policy. 

Yes Cllr Huw Jones / 
Hywyn Williams 

 5 Rhyl New School Project To approve the Business 
Case 

Yes Cllr Eryl Williams / 
Jackie Walley 

 6 The National Model for School 
Improvement 

tbc tbc Cllr Eryl Williams / 
Karen Evans 

 7 Response to consultation on 
Town and Areas Plans – Ruthin 
& Prestatyn areas 

To approve the Town and 
Area Plans for Ruthin & 
Prestatyn areas 

tbc Cllr Hugh Evans / 
Rebecca Maxwell / 
Peter McHugh / Tom 

A
genda Item

 12

P
age 435



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

Booty 

 8 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention. 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

25 March 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 2 Corporate Plan QPR: Quarter 3 
2013/14 

To monitor the Council’s 
progress in delivering the 
Corporate Plan 2012 -17 

Tbc Cllr Barbara Smith / 
Tony Ward 

 3 Response to consultation on 
Town and Areas Plans – Rhyl, 
Denbigh & Rhuddlan areas 

To approve the Town and 
Area Plans for Rhyl, Denbigh 
& Rhuddlan areas 

Tbc Cllr Hugh Evans / 
Rebecca Maxwell / 
Peter McHugh / Tom 
Booty 

 4 Procurement Business Case for 
Three Counties 

To consider the Business 
Case 

Yes Cllr Julian Thompson 
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 5 West Rhyl Housing 
Improvement Project 

Detailed design of open 
green space to be 
considered 

Tbc Cllr Hugh Evans / 
Carol L Evans 

 6 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

29 April 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-

P
age 436



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

current financial position of 
the Council 

Hill / Paul McGrady 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention. 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

27 May 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention. 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

June 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 2 Corporate Plan QPR: Quarter 3 
2013/14 

To monitor the Council’s 
progress in delivering the 
Corporate Plan 2012 -17 

Tbc Cllr Barbara Smith / 
Tony Ward 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 

P
age 437



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

February 4 February March 11 March April 10 April 
 
Updated 03/01/14 - KEJ 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 
 

P
age 438



Agenda Item 13

Page 439

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 442

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 443

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 522

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 523

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 526

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 527

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 548

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 549

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 552

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 PROPOSED CLOSURE OF YSGOL LLANBEDR
	YSGOL LLANBEDR - APP A
	YSGOL LLANBEDR - APP B
	YSGOL LLANBEDR - APP C
	YSGOL LLANBEDR - APP D
	YSGOL LLANBEDR - APP E

	6 FRAMEWORK FOR INTEGRATED SERVICES FOR OLDER PEOPLE
	FRAMEWORK FOR INTEGRATED SERVICES OP - APP 1
	FRAMEWORK FOR INTEGRATED SERVICES OP - APP 2

	7 COMMON ALLOCATIONS POLICY - SINGLE ACCESS ROUTE TO HOUSING
	Appendix a - CAP
	Appendix b - sarth cap EIA
	Appendix C - cabinet - jan 14

	8 BUSINESS RATES POLICY DEVELOPMENTS IN WALES
	BUSINESS RATES POLICY DEVELOPMENT - APPENDIX

	9 DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF
	DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF - APP 1
	DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF - APP 2

	10 BUDGET 2014 / 2015
	BUDGET 2014-15 - APP 1
	BUDGET 2014-15 - APP 2
	BUDGET 2014-15 - APP 3 EQIA

	12 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
	13 NORTH WALES SCHOOLS AND PUBLIC BUILDINGS CONTRACTOR FRAMEWORK
	PART 2 - NW SCHOOLS&PUBLIC BLDGS CONTRACT - APP A
	PART 2 - NW SCHOOLS&PUBLIC BLDGS CONTRACT - APP B
	PART 2 - NW SCHOOLS&PUBLIC BLDGS CONTRACT - APP C
	PART 2 - NW SCHOOLS&PUBLIC BLDGS CONTRACT - APP D


